STATE OF CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
SAN FRANCISCO BAY REGION

ITEM:

SUBJECT:

CHRONOLOGY:

DISCUSSION:

RECOMMEND-
ATION:

File Number:

Appendices:

STAFF SUMMARY REPORT (John H. Madigan)
MEETING DATE: November 18, 2009

S5A

Valero Refining Company California, Valero Benicia Refinery, Benicia, Solano
County - Reissuance of NPDES Permit

October 2002 - Permit Reissued

The Valero Benicia Refinery is a petroleum cracking refinery that produces
hydrocarbon products, byproducts, and intermediates. An on-site wastewater
treatment plant treats process wastewater and storm water prior to discharge to
Suisun Bay. The refinery also discharges storm water to Carquinez Strait and
Suisun Bay through several additional outfalls. The reissued permit would
regulate both treated wastewater and storm water discharges.

The reissued permit would require compliance with updated technology-based
and water quality-based limits. The technology-based limits reflect recent
changes in configuration at the refinery. The water quality-based limits are
consistent with State policy and federal regulations. The most significant change
concerning water quality-based limits involve the allowance of a small dilution
credit in calculating selenium effluent limits. USEPA supports this approach
pending completion of a TMDL for selenium.

We received comments (Appendix B) from USEPA, the City of Benicia, the
Western States Petroleum Association, Valero, and the Partnership for Sound
Science in Environmental Policy on a draft permit distributed for review.
Appendix C contains our responses to those comments. We resolved all of the
comments, modifying the draft permit as appropriate. The attached Revised
Tentative Order (Appendix A) reflects these modifications. We expect this item
to remain uncontested.

Adoption of the Revised Tentative Order.
2129.2004 (JHM)
A. Revised Tentative Order

B. Comments
C. Response to Comments



APPENDIX A

Revised Tentative Order



California Regional Water Quality Control Board

Linda S. Adams

Secretary for
Environmental Protection

San Francisco Bay Region

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400, Oakland CA 94612
(510) 622-2300 * Fax (510) 622-2460
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay

Arnold Schwarzenegger
Governor

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

The following Discharger is subject to waste discharge requirements as set forth in this Order.

Table 1.

Discharger
Name of Facility
Facility Address

Discharger Information

Valero Refining Company - California
Valero Benicia Refinery

3400 East Second Street

Benicia, CA 94510

Solano County

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the Regional Water Quality Control Board have
classified this discharge as a major discharge.

Discharges by the Valero Benicia Refinery from the discharge points identified below are subject to
waste discharge requirements as set forth in this Order.

Table 2.

Discharge Location

Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge Point
Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving Water

001

Treated refinery wastewater

38°,03°, 18" N

122°,07°,07” W

Suisun Bay

002

Storm water from 1.8 acres, discharged at
NW corner of WWTP area

38°,03°,53” N

122°,07°,37” W

Suisun Bay

003

Storm water from refinery property, 18.6
acres total, discharged at north end of
Avenue A to Sulfur Springs Creek

38°,04°,49” N

122°,08’, 12” W

Suisun Bay

004

Storm water from 0.5-acre gravel area
between 1st Street and railway on south
side of st Street, discharged west of
Gate 4 into eastern end of Beaver Creek

38°,03°,59” N

122°,07°, 58" W

Suisun Bay

005

Storm water from 68.9 acres west of
processing area, discharged west of Gate
4 into western end of Beaver Creek

38°,03°,58” N

122°,08°, 057 W

Suisun Bay

006

Storm water from 35.5 acres beneath the
refinery crude pipeline, including the
Crude Oil Storage Area (COSA) tank
farm, discharged on the south side of
Park Road to Sulfur Springs Creek

38°,03°,50” N

122°,07°, 57" W

Suisun Bay

007

Storm water from 0.7-acre gravel and
paved area near Gate 4, discharged east
of Gate 4 to Buffalo Wallow

38°,04°,02” N

122°,07°, 54 W

Suisun Bay

008

Storm water from 0.9-acre gravel area
along the railway and the refinery fence
line, discharged east of Gate 4 to Buffalo
Wallow

38°,04°,02” N

122°,07°,53” W

Suisun Bay




Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge Point
Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving Water

009

Storm water from 0.3-acre gravel and
paved area between the railway and
Avenue A and adjacent to the Upper
Level Tank Farm (ULTF), discharged on
the SE side of the processing area to
Sulfur Springs Creek

38°,04°,12” N

122°,07°, 53" W

Suisun Bay

010

Storm water from 63.8-acre gravel and
paved area between the railway and
Avenue A and adjacent to the ULTF,
discharged on the SE side of the
processing area to Sulfur Springs Creek

38%,04°,12” N

122°,07°,53” W

Suisun Bay

011

Storm water from 0.4 acres beneath the
refinery crude pipeline on the north side
of Park Road, discharged on the north
side of Park Road to Sulfur Springs
Creek

38°,03°,52” N

122°,07°, 57" W

Suisun Bay

012

Storm water from 0.78-acre primarily
gravel (10% paved) area under the crude
pipeline southwest of the crude tank
field, discharged to City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez
Strait

38°03'15" N

122°08'19" W

Carquinez Strait

013

Storm water from 1.2-acre (5% paved)
area under the crude pipeline southwest
of Outfall 012, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and
ultimately to Carquinez Strait

38°03'08" N

122°08"25" W

Carquinez Strait

014

Storm water from 0.35-acre unpaved area
under the crude pipeline south of Outfall
013, discharged to City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez
Strait.

38°03'03" N

122°08'23" W

Carquinez Strait

015

Storm water from 0.50-acre unpaved area
under the crude pipeline southeast of
Outfall 014, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and
ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

38°02'50" N

122°07'55" W

Carquinez Strait

016

Storm water from 0.1 acres beneath the
refinery crude pipeline south of Outfall
15 near the refinery dock, discharged via
culvert to Carquinez Strait

38°,02°,44” N

122°,07°,45” W

Carquinez Strait

017

Storm water from approximately 12 acres
at the Asphalt Plant, collected in a
holding tank before discharge to Buffalo
Wallow

38°,03°,58” N

122°,08°, 05” W

Suisun Bay

Table 3. Administrative Information

This Order was adopted by the Regional Water Board on:

November 18, 2009

This Order shall become effective on:

January 1, 2010

This Order shall expire on:

December 31, 2014

The Discharger shall file a Report of Waste Discharge in accordance with Title 23,
California Code of Regulations, as application for issuance of new waste discharge
requirements no later than:

180 days prior to the Order
expiration date




I, Bruce H. Wolfe, Executive Officer, do hereby certify that this Order with all attachments is a full,
true, and correct copy of an Order adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San
Francisco Bay Region, on November 18, 2009.

Bruce H. Wolfe, Executive Officer



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table of Contents

I Facility INfOrMAtION .......ocuiiiiiiiiieiieeiiece ettt ettt ettt et e st e esbeessaeenbeesseessbeenseesnseans 6
0 R S 13T 1 £ F USSR 6
III.  DiScharge Prolibitions........cccuieiuieiiieiiieiiieiie ettt ettt ettt et e e te et e ebeessaesbeessaeenseensaesnseenseenens 12
IV. Effluent Limitations and Discharge SpecifiCations ...........ccceeevuiieeiiieriiiresiieecieeeeiee e evee e 12
A. Effluent Limitations — Discharge Point 001 ...........ccccoeiiiiriiiiiiiniieiecee e 12

B. Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 — 011 and 016 - 017 ..................... 16

C. Land Discharge SpecifiCationS .........ccueevieriieriierieeiiesieeieeeteeitesiieereesaeeteessteebeessaeenseesssaens 16

D. Reclamation SPECIfICAtIONS ......ccueiiiiieeiiieeiiie et ettt e etee e et e e et eesreeessaeeessseeenseeeseees 17

V.  Receiving Water LIMITAtIONS .......cccuiiiiieriieeiieiie et eeiie et esiee et esiee et eseteebeeseaesbeessaeenseessseenseenseenens 17
VL PLrOVISIONS ...ttt ettt ettt et e e h bt et e s at e e bt e eab e e beesabe e bt e enbeesabeenbeesateenbeenene 18
A, Standard PrOVISIONS .......oeouiiiiiieiieeiiete ettt ettt e et e st e ebeestteesbeessbeenseesseeenseensseenseas 18

B. Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP) Requirements............cccceeeeieeniieesiieencieeeeeeeeee 18

C.  SPECIAL PrOVISIONS ...eiiuiiiiiiiiieiieeiteeiie et et e et et e et estteeabeesstesnteessaeasseessaeenseensseenseenssesnseennsaans 18

1. REOPENET PIOVISIONS ...cciiiiiiiiiieiiiieeiieeeitte et e et e e e tee e e eeeeeteeesbeeesseeessseeesnseeessseeenseesnseas 18

2. Special Studies and Additional MONItOTING ........cccceevuieriiiiiieriieiieeie et 19

3. Best Management Practices and Pollution Minimization ............ccccceeeeveeeiieeeiveeeeneeeeenen. 21

4. Other SPecial PrOVISIONS .......c.coiiieiierieeiieiiieeiterie et eeiee et site et eeeesnbeeseesnbeeseesnseenseeenne 23

Tables

Table 1. Discharger Information ...........c.ooiiiiiiioii et 1
Table 2. DiSCharge LOCAtION. ......cc.eeiiiiiiieii ettt ettt ettt sat e et e s b e ebeesabeenseesnbeenseesnsaens 1
Table 3.  Administrative InfOrmation...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2
Table 4.  Facility INfOrmMation...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiieiiecie ettt ettt et e e teesaaeesaeeseeeaeeens 6
Table 5.  Beneficial Uses of Receiving WaterS.........cccvieeiiiiiiiiiiiieeciiecciee et 9
Table 6a. Effluent Limitations at Production Rate of 135,000 bbIs/d........ccooouvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeieeeinas 12
Table 6b. Effluent Limitations at Production Rate of 165,000 bbls/d.........ccccovvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeiennns 13
Table 7.  Effluent Limitations for TOXIC SUDStANCES..........ccccuiriiiiriieiiiiiiieieee e 13
Table 8.  Minimum Levels for Pollutants with Effluent Limitations ............cccccoeiiiniiiiiiniiiicnncnen, 14
Table 9.  Interim Effluent Limitations..........cccieriiiiiiiniieiienie ettt st e e e 14
Table 10. Selenium Mass Emission LImitation..........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 14
Table 11. Effluent Limitations for Storm Water Outfalls ............cccccoeviiriiiinieniieieceee e, 16
Table 12. Supplemental Effluent Limitations for Storm Water Outfalls .............ccccoevviieiiieeiiienieen, 16
Table 13. Receiving Waters and Effluent Selenium Characterization Study Tasks and Schedule....... 20
Table 14.  Cyanide ACtION Plan..........coooiiioiiiiiiiicei et et e e e e e s e e e aee e 23
Table 15.  Copper ACtion PLan ..........cccioiiiiiiiiiiiieec ettt st 24
Table 16. Dioxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule............cccviiiiiieiiiiciiccieeeeeee e 26



REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

VALERO BENICIA REFINERY
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Attachments

Attachment A — DEfINITIONS .....coouieiiieiiecieeiie ettt ettt et e st e e te e stesabe e saesabeesseeenseassseenseas A-1
Attachment B — FACIIEY MaPS ...cccuviiiiiiieiiecieeee ettt e te e s ee e s tee et e e sbaeenaae e ennaeeneneees B-1
Attachment C — Process FIOW DIiagram...........ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiienieeiiecee ettt st C-1
Attachment D — Federal Standard PrOVISIONS ........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeccete et D-1
Attachment E — Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP)..........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiieeeceee e, E-1
Attachment F — FACt SHEET......cc..iiiiiiiiie et et F-1
Attachment G — Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements

G-1

(Supplement To Attachment D)........c.coooiiiioiiiiiiieee e



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

FACILITY INFORMATION
The following Discharger is subject to the waste discharge requirements as set forth in this Order:

Table 4. Facility Information

Discharger Valero Refining Company — California
Name of Facility Valero Benicia Refinery
Facility Address 3400 East Second Street

Benicia, CA 94510
Solano County

Facility Contact, Title, Phone No. Marcus Cole, Environmental Engineer, (707) 745-7807
Mailing Address 3400 East Second Street, Benicia, CA 94510
Type of Facility Petroleum Refinery
Average Facility Flow (2008) 1.93 million gallons per day (MGD)
. FINDINGS

The California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Bay Region (hereinafter
Regional Water Board), finds:

A. Background. The Valero Refining Company - California (hereinafter Discharger) currently

discharges under Order No. R2-2002-0112 (hereinafter previous permit) and National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit No. CA0005550. The Discharger submitted a
Report of Waste Discharge dated May 31, 2007, and applied for reissuance of its NPDES permit to
discharge treated wastewater from the Valero Benicia Refinery. The Discharger’s discharge is also
currently covered under Order No. R2-2007-0077 (NPDES Permit CA0038849) that superseded all
requirements on mercury from wastewater discharges in the region. The mercury permit is
unaffected by this Order.

For purposes of this Order, references to the “discharger” or “permittee” in applicable federal and
State laws, regulations, plans, or policies are held to be equivalent to references to the Discharger
herein.

. Facility Description. The Discharger owns and operates a petroleum refinery that processes an

average crude oil volume of approximately 135,000 barrels per day (bbls/d), producing hydrocarbon
products, byproducts, and intermediates. The average volume of crude oil processed may increase
up to 165,000 bbls/d during the term of this Order, which would result in increased discharges of
process wastewater.

Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant include stripped sour water,
cooling tower and boiler blowdown water, crude water draw from on-site and off-site storage
facilities, raw water treatment backwash, desalter brine, tank water draws, ballast water, asphalt
plant wastewater, other miscellaneous process wastewater, storm water runoff from process areas,
extracted groundwater from on-site remediation processes, and monitoring well purge water from
off-site service stations owned by the Discharger.

Wastewater is first treated by corrugated plate separators (CPS) and induced static flotation (ISF)
units to remove oils and solids. Most of the non-oily waste stream from the sour water stripper is
pretreated in two activated sludge (pre-Biox) units. The remaining stripped sour water is combined

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 6



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

D.

NPDES NO. CA0005550

with oily waste streams and the pre-Biox effluent. The combined wastewater is then treated by an
activated sludge (Biox) system consisting of three aeration basins and three clarifiers operated in
parallel, with an addition of powdered activated carbon. The wastewater stream then flows to an
induced air flotation (IAF) unit for additional solids removal. From the IAF unit, wastewater flows
to a reactor clarifier, where ferric chloride is added to co-precipitate selenite and polymer is added to
enhance flocculation. Sodium hydroxide is added to adjust the pH of the reactor clarifier effluent,
which is sent to the final sump/pond (final pond). The final pond is unlined and has a capacity of
approximately 2.4 million gallons (MG). It provides some flow equalization for the discharge
pumps. Treated effluent is pumped from the final pond to Discharge Point 001 and discharged
through a submerged diffuser to Suisun Bay, a water of the State and United States.

When analysis of treated wastewater at the final pond indicates that it may violate effluent
limitations, discharge to Suisun Bay is halted and the effluent is pumped to the crude field retention
pond and/or the storm water retention ponds, which have a combined capacity of 41 MG. Effluent
stored in the crude field and storm water retention ponds is returned to the wastewater treatment
plant for full or partial treatment or, if monitoring indicates that effluent limits are met, is returned to
the final pond for discharge.

The refinery also has several storm water discharge points to Suisun Bay and Carquinez Strait
(Discharge Points 002 — 017). Discharge Points 012 through 015 discharge to the City of Benicia
storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

During the term of the previous permit, accumulated storm water from 162 acres in the Refinery
Tank Farm and Crude Oil Storage Area was routed to the refinery wastewater treatment plant for
treatment and discharge via Discharge Point 001. During the term of this Order, the Discharger will
modify the refinery’s drainage system to route storm water from the Refinery Tank Farm and Crude
Oil Storage Area to Discharge Points 006, 009, and 010. This will reduce hydraulic loading to the
wastewater treatment plant and thus enhance pollutant removal. Internal monitoring prior to
discharge from these areas is required by section VI.C.2.e of this Order. The refinery will retain the
ability to route these storm water flows to the wastewater treatment plant. This is discussed further
in Fact Sheet section IL.A.

When influent flow rates to the treatment plant are greater than 2,600 gallons per minute (gpm)
because of a storm event, and the surge and equalization tanks are full, influent can be diverted to
the storm water retention ponds. These storm water retention ponds are unlined with a capacity of
18 MG, enough for storm water from a 20-year storm. This storm water is later run through the
wastewater treatment plant, entering just upstream of the Biox system.

Attachment B to this Order is a Location Map showing the location of the Benicia Refinery within
the Region; and Attachment C is a flow schematic of the plant.

Legal Authorities. This Order is issued pursuant to Clean Water Act (CWA) section 402 and
implementing regulations adopted by the USEPA, and California Water Code (CWC) Chapter 5.5,
Division 7, commencing with section 13370. It shall serve as an NPDES permit for the point source
discharges identified in Table 2. This Order also serves as Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs)
pursuant to CWC Article 4, Chapter 4, Division 7, commencing with section 13260.

Background and Rationale for Requirements. The Regional Water Board developed the
requirements in this Order based on information submitted as part of the application, through

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 7



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

monitoring and reporting programs, and other available information. The Fact Sheet

(Attachment F), which contains background information and rationale for Order requirements, is
hereby incorporated into this Order and constitutes part of the Findings for this Order. Attachments
A through E and G are also incorporated into this Order.

E. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Pursuant to CWC section 13389, this action to
adopt an NPDES permit is exempt from the provisions of CEQA.

F. Technology-Based Effluent Limitations. CWA section 301(b) and 40 CFR 122.44 require
permits, at a minimum, to include conditions meeting applicable technology-based requirements
and any more stringent effluent limitations necessary to meet applicable water quality standards.
Discharges authorized by this Order must meet technology-based requirements USEPA established
at 40 CFR 419, Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category,
as well as technology-based requirements established using Best Professional Judgment (BPJ)
pursuant to 40 CFR 125.3. A detailed discussion of the development of the technology-based
effluent limitations in this Order is included in the Fact Sheet.

G. Water Quality-Based Effluent Limitations. CWA section 301(b) and 40 CFR 122.44(d) require
that permits include limitations more stringent than applicable federal technology-based
requirements when necessary to achieve applicable water quality standards.

40 CFR 122.44(d)(1)(1) mandate that permits include effluent limitations for all pollutants that are
or may be discharged at levels that have a reasonable potential to cause or contribute to an
exceedance of a water quality standard, including numeric and narrative objectives within a
standard. Where reasonable potential has been established for a pollutant, but there is no numeric
objective for the pollutant, water quality-based effluent limitations (WQBELSs) must be established
using (1) USEPA criteria guidance under CWA section 304(a), supplemented where necessary by
other relevant information; (2) an indicator parameter for the pollutant of concern; or (3) a
calculated numeric water quality criterion, such as a proposed State criterion or policy interpreting
the State’s narrative criterion, supplemented with other relevant information, as provided in

40 CFR 122.44(d)(1)(vi).

H. Water Quality Control Plans. The Water Quality Control Plan for the San Francisco Bay Basin
(Basin Plan) is the Regional Water Board’s master water quality control planning document. It
designates beneficial uses and water quality objectives for waters of the State, including surface
waters and groundwater. It also includes programs of implementation to achieve water quality
objectives. The Basin Plan was adopted by the Regional Water Board and approved by the State
Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board), USEPA, and the Office of Administrative
Law, as required. Beneficial uses described by the Basin Plan and applicable to Suisun Bay and
Carquinez Strait are listed in Table 5. Requirements of this Order implement the Basin Plan.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 8



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table 5. Beneficial Uses of Receiving Waters

Discharge Point Receiving Water Name Beneficial Uses
001, 002, 003, Suisun Bay Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
004, 005, 006, Industrial Process Supply (PRO)
007, 008, 009’[1] Estuarine Habitat (EST)
010,011, 017 Industrial Service Supply (IND)
Fish Migration (MIGR)
Navigation (NAV)

Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)

Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)

Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

Fish Spawning (SPWN)

012,013,014, Carquinez Strait Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
015,016 Estuarine Habitat (EST)

Industrial Service Supply (IND)

Fish Migration (MIGR)

Navigation (NAV)

Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)

Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)

Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

Fish Spawning (SPWN)

(1]

Outfalls 002 through 011, and 017 flow to specific creeks, which flow to Suisun Bay. Beneficial uses of
Suisun Bay apply to these creeks due to the Tributary Rule. Outfalls 012 through 015 discharge to the
City of Benicia storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

National Toxics Rule (NTR) and California Toxics Rule (CTR). USEPA adopted the NTR on
December 22, 1992, and later amended it on May 4, 1995, and November 9, 1999. About forty
criteria in the NTR applied in California. On May 18, 2000, USEPA adopted the CTR. The CTR
promulgated new toxics criteria for California and, in addition, incorporated the previously adopted
NTR criteria that applied in the State. The CTR was amended on February 13, 2001. These rules
contain water quality criteria for priority pollutants.

State Implementation Policy. On March 2, 2000, the State Water Board adopted the Policy for
Implementation of Toxics Standards for Inland Surface Waters, Enclosed Bays, and Estuaries of
California (State Implementation Policy or SIP). The SIP became effective on April 28, 2000, with
respect to the priority pollutant criteria USEPA promulgated for California through the NTR and to
the priority pollutant objectives the Regional Water Board established in the Basin Plan. The SIP
became effective on May 18, 2000, with respect to the priority pollutant criteria the USEPA
promulgated through the CTR. On February 24, 2005, the State Water Board adopted amendments
to the SIP that became effective on July 13, 2005. The SIP establishes implementation provisions
for priority pollutant objectives and provisions for chronic toxicity control. Requirements of this
Order implement the SIP.

Compliance Schedules and Interim Requirements. SIP section 2.1 provides that, based on an
existing discharger’s request and demonstration that it is infeasible for it to achieve immediate
compliance with an effluent limitation derived from a CTR criterion, compliance schedules may be

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 9



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

allowed in an NPDES permit. The State Water Board adopted Resolution No. 2008-0025 on April
15, 2008, titled Policy for Compliance Schedules in National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System Permits, which includes compliance schedule policies for pollutants that are not addressed
by the SIP. This policy has been approved by OAL and USEPA, and became effective on August
27,2008. Where a compliance schedule for a final effluent limitation exceeds 1 year, permits must
include an interim numeric limitation for that pollutant. Where allowed by the Basin Plan,
compliance schedules and interim effluent limitations or discharge specifications may also be
granted to allow time to implement a new or newly interpreted narrative water quality objective.
This Order includes a compliance schedule and interim effluent limitation for dioxin-TEQ. A
detailed discussion of the basis for the compliance schedule is included in the Fact Sheet.

L. Alaska Rule. On March 30, 2000, USEPA revised its regulation that specifies when new and
revised State and tribal water quality standards become effective for CWA purposes [65 Fed. Reg.
24641 (April 27, 2000) (codified at 40 CFR 131.21)]. Under the revised regulation (also known as
the Alaska Rule), USEPA must approve new and revised standards submitted to USEPA after May
30, 2000, before they can be used for CWA purposes. The final rule also provides that standards
already in effect and submitted to USEPA by May 30, 2000, may be used for CWA purposes,
whether or not approved by USEPA.

M. Stringency of Requirements for Individual Pollutants. This Order contains both technology-
based effluent limitations and water quality-based effluent limitations (WQBELSs) for individual
pollutants. The technology-based effluent limitations consist of restrictions on biochemical oxygen
demand (BOD:s), oil and grease, pH, total suspended solids (TSS), chemical oxygen demand
(COD), ammonia, sulfide, 4-aminoantipyrine (4AAP) phenolics, and total and hexavalent
chromium. Derivation of these technology-based limitations is discussed in the Fact Sheet. This
Order’s technology-based pollutant restrictions implement the minimum applicable federal
technology-based requirements. In addition, this Order contains effluent limitations more stringent
than the minimum federal technology-based requirements as necessary to meet water quality
standards. These limitations are not more stringent than required by the CWA.

WQBELSs have been derived to implement water quality objectives that protect beneficial uses.
Both the beneficial uses and the water quality objectives have been approved pursuant to federal law
and are the applicable federal water quality standards. To the extent that toxic pollutant WQBELSs
were derived from the CTR, the CTR is the applicable standard pursuant to 40 CFR 131.38. The
procedures for calculating the individual WQBELSs for priority pollutants are based on the SIP,
which was approved by USEPA on May 18, 2000. All beneficial uses and water quality objectives
in the Basin Plan were approved under State law and submitted to and approved by USEPA prior to
May 30, 2000. Any water quality objectives and beneficial uses submitted to and USEPA prior to
May 30, 2000, but not approved by USEPA before that date, are nonetheless applicable water
quality standards for purposes of the CWA pursuant to 40 CFR 131.21(c)(1). Collectively, this
Order’s restrictions on individual pollutants are no more stringent than required to implement CWA
requirements.

N. Antidegradation Policy. 40 CFR 131.12 requires that state water quality standards include an
antidegradation policy consistent with the federal policy. The State Water Board established
California’s antidegradation policy through State Water Board Resolution No. 68-16, which
incorporates the federal antidegradation policy where the federal policy applies under federal law
and requires that the existing quality of receiving waters be maintained unless degradation is

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 10



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

justified based on specific findings. The Basin Plan incorporates by reference and implements both
the State and federal antidegradation policies. As discussed in the Fact Sheet, the permitted
discharges are consistent with the antidegradation provisions of 40 CFR 131.12 and State Water
Board Resolution No. 68-16.

O. Anti-Backsliding Requirements. CWA sections 402(0)(2) and 303(d)(4) and 40 CFR 122.44(1)
prohibit backsliding in NPDES permits. These anti-backsliding provisions require effluent
limitations in a reissued permit to be at least as stringent as those in the previous permit, with some
exceptions where limitations may be relaxed. Some effluent limitations in this Order are less
stringent than those in the previous permit. As discussed in the Fact Sheet, this relaxation of
effluent limitations is consistent with the CWA anti-backsliding requirements and federal
regulations.

P. Monitoring and Reporting. 40 CFR 122.48 requires that all NPDES permits specify requirements
for recording and reporting monitoring results. CWC sections 13267 and 13383 authorize the
Regional Water Board to require technical and monitoring reports. The Monitoring and Reporting
Program, which is provided in Attachment E, establishes monitoring and reporting requirements to
implement federal and State requirements.

Q. Standard and Special Provisions. Standard Provisions, which apply to all NPDES permits in
accordance with 40 CFR 122.41, and additional conditions applicable to specified categories of
permits in accordance with 40 CFR 122.42, are provided in Attachment D. The Discharger must
comply with all standard provisions and with those additional conditions that apply pursuant to
40 CFR 122.42. The Regional Water Board has also included in this Order special provisions
applicable to the Discharger. Rationales for the special provisions in this Order are provided in the
attached Fact Sheet.

R. Provisions and Requirements Implementing State Law. No provisions of this Order implement
State law only. All are required or authorized under the federal CWA and CWC. The Regional
Standard Provisions are included as Attachment G.

S. Notification of Interested Parties. The Regional Water Board has notified the Discharger and
interested agencies and persons of its intent to prescribe Waste Discharge Requirements for the
discharge and has provided them with an opportunity to submit written comments and
recommendations. Details of the notification are provided in the Fact Sheet.

T. Consideration of Public Comment. The Regional Water Board, in a public meeting, heard and
considered all comments pertaining to the discharges authorized by this Order. Details of the Public
Hearing are provided in the Fact Sheet.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that this Order supersedes Order No. R2-2002-0112, except for
enforcement purposes, and in order to meet the provisions in CWC Division 7 (commencing with
section 13000) and regulations adopted thereunder, and the provisions of the federal Clean Water Act
(CWA) and regulations and guidelines adopted thereunder, the Discharger shall comply with the
requirements in this Order.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 11



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

I11. DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS

A. Discharge of wastewater at a location or in a manner different from that described in this Order is
prohibited.

B Discharge of process wastewater at any point at which it does not receive an initial dilution of at
least 15:1 is prohibited.

C The bypass of untreated or partially treated process wastewater to waters of the United States is
prohibited, except as provided for in the conditions stated in 1.G.2 of Attachment D to this Order.
IV. EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND DISCHARGE SPECIFICATIONS
A. Effluent Limitations — Discharge Point 001
1. Technology-Based Effluent Limitations

a. The Discharger shall maintain compliance with the following effluent limitations at
Discharge Point 001, with compliance measured at Monitoring Location EFF-001 as
described in the attached MRP (Attachment E), until it has received written notice from
the Executive Officer of its satisfactory compliance with the requirements under VI.C.5.c
of this Order justifying the alternate limitations specified in A.1.b, below.

Table 6a. Effluent Limitations at Production Rate of 135,000 bbls/d

. Effluent Limitations
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
BOD; Ibs/day 1,900 3,400
kg/day 860 1,500
COD lbs/day 13,000 26,000
kg/day 5,900 12,000
TSS lbs/day 1,500 2,400
kg/day 680 1,100
0il & Grease Ibs/day 550 1,000
kg/day 250 450
1 12 2
Phenolic Compounds bs/day 6
kg/day 5.5 12
Ammonia (N) lbs/day 1,000 2,300
kg/day 450 1,000
Sulfide Ibs/day 10 22
kg/day 4.5 10
Total Chromium Ibs/day 18 52
kg/day 8.2 24
Hexavalent Chromium Ibs/day 15 35
kg/day 0.68 1.6
pH s.u. 6.0- 9.0 at all times

b. When the refinery production rate is 165,000 bbls/d, the Discharger shall maintain
compliance with the following effluent limitations at Discharge Point 001, with

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 12



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

compliance measured at Monitoring Location EFF-001 as described in the attached MRP
(Attachment E). These effluent limitations shall become effective following satisfaction
of the requirements of section VI.C.5.c of this Order.

Table 6b. Effluent Limitations at Production Rate of 165,000 bbls/d

. Effluent Limitations
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
BOD; lbs/day 2,300 4,200
kg/day 1,000 1,900
COD lbs/day 16,000 31,000
kg/day 7,300 14,000
TSS Ibs/day 1,900 2,900
kg/day 860 1,300
0il & Grease lbs/day 670 1,300
kg/day 300 590
1 1 1
Phenolic Compounds bs/day > 3
kg/day 6.8 14
Ammonia (N) Ibs/day 1,300 2,800
kg/day 590 1,300
Sulfide lbs/day 12 28
kg/day 55 13
Total Chromium Ibs/day 18 >4
kg/day 8.2 25
Hexavalent Chromium lbs/day 15 35
kg/day 0.68 1.6
pH s.u. 6.0 — 9.0 at all times

2. Effluent Limitations for Toxics Substances

a. The Discharger shall maintain compliance with the following effluent limitations at
Discharge Point 001, with compliance measured at Monitoring Location EFF-001 as
described in the attached MRP (Attachment E):

Table 7. Effluent Limitations for Toxic Substances ™

. Final Effluent Limitations
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
Copper ng/L 70 120
Selenium png/L 43 60
Zinc png/L 240 560
Cyanide ng/L 21 42
Dioxin-TEQ!! ng/L 1.4x10® 28x10®
Ammonia (N) mg/L 5.7 20

1 a  Limitations apply to the average concentration of all samples collected during the averaging period (daily =

24-hour period; monthly = calendar month).
b.  All metals limitations are expressed as total recoverable metal.
Pl Final effluent limitations for dioxin-TEQ shall become effective in accordance with the compliance schedule
established by section VI.C.4.f of this Order.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 13



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table 8. Minimum Levels for Pollutants with Effluent Limitations

Parameter Minimum Level Units
Copper 0.5 pg/L
Chromium (Total) 0.5 pg/L
Chromium(VT) 5 pg/L
Selenium 1 pg/L
Zinc 1 ng/L
Cyanide 5 pg/L
Dioxin-TEQ % the USEPA specitied MLs pg/L
for Method 1613
Ammonia 0.2 mg/L

3. Interim Effluent Limitation for Dioxin-TEQ

Until final effluent limitations for dioxin-TEQ become effective in accordance with the
compliance schedule established by provision VI.C.4.f of this Order, the Discharger shall
maintain compliance with the following interim limitation at Discharge Point 001, with
compliance measured at Monitoring Location EFF-001 as described in the attached MRP.

Table 9. Interim Effluent Limitations

. Effluent Limitations'™
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
Dioxin-TEQ ng/L 1.4x 107

[1] The interim limit for dioxin-TEQ shall remain in effect until January 1, 2013.
4. Mass Emission Limitation for Selenium

Until implementation of a TMDL is in effect for selenium, the Discharger shall not increase
mass loading of selenium to Suisun Bay through Discharge Point 001 by complying with the
following mass emission limitation.

Table 10. Selenium Mass Emission Limitation®
Pollutant Units Effluent Limitation
Selenium kg/month 9.6

1. Compliance with this limit shall be evaluated using a running annual average mass load. The running annual average
shall be calculated by taking the arithmetic average of the current month’s mass loading value and the mass loading
values from each of the previous 11 months.

5. Acute Toxicity:

a. Representative samples of the effluent at Monitoring Location EFF-001 shall meet the
following limits for acute toxicity: Bioassays shall be conducted in compliance with
section V.A of the Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP, Attachment E).

The survival of organisms in undiluted effluent shall be:
(1) an eleven (11) sample median value of not less than 90 percent survival, and
(2) an eleven (11) sample 90 percentile value of not less than 70 percent survival.

b. These acute toxicity limitations are further defined as follows:

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 14



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

11 sample median: A bioassay test showing survival of less than 90 percent represents a
violation of this effluent limit, if five or more of the past ten or less bioassay tests show
less than 90 percent survival.

90th percentile: A bioassay test showing survival of less than 70 percent represents a
violation of this effluent limit, if one or more of the past ten or less bioassay tests show
less than 70 percent survival.

c. Bioassays shall be performed using the most up-to-date USEPA protocol and the most
sensitive species as specified in writing by the Executive Officer based on the most recent
screening test results. Bioassays shall be conducted in compliance with “Methods for
Measuring the Acute Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Water to Freshwater and
Marine Organisms,” currently 5th Edition (EPA-821-R-02-012), with exceptions granted
to the Discharger by the Executive Officer and the Environmental Laboratory
Accreditation Program (ELAP) upon the Discharger’s request with justification.

d. Ifthe Discharger can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Executive Officer that toxicity
exceeding the levels cited above is caused by ammonia and that the ammonia in the
discharge complies with the ammonia effluent limitations, then such toxicity does not
constitute a violation of this effluent limitation.

6. Chronic Toxicity

a. Representative samples of the effluent at Monitoring Location EFF-001 shall meet the
following limits for chronic toxicity. Bioassays shall be conducted in compliance with
MRP section V.B (Attachment E).

The survival of bioassay test organisms in the discharge at Discharge Point 001 shall be:
(1) An eleven sample median value equal to or less than 10 TUc, and
(2) An eleven sample 90-percentile value equal to or less than 20 TUc.

b. These chronic toxicity limits are defined as follows:

(1) A test sample showing chronic toxicity greater than 10 TUc represents consistent
toxicity, and a violation of this limitation if five or more of the past ten or fewer tests
show toxicity greater than 10 TUc.

(2) A TUc equals 100/NOEL. The NOEL is the no observable effect level, determined
from 1Cys, ECys, or NOEC values. These terms and their usage in determining
compliance with the limitations are defined in Attachment B of this Order. The
NOEL shall be based on a critical life stage test using the most sensitive test species
as specified by the Executive Officer. The Executive Officer may specify two
compliance species if test data indicate that there is alternating sensitivity between
two species. If two compliance test species are specified, compliance shall be based
in the maximum TUc value for the discharge sample based on a comparison of TUc
values obtained through concurrent testing of the two species.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 15



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

(3) A test sample showing chronic toxicity greater than 20 TUc represents a violation of
this limitation, if one or more of the past ten or less samples shows toxicity greater
than 20 TUc.

c. Test Species and Methods

The Discharger shall conduct routine monitoring with the test species and protocols
specified in MRP section V.B (Attachment E). The Discharger shall also perform
Chronic Toxicity Screening Phase monitoring as described in Appendix E-1 of the MRP.
Chronic Toxicity Monitoring Screening Phase Requirements, Critical Life Stage Toxicity
Tests and definitions of terms used in the chronic toxicity monitoring are identified in
Appendices E-1 and E-2 of the MRP.

B. Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 -017

1. Storm water discharged at Discharge Points 002 —017 shall not exceed the effluent
limitations in Table 11, below.

Table 11. Effluent Limitations for Storm Water Outfalls

. Effluent Limitations
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
TOC Mg/L — 110
Oil & Grease Mg/L - 15
pH s.u. 6.5 — 8.5 at all times
Visible Oil -—- None observed
Visible Color -—- None observed

2. Ifthere is an exceedance of either limitation for TOC or Oil and Grease expressed in Table 11,
above, the effluent limitations in Table 12, below, shall become effective for the discharge
point where the exceedance occurred and remain in effect as long as this Order remains in
effect.

Table 12. Supplemental Effluent Limitations for Storm Water Outfalls

Pollutant Units Daily Maximum 30-Day Averagel!!
BOD; mg/L 48 26

TSS mg/L 33 21

COD mg/L 360 180

Oil and Grease mg/L 15 8.0
Phenolic Compounds mg/L 0.35 0.17

Total Chromium mg/L 0.60 0.21
Hexavalent Chromium mg/L 0.062 0.028

' Compliance with the 30-day average limitation shall be determined as a rolling 30-day average. The rolling 30-day

average shall be calculated as the arithmetic average of the concentrations detected over the current day and previous
29 days. This limitation shall not apply unless there is sufficient runoff for sampling on at least three out of 30
consecutive days.

C. Land Discharge Specifications

Not Applicable.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 16



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

D. Reclamation Specifications

Not Applicable.

V. RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS

A. Receiving water limitations are based on water quality objectives in the Basin Plan and are a
required part of this Order. The discharges shall not cause the following in Suisun Bay and
Carquinez Strait:

1.

2.

Floating, suspended, or deposited macroscopic particulate matter or foams;

Bottom deposits or aquatic growths to the extent that such deposits or growths cause
nuisance or adversely affect beneficial uses;

Alteration of temperature, turbidity, or apparent color beyond present natural background
levels;

Visible, floating, suspended, or deposited oil and other products of petroleum origin; and

Toxic or other deleterious substances to be present in concentrations or quantities which will
cause deleterious effects on wildlife, waterfowl, or other aquatic biota, or which render any
of these unfit for human consumption, either at levels created in the receiving waters or as a
result of biological concentration.

B. The discharge of waste shall not cause the following limits to be exceeded in waters of the State
within one foot of the water surface:

1.

2.

3.

Dissolved Oxygen 7.0 mg/L, minimum

The median dissolved oxygen concentration for any three consecutive months shall not be
less than 80% of the dissolved oxygen content at saturation. When natural factors cause
concentrations less than that specified above, the discharge shall not cause further reduction
in ambient dissolved oxygen concentrations.

Dissolved Sulfide Natural background levels

pH 6.5 (minimum) to 8.5 (maximum)

C. The discharge shall not cause a violation of any water quality standard for receiving waters
adopted by the Regional Water Board or the State Water Board as required by the CWA and
regulations adopted thereunder. If more stringent applicable water quality standards are
promulgated or approved, the Regional Water Board may revise and modify this Order in
accordance with them.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 17



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

VI.PROVISIONS

A. Standard Provisions

1. Federal Standard Provisions. The Discharger shall comply with Federal Standard
Provisions included in Attachment D of this Order.

2. Regional Standard Provisions. The Discharger shall comply with all applicable items of
the Regional Standard Provisions and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements included in
Attachment G of this Order.

B. Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP) Requirements

The Discharger shall comply with the MRP, and future revisions thereto, in Attachment E. The
Discharger shall also comply with applicable sampling and reporting requirements in the standard
provisions listed in VLA, above.

C. Special Provisions

1. Reopener Provisions

The Regional Water Board may modify or reopen this Order prior to its expiration date in
any of the following circumstances as allowed by law:

a.

.

If present or future investigations demonstrate that the discharge governed by this Order
will have, or will cease to have, a reasonable potential to cause or contribute to adverse
impacts on water quality or beneficial uses of the receiving waters.

If new or revised WQOs or TMDLs come into effect for the San Francisco Bay estuary
and contiguous water bodies (whether statewide, regional, or site-specific). In such
cases, effluent limitations in this Order will be modified as necessary to be consistent
with updated WQOs and wasteload allocations in TMDLs. Adoption of effluent
limitations in this Order is not intended to restrict in any way future modifications based
on legally adopted WQOs or TMDLs, or as otherwise permitted under federal regulations
governing NPDES permit modifications.

If translator or other water quality studies provide a basis for determining that a permit
condition should be modified.

If an administrative or judicial decision on a separate NPDES permit or WDRS that
addresses requirements similar to this discharge provides a basis for permit modification.

Or as otherwise authorized by law.

The Discharger may request a permit modification based on the above. The Discharger shall
include in any such request an antidegradation and anti-backsliding analysis.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 18



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

2. Special Studies and Additional Monitoring
a. Effluent Characterization Study

The Discharger shall continue to monitor and evaluate the discharge from Discharge
Point 001 (measured at EFF-001) according to the sampling frequency specified in the
attached MRP (Attachment E). Compliance with this requirement shall be achieved in
accordance with the specifications stated in the Regional Standard Provisions
(Attachment G).

The Discharger shall evaluate on an annual basis if concentrations of any constituent
increase over past performance. The Discharger shall investigate the cause of any
increase. The investigation may include, but need not be limited to, an increase in the
effluent monitoring frequency, monitoring of internal process streams, and monitoring of
influent sources. This may be satisfied through identification of these constituents as
“Pollutants of Concern” in the Discharger’s Pollutant Minimization Program described in
Provision VI.C.3.b, below. The Discharger shall provide a summary of the annual
evaluation of data and source investigation activities in the annual self-monitoring report.

The Discharger shall submit a final report that presents all the data to the Regional Water
Board no later than 180 days prior to this Order expiration date. This final report shall be
submitted with the application for permit reissuance.

b. Ambient Background Receiving Water Study

The Discharger shall collect, or participate in collecting, ambient background receiving
water priority pollutant monitoring data necessary to perform reasonable potential
analyses and to calculate effluent limitations. The data on the conventional water quality
parameters (pH, salinity, and hardness) shall also be sufficient to characterize these
parameters in the receiving waters at a point after the discharge has mixed with the
receiving waters. This provision may be met through monitoring through the
Collaborative Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) Study or a similar ambient
monitoring program for San Francisco Bay. This Order may be reopened, as appropriate,
to incorporate effluent limits or other requirements based on these data.

The Discharger shall submit a final report that presents all the data to the Regional Water
Board 180 days prior to this Order’s expiration date. This final report shall be submitted
with the application for permit reissuance.

c. Optional Mass Offset

If the Discharger can demonstrate that further net reductions of the total mass loadings of
303(d)-listed pollutants to the receiving water cannot be achieved through economically
feasible measures such as aggressive source control, wastewater reuse, and treatment
plant optimization, but only through a mass offset program, the Discharger may submit to
the Regional Water Board for approval a mass offset plan to reduce 303(d)-listed
pollutants to the same watershed or drainage basin. The Regional Water Board may
modify this Order to allow an approved mass offset program.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 19



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

d. Effluent and Receiving Water Selenium Characterization Study

The Discharger shall comply with the following tasks and schedule, subject to Executive
Officer approval, to characterize (1) the concentrations and speciation of selenium in
effluent and receiving water, (2) the variability of selenium in the discharge, (3) the
potential for uptake and conversion of selenium to more bioavailable forms, (4) mixing
and dilution in the receiving waters, and (5) the ability to comply with any more-stringent
selenium criteria that may become effective in the foreseeable future. At its option, the
Discharger may complete, or cause to be completed, all or some of the required tasks
collaboratively with other dischargers. If requested by the Discharger, the Executive
Officer may modify the deadlines for the following tasks and schedule by no more than 3
years if good cause exists such as data collection delays, sample collection or laboratory
quality control problems, analytical turnaround times, third party reports, or other factors
outside the Discharger’s control; or based on new information. Any requests for
modifications must be in writing with necessary justification. Any approval must be in
writing.

Table 13. Receiving Waters and Effluent Selenium Characterization Study
Tasks and Schedule

Tasks Compliance Date

(1) Submit a study plan for a minimum two-year study that includes the following April 1,2010
elements:

(a) effluent and receiving water sampling locations. The effluent sampling
location may be E-001. Receiving water sampling locations shall be
within a maximum 100-foot radius from the outfall location to
characterize near-field concentrations and speciation.

(b) receiving water sampling along transects from the Pacific Ocean (Golden
Gate) to the Sacramento (Rio Vista) and San Joaquin (USGS Station 757)
Rivers, including sampling in the freshwater portions of the rivers at
Vernalis ( San Joaquin River) and Freeport (Sacramento River),

(c) sampling and analysis protocols (including means to evaluate seasonal
conditions under low and high flows from the Sacramento / San Joaquin
River Delta, selenium concentrations in the water column and suspended
particles, detailed speciation and particulate selenium content in the
effluent),

(d) comparison of the proposed protocols and analytical methods to the
previous sampling efforts,

(e) sampling parameters (including, at a minimum, salinity, carbon, nitrogen
and chlorophyll-a in receiving water, and dissolved and particulate
concentrations of selenate, selenite, organic selenides and elemental
selenium in both effluent and receiving water),

(f) data interpretation models and other methods to be used (representing
conservative, reasonable worst case conditions), and

(g) implementation schedule.

(2) Begin implementation of the study plan developed for Task (1). July 15,2010

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 20



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Tasks Compliance Date
(3) Submit a status report for all the tasks required by this Provision that contain, Annually on
at a minimum, monitoring data collected from the beginning of the study, February 1* of
summary of the results to date, and necessary updates to the study plan 2011 and 2012,
specified in this provision. with the annual

self-monitoring
reports required by
MRP (Attachment
E).

(4) Submit a final study report that includes the following elements: August 15,2012

(a) sampling results, data interpretation, and conclusions, such as receiving
water and mixing zone characterization, seasonal variability, etc.,

(b) effluent characterization,

(c) determination if there is reasonable potential for selenium in the
discharge to violate the Basin Plan’s narrative bioaccumulation objective
through the use of pertinent models,

(d) comparison of near-field selenium water column concentrations to
applicable numeric objectives,

(e) demonstration of spatial and temporal extent to which the objectives and
other relevant guidelines, are being exceeded,

(f) determination whether selenium levels impact foodweb and wildlife
and/or contribute to bioaccumulation.

e. Additional Storm Water Monitoring

Prior to release of storm water from the Upper Level Tank Farm, Intermediate Level
Tank Farm, Lower Level Tank Farm, and Crude Oil Storage Area Tank Farm secondary
containment areas through storm water outfalls 006, 009 and 010, the storm water will be
visually inspected for oil and color, and sampled and analyzed for TOC, TSS, and pH at
minimum. Storm water not compliant with the limitations in Table 11, and Table 12 if
applicable, or exceeding 100 mg/L TSS shall not be discharged to a storm water outfall.
Instead, it shall be directed to the wastewater treatment plant, treated, and discharged
through outfall 001 as treated wastewater.

3. Best Management Practices and Pollution Minimization

a. The Discharger shall continue to improve, in a manner acceptable to the Executive
Officer, its Pollution Minimization Program (PMP) to promote minimization of pollutant
loadings to the treatment plant and therefore to the receiving waters.

b. The Discharger shall submit an annual report, acceptable to the Executive Officer, no
later than February 28 of each year. Annual reports shall cover January through
December of the preceding year. Should the Discharger choose to submit earlier in the
year, the report shall cover the preceding 12 months two months prior to the submittal
date. As an example, a report submitted on June 30, would cover the preceding 12 month
ending in April. Annual reports shall contain the following information:

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 21



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

ii.

iil.

1v.

Vi.

Vii.

NPDES NO. CA0005550

A brief description of the treatment plant and treatment facilities.

A discussion of the current pollutants of concern. Periodically, the Discharger shall
determine which pollutants are currently a problem and which pollutants may be
potential future problems. This discussion shall include the reasons why the
pollutants were chosen.

Identification of sources of pollutants of concern. This discussion shall address how
the Discharger identifies pollutant sources. The Discharger shall also identify
sources or potential sources not directly within its ability or authority to control, such
as pollutants in the potable water supply and air deposition.

Identification and implementation of measures to reduce the sources of pollutants of
concern. This discussion shall identify and prioritize tasks to address the
Discharger’s pollutants of concern. The Discharger may implement tasks
themselves or participate in group, regional, or national tasks that will address its
pollutants of concern whenever it is efficient and appropriate to do so. A time line
shall be included for the implementation of each task.

Outreach to employees. The Discharger shall inform its employees regarding
pollutants of concern, potential sources, and how they might be able to help reduce
discharge of these pollutants. The Discharger may provide a forum for employees to
provide input.

Discussion of criteria used to measure the PMP’s and tasks’ effectiveness. The
Discharger shall establish criteria to evaluate the effectiveness of its PMP. This
discussion shall address specific criteria used to measure the effectiveness of each of
the tasks in sections VI.C.3.b.iv and v.

Documentation of efforts and progress. This discussion shall detail all of the
Discharger’s activities in the PMP during the reporting year.

viii. Evaluation of the PMP’s and tasks’ effectiveness. The Discharger shall use the

1X.

criteria established in section VI.C.3.b.vi above to evaluate the PMP’s and tasks’
effectiveness.

Identification of specific tasks and time schedules for future efforts. Based on the
evaluation, the Discharger shall describe how it will continue or change its PMP
tasks to more effectively reduce the loading of pollutants to the treatment plant and
therefore in its effluent.

c. The Discharger shall develop and conduct a PMP as further described below when there
is evidence that a priority pollutant is present in the effluent above an effluent limitation
and either:

ii.

A sample result is reported as DNQ and the effluent limitation is less
than the reporting limit (RL); or

A sample result is reported as not detected (ND) and the effluent
limitation is less than the MDL, using SIP definitions.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 22



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

d. Iftriggered by the reasons in c., above, the Discharger’s PMP shall include, but not be
limited to, the following actions and submittals acceptable to the Regional Water Board:

1.

ii.

1il.

1v.

An annual review and semi-annual monitoring of potential sources of the reportable
priority pollutants, which may include fish tissue monitoring and other bio-uptake
sampling, or alternative measures approved by the Executive Officer when it is
demonstrated that source monitoring is unlikely to produce useful analytical data;

Quarterly monitoring for the reportable priority pollutants in the influent to the
wastewater treatment system, or an alternative measure approved by the Executive
Officer when it is demonstrated that influent monitoring is unlikely to produce useful
analytical data;

Submittal of a control strategy designed to proceed toward the goal of maintaining
concentrations of the reportable priority pollutants in the effluent at or below the
effluent limitation;

Implementation of appropriate cost-effective control measures for the reportable
priority pollutants, consistent with the control strategy; and

The annual report required by section VI.C.3.b above shall specifically address the
following items:

(a) All PMP monitoring results for the previous year;
(b) A list of potential sources of the reportable priority pollutants;
(c) A summary of all actions undertaken pursuant to the control strategy; and

(d) A description of actions to be taken in the following year.

4. Other Special Provisions

a. Cyanide Action Plan

The Discharger shall implement monitoring and surveillance, pretreatment, source
control, and pollution prevention for cyanide in accordance with the following tasks and

time schedule.

Table 14. Cyanide Action Plan

Task Compliance Date
1. Review Potential Cyanide Contributors April 1, 2010

The Discharger shall submit an inventory of potential sources of cyanide

to Discharge 001.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 23



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Task

Compliance Date

2. Implement Cyanide Control Program

The Discharger shall submit a plan for and begin implementation of a

program to minimize cyanide discharges. The plan shall include the

following elements at minimum:

a. Inspect each potential contributor to assess the need to include that
contributing source in the control program.

b. Prepare an emergency monitoring and response plan to be
implemented if a significant cyanide discharge occurs.

c. If ambient monitoring shows cyanide concentrations of 1.0 ng/L or
higher in the main body of San Francisco Bay, undertake actions to
identify and abate cyanide sources responsible for the elevated
ambient concentrations.

July 1, 2010

3. Report Status of Cyanide Control Program

Submit a report to the Regional Water Board documenting implementation
of the cyanide control program.

Annually with annual
PMP reports due
February 28.

b. Copper Action Plan

The Discharger shall implement pretreatment, source control, and pollution prevention
for copper in accordance with the following tasks and time schedule.

Table 15. Copper Action Plan

Task

Compliance
Date

1. Review Potential Copper Sources

The Discharger shall submit an inventory of potential copper sources to
the discharge from Discharge Point 001.

April 1,2010

If the three-year rolling mean dissolved copper concentration of the
receiving water exceeds 2.8 pg/L, the Discharger shall evaluate the
effluent copper concentration trend, and if it is increasing, develop and
implement additional measures to control copper discharges.

2. Implement Copper Control Program July 1, 2010
The Discharger shall submit a plan for and begin implementation of a
program to reduce copper discharges identified in Task 1.
3. Implement Additional Measures Within 90 days of
exceedance

4. Report Status of Copper Control Program

The Discharger shall submit a report to the Regional Water Board
documenting implementation of the copper control program.

Annually with annual
PMP reports due
February 28

c. Production Increase and Antidegradation Report

The effluent limits in Table 6b shall replace those in Table 6a only after the Discharger

submits an Antidegradation Report that demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Executive
Officer that the increased throughput, and corresponding increased discharge rate and
higher effluent limits, will not degrade receiving water quality, and is consistent with
antidegradation policies, and with State Water Board Resolution No. 68-16 (Statement of
Policy with Respect to Maintaining High Quality of Waters in California).

The Antidegradation Report shall include the following at minimum:

Limitations and Discharge Requirements

24



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

e A description of the proposed discharge;

e An analysis of the increased pollutant loads (in terms of mass and concentration)
from the proposed discharge;

e An analysis of the existing quality of the receiving waters (Suisun Bay and Carquinez
Strait) and a comparison to existing water quality standards;

e An analysis of the proposed increase in pollutant loading, and a comparison to other
sources of pollutant loading to Suisun Bay and Carquinez Strait;

e Water quality modeling to assess the impact of pollutant loading resulting from the
proposed increased discharge and from any other sources identified;

e An assessment of the impact of projected water quality changes with respect to
existing water quality; and

e Proposed mitigation measures, such as increased treatment or expanded treatment
facilities, needed to protect existing receiving water quality and beneficial uses.

The Discharger shall also provide documentation to the Executive Officer when
throughput increases, including incrementally, up to total throughput of 165,000 bbls/d.
Only following written notice from the Executive Officer shall the effluent limitations in
Table 6b based on a throughput of 165,000 bbls/d become effective. The Executive
Officer shall provide such notice if the documentation submitted demonstrates that no
water quality degradation would occur.

d. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and Annual Report

The Discharger shall update and submit an updated Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Plan (SWPPP) acceptable to the Executive Officer by October 1 of each year. If the
Discharger determines that it does not need to update its SWPPP, it shall submit a letter
to the Executive Officer indicating that no revisions are necessary and stating the last
year it updated its SWPPP. The Discharger shall implement the SWPPP. The SWPPP
shall comply with the requirements in the Federal Standard Provisions (Attachment D).

The Discharger shall submit an annual storm water report by July 1 of each year covering
data for the previous wet weather season for the identified storm water discharge points.
The annual storm water report shall, at a minimum, include:

(a) a tabulated summary of all sampling results and a summary of visual observations
taken during inspections;

(b) a comprehensive discussion of the compliance record and any corrective actions
taken or planned to ensure compliance with WDRs; and

(c) a comprehensive discussion of source identification and control programs for
constituents that do not have effluent limitations (e.g., total suspended solids).

e. Dioxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule

The following table outlines required actions and deadlines leading to compliance with
the final effluent limitations for dioxin-TEQ.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements 25



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table 16. Dioxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule

Task Deadline

a. Investigate sample collection, sample handling, and analytical April 1,2010
laboratory quality assurance and quality control practices to
ensure that analytical results for dioxin-TEQ are accurately
determined and reported. Submit a report by the deadline
describing the results of the investigation and any changes in
quality assurance and quality control practices implemented.

b. If discharge data from the previous two years show discharge is August 1, 2010
out of compliance (as defined in SIP section 2.4.5) with the
permit effluent limits, submit a plan to identify all dioxin-TEQ
sources to the discharge, and complete tasks c, d, and e.

c. Implement the plan developed in action “b” within 30 days of the December 1, 2010
deadline for action “b,” and submit by the deadline for this action
a report that contains an inventory of the pollutant sources.

d. Submit a report documenting development and initial February 1, 2011
implementation of a program to reduce and prevent the pollutants
of concern in the discharge. The program shall consist, at a
minimum, of the following elements:

i.  Maintain a list of sources of pollutants of concern.

ii. Investigate each source to assess the need to include it in the
program.

iii. Identify and implement targeted actions to reduce or
eliminate.

iv. Develop and distribute, as appropriate, educational materials
regarding the need to prevent sources to the sewer system.

e. Continue to implement the program described in action “d” and Annually each
submit annual status reports that evaluate its effectiveness and February 28 in
summarize planned changes. Report whether the program has PMP report
successfully brought the discharge into compliance with the required by
effluent limits in this Order. If not, identify and implement Provision VI.C.3
additional measures to further reduce discharges.

Comply with the final limits in Table 7 as applicable. January 1, 2013

g. Implement the measures required in action “e” within 45 days of Annually each
the deadline for action “e” and submit annual status reports. February 1 in

Annual Self-
Monitoring
Report required
by MRP
(Attachment E)

i.  Submit documentation confirming complete plan implementation January 1, 2013
and comply with final limits for dioxin-TEQ in Table 7.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements

26



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT A - DEFINITIONS

Arithmetic Mean (p), also called the average, is the sum of measured values divided by the number of
samples. For ambient water concentrations, the arithmetic mean is calculated as follows:

Arithmetic mean = p = £x / n where: 2x is the sum of the measured ambient water
concentrations, and n is the number of samples.

Average Monthly Effluent Limitation (AMEL): the highest allowable average of daily discharges
over a calendar month, calculated as the sum of all daily discharges measured during a calendar month
divided by the number of daily discharges measured during that month.

Average Weekly Effluent Limitation (AWEL): the highest allowable average of daily discharges
over a calendar week (Sunday through Saturday), calculated as the sum of all daily discharges measured
during a calendar week divided by the number of daily discharges measured during that week.

Bioaccumulative pollutants are those substances taken up by an organism from its surrounding medium
through gill membranes, epithelial tissue, or from food and subsequently concentrated and retained in
the body of the organism.

Carcinogenic pollutants are substances that are known to cause cancer in living organisms.

Coefficient of Variation (CV) is a measure of the data variability and is calculated as the estimated
standard deviation divided by the arithmetic mean of the observed values.

Daily Discharge: Daily Discharge is defined as either: (1) the total mass of the constituent discharged
over the calendar day (12:00 am through 11:59 pm) or any 24-hour period that reasonably represents a
calendar day for purposes of sampling (as specified in this Order), for a constituent with limitations

expressed in units of mass or; (2) the unweighted arithmetic mean measurement of the constituent over
the day for a constituent with limitations expressed in other units of measurement (e.g., concentration).

The daily discharge may be determined by the analytical results of a composite sample taken over the
course of one day (a calendar day or other 24-hour period defined as a day) or by the arithmetic mean of
analytical results from one or more grab samples taken over the course of the day.

For composite sampling, if 1 day is defined as a 24-hour period other than a calendar day, the analytical
result for the 24-hour period will be considered as the result for the calendar day in which the 24-hour
period ends.

Detected, but Not Quantified (DNQ) are those sample results less than the RL, but greater than or
equal to the laboratory’s MDL.

Dilution Credit is the amount of dilution granted to a discharge in the calculation of a water quality-
based effluent limitation, based on the allowance of a specified mixing zone. It is calculated from the
dilution ratio or determined through conducting a mixing zone study or modeling of the discharge and
receiving water.

Effluent Concentration Allowance (ECA) is a value derived from the water quality criterion/objective,
dilution credit, and ambient background concentration that is used, in conjunction with the coefficient of

Attachment A — Definitions A-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

variation for the effluent monitoring data, to calculate a long-term average (LTA) discharge
concentration. The ECA has the same meaning as wasteload allocation (WLA) as used in USEPA
guidance (Technical Support Document For Water Quality-based Toxics Control, March 1991, second
printing, EPA/505/2-90-001).

Enclosed Bays means indentations along the coast that enclose an area of oceanic water within distinct
headlands or harbor works. Enclosed bays include all bays where the narrowest distance between the
headlands or outermost harbor works is less than 75 percent of the greatest dimension of the enclosed
portion of the bay. Enclosed bays include, but are not limited to, Humboldt Bay, Bodega Harbor,
Tomales Bay, Drake’s Estero, San Francisco Bay, Morro Bay, Los Angeles-Long Beach Harbor, Upper
and Lower Newport Bay, Mission Bay, and San Diego Bay. Enclosed bays do not include inland
surface waters or ocean waters.

Estimated Chemical Concentration is the estimated chemical concentration that results from the
confirmed detection of the substance by the analytical method below the ML value.

Estuaries means waters, including coastal lagoons, located at the mouths of streams that serve as areas
of mixing for fresh and ocean waters. Coastal lagoons and mouths of streams that are temporarily
separated from the ocean by sandbars shall be considered estuaries. Estuarine waters shall be considered
to extend from a bay or the open ocean to a point upstream where there is no significant mixing of fresh
water and seawater. Estuarine waters included, but are not limited to, the Sacramento-San Joaquin
Delta, as defined in California Water Code section 12220, Suisun Bay, Carquinez Strait downstream to
the Carquinez Bridge, and appropriate areas of the Smith, Mad, Eel, Noyo, Russian, Klamath, San
Diego, and Otay rivers. Estuaries do not include inland surface waters or ocean waters.

Inland Surface Waters are all surface waters of the State that do not include the ocean, enclosed bays,
or estuaries.

Instantaneous Maximum Effluent Limitation: the highest allowable value for any single grab sample
or aliquot (i.e., each grab sample or aliquot is independently compared to the instantaneous maximum
limitation).

Instantaneous Minimum Effluent Limitation: the lowest allowable value for any single grab sample
or aliquot (i.e., each grab sample or aliquot is independently compared to the instantaneous minimum
limitation).

Maximum Daily Effluent Limitation (MDEL) means the highest allowable daily discharge of a
pollutant, over a calendar day (or 24-hour period). For pollutants with limitations expressed in units of
mass, the daily discharge is calculated as the total mass of the pollutant discharged over the day. For
pollutants with limitations expressed in other units of measurement, the daily discharge is calculated as
the arithmetic mean measurement of the pollutant over the day.

Median is the middle measurement in a set of data. The median of a set of data is found by first
arranging the measurements in order of magnitude (either increasing or decreasing order). If the number
of measurements (N) is odd, then the median = Xn+1)2. If n is even, then the median = (X2 + Xn2)+1)/2
(i.e., the midpoint between the n/2 and n/2+1).

Attachment A — Definitions A-2



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Method Detection Limit (MDL) is the minimum concentration of a substance that can be measured
and reported with 99 percent confidence that the analyte concentration is greater than zero, as defined in
title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 136, Attachment B, revised as of July 3, 1999.

Minimum Level (ML) is the concentration at which the entire analytical system must give a
recognizable signal and acceptable calibration point. The ML is the concentration in a sample that is
equivalent to the concentration of the lowest calibration standard analyzed by a specific analytical
procedure, assuming that all the method specified sample weights, volumes, and processing steps have
been followed.

Mixing Zone is a limited volume of receiving water that is allocated for mixing with a wastewater
discharge where water quality criteria can be exceeded without causing adverse effects to the overall
water body.

Not Detected (ND) are those sample results less than the laboratory’s MDL.

Ocean Waters are the territorial marine waters of the State as defined by California law to the extent
these waters are outside of enclosed bays, estuaries, and coastal lagoons. Discharges to ocean waters are
regulated in accordance with the State Water Board’s California Ocean Plan.

Persistent pollutants are substances for which degradation or decomposition in the environment is
nonexistent or very slow.

Pollutant Minimization Program (PMP) means waste minimization and pollution prevention actions
that include, but are not limited to, product substitution, waste stream recycling, alternative waste
management methods, and education of the public and businesses. The goal of the PMP shall be to
reduce all potential sources of a priority pollutant(s) through pollutant minimization (control) strategies,
including pollution prevention measures as appropriate, to maintain the effluent concentration at or
below the water quality-based effluent limitation. Pollution prevention measures may be particularly
appropriate for persistent bioaccumulative priority pollutants where there is evidence that beneficial uses
are being impacted. The Regional Water Board may consider cost effectiveness when establishing the
requirements of a PMP. The completion and implementation of a Pollution Prevention Plan, if required
pursuant to California Water Code section 13263.3(d), shall be considered to fulfill the PMP
requirements.

Pollution Prevention means any action that causes a net reduction in the use or generation of a
hazardous substance or other pollutant that is discharged into water and includes, but is not limited to,
input change, operational improvement, production process change, and product reformulation (as
defined in California Water Code section 13263.3). Pollution prevention does not include actions that
merely shift a pollutant in wastewater from one environmental medium to another environmental
medium, unless clear environmental benefits of such an approach are identified to the satisfaction of the
State or Regional Water Board.

Reporting Level (RL) is the ML (and its associated analytical method) chosen by the Discharger for
reporting and compliance determination from the MLs included in this Order. The MLs included in this
Order correspond to approved analytical methods for reporting a sample result that are selected by the
Regional Water Board either from SIP Appendix 4 in accordance with SIP section 2.4.2 or established in
accordance with SIP section 2.4.3. The ML is based on the proper application of method-based
analytical procedures for sample preparation and the absence of any matrix interferences. Other factors

Attachment A — Definitions A-3



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

may be applied to the ML depending on the specific sample preparation steps employed. For example,
the treatment typically applied in cases where there are matrix-effects is to dilute the sample or sample
aliquot by a factor of ten. In such cases, this additional factor must be applied to the ML in the
computation of the RL.

Satellite Collection System is the portion, if any, of a sanitary sewer system owned or operated by a
different public agency than the agency that owns and operates the wastewater treatment facility that a
sanitary sewer system is tributary to.

Source of Drinking Water is any water designated as municipal or domestic supply (MUN) in a
Regional Water Board Basin Plan.

Standard Deviation (o) is a measure of variability that is calculated as follows:

o = (Clx-wIlao-1)"

where:

X 1S the observed value;

p is the arithmetic mean of the observed values; and
n is the number of samples.

Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE) is a study conducted in a step-wise process designed to identify
the causative agents of effluent or ambient toxicity, isolate the sources of toxicity, evaluate the
effectiveness of toxicity control options, and then confirm the reduction in toxicity. The first steps of
the TRE consist of the collection of data relevant to the toxicity, including additional toxicity testing,
and an evaluation of facility operations and maintenance practices, and best management practices. A
Toxicity Identification Evaluation (TIE) may be required as part of the TRE, if appropriate. (A TIE is a
set of procedures to identify the specific chemical(s) responsible for toxicity. These procedures are
performed in three phases (characterization, identification, and confirmation) using aquatic organism
toxicity tests.)

Attachment A — Definitions A-4



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT B - FACILITY MAPS

57 4C00M.N 575 $76 577

421 5000m.N = _— 7 s IO

4214 . : i . AL -4~ 4214

4513 <213

42472 4212

4211

MODIFIED AFTER USSS
TOPOGRAPHIC MAPE:

1
574 £75 576

LEGEND

HARDING ESE, SITE LOCATION MAP

FOURTH QUARTER 2001 QUARTERLY REPORT
PLATE 1-1, DATED JANUARY 2002

DRAWN BY DJP: JOB NO. 51933013

FOR: FIGURE:
VALERO BENICIA REFINERY
SITE LOGATION MAP 1
& BENICIA
t CALIFORNIA
M:f&;he\?cha.m;g JOB NUMBER; DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY: APPROVED BY: DATE:
Phone: 650.691.0131/691.8837 (FAX) H60T.04347.05 KAM AF sS 04/03/07

}

Attachment B — Facility Maps B-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

| swwa | seFeRmNCE

POST OUTFALLS OBSERVED /SAMMLLQ
N WWT 002

oMS12 005

OM313 003, 007-010

OMS14 004, 006, 011018

NOTES;

1. OBSERVATION SHEETS MUST BE COMPLETED FOR EACH
LOCATION AT ZVERY STORM.

2. 003, 003, 006 MUST BE SAMPLED EVERY STCRM,

3. OTHER LOCATIONS MUST 88 SAMPLED 2 TIMES PER
WET SEASTN.

SFFSITE PiPEwaY TO PIER
Wits BERM Z£ACH SIDE

STRAIT

HERBICIDE APPLICATIONS:

i 1) UNDER GFFSIDE PIPEWAY
2} ARQUND REFINERY PERIMETER
E 3} ALONG ALL RAIL ROAD TRACKS

NC BERM, SOUTH SIDE,
IS SECT. OF PIPEWAY
CONTAINMENT
PROVIDED 3Y RCAD

CARQUINEZ

SRR PEAED

Q we

B ) —
SURFACE WATER BCDY
| :
~
STORMWATER OUTFALLS 993
. . I ABDED W17 ’u?a
- DRaiN o 1 EESeRPTION = Kog*"“ Eory
r——i 05 TA FOR INFLRMATIGN ~ PHONE AR /R
| ASPHALT PAVEMAENT (EXCEPT FREEWAYS) APPROXIMATE SCALE | ow. | TS/osmM | 1-27-95 s
iy - ae NS 208
EES i e | o | ama
g 500 1000 1500 FEET L] 2T

YVALERC REFINING COMFANY-CALIFORNIA
BENICIA REFINERY

ORAINAGE AREA & WATER FLOW DIRECTION

ATTACHMENT 2F-11
FORM 2F, ITEM III, SITE MAP

AN 23 000—17D—22600

12554

LCCATION OF SPRINGS

L
% GRAVEL
==
A
@

RSN

F3322900.0W6 DMP 0405251305 CHK

SIGNIFICANT MATERIALS ' o \

Attachment B — Facility Maps B-2



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

Final Valero Benicia Refinery SWPPP

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Section 4 — Site Description and BMPs for Industrial Activity Sites

PARKING LOT

S

UNDEVELOPED LAND

a7

HYDROGCARBEGN
DETECTION
-S¥STEM

Ny
S

GUNITED AREA
FOR EROSION
CONTROL —

|

Ny

VALERO BENICIA
ASPHALT PLANT

UISUN BAY

é LEGEND

E R.R. TRACKS

EH —— FLOW DIRECTION

L2227 CONCRETE COLLECTION SUMP

2% — T 71T 71 ASPHALT BERM I I — — - e | —

' _ APPROXIMATE SCALE #5 NOTED | AS NOTED CRUDE TRANSFER PIPEUNE

%g SURFACE WATER BODY —— ) AR RS o A MAIN REFINERY SITE

iz [—— : \ 2520 Ventsre Oska Wy, 520 250 [ == YALERD BENICIA REFINERY

£g STORM WATER QUTFALLS tJRS s | o - i

5 0 500 1200 1800 FEET Tew: s oo e 173500 FIGURE 4—2
. Figure 4-2

Crude Transfer Pipeline
Ki\Wprocess\25508\Final SWPPP\Walero SWPPP_doc 4-10 September 2003
B-3

Attachment B — Facility Maps



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

Section 4 — Site Description and BMPs for indusirial Activity Sites

Final Valero Benicia Refinery SWPPP

LU B URRNUEROUM - 580 4D, £UVD - MIDAIZOME

RAWING; My :Q’DD: HiE\Dﬁtﬂ]\Prﬂ;.c!l\Vu)erc\ﬁm}(}s()‘ O30804_F4~10.dwg
A

Holey

1. Dus to Emiltations of scale on this drawing, not &l drain locations
are shown.

PROCESS

i

| Deton o fi

& QLY WATER SEWER LINES

47 WATER DRAW LINES
—— & SICRM WATER
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE
BOLER BLOW DOWN
SANIARY SEWER

UNIT _meanoen

/

6" PRODXUCT FARM WATER DRAW

‘ ENT?U\NCE

_ MA!I\H'ENANCE
OPERATIONS
BURDING / OFFICES

D

RIS RESES P DRAWING TR
ASPHALT UNIT
2520 Vertars Osks Way, Silts 250 VALERC BENICIA REFINERY
"JRS Sserameni, GA 28553200
TEL: (§16) 679-2000
FAX: (9%6) 929-7283 DATE PROJECT NO,
8/2003 17325509 FIGURE 4-10
Figure 4-10
Asphalt Unit

k:\Wprocess\25509\Final SWPPP\Valero SWPPP.doc

4-28

September 2003

NPDES NO. CA0005550



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT C - PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM

Benicia Refinery Wastewater Treatment Scheme

Finai Effluent Available for

Fire Fighting and
Landscape Watering During
————— ] Stormwater Retention Ponds Water Conservation
f Periods
* 4
i * | ,
Sour Water i . | Diversion to Suifur
P Sgumater g !ﬁrgjgff | i when 20 Year Storm | Springs Creek if
tripper { § Capacily is 1 i Effluent Pump Flow
| Alternate Flow When One | i Exceeded Final i Capacity is Exceeded
e o ——— o — e o e e — — — CPS is Qut of Service for I e e e e e P oona
Storm V§ater Overflow When Flow > 2600 GPM and Surge . Maimenance | |
I and Equalization Tanks are Fuli r——=—=— '% { |
! e
{ | ! | Surge Control | ! Sand
| | | | and Diversion | ;_’3 Fiters* |
) Surge Equalization - »  Asration Crarifier —
Strainer Tank F Y Tank » cPs ¥ ISF P oac v | st : 1 i
. FeCis austic GAC*
, PO4 > = | i1 !
. Caustic I l | - w' P
IR l } : H i
: e |
. R Yy . . Surge Reactor pH A Effluent to
[ | Y S f y > Aeration Cilarifier ——ib{— tAF Clarifier E Bay
: > — Final I i
| Effuent |}
L 4 Pumps | i
Iron Sludge i
Pracess/ ) Surge Equalization cPs ISF > ; ; i !
Stormwater Strainer Tar?k y Yy Tank »> > Aeration Clarifier Thickener | i
o on-
- L— ; L—F F— | I J Specification
[ R D I S N N } wWastewater
i : Dewatering Off-Specification |
F Waslewater I I
v ' i y |
Sofids t ‘ | VV\\}(:; t 5 « Crude Field
ofids to : | | Retention
Offsite v | fron Studge o Ponds
Disposat ' Offsite Disposal
1
Primary Sludge
Thickener (PST) BIOX Sludge I
Legend 1 Thickener (BST) To Process/Storm Water Sewer |
- i if Add#ional Treatment isdf— —— —
Normal Water Streams Slop Of to i Needed
o » " rank
—-——— = intermittant Water Streams i H
i Dediler ISF “«x Dg‘;"ser < : ; 5
i ] | : *Sand filters and GAC are
lids/slud i ! ; :
Solids/sludge Streams | i x X normally not sperated - only
i Dewaterin used as needed
Off Streams ! [ Asphalt Plant Cone Roof Tank and 4
1 | Wastewater Baker Tanks .
GENVIWaterComplizncenf/aters § e e o e ea — —— — _l__ — - i
2007 Application | ‘
- v
Afternative Flow When Additional Oil or To Offsite Disposal or To Offsite Disposat
VAQ Removal is not Needed Coker

Benzene Containing Olly
Water

Attachment C — Process Flow Diagram C-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

ATTACHMENT D -STANDARD PROVISIONS

STANDARD PROVISIONS - PERMIT COMPLIANCE

A.

Duty to Comply

1. The Discharger must comply with all of the conditions of this Order. Any noncompliance
constitutes a violation of the Clean Water Act (CWA) and the California Water Code and is
grounds for enforcement action, for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or
modification; or denial of a permit renewal application. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(a).)

2. The Discharger shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under section
307(a) of the CWA for toxic pollutants and with standards for sewage sludge use or disposal
established under section 405(d) of the CWA within the time provided in the regulations that
establish these standards or prohibitions, even if this Order has not yet been modified to
incorporate the requirement. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(a)(1).)

Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense

It shall not be a defense for a Discharger in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary
to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this
Order. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(c).)

Duty to Mitigate

The Discharger shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge or sludge use or
disposal in violation of this Order that has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human
health or the environment. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(d).)

Proper Operation and Maintenance

The Discharger shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of
treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the Discharger to
achieve compliance with the conditions of this Order. Proper operation and maintenance also
includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures. This provision
requires the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems that are installed by a
Discharger only when necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of this Order (40 C.F.R.
§ 122.41(e)).

Property Rights

1. This Order does not convey any property rights of any sort or any exclusive privileges. (40
CF.R.§122.41(g).)

2. The issuance of this Order does not authorize any injury to persons or property or invasion of
other private rights, or any infringement of State or local law or regulations. (40 C.F.R. §
122.5(c).)

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

F. Inspection and Entry

The Discharger shall allow the Regional Water Board, State Water Board, United States
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), or their authorized representatives (including an

authorized contractor acting as their representative), upon the presentation of credentials and other
documents, as may be required by law, to (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(i); Wat. Code, § 13383):

1. Enter upon the Discharger's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or
conducted, or where records are kept under the conditions of this Order (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(31)(1));

2. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the
conditions of this Order (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(2));

3. Inspect and photograph, at reasonable times, any facilities, equipment (including monitoring
and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this Order (40
C.F.R. § 122.41(i)(3)); and

4. Sample or monitor, at reasonable times, for the purposes of assuring Order compliance or as
otherwise authorized by the CWA or the Water Code, any substances or parameters at any
location. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(i)(4).)

G. Bypass
1. Definitions

a. “Bypass” means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a
treatment facility. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(1)(1).)

b. “Severe property damage” means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the
treatment facilities, which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and
permanent loss of natural resources that can reasonably be expected to occur in the
absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic loss caused by
delays in production. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(1)(ii).)

2. Bypass not exceeding limitations. The Discharger may allow any bypass to occur which
does not cause exceedances of effluent limitations, but only if it is for essential maintenance
to assure efficient operation. These bypasses are not subject to the provisions listed in
Standard Provisions — Permit Compliance 1.G.3, 1.G.4, and 1.G.5 below. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(m)(2).)

3. Prohibition of bypass. Bypass is prohibited, and the Regional Water Board may take
enforcement action against a Discharger for bypass, unless (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(4)(1)):

a. Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property
damage (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(4)(1)(A));

b. There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment
facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of
equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-2



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent
a bypass that occurred during normal periods of equipment downtime or preventive
maintenance (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(4)(1)(B)); and

c. The Discharger submitted notice to the Regional Water Board as required under Standard
Provisions — Permit Compliance I.G.5 below. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(4)(1)(C).)

4. The Regional Water Board may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse
effects, if the Regional Water Board determines that it will meet the three conditions listed in
Standard Provisions — Permit Compliance I.G.3 above. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(m)(4)(i1).)

5. Notice

a. Anticipated bypass. If the Discharger knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall
submit a notice, if possible at least 10 days before the date of the bypass. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(m)(3)(1).)

b. Unanticipated bypass. The Discharger shall submit notice of an unanticipated bypass as
required in Standard Provisions - Reporting V.E below (24-hour notice). (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(m)(3)(ii).)

H. Upset

Upset means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance
with technology based permit effluent limitations because of factors beyond the reasonable control
of the Discharger. An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational
error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive
maintenance, or careless or improper operation. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(n)(1).)

1. Effect of an upset. An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for
noncompliance with such technology based permit effluent limitations if the requirements of
Standard Provisions — Permit Compliance I.H.2 below are met. No determination made
during administrative review of claims that noncompliance was caused by upset, and before
an action for noncompliance, is final administrative action subject to judicial review. (40
C.F.R. § 122.41(n)(2).).

2. Conditions necessary for a demonstration of upset. A Discharger who wishes to establish the
affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly signed, contemporaneous
operating logs or other relevant evidence that (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(n)(3)):

a. An upset occurred and that the Discharger can identify the cause(s) of the upset (40
C.FR.§122.41(n)(3)(1));

b. The permitted facility was, at the time, being properly operated (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(n)(3)(ii));

c. The Discharger submitted notice of the upset as required in Standard Provisions —
Reporting V.E.2.b below (24-hour notice) (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(n)(3)(iii)); and

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-3



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

d. The Discharger complied with any remedial measures required under
Standard Provisions — Permit Compliance I.C above. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(n)(3)(iv).)

3. Burden of proof. In any enforcement proceeding, the Discharger seeking to establish the
occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(n)(4).)

Il. STANDARD PROVISIONS - PERMIT ACTION
A. General

This Order may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of a request
by the Discharger for modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of
planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any Order condition. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(f).)

B. Duty to Reapply

If the Discharger wishes to continue an activity regulated by this Order after the expiration date of
this Order, the Discharger must apply for and obtain a new permit. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(b).)

C. Transfers

This Order is not transferable to any person except after notice to the Regional Water Board. The
Regional Water Board may require modification or revocation and reissuance of this Order to
change the name of the Discharger and incorporate such other requirements as may be necessary
under the CWA and the Water Code. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(3); § 122.61.)

I11. STANDARD PROVISIONS - MONITORING

A. Samples and measurements taken for the purpose of monitoring shall be representative of the
monitored activity. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(j)(1).)

B. Monitoring results must be conducted according to test procedures under Part 136 or, in the case of
sludge use or disposal, approved under Part 136 unless otherwise specified in Part 503 unless other
test procedures have been specified in this Order. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(j)(4); § 122.44(1)(1)(iv).)

IV. STANDARD PROVISIONS - RECORDS

A. Except for records of monitoring information required by this Order related to the Discharger's
sewage sludge use and disposal activities, which shall be retained for a period of at least five years
(or longer as required by Part 503), the Discharger shall retain records of all monitoring
information, including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings
for continuous monitoring instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this Order, and records
of all data used to complete the application for this Order, for a period of at least three (3) years
from the date of the sample, measurement, report or application. This period may be extended by
request of the Regional Water Board Executive Officer at any time. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41()(2).)

B. Records of monitoring information shall include:

1. The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(3)(3)(1));

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-4



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

5.

6.

The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements (40 C.F.R. §

122.413)(3)(i1));

The date(s) analyses were performed (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(3)(3)(ii1));

The individual(s) who performed the analyses (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(5)(3)(iv));
The analytical techniques or methods used (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(3)(3)(v)); and

The results of such analyses. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(j)(3)(v1).)

C. Claims of confidentiality for the following information will be denied (40 C.F.R. § 122.7(b)):

1.

2.

The name and address of any permit applicant or Discharger (40 C.F.R. § 122.7(b)(1)); and

Permit applications and attachments, permits and effluent data. (40 C.F.R. § 122.7(b)(2).)

V. STANDARD PROVISIONS - REPORTING

A. Duty to Provide Information

The Discharger shall furnish to the Regional Water Board, State Water Board, or USEPA within a
reasonable time, any information which the Regional Water Board, State Water Board, or USEPA
may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or
terminating this Order or to determine compliance with this Order. Upon request, the Discharger
shall also furnish to the Regional Water Board, State Water Board, or USEPA copies of records
required to be kept by this Order. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(h); Wat. Code, § 13267.)

B. Signatory and Certification Requirements

1.

All applications, reports, or information submitted to the Regional Water Board, State Water
Board, or USEPA shall be signed and certified in accordance with Standard Provisions —
Reporting V.B.2, V.B.3, V.B.4, and V.B.5 below. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(k))

All permit applications shall be signed by a responsible corporate officer. For purposes of
this provision, a responsible corporate officer means: (i) A president, secretary, treasurer, or
vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other
person who performs similar policy- or decision-making functions for the corporation, or (ii)
the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities, provided, the
manager is authorized to make management decisions which govern the operation of the
regulated facility including having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital
investment recommendations, and initiating and directing other comprehensive measures to
assure ling term environmental compliance with environmental laws and regulations; the
manager can ensure that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather
complete and accurate information for permit application requirements; and where authority
to sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with
corporate procedures. (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(a)(1))

All reports required by this Order and other information requested by the Regional Water
Board, State Water Board, or USEPA shall be signed by a person described in Standard

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-5



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

Provisions — Reporting V.B.2 above, or by a duly authorized representative of that person. A
person is a duly authorized representative only if:

a. The authorization is made in writing by a person described in Standard Provisions —
Reporting V.B.2 above (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(b)(1));

b. The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the
overall operation of the regulated facility or activity such as the position of plant
manager, operator of a well or a well field, superintendent, position of equivalent
responsibility, or an individual or position having overall responsibility for environmental
matters for the company. (A duly authorized representative may thus be either a named
individual or any individual occupying a named position.) (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(b)(2));
and

c. The written authorization is submitted to the Regional Water Board and State Water
Board. (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(b)(3).)

4. 1If an authorization under Standard Provisions — Reporting V.B.3 above is no longer accurate
because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the
facility, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of Standard Provisions — Reporting
V.B.3 above must be submitted to the Regional Water Board and State Water Board prior to
or together with any reports, information, or applications, to be signed by an authorized
representative. (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(c).)

5. Any person signing a document under Standard Provisions — Reporting V.B.2 or V.B.3
above shall make the following certification:

“I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under
my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified
personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of
the person or persons who manage the system or those persons directly responsible for
gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, true, accurate, and complete. 1 am aware that there are significant penalties for
submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.” (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(d).)

C. Monitoring Reports

1. Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified in the Monitoring and
Reporting Program (Attachment E) in this Order. (40 C.F.R. § 122.22(1)(4).)

2. Monitoring results must be reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) form or forms
provided or specified by the Regional Water Board or State Water Board for reporting results
of monitoring of sludge use or disposal practices. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(4)(1).)

3. [If the Discharger monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by this Order using
test procedures approved under Part 136 or, in the case of sludge use or disposal, approved
under Part 136 unless otherwise specified in Part 503, or as specified in this Order, the results
of this monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the data submitted in

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-6



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

the DMR or sludge reporting form specified by the Regional Water Board. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(1)(4)(i1).)

4. Calculations for all limitations, which require averaging of measurements, shall utilize an
arithmetic mean unless otherwise specified in this Order. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(4)(iii).)

D. Compliance Schedules

Reports of compliance or noncompliance with, or any progress reports on, interim and final
requirements in any compliance schedule of this Order, shall be submitted no later than 14 days
following each schedule date. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(5).)

E. Twenty-Four Hour Reporting

1. The Discharger shall report any noncompliance that may endanger health or the environment.
Any information shall be provided orally within 24 hours from the time the Discharger
becomes aware of the circumstances. A written submission shall also be provided within
five (5) days of the time the Discharger becomes aware of the circumstances. The written
submission shall contain a description of the noncompliance and its cause; the period of
noncompliance, including exact dates and times, and if the noncompliance has not been
corrected, the anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken or planned to
reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the noncompliance. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(1)(6)(1).)

2. The following shall be included as information that must be reported within 24 hours under
this paragraph (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(6)(i1)):

a. Any unanticipated bypass that exceeds any effluent limitation in this Order. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(1)(6)(11)(A).)

b. Any upset that exceeds any effluent limitation in this Order. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(1)(6)(11)(B).)

3. The Regional Water Board may waive the above-required written report under this provision
on a case-by-case basis if an oral report has been received within 24 hours. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(1)(6)(1ii).)

F. Planned Changes

The Discharger shall give notice to the Regional Water Board as soon as possible of any planned
physical alterations or additions to the permitted facility. Notice is required under this provision
only when (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(1)):

1. The alteration or addition to a permitted facility may meet one of the criteria for determining
whether a facility is a new source in section 122.29(b) (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(1)(1)); or

2. The alteration or addition could significantly change the nature or increase the quantity of

pollutants discharged. This notification applies to pollutants that are not subject to effluent
limitations in this Order. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(1)(i1).)

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-7



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

3. The alteration or addition results in a significant change in the Discharger's sludge use or
disposal practices, and such alteration, addition, or change may justify the application of
permit conditions that are different from or absent in the existing permit, including
notification of additional use or disposal sites not reported during the permit application
process or not reported pursuant to an approved land application plan. (40 C.F.R.§
122.41(1)(1)(1ii).)

G. Anticipated Noncompliance

The Discharger shall give advance notice to the Regional Water Board or State Water Board of any
planned changes in the permitted facility or activity that may result in noncompliance with General
Order requirements. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(2).)

H. Other Noncompliance

The Discharger shall report all instances of noncompliance not reported under Standard Provisions
— Reporting V.C, V.D, and V.E above at the time monitoring reports are submitted. The reports
shall contain the information listed in Standard Provision — Reporting V.E above. (40 C.F.R. §
122.41(1)(7).)

I. Other Information

When the Discharger becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit
application, or submitted incorrect information in a permit application or in any report to the
Regional Water Board, State Water Board, or USEPA, the Discharger shall promptly submit such
facts or information. (40 C.F.R. § 122.41(1)(8).)

VI. STANDARD PROVISIONS - ENFORCEMENT

A. The Regional Water Board is authorized to enforce the terms of this Order under several provisions
of the Water Code, including, but not limited to, sections 13385, 13386, and 13387.

VIl. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS - NOTIFICATION LEVELS
A. Non-Municipal Facilities

Existing manufacturing, commercial, mining, and silvicultural Dischargers shall notify the
Regional Water Board as soon as they know or have reason to believe (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)):

1. That any activity has occurred or will occur that would result in the discharge, on a routine or
frequent basis, of any toxic pollutant that is not limited in this Order, if that discharge will
exceed the highest of the following "notification levels" (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(1)):

a. 100 micrograms per liter (ug/L) (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(1)(1));
b. 200 pg/L for acrolein and acrylonitrile; 500 pg/L for 2,4-dinitrophenol and

2-methyl-4,6-dinitrophenol; and 1 milligram per liter (mg/L) for antimony (40 C.F.R. §
122.42(a)(1)(i1));

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-8



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

C.

d.

Five (5) times the maximum concentration value reported for that pollutant in the Report
of Waste Discharge (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(1)(iii)); or

The level established by the Regional Water Board in accordance with section 122.44(f).
(40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(1)(iv).)

2. That any activity has occurred or will occur that would result in the discharge, on a non-
routine or infrequent basis, of any toxic pollutant that is not limited in this Order, if that
discharge will exceed the highest of the following “notification levels" (40 C.F.R. §

122.42(a)(2)):

a. 500 micrograms per liter (ug/L) (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(2)(1));

b. 1 milligram per liter (mg/L) for antimony (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(2)(ii));

c. Ten (10) times the maximum concentration value reported for that pollutant in the Report
of Waste Discharge (40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(2)(iii)); or

d. The level established by the Regional Water Board in accordance with section 122.44(f).

(40 C.F.R. § 122.42(a)(2)(iv).)

Attachment D — Standard Provisions D-9



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

ATTACHMENT E - MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

Table of Contents

. General Monitoring PrOVISIONS.........cc.iiiiiiiiieiiieiiesie et eieeiee et et teeee e e saeebeesaeeense e saeense e E-2
II.  MONILOTING LOCATIONS. ..cutvieeiiieeiieeetieeetteeeieeeete e ettt e eteeeeteeessteeessseeesssaeesssaeessseeanssaeassesensseeesseens E-3
III.  Influent Monitoring REQUITEMENLS ..........ccouieriieiiieiieeiieiie ettt et e et esaeeaeeenaeeeeeenee e E-4
IV. Effluent Monitoring REQUITEMENLS .........c.ceeiiuiiieiieieiie ettt et e et eestee e ae e e e e s e e ssaeeeenaeeas E-4
A. Treated Process Wastewater MONITOTING .......ocvieriieriieriieniieiie st eieeeieesieesveeieeseeeeaeesnne e E-4
B.  Storm Water MONITOTING .......veeeuiieiiiieeiieeeiieeeieeeeieeeeteeesteeesteeessseeessaaeessseesnsseesnsseesssseenssees E-5
V. Whole Effluent TOXICItY T@SHNE ......cccviieiieiieiiieiieeie ettt ettt ettt siee e saeesaeesaeesnbeensaeenseens E-6
VI. Receiving water Monitoring ReqUITEMENTS ..........ccccuiieiiieiiiieeiiee e eiteeeieeeeieeeeeeeeeveeeseaeeeevee s E-9
VII. Legend for MRP Tables.......cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeiie ettt ettt et siae b e ssaeensaeensaenaea e E-9
VIIIL. Reporting REQUITINENLS ......cc.uviiiiieieiieeeiie et eteeeetee et e et eeaaeeetaeeesaeeeaaeesssaeesssaeesnseeensseeennees E-10
A. General Monitoring and Reporting REqUIrEmMeEnts ............ccceeevueenieeriienieeniienieeee e E-10
B. Self Monitoring Reports (SMRS) ......uiiiiiiiiiieeiieeciee ettt etee e e e sese e esevee e E-10
C. Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRS).......cccuieiiiiiiiiieiiieieeieee et E-12
D, Other REPOTLS ..ooueeiiieiiieciie ettt et e e st e e et a e e s steeessbaeessseeensseeesseeensseennns E-13
Tables
Table E-1. Test Methods and Minimum Levels for Pollutants with Effluent Limits..............ccccoccee. E-2
Table E-2. Monitoring Station LOCAtIONS ........cccueeruiiiiieriieeiieiie ettt ettt e steebeesaeeseeeaaeeseeennes E-3
Table E-3. Treated Process Wastewater MONItOTING .........ccccvereiiieeriieeriieesieeesiieeesveeeeeeeeeveeeeneeenaeeas E-4
Table E-4. Storm Water MONIEOTINE .......cccueeiuieeiieiieeieesiie et esite et esteeeteesteeeeaeesseesabeeseesnseenseeenseenseesnnes E-5
Table E-5. Monitoring Periods and Reporting Schedule...........ccoovviiieiiiiiniiiinieeeee e, E-11

Attachment E — MRP E-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT E - MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM (MRP)

40 CFR 122.48 requires that all NPDES permits specify monitoring and reporting requirements.
California Water Code (CWC) sections 13267 and 13383 also authorize the Regional Water Board to
require technical and monitoring reports. This MRP establishes monitoring and reporting requirements
that implement the federal and California regulations.

I. GENERAL MONITORING PROVISIONS

A. The Discharger shall comply with this MRP as adopted by the Regional Water Board, and with all
of the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G). The Executive Officer may amend the MRP
and Regional Standard Provisions pursuant to 40 CFR 122.62, 122.63, and 124.5. If any
discrepancies exist between the MRP and the Regional Standard Provisions, the MRP prevails.

B. Sampling is required during the entire year when discharging. All analyses shall be conducted
using current USEPA methods, or methods that have been approved by the USEPA Regional
Administrator pursuant to 40 CFR 136.4 and 40 CFR 136.5, or equivalent methods that are
commercially and reasonably available and that provide quantification of sampling parameters and
constituents sufficient to evaluate compliance with applicable effluent limits and to perform
reasonable potential analyses. Equivalent methods must be more sensitive than those specified in
40 CFR 136, must be specified in the permit, and must be approved for use by the Executive Officer
following consultation with the State Water Board’s Quality Assurance Program.

C. Sampling and analysis of additional constituents is required pursuant to Table C of the Regional
Standard Provisions (Attachment G).

D. For compliance and reasonable potential monitoring, analyses shall be conducted using the
commercially available and reasonably achievable detection levels that are lower than applicable
water quality objectives or criteria, or the effluent limitations, whichever is lower. The objective is
to provide quantification of constituents sufficient to allow evaluation of observed concentrations
with respect to the Minimum Levels (MLs) given below.

MLs are the concentrations at which the entire analytical system must give a recognizable signal
and acceptable calibration point. The ML is the concentration in a sample that is equivalent to the
concentration of the lowest calibration standard analyzed by a specific analytical procedure,
assuming that all the method specified sample weights, volumes, and processing steps have been
followed. All MLs are expressed as micrograms per liter (ug/L).

Table E-1 lists the test methods the Discharger may use for compliance and reasonable potential
monitoring for the pollutants with effluent limits.

Table E-1. Test Methods and Minimum Levels for Pollutants with Effluent Limits

Types of Analytical Methods [e]
CTR # Constituent Minimum Levels (ug/L
GC [GCMS | LC | Color | FAA | GFAA | ICP | ICPMS [SPGFAA [HYDRIDE| CVAF | DCP

6 Copper 5 0.5 2

Chromium (Total) 2 0.5 1
5b Hexavalent 10 5

chromium
10 Selenium 5 2 5 1

Attachment E — MRP E-2



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

CTR # Constituent

Types of Analytical Methods ™
Minimum Levels (ug/L

GC [GCMS | LC | Color | FAA | GFAA | ICP | ICPMS [SPGFAA [HYDRIDE| CVAF | DCP
13 Zinc 20 1 10
14 Cyanide 5
Dioxin-TEQ ! Use USEPA Method 1613
Ammonia (N) 0.2 mg/L (as N) using titration method
[a] Analytical Methods / Laboratory techniques are defined as follows:
Color = Colorimetric
CVAF = Cold Vapor Atomic Fluorescence
DCP = Direct Current Plasma
FAA = Furnace Atomic Absorption
GC = Gas Chromatography
GCMS = Gas Chromatography Mass Spectroscopy
GFAA = Graphite Furnace Atomic Absorption

HYDRIDE= Hydride Generation Atomic Absorption

ICP = Inductively Coupled Plasma
ICPMS =

LC = Liquid Chromatography
SPGFAA =

Inductively Coupled Plasma/Mass Spectrometry

Stabilized Platform Graphite Furnace Atomic Absorption (i.e. EPA 200.9)

4, the USEPA specified MLs for Method 1613.

I1. MONITORING LOCATIONS

The Discharger shall monitor at the following locations to demonstrate compliance with the effluent
limitations, discharge specifications, and other requirements in this Order.

Table E-2. Monitoring Station Locations

Type of Sampling
Location

Monitoring
Location Name

Monitoring Location Description

Treated Process

Wastewater EFF-001 At any point after full treatment and before contact with Suisun Bay

SomWatr | Epran [Pl pnt e e atr et ot dnargea D
SomWar | EFFony | pLam st sberstom v sprscrac ot dcarsd o D
SomWatr | EFrane [Pl panthere e atr e of bt dnarge a D
Somar | Br0s AL Bty o v st ottt D
SomWar | EFFons | pLam st sberstom v seprscrac ot dcarsd o D
SomWatr | Eprary [Pl pant e e atr e ot dnarge a D
Somar | Brooy AL bty v st ottt Dt
SomWater | EFram [Pl pant ere e satr e of bt dnargea D
Storm Water EFF-010 At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at Discharge

Point 010, including all storm water flow tributary to that outfall, is present

Attachment E — MRP

E-3



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Type of Sampling

Monitoring

Monitoring Location Description

Location Location Name

Storm Weter BFE 0L | eluding al storm water flow tributay f0 tht outal, s preset
SomWar | Errois |l vhersiem v ety o bt et D
Storm Weter BFF013 | . ncluding all storm wte flow trbutary (0 that outfll, s resent -
SomWar | EFpors | vherstom vt ety o bt Gichaged o D
Storm Water BFF0IS | e 0S. ncluding all sorm water Mow trbutary (0 that outfll, s present
Som Waer | TFrats |ty pont et som war ety of b e Dichare
Storm Water EFF-017 At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at Discharge

Point 017, including all storm water flow tributary to that outfall, is present

. INFLUENT MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

Not Applicable.

IV. EFFLUENT MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

A. Treated Process Wastewater Monitoring

The Discharger shall monitor treated effluent at EFF-001 as follows:

Table E-3. Treated Process Wastewater Monitoring

Parameter Units Sample Type Minimum Sampling
Frequency
Flow Rate ) MGD Continuous 1/Day
0Oil and Grease ¥ mg/L Grab, C-24 1/Week
pH s.u. Continuous Continuous
Temperature °C Continuous Continuous
BOD; mg/L, lbs/day C-24 1/Month
TSS mg/L, Ibs/day C-24 1/Week
COD mg/L, 1bs/day C-24 1/Month
Settleable Matter mL/L-hr Grab 1/Month
Sulfide mg/L, Ibs/day Grab 1/Month
Ammonia N mg/L, 1bs/day Grab 1/Month
Total Chromium lbs/day C-24 1/Month
Hexavalent Chromium Ibs/day Grab 1/Month
Phenolics Compounds (4AAP) lbs/day C-24 1/Month
Copper pg/L C-24 1/Month
Cyanide pg/L C-24 1/Month
Dioxin-TEQ pg/L C-24 2/Year

Attachment E — MRP

E-4



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Parameter Units Sample Type Minimum Sampling
Frequency

Selenium pg/L C-24 1/Week

Zinc pg/L C-24 1/Month
Acute Toxicity ! % survival C-24 1/Week
Chronic Toxicity TUc C-24 1/Quarter
Aluminum!® pg/L C-24 1/Month
Remaining Priority Pollutants'” pg/L C-24 2/Year
Standard Observations - -—- Daily

(1]

Flows shall be monitored continuously and the following shall be reported in monthly SMRs:

a. Daily average flow rate (MGD),

b. Daily total flow volume (MG),

c. Monthly average flow rate (MGD),

d. Monthly total flow volume (MG), and

e. Average daily maximum and average daily minimum flow rates (MGD) in a month.

Each oil and grease sample shall consist of a composite sample comprised of three grab samples taken at equal intervals during
the sampling date, with each grab sample being collected in a glass container. The grab samples shall be mixed in proportion to
the instantaneous flow rates occurring at the time of each grab sample, within the accuracy of plus or minus 5%. Each glass
container used for sample collection or mixing shall be thoroughly rinsed with solvent rinsings as soon as possible after use, and
the solvent rinsings shall be added to the composite sample for extraction or analysis.

If pH is monitored continuously, the minimum and maximum pH values for each day shall be reported in monthly self-
monitoring reports.

Acute bioassay tests shall be performed in accordance with MRP section V.A.

Critical Life Stage Toxicity Tests shall be performed and reported in accordance with the Chronic Toxicity Requirements
specified in MRP section V.B.

The Discharger shall monitor for both total and acid soluble aluminum.

Sampling for all priority pollutants is addressed in the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G).

Storm Water Monitoring

The Discharger shall monitor storm water discharges at EFF-002 through -017 as summarized in
the following table. Compliance monitoring for Outfall 010 may be used to represent Outfall
009 as well because the flow from Outfall 009 is relatively small and the nature of the storm
water from this area is expected to be similar to that at Outfall 010. However, Outfall 009 shall
be monitored directly at least once in the wet season and once in the dry season over a 5-year
period.

Table E-4. Storm Water Monitoring

Parameter Units Sample Type Minimum Sampling Outfalls
Frequency
Flow MGD Continuous 1/Month [ All
TOC mg/L Grab 1/Quarter Al
Oil and Grease mg/L Grab % 1/Quarter NI
pH s.u. Grab ¥ 1/Quarter AllP!
Specific Conductance pmhos/cm Grab 1/Quarter Al
BODs mg/L Grab % Daily during storm event 4]
TSS mg/L Grab Daily during storm event 4]

Attachment E — MRP E-5



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Parameter Units Sample Type Minimum Sampling Outfalls
Frequency
COD mg/L Grab ¥ Daily during storm event 4]
Phenolic Compounds mg/L Grab ! Daily during storm event (4]
Total Chromium ng/L Grab ! Daily during storm event 4]
Hexavalent Chromium ng/L Grab ! Daily during storm event (4]

[1]

The monthly cumulative rainfall shall be measured, and the total volume of storm water discharged for each

month shall be calculated based on the drainage area served by each discharge point. The monthly rainfall
amount and the monthly discharge volume for each discharge point shall be reported on a monthly basis.

[2]

At least one grab sample shall be collected within the first 30 minutes of significant flow during a storm event.

BI'If and when the supplemental effluent limitations in Table 12 of this Order become effective in accordance
with section IV.B.2 of this Order, the monitoring frequency at the outfalls where the limitations are in effect
shall be increased to daily during each storm event.

[4]

If and when effluent limitations for this pollutant in Table 12 of this Order become effective in accordance

with section IV.B.2 of this Order, monitoring shall begin at the outfalls where the limitations are in effect.

V. WHOLE EFFLUENT TOXICITY TESTING

The Discharger shall monitor acute and chronic toxicity at EFF-001 as described below.

A. Whole Effluent Acute Toxicity

1.

Compliance with the acute toxicity effluent limitations of this Order shall be evaluated by
measuring survival of test organisms exposed to 96-hour continuous flow-through bioassays.

Test organisms shall be rainbow trout or fathead minnow unless the Executive Officer
specifies otherwise in writing.

All bioassays shall be performed according to the most up-to-date protocols in 40 CFR 136,
currently in Methods for Measuring the Acute Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Water to
Freshwater and Marine Organisms, 5" Edition.

If the Discharger demonstrates that specific identifiable substances in the discharge are
rapidly rendered harmless upon discharge to the receiving water, compliance with the acute
toxicity limit may be determined after the test samples are adjusted to remove the influence
of those substances. Written approval from the Executive Officer must be obtained to
authorize such an adjustment.

Effluent used for fish bioassays must be dechlorinated prior to testing. Monitoring of the
bioassay water shall include, on a daily basis, the following parameters: pH, dissolved
oxygen, ammonia (if toxicity is observed), temperature, hardness, and alkalinity. These
results shall be reported. If a violation of acute toxicity requirements occurs, the bioassay
test shall be repeated with new fish as soon as practical and shall be repeated until a test fish
survival rate of 90 percent or greater is observed. If the control fish survival rate is less than
90 percent, the bioassay test shall be restarted with new fish and shall continue as soon as
practical until an acceptable test is completed (i.e., control fish survival rate is 90 percent or
greater).

Attachment E — MRP E-6



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

B. Whole Effluent Chronic Toxicity

1. Monitoring Requirements

a.

Sampling. The Discharger shall collect 24-hour composite samples of the effluent at
EFF-001 for critical life stage toxicity testing as indicated below. For toxicity tests
requiring renewals, 24-hour composite samples collected on consecutive days are
required.

Test Species. Chronic toxicity shall be monitored using critical life stage tests(s) and the
most sensitive test species identified by screening phase testing. At the time of this
permit adoption, the approved species is Mysidopsis bahia. The Executive Officer may
change to another test species if data suggest that another test species is more sensitive to
the discharge.

Methodology. Sample collection, handling and preservation shall be in accordance with
USEPA protocols. In addition, bioassays shall be conducted in compliance with the most
recently promulgated test methods, as shown in Appendix E-1. These are Short-Term
Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to Marine
and Estuarine Organisms, currently third edition (EPA-821-R-02-014), and Short-term
Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to
Freshwater Organisms, currently fourth Edition (EPA-821-R-02-013), with exceptions
granted the Discharger by the Executive Officer and the Environmental Laboratory
Accreditation Program (ELAP).

Dilution Series. The Discharger shall conduct tests at 50%, 25%, 10%, 5%, and 2.5%.
The "%" represents percent effluent as discharged.

Accelerated Monitoring. The Discharger shall accelerate monitoring to occur monthly
when either of the following conditions is exceeded:

(1) Three sample median value of 10 chronic toxicity units (TUc), or

(2) Single sample maximum value of 20 TUc.

2. Reporting Requirements

a.

Routine Reporting. Toxicity test results for the current reporting period shall include, at a
minimum, for each test:

(1) Sample dates
(2) Test initiation date
(3) Test species

(4) End point values for each dilution (e.g., number of young, growth rate, percent
survival)

(5) NOEC values in percent effluent

Attachment E — MRP E-7



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

(6) 1ICjs, ICys, IC4, and ICsg values (or EC;s, ECys ... etc.) as percent effluent

(7) TUc values (100/NOEC, 100/IC5s, or 100/EC>s)

(8) Mean percent mortality (£s.d.) after 96 hours in 100% effluent (if applicable)
(9) NOEC and LOEC values for reference toxicant tests

(10) IC50 or EC50 values for reference toxicant tests

(11) Available water quality measurements for each test (pH, dissolved oxygen,
temperature, conductivity, hardness, salinity, ammonia)

Compliance Summary. The results of the chronic toxicity testing shall be provided in the
self-monitoring report and shall include a summary table of chronic toxicity data from at
least eleven of the most recent samples. The information in the table shall include items
listed above under 2.a, specifically item numbers (1), (3), (5), (6)[IC,s or ECss], (7), and

(8).

3. Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE)

a.

To be ready to respond to toxicity events, the Discharger shall prepare a generic TRE
work plan within 90 days of the effective date of this Order. The Discharger shall review
and update the work plan as necessary to remain current and applicable to the discharge
and discharge facilities.

Within 30 days of exceeding either trigger for accelerated monitoring, the Discharger
shall submit to the Regional Water Board a specific TRE work plan, which should be the
generic work plan revised as appropriate for this toxicity event after consideration of
available discharge data.

Within 30 days of the date of completion of the accelerated monitoring tests observed to
exceed either trigger, the Discharger shall initiate a TRE in accordance with a TRE work
plan that incorporates any and all comments from the Executive Officer.

The TRE shall be specific to the discharge and be prepared in accordance with current
technical guidance and reference materials, including USEPA guidance materials. The
TRE shall be conducted as a tiered evaluation process, as summarized below:

(1) Tier 1 consists of basic data collection (routine and accelerated monitoring).

(2) Tier 2 consists of evaluation of optimization of the treatment process, including
operation practices and in-plant process chemicals.

(3) Tier 3 consists of a toxicity identification evaluation (TIE).
(4) Tier 4 consists of evaluation of options for additional effluent treatment processes.

(5) Tier 5 consists of evaluation of options for modifications of in-plant treatment
processes.

Attachment E — MRP E-8



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

VI.

VII.

NPDES NO. CA0005550

(6) Tier 6 consists of implementation of selected toxicity control measures, and follow-up
monitoring and confirmation of implementation success.

e. The TRE may be ended at any stage if monitoring finds there is no longer consistent
toxicity (complying with requirements of section IV.A.4 of this Order).

f. The objective of the TIE shall be to identify the substance or combination of substances
causing the observed toxicity. All reasonable efforts using currently available TIE
methods shall be employed.

g. As toxic substances are identified or characterized, the Discharger shall continue the TRE
by determining the sources and evaluating alternative strategies for reducing or
eliminating the substances from the discharge. All reasonable steps shall be taken to
reduce toxicity to levels consistent with chronic toxicity evaluation parameters.

h. Many recommended TRE elements parallel required or recommended efforts of source
control, pollution prevention, and storm water control programs. TRE efforts should be
coordinated with such efforts. To prevent duplication of efforts, evidence of complying
with requirements or recommended efforts of such programs may be acceptable to
comply with TRE requirements.

i.  The Regional Water Board recognizes that chronic toxicity may be episodic and
identification of causes of, and reduction of, sources of chronic toxicity may not be
successful in all cases. Consideration of enforcement action by the Regional Water Board
will be based in part on the Discharger’s actions and efforts to identify and control or
reduce sources of consistent toxicity.

RECEIVING WATER MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

The Discharger shall continue to participate in the Regional Monitoring Program (RMP), which
involves collection of data on pollutants and toxicity in water, sediment and biota of the Estuary.
The Discharger’s participation and support of the RMP is used in consideration of the level of
receiving water monitoring required by this Order.

The Discharger shall also monitor Sulfur Springs Creek, Beaver Creek, and Buffalo Wallow for the
standard observations listed in the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G) at least once per
month, and once during each storm event.

LEGEND FOR MRP TABLES

Types of Samples
C-24 = composite sample, 24 hours (includes continuous sampling, such as for flows)

Frequency of Sampling

1/Week = once each week

1/Month = once each month

I/Quarter = once each calendar quarter (at about three month intervals)

2/Year = twice each calendar year (at about 6 months intervals, once during dry season,

once during wet season)

Attachment E — MRP E-9



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Parameter and Unit Abbreviations

BODs = 5-day biochemical oxygen demand
COD = chemical oxygen demand

TUc = chronic toxicity units

°C = degrees Celsius

DO = dissolved oxygen

pg/L = micrograms per liter

pmhos/cm = micromhos/centimeter

MG = million gallons

MGD = million gallons per day

mg/L = milligrams per liter

ml/L-hr = milliliters per liter, per hour
MPN/100 ml = most probable number per 100 milliliters
% survival = percent survival

PAHs = polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons
lbs/day = pounds per day

TSS = total suspended solids

S.u. = standard pH units

VIIl. REPORTING REQUIRMENTS

A. General Monitoring and Reporting Requirements

The Discharger shall comply with all Federal Standard Provisions (Attachment D) and Regional
Standard Provisions (Attachment G) related to monitoring, reporting, and recordkeeping.

B. Self Monitoring Reports (SMRs)

1.

Attachment

At any time during the term of this Order, the State or Regional Water Board may notify the
Discharger to electronically submit SMRs using the State Water Board’s California
Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS) Program Web site
(http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwgs/index.html). Until such notification is given, the
Discharger shall submit hard copy SMRs. The CIWQS Web site will provide additional
directions for SMR submittal in the event there will be service interruption for electronic
submittal.

The Discharger shall report in each SMR the results for all monitoring specified in this MRP
under sections III through X. The Discharger shall submit monthly and annual SMRs
including the results of all required monitoring using USEPA-approved test methods or other
test methods specified in this Order. If the Discharger monitors any pollutant more
frequently than required by this Order, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the
calculations and reporting of the data submitted in the SMR. Monthly SMRs shall be due on
the 30th day following the end of each calendar month, covering samples collected during
that calendar month; Annual Reports shall be due on February 1 following each calendar
year.

. Monitoring periods and reporting for all required monitoring shall be completed according to

the following schedule:

E - MRP E-10



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table E-5. Monitoring Periods and Reporting Schedule

Sampling Monitoring Period Begins On... Monitoring Period
Frequency
Continuous Day after permit effective date All
Hourly Day after permit effective date Hourly
Midnight through 11:59 PM or any 24-hour
Daily Day after permit effective date period that reasonably represents a calendar
day for purposes of sampling.
Sunday following permit effective date
Weekly or on permit effective date if on a Sunday through Saturday
Sunday
First day of calendar month following
Monthl permit effective date or on permit 1* day of calendar month through last day of
Y effective date if that date is first day of | calendar month
the month
Closest of January 1, April 1, July 1, or Janqary | through March 31
’ . April 1 through June 30
Quarterly October 1 following (or on) permit Iv 1 throush b
offective date July 1 through September 30
October 1 through December 31
. Closest of January 1 or July 1 following | January 1 through June 30
Semiannually (or on) permit effective date July 1 through December 31
January 1 following (or on) permit
Annually effective date January 1 through December 31
. Anytime durlng the discharge event or At a time when sampling can characterize the
Per Discharge Event | as soon as possible after aware of the .
event discharge event

4. The Discharger shall report with each sample result the applicable Reporting Level (RL) and
the current Method Detection Limit (MDL), as determined by the procedure in 40 CFR 136.

The Discharger shall report the results of analytical determinations for the presence of
chemical constituents in a sample using the following reporting protocols:

a.

Attachment E — MRP

Sample results greater than or equal to the RL shall be reported as measured by the
laboratory (i.e., the measured chemical concentration in the sample).

Sample results less than the RL, but greater than or equal to the laboratory’s MDL, shall
be reported as “Detected, but Not Quantified” or DNQ. The estimated chemical
concentration of the sample shall also be reported.

For the purposes of data collection, the laboratory shall write the estimated chemical
concentration next to DNQ as well as the words “Estimated Concentration” (may be
shortened to “Est. Conc.”). The laboratory may, if such information is available, include
numerical estimates of the data quality for the reported result. Numerical estimates of
data quality may be percent accuracy (+ a percentage of the reported value), numerical
ranges (low to high), or any other means considered appropriate by the laboratory.

Sample results less than the laboratory’s MDL shall be reported as “Not Detected” or
ND.

Dischargers are to instruct laboratories to establish calibration standards so that the ML
(or its equivalent if there is differential treatment of samples relative to calibration



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

standards) is the lowest calibration standard. At no time is the Discharger to use
analytical data derived from extrapolation beyond the lowest point of the calibration
curve.

5. The Discharger shall submit SMRs in accordance with the following requirements:

a. The Discharger shall arrange all reported data in a tabular format. The data shall be
summarized to clearly illustrate whether the facility is operating in compliance with
effluent limitations. The Discharger is not required to duplicate the submittal of data
entered in a tabular format within CIWQS. When electronic submittal of data is required
and CIWQS does not provide for entry into a tabular format within the system, the
Discharger shall electronically submit the data in a tabular format as an attachment.

b. The Discharger shall attach a cover letter to the SMR. The information in the cover letter
shall clearly identify violations of the Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs), discuss
corrective actions taken or planned, and specify the proposed time schedule for corrective
actions. Identified violations shall include a description of the requirement that was
violated and a description of the violation.

c. SMRs shall be submitted to the Regional Water Board, signed and certified as required
by the Federal Standard Provisions (Attachment D), to the address listed below:

California Regional Water Quality Control Board
San Francisco Bay Region

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400

Oakland, CA 94612

ATTN: NPDES Wastewater Division

C. Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRS)

1. As described in section XII.B.1 above, at any time during the term of this Order, the State or
Regional Water Board may notify the Discharger to electronically submit SMRs that will
satisty federal requirements for submittal of DMRs. Until such notification is given, the
Discharger shall submit DMRs in accordance with the requirements described below.

2. DMRs shall be signed and certified as required by the Federal Standard Provisions
(Attachment D). The Discharger shall submit the original DMR and one copy of the DMR to
one of the addresses listed below:

Standard Mail FedEXx/UPS/Other Private Carriers
State Water Resources Control Board State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Water Quality Division of Water Quality
c/o DMR Processing Center c/o DMR Processing Center
PO Box 100 1001 I Street, 15" Floor
Sacramento, CA 95812-1000 Sacramento, CA 95814

Attachment E — MRP E-12



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

3. All discharge monitoring results shall be reported on the official USEPA pre-printed DMR
forms (EPA Form 3320-1). Forms that are self-generated will not be accepted unless they
follow the exact same format as EPA Form 3320-1.

D. Other Reports

Annually, with the first monthly SMR following the respective due dates, the Discharger shall
report the results of any special studies, monitoring, and reporting required by section VI.C.2
(Special Studies, Technical Reports, and Additional Monitoring Requirements) of this Order.
The Discharger shall include a report of progress toward meeting compliance schedules set forth
in section VI.C.2 of this Order.

Attachment E — MRP E-13



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

APPENDIX E-1
CHRONIC TOXICITY
DEFINITION OF TERMS AND SCREENING PHASE REQUIREMENTS

Definition of Terms

A.

No observed effect level (NOEL) for compliance determination is equal to ICys or ECys. If the 1C;s
or EC,s cannot be statistically determined, the NOEL shall be equal to the NOEC derived using
hypothesis testing.

Effective concentration (EC) is a point estimate of the toxicant concentration that would cause an
adverse effect on a quantal, “all or nothing,” response (such as death, immobilization, or serious
incapacitation) in a given percent of the test organisms. If the effect is death or immobility, the term
lethal concentration (LC) may be used. EC values may be calculated using point estimation
techniques such as probit, logit, and Spearman-Karber. ECys is the concentration of toxicant (in
percent effluent) that causes a response in 25 percent of the test organisms.

Inhibition concentration (IC) is a point estimate of the toxicant concentration that would cause a
given percent reduction in a nonlethal, nonquantal biological measurement, such as growth. For
example, an ICys is the estimated concentration of toxicant that would cause a 25 percent reduction
in average young per female or growth. IC values may be calculated using a linear interpolation
method such as USEPA's Bootstrap Procedure.

No observed effect concentration (NOEC) is the highest tested concentration of an effluent or a
toxicant at which no adverse effects are observed on the aquatic test organisms at a specific time of
observation. It is determined using hypothesis testing.

. Chronic Toxicity Screening Phase Requirements

A. The Discharger shall perform screening phase monitoring:

B.

1. Subsequent to any significant change in the nature of the effluent discharged through changes
in sources or treatment, except those changes resulting from reductions in pollutant
concentrations attributable to source control efforts, or

2. Prior to permit reissuance. Screening phase monitoring data shall be included in the NPDES
permit application for reissuance. The information shall be as recent as possible, but may be
based on screening phase monitoring conducted within 5 years before the permit expiration
date.

Design of the screening phase shall, at a minimum, consist of the following elements:

1. Use of test species specified in Appendix E-2, attached, and use of the protocols referenced
in those tables, or as approved by the Executive Officer.

2. Two stages:

Attachment E — MRP E-14



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

a. Stage 1 shall consist of a minimum of one battery of tests conducted concurrently.
Selection of the type of test species and minimum number of tests shall be based on
Appendix E-2 (attached).

b. Stage 2 shall consist of a minimum of two test batteries conducted at a monthly
frequency using the three most sensitive species based on the Stage 1 test results and as
approved by the Executive Officer.

3. Appropriate controls.
4. Concurrent reference toxicant tests.

5. Dilution series 100%, 50%, 25%, 10%, 5%, 0 %, where “%” is percent effluent as
discharged, or as otherwise approved the Executive Officer.

C. The Discharger shall submit a screening phase proposal acceptable to the Executive Officer. The
proposal shall address each of the elements listed above. If within 30 days, the Executive Officer
does not comment, the Discharge shall commence with screening phase monitoring.

Attachment E — MRP E-15



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

APPENDIX E-2

SUMMARY OF TOXICITY TEST SPECIES REQUIREMENTS

Critical Life Stage Toxicity Tests for Estuarine Waters

Species (Scientific Name) Effect Test Duration Reference
(Skeletonema costatum)
Alga (Thalassiosira pseudonana) Growth rate 4 days !
Red alga (Champia parvula) Number of cystocarps 7-9 days 3
. . . Percent germination;
Giant kelp (Macrocystis pyrifera) serm tube length 48 hours 2
Abalone (Haliotis rufescens) Abnormal shell 48 hours 2
development
Oyster (Crassostrea gigas) Abnormal shell
Mussel Mvilus eduli development; percent 48 hours 2
usse (Mytilus edulis) survival
Echinoderms - (Strongylocentrotus purpuratus,
Urchins S. franciscanus) Percent fertilization 1 hour 2
Sand dollar (Dendraster excentricus)
Shrimp (Mysidopsis bahia) Percent survival; growth 7 days 3
Shrimp (Holmesimysis costata) Percent survival; growth 7 days 2
Topsmelt (Atherinops affinis) Percent survival; growth 7 days 2
Silversides (Menidia beryllina) Larval growth rate; 7 days 3
percent survival

Toxicity Test References:

1. American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM). 1990. Standard Guide for Conducting Static 96-Hour Toxicity Tests with

Microalgae. Procedure E 1218-90. ASTM, Philadelphia, PA.

2. Short-term Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluent and Receiving Waters to West Coast Marine and Estuarine
Organisms. EPA/600/R-95/136. August 1995.

3. Short-term Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluent and Receiving Waters to Marine and Estuarine Organisms.
EPA/600/4-90/003. July 1994.

Critical Life Stage Toxicity Tests for Fresh Waters

Species (Scientific Name) Effect Test Duration Reference
Fathead minnow (Pimephales promelas) Survival; growth rate 7 days 4
Water flea (Ceriodaphnia dubia) Survival; number of young 7 days 4
Alga (Selenastrum capricornutum) Cell division rate 4 days 4

Toxicity Test Reference:

4.  Short-term Methods for Estimating the Chronic Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Waters to Freshwater Organisms, third edition.
EPA/600/4-91/002. July 1994.

Attachment E — MRP

E-16




VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

Toxicity Test Requirements for Stage One Screening Phase

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Receiving Water Characteristics

Requirements Discharges to Coast Discharges to San Francisco Bay™
Ocean Marine/Estuarine Freshwater
1 plant 1 plant 1 plant
Taxonomic diversity 1 invertebrate 1 invertebrate 1 invertebrate
1 fish 1 fish 1 fish
Number of tests of each salinity type: 0 Lor2 3
Freshwater''! Marine/Estuarine
4 3or4 0
Total number of tests 4 5 3

[1] The freshwater species may be substituted with marine species if:

(a) The salinity of the effluent is above 1 part per thousand (ppt) greater than 95 percent of the time, or

(b) The ionic strength (TDS or conductivity) of the effluent at the test concentration used to determine compliance is documented to

be toxic to the test species.

[2] (a) Marine/Estuarine refers to receiving water salinities greater than 1 ppt at least 95 percent of the time during a normal water year.

(b) Fresh refers to receiving water with salinities less than 1 ppt at least 95 percent of the time during a normal water year.

Attachment E — MRP




VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT F - FACT SHEET

Table of Contents

L Permit INfOrmMAatiON. .. ...ooiiiiiiiiiieiietee ettt ettt st et b et s nees F-3
L R S Tod 1 T B JeT1) o 013 10 ) s DO F-4
A. Description of Wastewater Treatment or CONtrolS...........ccceevieriiierieeiiienie e F-4

B. Discharge Points and Receiving Waters ..........cccvveviuiieiiiiieiiiieeiie ettt e F-7

C. Summary of Existing Requirements and Self-Monitoring Report (SMR) Data.................... F-10

D. Compliance SUMIMATY ........cccueeiiiiiiiiieeeiieeiieeesieeesteeeseeeesteeesaeesseeeeseeesseeesseeesssesessseesnns F-12

E.  Planned CRANEZES .......cccveiiiiiiieiiieiieeie ettt ettt ettt e et e st e et e et eenbeesseesnbeenseesnseenne F-13

III. Applicable Plans, Policies, and Regulations............ccccoecuieeiiiieiiiieiieeeiee e F-13
AL Legal AULNOTITIES ....cviieiiieiiiieiie ettt ettt et ettt et e st e e bt esate e bt e ssbeenseesnseenseassseenseens F-13

B. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)....cccviiiiiiieiiiieeieeeeee ettt F-14

C. State and Federal Regulations, Policies, and Plans............cccccoooeeviiieiiiniiciiinieceeeeee F-14

D. Impaired Water Bodies on CWA 303(d) LiSt ....ooeeiiieeiiieeieeeieecee et F-15

IV. Rationale For Effluent Limitations and Discharge Specifications ............cccccoeveeviieniencieeneennnnn. F-15
A. Discharge Prohibitions ........c..ceeciiiiiiieiiiiecic ettt et e e rae e esee e ennaeenene F-16

B. Technology-Based Effluent Limitations ...........ccceeruieriieniieniieiieeie et eice e eve e F-16

L. Scope and AULNOTILY ....cccuviiiiiieeiiieee et et e e et e s e e eb e eeareeenaeeennes F-16

2. Applicable Technology-Based Effluent Limitations...........ccoceeveriereenienieneenienieneenens F-17

C. Water Quality-Based Effluent Limitations (WQBELs) for Toxic Substances ..................... F-17

L. Scope and AULNOTIEY ...cc..ieuiiiiieiieeie ettt et e ettt essaeenbeenenas F-17

2. Applicable Beneficial Uses and Water Quality Objectives.........ccecvveeeieeeriiieencieeenieeens F-18

3. Determining the Need for WQBELS ........cocciiiiiiiiiiiiicece e F-20

4. WQBEL CalCulations........ccccuiiiiiiiiiieeeciiie ettt eete e et e e e et e e e eetre e e e eearaeeeeennns F-25

5. Selenium Mass Emission Limitation..........ccccueerieeiieriieeniienieeiieeie et esiee e sene e F-35

6. Whole Effluent ACUte TOXICITY ....eevcuiieeiiieeiiieeeiieecieeeeieeeeieeeevee e aee e e e seveeeseaeeesnneeenes F-36

7. Whole Effluent Chronic TOXICILY.......ceerieriieiriieriieie ettt eeiee et seee e e F-36

D. Interim Effluent Limitation for DioXin-TEQ ...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiii e, F-39

1. Compliance SChedUIE .........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiee et F-39

E  Land Discharge SpecifiCatioNns ........cc.ceccuiieriiiieriiieeiiie ettt svee e e e e e F-39

F. Reclamation SPecifiCations ...........ceerieeiiiiriieiiieiie ettt et ebeeseae e F-39

V. Rationale for Receiving Water LImitations ..........ccccueeeiiieiiiieiiiiecciee et evee e e evee e F-40
VI. Rationale for Monitoring and Reporting Requirements ..............ccoeeueevieeriieniieniienieeiieeee e F-40
A, INTTUENE MONIEOTING ...vviiiviieiiieeeiee ettt ettt et e et e e et e e st eeesteeessaeeessaeesseeesseessseeensseennns F-40

B.  Effluent MONTOTING. .......cccuieitiiiiieiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st eesteeesaeeseessseenseesnseenne F-40

C. Whole Effluent Toxicity Testing Requirements ............cccccveeecieeeeiiieenciieeniie e F-41

D. Receiving Water MONITOTING . ......cecuieriieiieriieeiiieeiieeieesieeieesiteeseessaeeseesseeeseessseenseessseenseenns F-41

VII. Rationale fOr PrOVISIONS......cc.uiiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt sttt esbeesateebeens F-41
A. Standard Provisions (Provision VILA) ........ccoiioiiiiiii e F-41

B. Monitoring and Reporting Requirements (Provision VI.B) ......c.ccccovvviiiiniiiiniiieieeiee, F-41

C. Special Provisions (Provision VI.C) ......ccccciiriiiiiieiiiiiieieeie ettt e F-42

1. REOPENET PIOVISIONS ....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiieeiieeesitee ettt e e sitee et eeeteeestaeessseeessseeessseeessseeensseeenns F-42

2. Special Studies and Additional MONItOTING .........ccceevvveeriieeiiieniieeieenie et F-42

3. Best Management Practices and Pollution Minimization Program.............ccccceevveeeuveennns F-43

4. Other Special PrOVISIONS .........coccuieiiieiiieiieiieeiieete ettt ettt st ebeesieeeseesaaeenseesnnes F-43

VIIL. PUDBIIC PartiCIPatiOn .......ccuviiiiieeiiieeciieeciieeeetee et e et e eite e et e e et e e eaaeeessaeesanaeesnsaeesssaeennseeenseeennns F-44

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

A. Notification of Interested Parties..........coceoriiiiiiiiiiiiiee e F-44
B, WIItten COMIMENLS ....ootiiiiiieiiieiieeiieeie et eeite et et e et esate et e esteesebeesteeesseeseesnseeseessseenseesnseenns F-45
C. PUDC HEAIINE ... veiiiiieeiie ettt ettt te e et e e et e e entaeesssaeesssaeenssaeenssaeensnas F-45
D. Waste Discharge Requirements Petitions............cceevvieiierieeiiieniieiiesieeieeeie e F-45
E. Information and COPYING ....c..eeeciieeiiieeiiieeiieeeieeeeteeesteeesveeesiaeeessaeeessaeessaeeesaeesnsaeesnseeennns F-45
F. Register of Interested Persons ..........cocueeiiiriiiiiiiieciieieee ettt F-46
G.  Additional Information..........eoiiiiiiiiiiie e F-46
List of Tables
Table F-1.  Facility INfOrMation ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiceie ettt e et e tae e s aae e et e e s e e seaaeennaeeas F-3
Table F-2.  Outfall LOCAtION .....cc.eieiieiiiieiieeit ettt ettt ettt e teesebe e beeenseenseenseeennes F-7
Table F-3a. Summary of Previous Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Data,
Discharge Point Q01 ........cc.oiiiieiiiiiieie ettt et e e eenbeesaeeneaas F-10
Table F-3b. Summary of Previous Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Data for Toxic Pollutants,
Discharge Point Q01 ........cc.oiiiieiiiiiieie ettt ettt saae e e snbeesaeeneeas F-11
Table F-4. Previous Storm Water Effluent Limitations ...........cccceeviiiiiiniiiiinniiieceeeeeee e F-11
Table F-5.  Storm Water QUAIILY .......cccuieiiiiiiiiiieeiee ettt ettt ettt ste e beeebeensee s F-11
Table F-6. Numeric Effluent EXCeedances..........cccuoiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeecee e F-12
Table F-7.  BenefiCial USES ......cccuieiuiiiiieiieeiieie ettt ettt ettt et sttt e sbeesseeebeessaesnneenseens F-18
Table F-8. Translators for Copper and Nickel for Deepwater Discharges North of Dumbarton
BIIA@E .ottt et e et e st e bt e eabeenbeesnbeeneens F-20
Table F-9.  Summary of RPA RESUILS .......cooiiiiieiieceeeeeee et F-22
Table F-10. Effluent Limit Calculations............cccecoiiiiiiiiiieiiieiieeieeieee ettt e F-33

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-2



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT F - FACT SHEET

As described in section II of this Order, this Fact Sheet includes the legal requirements and technical
rationale that serve as the basis for the requirements of this Order.

This Order has been prepared under a standardized format to accommodate a broad range of discharge
requirements for dischargers in California. Only those sections or subsections of this Order that are
specifically identified as “not applicable” have been determined not to apply to this Discharger. All
other sections or subsections of this Order apply fully to this Discharger.

I. PERMIT INFORMATION
The following table summarizes administrative information related to the Valero Benicia Refinery.

Table F-1. Facility Information

WDID

2 482004001

Discharger

Valero Refining Company—California

Name of Facility

Valero Benicia Refinery

Facility Address

3400 East Second Street

Benicia, CA 94510

Solano County

Facility Contact, Title, Phone

Marcus Cole, Environmental Engineer, (707) 745-7807

Authorized Person to Sign and
Submit Reports

Douglas Comeau, Vice President and General Manager

Mailing Address

3400 East Second Street, Benicia, CA, 94510

Billing Address Same as Mailing Address
Type of Facility Petroleum Refinery
Major or Minor Facility Major

Threat to Water Quality 1

Complexity A

Pretreatment Program NA

Reclamation Requirements N

Mercury Discharge Requirements

Yes, under Order No. R2-2007-0077

Facility Hydraulic Capacity

3.7 million gallons per day (MGD)

Average Facility Flow (2008)

1.93 MGD

Watershed

Suisun Basin

Receiving Water

Suisun Bay, Carquinez Strait

Receiving Water Type

Estuarine

A. The Valero Refining Company-California (hereinafter Discharger) is the owner and operator of the

Valero Benicia Refinery.

For the purposes of this Order, references to the “discharger” or “permittee” in applicable federal

and State laws, regulations, plans, or policy are held to be equivalent to references to the Discharger

herein.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-3



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

B. The Discharger discharges treated wastewater and storm water runoff into Suisun Bay and
Carquinez Strait, waters of the State and United States, and is currently regulated by National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit No. CA000550 through Order No.
R2-2002-0112 (hereinafter previous permit), which was adopted on January 1, 2003. The
Discharger’s discharge is also currently regulated by Order No. R2-2007-0077 (NPDES Permit
CA0038849) that superseded all requirements on mercury from wastewater discharges in the region.
The mercury permit is unaffected by this Order.

C. The Discharger filed a Report of Waste Discharge and submitted an application for reissuance of its
Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) and NPDES permit on May 31, 2007. Because the
Discharger submitted a complete and timely application for permit reissuance, the previous permit
was administratively extended past its expiration date of November 30, 2007.

Il. FACILITY DESCRIPTION
A. Description of Wastewater Treatment or Controls

The Discharger owns and operates a petroleum refinery that processes an average crude oil volume
of approximately 135,000 bbls/d, producing hydrocarbon products, byproducts, and intermediates.
The average crude oil volume processed is expected to increase to 165,000 bbls/d during the term of
this Order. The average discharge flow rate as of 2008 was 1.93 MGD; the hydraulic capacity of
the treatment plant is approximately 3.7 MGD.

Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant include stripped sour water,
cooling tower and boiler blowdown water, crude water draw from on-site and off-site storage
facilities, raw water treatment backwash, asphalt plant wastewater, storm water runoff from process
areas, extracted groundwater from on-site remediation processes, and monitoring well purge water
from off-site service stations owned by the Discharger. Three separate wastewater streams enter the
plant; sour water, combined process water and storm water, and benzene-containing oily water.
After initial treatment, process water, storm water, and benzene-containing oily water are combined
into an oily wastewater stream.

Process water and storm water first flow through strainers into surge and equalization tanks, before
treatment by corrugated plate separators (CPS) and induced static flotation (ISF) units to remove
oils and solids. Benzene-containing oily water is initially treated in a separate set of CPS and ISFs
before also flowing to the equalization tanks. Sour water is initially treated by the sour water
stripper. Most of the sour water stripper effluent is pretreated in two activated sludge (pre-Biox)
units before being combined with the oily wastewater stream. The remaining stripped sour water is
combined directly with the oily wastewater stream. This final combined wastewater is then treated
in an activated sludge (Biox) system consisting of three aeration basins and three clarifiers operated
in parallel with an addition of powdered activated carbon. The wastewater then flows to an induced
air flotation (IAF) unit for additional solids removal. From the IAF unit, the wastewater flows to a
reactor clarifier, where ferric chloride is added to co-precipitate selenite and polymer is added to
enhance flocculation. Sodium hydroxide is added to adjust the pH of the reactor clarifier effluent,
which is sent to a final discharge sump/pond (final pond). The final pond is unlined and has a
capacity of approximately 2.4 million gallons (MG). It provides some flow equalization for the
discharge pumps. Treated wastewater is pumped from the final pond to Discharge Point 001 and
discharged to Suisun Bay, a water of the State and United States.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-4



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

When analysis of treated wastewater in the final pond indicates that it may violate effluent
limitations, discharge to Suisun Bay is halted and the effluent is pumped to the crude field retention
pond, which has a capacity of 23 MG. Effluent stored in the crude field retention pond is returned
to the wastewater treatment plant for full or partial treatment or, if further analysis indicates that
effluent limits are met, is returned to the final pond for discharge.

Components of the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant are described in greater detail below.

Sour water stripper: Ammonia and hydrogen sulfide are stripped from the sour water. Effluent
from the sour water stripper flows through the stripped sour water sewer to the pre-Biox unit.

Deoiler: The deoiler, which consists of a CPS and an ISF system, treats benzene-containing oily
water before it flows to the equalization tanks. Removed oil is sent to the slop tanks. The
deoiler is not operated continuously.

Strainers: The process water and storm water flow through strainers upstream of the surge tanks
for grit removal. Grit is transported off-site for disposal.

Surge and equalization tanks: The surge and equalization tanks, which are typically operated at
about 60 percent of their capacity, provide surge capacity for process water and storm water
influent. The tanks store approximately 500,000 gallons of first flush storm water before flow is
diverted to the storm water retention ponds. Vapors are routed to an abatement device.

Storm water retention ponds: The storm water retention ponds have an 18 MG capacity, enough
for a 20-year storm. When the influent flow rate to the wastewater treatment plant exceeds
2,600 gallons per minute, and the surge and equalization tanks are full, influent flow is diverted
to the storm water retention ponds. This water is ultimately returned to the wastewater
treatment plant upstream of the Biox system. The storm water ponds are unlined.

Corrugated plate separators: The CPS remove oil and suspended solids from the oily
wastewater stream by gravity separation, using corrugated plates to increase efficiency and
reduce residence time. Oil removed by these units is stored in an oil collection drum and
removed to the slop tanks. Solids removed by these units are routed to the on-site fluid coker,
along with the ISF float and wasted activated sludge, via the primary sludge thickener and the
cone and baker tanks. Vapors are routed to an abatement device. The CPS units can be
bypassed for maintenance.

Induced static flotation: The ISF units remove remaining oil and suspended solids from the oily
wastewater stream through coagulation, flocculation, and flotation processes. The float is
routed to the primary sludge thickener. Vapors from the ISF units are routed to an abatement
device.

Pre-Biox: The two pre-Biox units are used to pre-treat a portion of the stripped sour water in a
manner similar to the Biox system. The effluent is sent to the Biox system.

Biox system: The Biox system is an activated sludge system consisting of three aeration cells
and three clarifiers operated in parallel. All flow to the wastewater treatment plant goes through
the Biox system. Powdered activated carbon is added to each aeration cell to absorb toxicants
and otherwise improve effluent quality. The clarifiers separate treated wastewater from the

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-5



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

biological solids. Biological solids are returned to the Biox unit to maintain biomass health and
density, with a portion being periodically wasted to the activated sludge thickener.

Induced air flotation: The IAF system provides additional solids removal by introducing air to
float residual solids, which are skimmed off the top. The solids are pumped to the waste
activated sludge thickener.

Surge tank and reactor clarifier: The surge tank provides surge capacity for the IAF effluent.
The reactor clarifier uses ferric chloride to co-precipitate selenite, a process which requires pH
adjustment and polymer addition to enhance flocculation. Removed solids are pumped to the
iron sludge thickener. Effluent from the reactor clarifier goes to Tank TK-2078 for pH control.

Tank TK-2078: Sodium hydroxide is added to the reactor clarifier effluent to increase pH as
necessary.

Final pond: Treated wastewater flows to the final pond, which provides flow equalization.
Treated wastewater is then discharged into Suisun Bay through a submerged diffuser
approximately 1,100 feet offshore. If treated wastewater in the final pond does not meet
effluent limitations, it can be pumped to the crude field retention pond for storage until it can be
routed back to the wastewater treatment plant. During periods of water conservation, treated
wastewater from the final pond can be used for fire-fighting purposes.

Wet well: The wet well provides a collection area for the wastewater treatment area drains and
activated sludge thickener water. Water is pumped out of the wet well to the CPS inlet.

Primary sludge thickener: The primary sludge thickener provides solids thickening for CPS and
ISF sludge. Water from the primary sludge thickener is routed upstream of the CPS or sent
directly to the Biox system. Vapors are routed to an abatement device.

Oil collection drum: The oil collection drum holds oil removed by the CPS before it is returned
to the slop oil system. Vapors are routed to carbon canisters for abatement.

Cone tank and baker tanks: The cone and baker tanks are used as holding tanks for sludges
from the primary sludge thickener and the waste activated sludge thickener. These sludges are
transported in vacuum trucks to the on-site fluid coker for reuse or are sent off-site for disposal.
Vapors from the cone and baker tanks are routed to carbon canisters for abatement.

Waste activated sludge thickener: The waste activated sludge and skimmed solids from the
aeration cells are accumulated in a thickener tank to separate water from the solids. The settled
sludge is pumped back to the cone tank or baker tanks. Decanted water flows to the wet well
and is pumped to the CPS inlet.

Iron sludge thickener: Sludge from the bottom of the reactor clarifier is pumped to the thickener
for gravity dewatering. Decanted water from the thickener is returned to the reactor clarifier.

The refinery also has several storm water discharge points (Discharge Points 002 — 017), as
described in Table F-2. Discharge Points 012 through 015 discharge to the City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-6



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Historically, storm water from drainage areas in the Refinery Tank Farm and Crude Oil Storage
Area has been routed to the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant for treatment and discharge via
Discharge Point 001. These areas are bermed to contain the contents of the largest tank within each
area in the event of a tank or pipeline leak or other failure. Discharge piping from these areas is
controlled by valves that are normally closed. Storm water from these areas can only be released
manually, by an operator, and any discharge from them must be monitored at all times to comply
with the Discharger’s Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasures Plan.

During the term of this Order, drainage modifications will be made to route storm water from the
Refinery Tank Farm and Crude Oil Storage Area for possible discharge via Discharge Points 006,
009, and 010. Storm water from 63 acres within the Intermediate Tank Farm will be routed to
Discharge Points 009 and 010; and 32 acres within the Crude Oil Storage Area will drain to
Discharge Point 006. These discharge points and the drainage area served by each are described in
greater detail below (Table F-2). The Discharger expects that removing this relatively clean and
dilute storm water from the wastewater treatment plant influent will result in improved and more
efficient treatment. The Discharger will retain the ability to route these storm water flows to the
wastewater treatment plant if necessary to prevent a violation of storm water effluent limits. To
ensure that storm water effluent limits will not be violated as a result of storm water flows from the
areas described above, storm water will be visually monitored for oil and color, and sampled and
analyzed for TOC, TSS, and pH, at minimum, prior to discharge from these areas. Storm water not
compliant with the effluent limits in Table 11 of this Order, in Table 12 if it applies, or exceeding
100 mg/L TSS will be sent to the wastewater treatment plant, treated, and discharged as treated
wastewater through outfall 001.

B. Discharge Points and Receiving Waters

The locations of the Valero Benicia Refinery Discharge Points 001 — 017, and the corresponding
receiving waters, are shown in Table F-2 below.

Table F-2. Outfall Location

Discharge _— Discharge Point Discharge Point Receivin
Pointg Effluent Description Lati?ude Long?tude Water ’
001 Treated refinery wastewater 38°,03°, 18" N 122°,07°, 07" W Suisun Bay
002 Storm water from unpaved area of 1.8 acres used for 38°03°,53” N 122°,07°,37" W Suisun Bay
equipment storage along western boundary of wastewater via Sulfur
treatment plant, discharged at NW corner of wastewater Springs
treatment area via ditch and several pipes into Sulfur Creek
Springs Creek and ultimately Suisun Bay. Drainage area is
separated from wastewater treatment area and storm water
retention pond by a dike.
003 Storm water from unpaved 19-acre area of the refinery, 38°,04°,49” N 122°,08°, 127 W Suisun Bay
discharged near the Raw Water Break Tank at north end of via Sulfur
Avenue A via culvert to Sulfur Springs Creek and ultimately Springs
Suisun Bay. Creek
004 Storm water from 0.5-acre gravel area between 1st Street 38°,03°,59” N 122°,07°, 58" W Suisun Bay
and railway on south side of 1st Street, discharged west of via Beaver
Gate 4 into eastern end of Beaver Creek, which flows to Creek,
culvert, then Buffalo Wallow, then 72 inch culvert into Buffalo
Sulfur Springs Creek, and ultimately Suisun Bay. Drainage Wallow, and
area is separated from processing area by peripheral road. Sulfur
Springs
Creek

Attachment F — Fact Sheet



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Discharge _— Discharge Point Discharge Point Receivin
Pointg Effluent Description Lati?ude Long?tude Water ’

005 Storm water from 68.9 acres west of processing area, 38°03°,58” N 122°,08°, 05” W Suisun Bay
discharged west of Gate 4 on south side of processing area via Beaver
via spillway into western end of Beaver Creek. Beaver Creek,
Creek flows to culvert, which joins Buffalo Wallow, and Buffalo
then 72 inch culvert that drains to Sulfur Springs Creek, and Wallow, and
ultimately Suisun Bay. Drainage area, of which less than 1 Sulfur
acre is impervious, is separated from the processing area by Springs
railroad tracks and peripheral road, and is bordered on south Creek
side by Gate 5 Road and on west side by refinery fence.

006 Condensate from steam traps, groundwater seepage and 38°,03°,50” N 122°,07°, 57" W Suisun Bay
storm water from 3.5-acre area beneath refinery crude via Sulfur
pipeline (starting at southwest corner of crude tank field and Springs
running northeast along perimeter of tank farm and Park Creek
Road) and storm water from Crude Oil Storage Area
(COSA) Tank Farm (32 acres). Condensate, ground water
seepage, and storm water from beneath crude pipeline is
collected in concrete sump equipped with containment valve
and hydrocarbon detector that automatically closes
containment valve and alarms the central control house in
event of hydrocarbon detection. When contamination is
observed or detected, water in sump is collected with
vacuum trucks and treated in refinery’s wastewater
treatment plant. Discharge from the Crude Oil Storage Area
is controlled by a containment valve that is normally closed
and must be opened manually by an operator. Crude Oil
Storage Area contributions are visually monitored and
sampled prior to discharge. Storm water not meeting storm
water effluent limits is sent to the wastewater treatment
plant. Point of discharge is on south side of Park Road to
Sulfur Springs Creek and ultimately to Suisun Bay.

007 Storm water from 0.7 acres of gravel and paved area near 38°,04°,02” N 122°,07°, 54" W Suisun Bay
Gate 4, discharged east of Gate 4 to Buffalo Wallow, which via Buffalo
flows into 72 inch culvert, to Sulfur Springs Creek, and Wallow and
ultimately Suisun Bay. The drainage area, of which 0.4 Sulfur
acres are impervious, is separated from processing area by Springs
peripheral road. Creek

008 Storm water from 0.9-acre gravel area along railway and 38°,04°,02” N 122°,07°,53” W Suisun Bay
refinery fence line, discharged east of Gate 4 to culvert, via Buffalo
which flows to Buffalo Wallow, then to 72 inch culvert, then Wallow and
to Sulfur Springs Creek and ultimately Suisun Bay. Sulfur
Drainage area is separated from processing area by railway. Springs

Creek

009 Storm water from 0.3-acre gravel and paved area between 38° 04°, 12” N 122°,07°, 53" W Suisun Bay
railway and Avenue A and adjacent to Upper Level Tank via Sulfur
Farm (ULTF), discharged to culvert along Avenue A on Springs
southeast side of processing area to Sulfur Springs Creek Creek
and ultimately Suisun Bay. Approximately 0.1 acres of
drainage area is impervious.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-8



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge Point
Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving
Water

010

Storm water from 0.8 acres of gravel and paved area
between railway and Avenue A and adjacent to ULTF, as
well as storm water from area of ULTF (63 acres).
Discharge from the ULTF is controlled by a containment
valve that is normally closed and must be opened manually
by an operator. ULTF contributions are visually monitored
and sampled prior to discharge. Storm water not meeting
storm water effluent limits is sent to the wastewater
treatment plant. Discharge occurs on SE side of processing
area via culvert along Avenue A, which flows to Sulfur
Springs Creek and ultimately to Suisun Bay. Drainage area,
of which 0.25 acres is impervious, is separated from
processing area by railway and peripheral road.

38°,04°, 12” N

122°,07°,53” W

Suisun Bay
via Sulfur
Springs
Creek

011

Storm water from 0.4 acres beneath refinery crude pipeline
on north side of Park Road, discharged on north side of Park
Road via culvert into Sulfur Springs Creek and ultimately
Suisun Bay. Drainage area is contained with asphalt berms
to channel storm water to concrete sump equipped with
hydrocarbon detector, which alarms at the central control
house in event of hydrocarbon release, and containment
valve, which is closed until manually opened. If
contamination is observed or detected, storm water from
sump is collected with vacuum trucks and treated in refinery
wastewater treatment system.

38°,03’,52” N

122°,07°, 57" W

Suisun Bay
via Sulfur
Springs
Creek

012

Storm water from 0.78-acre primarily gravel (10% paved)
area under section of crude pipeline southwest of crude tank
field, discharged to City of Benicia storm drain system, and
ultimately to Carquinez Strait. Storm water collects in
concrete sump equipped with containment valve, normally
kept closed, and hydrocarbon detector, which alarms at
central control house in the event of hydrocarbon release
from crude pipeline.

38°03'15" N

122°08'19" W

Carquinez
Strait

013

Storm water from 1.2-acre (5 % paved) area under crude
pipeline southwest of Outfall 012, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez
Strait. Storm water collects in concrete sump equipped with
containment valve, normally kept closed, and hydrocarbon
detector, which alarms at central control house in the event
of hydrocarbon release from crude pipeline.

38°03'08" N

122°0825" W

Carquinez
Strait

014

Storm water from 0.35-acre unpaved area under crude
pipeline south of Outfall 013, discharged to City of Benicia
storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.
Storm water collects in concrete sump equipped with
containment valve, normally kept closed, and hydrocarbon
detector, which alarms at central control house in the event
of hydrocarbon release from crude pipeline.

38°03'03" N

122°0823" W

Carquinez
Strait

015

Storm water from 0.50-acre unpaved area under crude
pipeline southeast of Outfall 014, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez
Strait. Storm water collects in concrete sump equipped with
an automatic valve, and hydrocarbon detector, which alarms
at central control house in the event of hydrocarbon release
from crude pipeline.

38°02'50" N

122°07'55" W

Carquinez
Strait

016

Storm water from 0.1 acres beneath refinery crude pipeline
south of Outfall 15 near refinery dock, discharged via
culvert to Carquinez Strait. Drainage area is contained on
both sides by asphalt berms, which direct storm water to
concrete sump equipped with hydrocarbon detector that
alarms the central control house if hydrocarbons are
detected, and containment valve kept normally in the closed

38°,02°,44” N

122°,07°,45” W

Carquinez
Strait

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-9



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Discharge A Discharge Point Discharge Point Receivin
Pointg Effluent Description Lati%ude Long?tude Water ’
position. If contamination is observed or detected, storm
water from sump is collected with vacuum trucks and
treated in refinery wastewater treatment system.

017 Storm water from approximately 12.1 acres (of which 4.25 38,03, 58" N 122°,08’, 05" W Suisun Bay
acres are impervious) at Asphalt Plant, collected in 0.425 via Buffalo
million gallon holding tank before discharge to Buffalo Wallow and
Wallow. Storm water is released from holding tank in Sulfur
batches via underground culvert to Buffalo Wallow, which Springs
flows to 72 inch culvert, then to Sulfur Springs Creek, and Creek
ultimately Suisun Bay.

C. Summary of Existing Requirements and Self-Monitoring Report (SMR) Data

1.

Effluent limitations in the previous permit and representative monitoring data for Discharge
Point 001 are summarized below.

Table F-3a. Summary of Previous Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Data, Discharge Point 001

S Monitoring Data
_ Effluent Limitations (From 1/02 To 3/09)
Parameter (units) Hiahest Monthi Highest Dail
. . ighest Monthly ighest Daily
Monthly Average Daily Maximum Average Discharge
Ib/day 1400 2500 180 303
BOD;
kg/day 640 1200 82 138
COD Ib/day 9900 19000 3370 4990
kg/day 4500 8600 1530 2270
TSS Ib/day 1100 1800 698 1370
kg/day 510 800 317 620
Oil and Grease Ib/day 410 770 <179 502
kg/day 190 350 81 228
Ib/day 9.3 19 2.1 9.2
Phenolic C d
enotie Lompouncs keg/day 42 8.6 0.94 42
. 1b/day 770 1700 61 395
Ammonia as N
kg/day 350 770 28 179
1b/ . 1 . 5.8
Sulfide b/day 7.5 7 5.5
kg/day 34 7.6 2.5 2.6
Settleable Solids mL/L/hr 0.1 0.2 <0.1 1
1 <0. .
Total Chromium b/day 14 39 0.21 <0.18
kg/day 6.3 18 <0.095 <0.082
< <
Hexavalent Chromium Ib/day 1.1 2.6 0.40 0.14
kg/day 0.51 1.2 <0.18 <0.064
Notes :
BOD;s = 5-day Biochemical Oxygen Demand
COD = Chemical Oxygen Demand
kg/day = kilograms per day
mL/L/hr = milliliters per liter per hour
Ib/day = pounds per day
TSS = Total Suspended Solids
Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-10



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table F-3b. Summary of Previous Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Data for Toxic
Pollutants, Discharge Point 001

_ Final Limits Interim Limits (th(r):lltg/r(;gqrgzt/%g)
Parameter Units - - - -
Daily Monthly Daily Monthly Highest Daily
Maximum | Average | Maximum | Average Concentration
Copper pg/L --- - 36 -- 22
Mercury pg/L - - - 0.075 0.17
Nickel pg/L - - 65 -- 26
Selenium pg/L --- - 50 - 268.5
Zinc pg/L 565 245 - - 230
Cyanide pg/L - --- 25 --- 42
Hexavalent chromium pg/L 116 58 - -- 8.4
4,4-DDE ug/L 0.0012 0.00059 ND (0.002)
Dieldrin ng/L 0.00028 0.00014 ND (0.0019) "
PAHs ng/L 0.098 0.049 ND (0.019)
PCBs Sum ng/L 0.00034 0.00017 ND (0.028)
Dioxin-TEQ pg/L 1.4x107 9.4x 107
Ammonia (N) mg/L - -—- - - 19

@ Analyte not detected in effluent. Number in parenthesis is the MDL as reported by the analytical laboratory.

Notes:
pg/L = micrograms per liter
PCB = Polychlorinated biphenyl
PAH = polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbon
TEQ = Toxic Equivalents relative to 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin

2. The previous permit (section B.9) established the following effluent limitations, based on the
requirements of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Point Source
Category, for discharges of storm water through Discharge Points 002 — 017.

Table F-4.Previous Storm Water Effluent Limitations

Pollutant Daily Maximum Effluent Limitation
Oil & Grease 15 mg/L
TOC 110 mg/L

Notes:

mg/L = milligrams per liter

In its Report of Waste Discharge, the Discharger provided the following characterization of
its storm water discharges through Discharge Points 002 — 017.

Table F-5. Storm Water Quality

Discharge Oil & Grease (mg{L) TOC (mg/L) - TSS (mg/L) .
Point Average Maz?:r%m Average Ma[:(?:%m Average Ma[;?:%m

002 <5 <5 13 38 54 174

003 <5 <5 <23 109 214 4,010
004 <5 <5 <23 109 214 4,010
005 <5 9.2 <20 95 123 1,754
006 <5 14 <15 63 147 1,053
007 <7 21 <20 43 647 1,968

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-11



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Discharge Oil & Grease (mg/_L) TOC (mg/L) _ TSS (mg/L) _
Point Average Maz?;%m Average Mg(?r']%m Average leijx?rlrI])[Jm
008 <9 30 <14 43 761 4,633
009 <5 <5 <10 19 174 524
010 <5 <5 <10 19 174 524
011 <5 10 <8 20 207 818
016 <5 6.2 14 32 2,337 27,400
017 <5 7.0 <8 34 60 200
Notes

TOC = Total Organic Carbon
TSS = Total Suspended Solids

Violations of the storm water effluent limits are discussed in subsection D below. Although
the previous permit had no TSS effluent limit for storm water, the TSS levels in storm water
exceeded the benchmark value of 100 mg/L contained in USEPA’s NPDES Stormwater
Multi-Sector General Permit for Industrial Activities (Federal Register Volume 65, Number
210, October 30, 2000) at least once at each storm water outfall. The average storm water
TSS level exceeded the benchmark value at all but two storm water outfalls. In response to
these elevated TSS levels, the Discharger identified and began to implement updated Best
Management Practices in September 2009. The updated Best Management Practices include
placement of gravel and riprap; soil removal; and installation of hay bales, rice wattles, and
oil sorbent booms.

D. Compliance Summary

Exceedances of numeric effluent limits that occurred during the previous permit term are
summarized in the following table.

Table F-6. Numeric Effluent Exceedances

S Discharge Exceeded . Effluent Reported
Date of Violation . Units L .
Point Parameter Limitation Concentration
April 21, 2003 006 pH S.u. Max 8.5 8.6
July 12, 2004 001 Acute Toxicity | % Survival Min 70 25
July 22, 2004 001 Acute Toxicity | % Survival Min 70 45
August 11, 2004 001 Acute Toxicity | % Survival Min 70 25
October 19, 2004 007 Oil and Grease mg/L 15 21
November 27, 2004 005 pH s.u. Min 6.5 6.2
January 5, 2005 001 TOtalsifitél:able mL/l-hr 0.2 |

May 8, 2005 001 Acute Toxicity | % Survival Min 70 60
June 1, 2005 001 Acute Toxicity | % Survival Min 70 40
June 9, 2005 001 Cyanide ng/L 25 26
December 18, 2005 008 Oil and Grease mg/L 15 29
January 1, 2006 001 Cyanide pg/L 25 33

January 31, 2006 001 Dioxin-TEQ pg/L 1.4x 107 5.4x107
February 16, 2006 001 Cyanide pg/L 25 30
February 20, 2006 001 Selenium pg/L 50 268
March 14, 2007 001 Cyanide ng/L 25 42
December 28, 2007 009 Oil & Grease mg/L 15 224

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-12



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

L Discharge Exceeded . Effluent Reported
Date of Violation Point Parameter Units Limitation Concentration
September 30, 2008 001 Oil & Grease mg/L 8 9.2

The Discharger’s acute toxicity monitoring data from 2002-2009 show that there were several
exceedances of the 11-sample 90" percentile effluent limitation of not below 70% during the
permit term. The Discharger’s chronic toxicity monitoring data from 2002-2007 show that there
were no exceedances of the chronic toxicity limits.

The Regional Water Board took enforcement action through Order No. R2-2007-0013 and an
expedited mandatory minimum penalty (MMP) settlement letter dated June 30, 2009; the State
Water Board also took enforcement action through Order SWB-2008-2-0033. Order No.
R2-2007-0013 fined Valero $18,000 in MMPs for violations from January 1, 2004, to
November 1, 2006, $16,500 of which were spent to expand an existing Supplemental
Environmental Project to educate middle and high school students in pollution prevention,
particularly regarding plastics. However, as discussed in that Order, it did not fine Valero’s
January 2006 violation of its dioxin-TEQ average monthly effluent limit (AMEL). This
violation was determined to be the result of off-site flooding caused by a storm event combined
with unusually high tides. This combination of factors was determined to be an exceptional
situation that was unpreventable, consistent with California Water Code section 13385(5)(1)(b).
The June 30, 2009, letter fined Valero a $3,000 MMP for the cyanide effluent limit violation that
occurred on March 14, 2007. Order No. SWB-2008-2-0033 consisted of a $3,000 MMP for the
December 28, 2007, Oil & Grease violation. No enforcement action been taken yet for the
September 30, 2008, Oil & Grease violation.

E. Planned Changes

Over the next five years, the Discharger plans to increase its crude oil throughput from

135,000 bbls/d to 165,000 bbls/d. Also in this period, storm water from the Lower Level Tank
Farm, Upper Level Tank Farm, Intermediate Tank Farm, and Crude Oil Storage Area, which has
historically been routed to the wastewater treatment plant and discharged through Discharge Point
001, will be routed to storm water Discharge Points 006, 009, and 010. The storm water
modifications will reduce the hydraulic load to the wastewater and enhance pollutant removal.

111.APPLICABLE PLANS, POLICIES, AND REGULATIONS

The requirements in this Order are based on the requirements and authorities described in this
section.

A. Legal Authorities

This Order is issued pursuant to federal Clean Water Act (CWA) section 402 and implements
regulations adopted by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), and pursuant
to California Water Code (CWC) Chapter 5.5, Division 7 (commencing with section 13370). It shall
serve as an NPDES permit for point source discharges from this facility to surface waters. This
Order also serves as WDRs pursuant to CWC Article 4, Chapter 4, Division 7 (commencing with
section 13260).

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-13



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

B. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

Under CWC section 13389, this action to adopt an NPDES permit is exempt from the provisions of
CEQA.

C. State and Federal Regulations, Policies, and Plans

1.

Water Quality Control Plans. The Water Quality Control Plan for the San Francisco Bay
Basin (Basin Plan) is the Regional Water Board’s master water quality control planning
document. It designates beneficial uses and water quality objectives for waters of the State,
including surface waters and groundwater. It also includes programs of implementation to
achieve the water quality objectives. The Basin Plan was duly adopted by the Regional
Water Board and approved by the State Water Resources Control Board, USEPA, and the
Office of Administrative Law (OAL), as required. Requirements of this Order implement the
Basin Plan.

Thermal Plan. The State Water Board adopted a Water Quality Control Plan for Control of
Temperature in the Coastal and Interstate Water and Enclosed Bays and Estuaries of
California (Thermal Plan) on May 18, 1972, and amended this plan on September 18, 1975.
This plan contains water quality objectives (WQOs) for coastal and interstate surface waters
as well as enclosed bays and estuaries. The Valero Benicia Refinery discharges to Suisun
Bay and Carquinez Strait, both of which are defined as enclosed bays by the Thermal Plan.
Requirements of this Order implement the Thermal Plan.

National Toxics Rule (NTR) and California Toxics Rule (CTR). USEPA adopted the
NTR on December 22, 1992, which was amended on May 4, 1995, and November 9, 1999.
About forty criteria in the NTR applied in California. On May 18, 2000, USEPA adopted the
CTR. The CTR promulgated new toxics criteria for California and, in addition, incorporated
the previously adopted NTR criteria that applied in the State. The CTR was amended on
February 13, 2001. These rules contain water quality criteria for priority toxic pollutants that
apply to Suisun Bay and Carquinez Strait.

State Implementation Policy. On March 2, 2000, the State Water Board adopted the Policy
for Implementation of Toxics Standards for Inland Surface Waters, Enclosed Bays, and
Estuaries of California (State Implementation Policy or SIP). The SIP became effective on
April 28, 2000, with respect to the priority pollutant criteria USEPA promulgated for
California through the NTR and to the priority pollutant objectives the Regional Water Board
established in the Basin Plan. The SIP became effective on May 18, 2000, with respect to the
priority pollutant criteria USEPA promulgated through the CTR. On February 24, 2005, the
State Water Board adopted amendments to the SIP that became effective on July 13, 2005.
The SIP establishes implementation provisions for priority pollutant objectives and
provisions for chronic toxicity control. Requirements of this Order implement the SIP.

Alaska Rule. On March 30, 2000, USEPA revised its regulation that specifies when new
and revised State and tribal water quality standards (WQS) become effective for CWA
purposes [65 Fed. Reg. 24641 (April 27, 2000) (codified at 40 CFR 131.21)]. Under the
revised regulation (also known as the Alaska Rule), USEPA must approve any new and
revised standards submitted to USEPA after May 30, 2000, before they can be used for CWA
purposes. The final rule also provides that standards already in effect and submitted to

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-14



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

USEPA by May 30, 2000, may be used for CWA purposes, whether or not approved by
USEPA.

6. Antidegradation Policy. 40 CFR 131.12 requires that State water quality standards include an
antidegradation policy consistent with the federal policy. The State Water Board established
California’s antidegradation policy through State Water Board Resolution 68-16, which
incorporates the federal antidegradation policy where the federal policy applies under federal
law. It also requires that existing water quality be maintained unless degradation is justified
based on specific findings. The Regional Water Board’s Basin Plan implements, and
incorporates by reference, both the State and federal antidegradation policies. The permitted
discharge must be consistent with the antidegradation provisions of 40 CFR 131.12 and State
Water Board Resolution No. 68-16. Antidegradation is discussed in more detail in section
IV.C.8 of this Fact Sheet.

7. Anti-Backsliding Requirements. CWA sections 402(0)(2) and 303(d)(4) and
40 CFR 122.44(1) prohibit backsliding in NPDES permits. These anti-backsliding provisions
require that effluent limitations in a reissued permit be as stringent as those in the previous
permits, with some exceptions where limitations may be relaxed. Anti-backsliding is
discussed in more detail in section IV.C.8 of this Fact Sheet.

D. Impaired Water Bodies on CWA 303(d) List

In November 2006, the USEPA approved a revised list of impaired water bodies prepared by the
State [hereinafter referred to as the 303(d) list] pursuant to CWA section 303(d), which requires
identification of specific water bodies where it is expected that water quality standards will not be
met after implementation of technology-based effluent limitations on point sources. Suisun Bay is
listed as an impaired waterbody for chlordane, DDT, dieldrin, dioxin compounds, exotic species,
furan compounds, mercury, nickel, PCBs, dioxin-like PCBs, and selenium. Carquinez Strait is
listed as an impaired waterbody for chlordane, DDT, dieldrin, dioxins, furans, exotic species,
mercury, PCBs, dioxin-like PCBs, and selenium. The SIP requires final effluent limitations for all
303(d)-listed pollutants to be consistent with total maximum daily loads (TMDLs) and associated
wasteload allocations.

The Regional Water Board plans to adopt TMDLs for pollutants on the 303(d) list. TMDLs will
establish wasteload allocations for point sources and load allocations for non-point sources, and
will be intended to result in achieving the water quality standards for the impaired waterbodies.
USEPA adopted a mercury TMDL for San Francisco Bay on February 12, 2008. Regional Water
Board Order No. R2-2007-0077 regulates mercury discharge and implements the adopted
mercury TMDL.

IV.RATIONALE FOR EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND DISCHARGE SPECIFICATIONS

The CWA requires point source dischargers to control the amount of conventional, non-
conventional, and toxic pollutants discharged into waters of the United States. The control of
pollutants discharged is established through effluent limitations and other requirements in NPDES
permits. There are two principal bases for effluent limitations in the NPDES regulations:

40 CFR 122.44(a) requires that permits include applicable technology-based limitations and
standards; and 40 CFR 122.44(d) requires that permits include water quality-based effluent
limitations to attain and maintain applicable numeric and narrative water quality criteria to protect

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-15



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

the beneficial uses of the receiving water. Where reasonable potential has been established for a
pollutant, but there is no numeric objective for the pollutant, water quality-based effluent limitations
may be established: (1) using USEPA criteria guidance under CWA section 304(a), supplemented
where necessary by other relevant information; (2) on an indicator parameter for the pollutant of
concern; or (3) using a calculated numeric water quality criterion, such as a proposed State criterion
or policy interpreting the State’s narrative criterion, supplemented with other relevant information,
as provided in 40 CFR 122.44(d)(1)(v1).

A. Discharge Prohibitions

1.

Discharge Prohibitions I11.A (No discharge different from that described in this Order):
This prohibition is the same as in the previous permit and is based on CWC section 13260,
which requires filing a Report of Waste Discharge before discharges can occur. Discharges
not described in the Report of Waste Discharge, and subsequently in this Order, are
prohibited.

Discharge Prohibitions 111.B (No discharge that does not receive an initial dilution of at
least 15:1): This Order allows a conservative estimate of the actual initial dilution of 15:1 to
calculate WQBELSs for ammonia. This is discussed further in sections IV.C.4.b and b.(3) of
this Order. These WQBELSs would not be protective of water quality if the discharge did not
actually achieve at least a 15:1 minimum initial dilution, thus this prohibition is necessary
and warranted.

This Order permits discharge of storm water from 16 outfalls that do not provide an initial
dilution of at least 10:1. Though, Discharge Prohibition No. 1 of the Basin Plan prohibits
discharges having characteristics of particular concern that do not receive a minimum 10:1
initial dilution, the Basin Plan further indicates that the prohibition is to address discharges of
treated sewage and other discharges where the treatment process is subject to upset. Since
these storm water discharges do not contain treated sewage or wastewater from a treatment
process subject to upset, the prohibition does not apply to these storm water discharges.

Discharge Prohibition 111.C (No bypass or overflow of untreated or partially treated
wastewaters): This prohibition is retained from the previous permit and based on
40 CFR 122.41(m) (see federal Standard Provisions, Attachment D).

B. Technology-Based Effluent Limitations

1. Scope and Authority

CWA section 301(b) and 40 CFR 122.44(a) require that permits include applicable
technology-based limitations and standards. Where USEPA has not yet developed
technology based standards for a particular industry or a particular pollutant, CWA section
402(a)(1) and 40 CFR 125.3 authorize the use of best professional judgment (BPJ) to derive
technology-based effluent limitations on a case-by-case basis. When BPJ is used, the permit
must reflect specific factors outlined at 40 CFR 125.3.

USEPA has established standards of performance (technology-based limitations and
standards) for the petroleum refining industry at 40 CFR 419, Effluent Limitations Guidelines
for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category. Subpart B of these regulations for the

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-16



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Cracking Subcategory apply to discharges from the Valero Benicia Refinery and have been
used to develop limitations and requirements of this Order.

2. Applicable Technology-Based Effluent Limitations

a.

Technology-Based Effluent Limitations - Discharge Point 001

40 CFR 419 requires that technology-based effluent limitations for Discharge point 001
be derived based on refinery production (the total crude oil throughput of the facility) and
the treatment processes used. Because the refinery currently operates with a maximum
crude oil throughput of 135,000 bbls/d but plans to increase production to 165,000 bbls/d
during the term of this Order, this Order establishes two sets of production-based effluent
limitations. Derivation of the production-based effluent limitations based on 40 CFR 419
Subpart B is presented in detail in Attachment F-1 to this Order.

Limitations for production rates of 165,000 bbls/d will become effective only following
notice of Executive Officer approval in accordance with section VI.C.5.c of this Order.

Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 - 017

Based on the requirements of 40 CFR 419 Subpart B for storm water discharges, this
Order establishes technology-based limitations for Discharge Points 002 — 017. This
Order also retains the narrative storm water limits of no visible oil or color.

If the limitation for total organic carbon (TOC) or oil and grease is exceeded, the
additional limitations become immediately effective for the discharge point where that
exceedance occurred. Derivation of the storm water effluent limitations based on

40 CFR 419 Subpart B is presented in detail in Attachment F-1 to this Order. The
additional effluent limit on pH of 6.0 to 9.0 from 40 CFR 419 Subpart B is not
established by this Order. The Basin Plan pH effluent limit for shallow water discharges
of 6.5 to 8.5 is retained instead to satisfy anti-backsliding requirements.

C. Water Quality-Based Effluent Limitations (WQBELS) for Toxic Substances

1. Scope and Authority

a.

b.

40 CFR 122.44(d)(1)(1) requires permits to include WQBELSs for pollutants (including
toxicity) that are or may be discharged at levels that cause, have reasonable potential to
cause, or contribute to an excursion above any State water quality standard (Reasonable
Potential). The process for determining Reasonable Potential and, when necessary,
calculating WQBELSs is intended to (1) protect the designated beneficial uses of the
receiving water, and (2) achieve applicable WQOs in the CTR, NTR, and the Basin Plan.

NPDES regulations and the SIP provide the basis to establish Maximum Daily Effluent
Limitations (MDELSs).

(1) NPDES Regulations. 40 CFR 122.45(d) states “For continuous discharges all permit
effluent limitations, standards, and prohibitions, including those necessary to achieve
water quality standards, shall unless impracticable be stated as maximum daily and

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-17



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

average monthly discharge limitations for all discharges other than publicly owned
treatment works.”

(2) SIP. SIP section 1.4 requires that WQBELSs be expressed as MDELSs and average
monthly effluent limitations (AMELs).

MDELSs are used in this Order to protect against acute water quality effects. The
MDELSs are necessary for preventing fish kills or mortality to aquatic organisms.

2. Applicable Beneficial Uses and Water Quality Objectives

a. Beneficial uses applicable to the receiving waters are from Basin Plan Table 2-1 and are
as follows:

Table F-7.Beneficial Uses

Dlls:)cor:ﬁ:ge Receiving Water Name Beneficial Use(s)
001, 002, Suisun Bay Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
003, 004, Industrial Process Supply (PRO)
005, 006, Estuarine Habitat (EST)
88;: g(l)g: h?dustri'al Service Supply (IND)
011,017 M Fish Migration (MIGR)
Navigation (NAV)
Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)
Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)
Wildlife Habitat (WILD)
Fish Spawning (SPWN)
012, 013, Carquinez Strait Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
014,014, Estuarine Habitat (EST)
016 Industrial Service Supply (IND)
Fish Migration (MIGR)
Navigation (NAV)
Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)
Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)
Wildlife Habitat (WILD)
Fish Spawning (SPWN)
1]

Outfalls 002 through 011, and 017 flow to specific creeks, which flow to Suisun Bay. Beneficial uses of
Suisun Bay apply to these creeks due to the Tributary Rule. Outfalls 012 through 015 discharge to the City
of Benicia storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

b. The WQOs applicable to the receiving waters for this discharge are from the Basin Plan;
the CTR, established by USEPA at 40 CFR 131.38; and the NTR, established by USEPA
at 40 CFR 131.36. Some pollutants have WQOs established by more than one of these
three sources.

(1) Basin Plan. The Basin Plan specifies numeric WQOs for 10 priority toxic pollutants,
as well as narrative WQOs for toxicity and bioaccumulation in order to protect
beneficial uses. The pollutants for which the Basin Plan specifies numeric objectives

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-18



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

are arsenic, cadmium, hexavalent chromium, copper in freshwater, lead, mercury,
nickel, silver, zinc, and cyanide. The Basin Plan’s narrative toxicity objective (section
3.3.18) states in part, “[a]ll waters shall be maintained free of toxic substances in
concentrations that are lethal to or that produce other detrimental responses in aquatic
organisms.” The bioaccumulation objective states in part, “[c]ontrollable water
quality factors shall not cause a detrimental increase in concentrations of toxic
substances found in bottom sediments or aquatic life. Effects on aquatic organisms,
wildlife, and human health will be considered.”

(2) CTR. The CTR specifies numeric aquatic life criteria for 23 priority toxic pollutants
and numeric human health criteria for 57 priority toxic pollutants. These criteria
apply to all inland surface waters and enclosed bays and estuaries of the San
Francisco Bay Region.

(3) NTR. The NTR establishes numeric aquatic life criteria for selenium, numeric
aquatic life and human health criteria for cyanide, and numeric human health criteria
for 34 other toxic organic pollutants for waters of San Francisco Bay upstream to, and
including, Suisun Bay and the Delta. These NTR criteria apply to Suisun Bay, the
receiving water for Discharge Point 001 for this Discharger.

(4) Technical Support Document for Water Quality-Based Toxics Controls. Where
numeric objectives have not been established or updated in the Basin Plan, 40 CFR
122.44(d) requires that WQBELSs be established based on USEPA criteria,
supplemented where necessary by other relevant information, to attain and maintain
narrative WQOs to fully protect designated beneficial uses. To determine the need
for WQBELSs and establish them when necessary, the Regional Water Board has
followed the requirements of applicable NPDES regulations, including 40 CFR 122
and 131, as well as guidance and requirements established by the Basin Plan;
USEPA’s Technical Support Document for Water Quality-Based Toxics Control (the
TSD, EPA/505/2-90-001, 1991); and the State Water Board’s Policy for
Implementation of Toxics Standards for Inland Surface Waters, Enclosed Bays, and
Estuaries of California, 2005 (SIP).

(5) Basin Plan Receiving Water Salinity Policy and Hardness. The Basin Plan (like
the CTR and the NTR) states that the salinity characteristics (i.e., freshwater vs.
saltwater) of the receiving water shall be considered in determining the applicable
WQO. Freshwater objectives shall apply to discharges to waters with salinities equal
to or less than one parts per thousand (ppt) at least 95 percent of the time. Saltwater
objectives shall apply to discharges to waters with salinities equal to or greater than
10 ppt at least 95 percent of the time in a normal water year. For discharges to water
with salinities in between these two categories, or tidally influenced freshwaters that
support estuarine beneficial uses, the objectives shall be the lower of the salt or
freshwater objectives (the latter calculated based on ambient hardness) for each
substance.

The receiving water for Discharge Point 001 for this Discharger, Suisun Bay, is an
estuarine environment based on salinity data generated through the Regional
Monitoring Program (RMP) at the Pacheco Creek (BF10) sampling stations between
1993 and 2001. In that period, the receiving water’s minimum salinity was 0.0 ppt,

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-19



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

its maximum salinity was 12.8 ppt, and its average salinity was 4.4 ppt. Because the
salinity was between 1 and 10 ppt in 33 percent of receiving water samples, the
freshwater and the saltwater objectives from the Basin Plan, NTR, and CTR apply to
this discharge.

Some freshwater metal objectives are hardness dependent. Hardness data is collected
through the RMP for water bodies in the San Francisco Bay region. In determining
the objectives for this Order, Regional Water Board staff used a hardness value of

96 mg/L, the adjusted geometric mean of the hardness values observed below

400 mg/L at the Pacheco Creek Station between 1993 and 2001. This represents the
best available information for the hardness of the receiving water after it has mixed
with the discharge.

(6) Site-Specific Metal Translators. Because 40 CFR 122.45(¢c) requires effluent
limitations for metals to be expressed as total recoverable metal, and applicable water
quality criteria for the metals are typically expressed as dissolved metal, factors or
translators must be used to convert metals concentrations from dissolved to total
recoverable and vice versa. In the CTR, USEPA establishes default translators that
are used in NPDES permitting activities; however, site-specific conditions, such as
water temperature, pH, suspended solids, and organic carbon, greatly impact the form
of metal (dissolved, filterable, or otherwise) present and therefore available in the
water to cause toxicity. In general, the dissolved form is more available and more
toxic to aquatic life than filterable forms. Site-specific translators can be developed
to account for site-specific conditions, thereby preventing exceedingly stringent or
under protective water quality objectives.

For deep-water discharges to Suisun Bay, Regional Water Board staff used translators
for copper and nickel based on recommendations of the Clean Estuary Partnership’s
North of Dumbarton Bridge Copper and Nickel Development and Selection of Final
Translators (2005). In determining the need for and calculating WQBELS for all
other metals, Regional Water Board staff used default translators from

40 CFR 131.38(b)(2), Table 2.

Table F-8. Translators for Copper and Nickel for Deepwater Discharges North
of Dumbarton Bridge

Copper Nickel
AMEL Translator 0.38 0.27
MDEL Translator 0.67 0.57

3. Determining the Need for WQBELSs

40 CFR 122.44(d)(1)(i) requires permits to include WQBELSs for all pollutants (non-priority
or priority) “which the Director determines are or may be discharged at a level which will
cause, have the reasonable potential to cause, or contribute to an excursion above any
narrative or numeric criteria within a State water quality standard” (i.e., have “Reasonable
Potential”). Assessing whether a pollutant has Reasonable Potential is the fundamental step
in determining whether or not a WQBEL is required. Using the methods prescribed in section

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-20



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

1.3 of the SIP, Regional Water Board staff analyzed the effluent data to determine if the
discharge demonstrates Reasonable Potential.

a. Reasonable Potential Analysis

Using the methods prescribed in SIP section 1.3, Regional Water Board staff analyzed
the effluent data to determine if the discharge demonstrates Reasonable Potential. The
Reasonable Potential Analysis (RPA) compares the effluent data with numeric and
narrative WQOs in the Basin Plan, NTR, and CTR.

b. Reasonable Potential Methodology

Using the methods and procedures prescribed in SIP section 1.3, Regional Water Board
staff analyzed the effluent and background data and the nature of facility operations to
determine if the discharge has Reasonable Potential. The RPA projects a maximum
effluent concentration (MEC) for each pollutant based on existing data, while accounting
for a limited data set and effluent variability. There are three triggers in determining
Reasonable Potential.

(1) The first trigger is activated if the MEC is greater than the lowest applicable WQO
(MEC > WQO), which has been adjusted, if appropriate, for pH, hardness, and
translator data. If the MEC is greater than the adjusted WQO, then that pollutant has
Reasonable Potential, and a WQBEL is required.

(2) The second trigger is activated if the observed maximum ambient background
concentration (B) is greater than the adjusted WQO (B > WQO) and the pollutant is
detected in any of the effluent samples.

(3) The third trigger is activated if a review of other information determines that a
WQBEL is required to protect beneficial uses, even though both MEC and B are less
than the WQO. A limitation may be required under certain circumstances to protect
beneficial uses.

c. Effluent Data

The RPA was based on the effluent monitoring data collected by the Discharger from
April 2006 through March 2009 for most inorganic pollutants, and from April 2004
through March 2009 for most organic pollutants. Regional Water Board staff analyzed
these data and the nature of the discharge to determine if the discharge has Reasonable
Potential.

d. Ambient Background Data

Ambient background values are used in the RPA and in the calculation of effluent
limitations. For the RPA, ambient background concentrations are the observed maximum
detected water column concentrations. The SIP states that for calculating WQBELSs,
ambient background concentrations are either the observed maximum ambient water
column concentrations or, for objectives intended to protect human health from
carcinogenic effects, the arithmetic mean of observed ambient water concentrations. The

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-21



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

Table F-9. Summary of RPA Results

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

RMP station at Yerba Buena Island, located in the Central Bay, has been monitored for
most of the inorganic (CTR constituent numbers 1-15) and some of the organic (CTR
constituent numbers 16—126) toxic pollutants, and these data were used as background
data in performing this RPA.

The RMP has not analyzed all the constituents listed in the CTR. On May 15, 2003, a
group of several San Francisco Bay Region dischargers (known as the Bay Area Clean
Water Agencies, or BACWA) submitted a collaborative receiving water study, entitled
the San Francisco Bay Ambient Water Monitoring Interim Report. This study includes
monitoring results from sampling events in 2002 and 2003 for the remaining priority
pollutants not monitored by the RMP. The RPA was conducted and the WQBELSs were
calculated using RMP data from 1993 through 2003 for inorganics and organics at the
Yerba Buena Island RMP station, and additional data from the BACWA Ambient Water
Monitoring: Final CTR Sampling Update Report for the Yerba Buena Island RMP
station.

RPA Determination

The MECs, most stringent applicable WQOs, and background concentrations used in the
RPA are presented in the following table, along with the RPA results (yes or no) for each

pollutant analyzed. Reasonable Potential was not determined for all pollutants because
there are not applicable water quality objectives for all pollutants, and monitoring data
were not available for others. The pollutants that exhibit Reasonable Potential are
copper, selenium, zinc, cyanide, dioxin toxic equivalents (dioxin-TEQ), and ammonia.

MEC or Minimum Governing Ba'(\:/lkzxrl(:mr;or
CTR# Priority Pollutants DL 8] (/L) WQO/WQC Minimum DL FIt RPA Results ©
(ng/L) (ng/L)

1 Antimony 0.4 4300 1.8 No
2 Arsenic 3.6 36 2.81 No
3 Beryllium <0.06 No Criteria 0.215 Ud
4 Cadmium 0.51 1.1 0.16 No
Sa Chromium (IIT) 8.1 200 Not Available Ud
5b Hexavalent chromium 8.4 11 4.4 No
6 Copper 14 7.2 2.55 Yes
7 Lead 0.66 3.0 0.80 No
8 Mercury (303d listed) [d] [d] [d] [d]
9 Nickel (303d listed) 23 30 3.7 No
10 Selenium (303d listed) 268.5 5 0.39 Yes
11 Silver 0.2 22 0.052 No
12 Thallium 0.2 6.3 0.21 No
13 Zinc 230 86 5.1 Yes
14 Cyanide 42 1 <04 Yes
15 Asbestos Not Available No Criteria Not Available ud
16 2,3,7,8-TCDD (303d listed) <5.98E-07 1.4E-08 8.00E-9 No
Dioxin TEQ (303d listed) 0.000000937 1.4E-08 7.10E-08 Yes

17 Acrolein <0.56 780 <0.5 No
18 Acrylonitrile <0.33 0.66 0.03 No
19 Benzene 20 71 <0.05 No
20 Bromoform <0.07 360 <0.5 No
21 Carbon Tetrachloride <0.06 44 0.06 No

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-22



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

MEC or Minimum Governing Ba'l/lkzxrl(znlrj]r;or
CTR# Priority Pollutants DL HBl (g1 ) WQO/WQC Minimum DL @ RPA Results @
(ng/L) (ng/L)
22 Chlorobenzene <0.06 21000 <0.5 No
23 Chlorodibromomethane <0.07 34 <0.05 No
24 Chloroethane <0.07 No Criteria <0.5 ud
25 2-Chloroethylvinyl ether <0.1 No Criteria <0.5 ud
26 Chloroform 3.2 No Criteria <0.5 Ud
27 Dichlorobromomethane <0.06 46 <0.05 No
28 1,1-Dichloroethane <0.05 No Criteria <0.05 Ud
29 1,2-Dichloroethane <0.06 99 0.04 No
30 1,1-Dichloroethylene <0.07 32 <0.5 No
31 1,2-Dichloropropane <0.05 39 <0.05 No
32 1,3-Dichloropropylene <0.05 1700 Not Available ud
33 Ethylbenzene <0.06 29000 <0.5 No
34 Methyl Bromide <0.05 4000 <0.5 No
35 Methyl Chloride <0.04 No Criteria <0.5 Ud
36 Methylene Chloride <0.07 1600 22 No
37 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane <0.06 11 <0.05 No
38 Tetrachloroethylene <0.06 8.9 <0.5 No
39 Toluene 2.9 200000 <0.3 No
40 1,2-Trans-Dichloroethylene <0.05 140000 <0.5 No
41 1,1,1-Trichloroethane <0.06 No Criteria <0.5 Ud
42 1,1,2-Trichloroethane <0.07 42 <0.05 No
43 Trichloroethylene <0.06 81 <0.5 No
44 Vinyl Chloride <0.05 525 <0.5 No
45 2-Chlorophenol <0.6 400 <12 No
46 2,4-Dichlorophenol <0.7 790 <13 No
47 2,4-Dimethylphenol 8 2300 <13 No
48 2-Methyl- 4,6-Dinitrophenol <09 765 <12 No
49 2,4-Dinitrophenol <0.6 14000 <0.7 No
50 2-Nitrophenol <0.7 No Criteria <13 Ud
51 4-Nitrophenol <0.6 No Criteria <1.6 Ud
52 3-Methyl 4-Chlorophenol <0.5 No Criteria <I1.1 ud
53 Pentachlorophenol <0.9 0.0059 <1.0 No
54 Phenol <1 4600000 <13 No
55 2,4,6-Trichlorophenol <0.6 6.5 <1.3 No
56 Acenaphthene <0.3 2700 0.0019 No
57 Acenaphthylene <0.2 No Criteria 0.00053 Ud
58 Anthracene <0.3 110000 0.0005 No
59 Benzidine <0.96 0.00054 <0.0015 No
60 Benzo(a)Anthracene <0.019 0.049 0.0053 No
61 Benzo(a)Pyrene <0.019 0.049 0.00147 No
62 Benzo(b)Fluoranthene <0.02 0.049 0.0046 No
63 Benzo(ghi)Perylene <0.1 No Criteria 0.0027 Ud
64 Benzo(k)Fluoranthene <0.02 0.049 0.0015 No
65 Bis(2-Chloroethoxy)Methane <0.77 No Criteria <0.3 Ud
66 Bis(2-Chloroethyl)Ether <0.67 1.4 <0.3 No
67 Bis(2-Chloroisopropyl)Ether <0.6 170000 Not Available ud
68 Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)Phthalate 2 5.9 0.091 No
69 4-Bromophenyl Phenyl Ether <04 No Criteria <0.23 ud
70 Butylbenzyl Phthalate 7 5200 0.0056 No
71 2-Chloronaphthalene <0.5 4300 <0.3 No
72 4-Chlorophenyl Phenyl Ether <0.5 No Criteria <0.3 ud
73 Chrysene <0.02 0.049 0.0024 No
74 Dibenzo(a,h)Anthracene <0.02 0.049 0.00064 No

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-23



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

MEC or Minimum Governing Ba'l/lkzxrltgzlrj]r;or
CTR# Priority Pollutants DL HBl (g1 ) WQO/WQC Minimum DL @ RPA Results @
(ng/L) (ng/L)

75 1,2-Dichlorobenzene <0.2 17000 <0.8 No
76 1,3-Dichlorobenzene <0.3 2600 <0.8 No
77 1,4-Dichlorobenzene <03 2600 <0.8 No
78 3,3 Dichlorobenzidine <0.3 0.077 <0.001 No
79 Diethyl Phthalate <0.7 120000 <0.24 No
80 Dimethyl Phthalate 4 2900000 <0.24 No
81 Di-n-Butyl Phthalate <0.58 12000 0.016 No
82 2,4-Dinitrotoluene <0.6 9.1 <0.27 No
83 2,6-Dinitrotoluene <0.48 No Criteria <0.29 Ud
84 Di-n-Octyl Phthalate <0.67 No Criteria <0.38 Ud
85 1,2-Diphenylhydrazine <0.6 0.54 0.0037 No
86 Fluoranthene <0.05 370 0.011 No
87 Fluorene <0.1 14000 0.0036 No
88 Hexachlorobenzene <04 0.00077 0.000022 No
89 Hexachlorobutadiene <0.7 50 <0.3 No
90 Hexachlorocyclopentadiene <04 17000 <0.31 No
91 Hexachloroethane <0.6 8.9 <0.2 No
92 Indeno(1,2,3-cd)Pyrene <0.02 0.049 0.004 No
93 Isophorone <0.48 600 <0.3 No
94 Naphthalene <0.2 No Criteria 0.00255 ud
95 Nitrobenzene <0.67 1900 <0.25 No
96 N-Nitrosodimethylamine <0.58 8.1 <0.3 No
97 N-Nitrosodi-n-Propylamine <0.77 1.4 <0.001 No
98 N-Nitrosodiphenylamine <0.58 16 <0.001 No
929 Phenanthrene <0.05 No Criteria 0.0061 ud
100 Pyrene <0.05 11000 0.0194 No
101 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene <0.6 No Criteria <03 Ud
102 Aldrin <0.002 0.00014 1.4E-07 No
103 Alpha-BHC <0.0028 0.013 0.000496 No
104 beta-BHC <0.0028 0.046 0.000413 No
105 gamma-BHC <0.002 0.063 0.0007034 No
106 delta-BHC <0.002 No Criteria 0.000053 ud
107 Chlordane (303d listed) <0.005 0.00059 0.00018 No
108 4,4'-DDT (303d listed) <0.002 0.00059 0.000167 No
109 4,4'-DDE (linked to DDT) <0.002 0.00059 0.000693 No
110 4,4'-DDD <0.0019 0.00084 0.000313 No
111 Dieldrin (303d listed) <0.0019 0.00014 0.000264 No
112 Alpha-Endosulfan <0.0019 0.0087 0.000031 No
113 beta-Endolsulfan <0.0019 0.0087 0.000069 No
114 Endosulfan Sulfate <0.002 240 0.0000819 No
115 Endrin <0.0019 0.0023 0.00004 No
116 Endrin Aldehyde <0.002 0.81 Not Available Ud
117 Heptachlor <0.0028 0.00021 0.000019 No
118 Heptachlor Epoxide <0.0019 0.00011 0.000094 No
119-125 | PCBs sum (303d listed) <0.028 0.00017 0.00146 No
126 Toxaphene <0.14 0.0002 Not Available ud
Tributylin Not Available 0.0074 0.002 ud

Total PAHs <0.019 15 0.05145 No

Total Ammonia 19,000 1,201 200 Yes

(a) The MEC or maximum background concentration is the actual detected concentration unless there is a “<” sign before it, in which case the value shown is
the minimum detection level.

(b) The MEC or maximum background concentration is “Not Available” when there are no monitoring data for the constituent.

(c) RPA Results = Yes, if MEC > WQO/WQC, or B> WQO/WQC and MEC is detected;

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-24



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

No, if MEC and B are < WQO/WQC or all effluent data are undetected;
Undetermined (Ud), if no criteria have been promulgated,
Cannot Determine, if there are insufficient data.

(d) Mercury from wastewater discharges is regulated by NPDES Permit No. CA0038849 (currently Regional Water Board Order No. R2-2007-0077) that
implements the San Francisco Bay Mercury TMDL.

(1) Constituents with limited data. The Discharger has performed sampling and
analysis for the constituents listed in the CTR. This data set was used to perform the
RPA. In some cases, Reasonable Potential cannot be determined because effluent data
are limited or ambient background concentrations are not available. The Discharger
will continue to monitor for these constituents in the effluent using analytical methods
that provide the best feasible detection limits. When additional data become available,
further RPA will be conducted to determine whether to add numeric effluent
limitations to this Order or to continue monitoring.

(2) Pollutants with no Reasonable Potential. WQBELSs are not included in this Order
for constituents that do not demonstrate Reasonable Potential; however, monitoring
for such pollutants is still required. If concentrations of these constituents are found
to have increased significantly, section VI.C.2.a of this Order requires the Discharger
to investigate the source of the increase. Remedial measures are required if the
increase poses a threat to water quality.

4. WQBEL Calculations
a. Pollutants with Reasonable Potential

WQBELSs were developed for the toxic and priority pollutants that were determined to
have Reasonable Potential. The WQBELSs were calculated based on appropriate WQOs
and the appropriate procedures specified in SIP section 1.4. The WQOs used for each
pollutant with Reasonable Potential are discussed below.

b. Dilution Credit

The SIP provides the basis for any dilution credit. The outfall at Discharge Point 001 is
designed to achieve a minimum initial dilution of 10:1. The actual dilution has been
estimated using the 1985 update of the USEPA-supported plume-modeling program
UOUTPLM. Model results were reported in a technical report prepared by Camp,
Dresser, & McKee, titled Draft Field Dye Tracer Studies and Initial Dilution Modeling of
the Benicia Refinery Wastewater Diffuser (October 21, 1988). The worst-case initial
dilution factor calculated was 15:1 at a flow rate of 1,400 gpm (2 MGD). This dilution
factor was calculated at slack tide conditions with a salinity stratification of 0.55 ppt per
meter. The flow rate of 2 MGD is approximately equal to the average flow rate reported
by the Discharger of 1.95 MGD. Under the modeled conditions, the dilution factor
increases with increasing flow rate, so the dilution factor of 15:1 calculated at
approximately average flow is likely conservative.

Based on RMP monitoring data for San Francisco Bay, there is variability in the
receiving water, and the hydrology of the receiving water is very complex. Therefore, it
is uncertain how representative the ambient background data used to determine the
effluent limitations is. Pursuant to SIP section 1.4.2.1, “dilution credit may be limited or

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-25



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

denied on a pollutant-by-pollutant basis....” The detailed basis for each pollutant is
explained below.

(1) Bioaccumulative Pollutants: For certain bioaccumulative pollutants, dilution credit is
significantly restricted or denied. This determination is based on available data on
concentrations of these pollutants in aquatic organisms, sediment, and the water
column. Selenium, PCBs, dioxin and furan compounds, dioxin-like PCBs, nickel,
chlordane, dieldrin, and 4,4'-DDT appear on the CWA section 303(d) list for Suisun
Bay because they impair Suisun Bay’s beneficial uses. The following factors suggest
insufficient assimilative capacity in San Francisco Bay for these pollutants.

(a)

(b)

Bioaccumulative Pollutants Excluding Selenium

Tissue samples taken from fish in Suisun Bay show the presence of these
pollutants at concentrations greater than screening levels (Contaminant
Concentrations in Fish from San Francisco Bay, May 1997). The results of the
1994 San Francisco Bay pilot study, presented in Contaminated Levels in Fish
Tissue from San Francisco Bay (Regional Water Board, 1994) also showed
elevated levels of chemical contaminants in fish tissues. The Office of
Environmental Health and Hazard Assessment completed a preliminary review of
the data in the 1994 report and subsequently issued an interim consumption
advisory covering certain fish species in San Francisco Bay in December 1994.
This advisory is still in effect for exposure to sport fish contaminated with
mercury, dioxins, and pesticides (e.g., DDT).

Dilution credits are denied for all bioaccumulative pollutants on the 303(d) list
except selenium, discussed below. Denial of dilution credits is appropriate given
the lack of data and significant uncertainty about how different sources of these
pollutants contribute to bioaccumulation.

Selenium

For selenium, San Francisco Bay waterfowl tissue data presented in the California
Department of Fish and Game’s Selenium Verification Study (1986-1990)
showed elevated selenium levels in the livers of waterfowl that feed on bottom-
dwelling organisms, such as clams. In addition, the State’s Office of
Environmental Health and Hazard Assessment issued an advisory in 1987 for
consumption of two species of diving ducks in the North Bay found to have high
tissue levels of selenium. This advisory is still in effect. Elevated selenium levels
have also been found in the tissue of white sturgeon, which also feed on clams.

This information, together with high uncertainty regarding how different sources
of selenium contribute to bioaccumulation, have previously led the Regional
Water Board to deny dilution credit for selenium. However, refineries have
significantly reduced their discharges of selenium, and altered the chemical
species of the selenium still discharged to a less bioavailable form. Based on this
preliminary information, Regional Water Board staff concludes that limited
dilution credit for selenium may be granted such that existing refinery
performance is maintained, pending the completion of a selenium TMDL.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-26



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Therefore, this order uses a dilution credit of D =9 (10:1 dilution) to calculate
selenium WQBELs.

(2) Non-bioaccumlative Pollutants: For non-bioaccumulative constituents (except for
ammonia), a conservative dilution allowance of 10:1 (D = 9) has been assigned. The
10:1 dilution allowance is consistent with the previous permit and is also based on
Basin Plan Prohibition 1 (Table 4-1), which prohibits discharges with less than 10:1
dilution. SIP section 1.4.2 allows for limiting the dilution credit:

(a) A far-field background station is appropriate because the receiving water body
(Suisun Bay) is a very complex estuarine system with highly variable and
seasonal upstream freshwater inflows and diurnal tidal saltwater inputs. SIP
section 1.4.3 allows background conditions to be determined on a discharge-by-
discharge or water body-by-water body basis. Regional Water Board staff has
chosen to use a water body-by-water body basis due to inherent uncertainties in
characterizing ambient background conditions in a complex estuarine system on a
discharge-by-discharge basis.

The Yerba Buena Island RMP monitoring station, relative to other RMP stations,
fits SIP guidance criteria for establishing background conditions. The SIP
requires that background water quality data be representative of the ambient
receiving water that will mix with the discharge. Regional Water Board staff
believe that water quality data from the Yerba Buena Island monitoring station is
representative of the water that will mix with discharges from Discharge Point
001.

(b) Because of the complex hydrology of Suisun Bay, a mixing zone has not been
established. There are uncertainties in accurately determining the mixing zones
for each discharge. The models that have been used to predict dilution have not
considered the three dimensional nature of Suisun Bay currents resulting from the
interaction of tidal flushes and seasonal fresh water outflows. Being heavier and
colder than fresh water, ocean salt water enters San Francisco Bay on twice-daily
tidal cycles, generally beneath the warmer fresh water that flows seaward. When
these waters mix and interact, complex circulation patterns occur due to the
varying densities of the fresh and ocean waters. The complex patterns occur
throughout San Francisco Bay, but are most prevalent in the San Pablo, Carquinez
Strait, and Suisun Bay areas. The locations of this mixing and interaction change,
depending on the strength of each tide. Additionally, sediment loads from the
Central Valley change on a long-term basis, affecting the depth of different parts
of Suisun Bay, resulting in alteration of flow patterns, mixing, and dilution at the
outfall.

(3) Ammonia: For ammonia, a non-persistent pollutant that quickly disperses and
degrades, a dilution ratio of 15:1 was used to calculate WQBELs. This is justified
because ammonia is quickly dispersed and degraded to a non-toxic state, and
cumulative toxicity effects are unlikely. The ratio of 15:1 represents the actual
dilution estimated at Discharge Point 001.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-27



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

c. Calculation of Pollutant-Specific WQBELSs
(1) Copper

(a) Copper WQOs. The most stringent applicable WQOs for copper are the Basin
Plan’s site-specific chronic and acute marine WQOs, 6.0 and 9.4 micrograms per
liter (ug/L), respectively, expressed as dissolved metal. Regional Water Board
staff converted these WQOs to total recoverable metal using site-specific
translators of 0.38 (chronic) and 0.66 (acute), as recommended by the Clean
Estuary Partnership’s North of Dumbarton Bridge Copper and Nickel
Development and Selection of Final Translators (2005). The resulting chronic
WQOs of 16 pg/L and acute water quality criterion of 14 ug/L were used to
perform the RPA and calculate WQBELSs.

(b) RPA Results. This Order establishes effluent limitations for copper because the
MEC of 22 ng/L exceeds the most stringent applicable WQO for this pollutant,
demonstrating Reasonable Potential by Trigger 1.

(c) Copper WQBELs. WQBELSs for copper calculated according to SIP procedures
using a coefficient of variation (CV) of 0.41 and a dilution credit of D =9 are an
AMEL of 70 pg/L and an MDEL of 120 pg/L.

(d) Immediate Compliance Feasible. Statistical analysis of effluent data for copper,
collected over the period of April 2004 — March 2009, shows that the 95t
percentile (9.7 pg/L) is less than the AMEL (70 pg/L); the 99" percentile
(12 pg/L) is less than the MDEL (120 ug/L); and the mean (5.7 pg/L) is less than
the long term average of the projected lognormal distribution of the effluent data
set after accounting for effluent variability (52 ug/L). The Regional Water Board
therefore concludes that immediate compliance with these effluent limitations is
feasible.

(e) Anti-backsliding. Anti-backsliding requirements are satisfied because the previous
permit did not include final effluent limitations for copper.

(2) Selenium

(a) Selenium WQC. The most stringent applicable WQC for selenium are from the
NTR for protection of aquatic life. The NTR establishes a saltwater and
freshwater acute criterion of 20.0 pg/L and chronic criterion of 5.0 pg/L.

(b) RPA Results. This Order establishes effluent limitations for selenium because the
MEC of 44 ng/L exceeds the most stringent applicable WQC for this pollutant,
demonstrating Reasonable Potential by Trigger 1.

(c) Selenium WQBELSs. Based on a dilution credit of 10:1 (D=9), WQBELSs for
selenium calculated according to SIP procedure using a CV of 0.25 are an AMEL
of 43 pug/L and an MDEL of 60 pug/L. The previous permit contained no AMEL,
but did require an interim MDEL of 50 pg/L. Therefore, consistent with

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-28



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

maintaining current performance, the WQBELSs in this Order are an AMEL of
43 ng/L and an MDEL of 50 pg/L

(d) Immediate Compliance Feasible. Statistical analysis of effluent data for selenium
collected over the period of April 2004 through March 2009 shows that the 95™
percentile (38 pg/L) is less than the AMEL (43 ug/L); the 99t percentile
(45 pg/L) is less than the MDEL (50 pg/L); and the mean (26 pg/L) is less than
the long term average of the projected lognormal distribution of the effluent data
set after accounting for effluent variability (35 pg/L). The Regional Water Board
therefore concludes that immediate compliance with these effluent limitations is
feasible.

(e) Anti-backsliding. Anti-backsliding requirements are satisfied because the limits
in this Order are not less stringent than previous permit limitations for selenium.

(3) Zinc

(a) Zinc WQOs. The most stringent applicable WQOs for zinc are the Basin Plan’s
saltwater acute and chronic objectives for protection of aquatic life of 95 pg/L and
86 nug/L, respectively.

(b) RPA Results. This Order establishes effluent limitations for zinc because the
MEC (96 png/L) exceeds the most stringent applicable WQO for this pollutant,
demonstrating Reasonable Potential by Trigger 1.

(c) Zinc WQBELs. WQBELSs for zinc calculated according to SIP procedure using a
CV of 0.66 and a dilution credit of D =9 are an AMEL of 430 ug/L and an
MDEL of 900 ug/L. The previous permit contained more stringent limits of an
AMEL of 240 pg/L and an MDEL of 560 ng/L.

(d) Immediate Compliance Feasible. Statistical analysis of effluent data for zinc,
collected over the period of April 2006 through March 2009 shows that the 95™
percentile (34 ug/L) is less the AMEL in the previous permit (240 pg/L), and the
99" percentile (66 pg/L) is less than the MDEL in the previous permit (560 pug/L).
The Regional Water Board therefore concludes that immediate compliance with
the zinc effluent limitations in the previous permit is feasible.

(e) Anti-backsliding. This Order retains the more stringent WQBELSs from the
previous permit, thereby satisfying anti-backsliding requirements.

(4) Cyanide

(a) Cyanide WQOs. The most stringent applicable WQOs for cyanide are the Basin
Plan’s site-specific chronic and acute marine WQOs, 9.4 and 2.9 ug/L,
respectively, for protection of marine aquatic life in San Francisco Bay.

(b) RPA Results. This Order establishes effluent limitations for cyanide because the
MEC of 42 ng/L exceeds the most stringent applicable WQO of 2.9 pg/L,
demonstrating Reasonable Potential by Trigger 1.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-29



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

(c) Cyanide WQBELs. WQBELSs for cyanide calculated according to SIP procedures
using the default CV of 0.6 and a dilution credit of 10:1 are an MDEL of 42 pg/L
and an AMEL of 21 ug/L.

(d) Immediate Compliance Feasible. With insufficient effluent data to determine the
distribution of the effluent data set or to calculate a mean and standard deviation,
feasibility to comply with final effluent limitations is determined by comparing
the MEC (42 pg/L) to the AMEL (21 pg/L) and the MDEL (42 ng/L). Based on
this comparison, and on the fact that cyanide was not detected in over 80 percent
of the Discharger’s effluent samples analyzed for cyanide, the Regional Water
Board concludes that immediate compliance is feasible.

(f) Anti-backsliding. Anti-backsliding requirements are satisfied because the
previous permit did not include final effluent limitations for cyanide.

(5) Dioxin-TEQ

(a) Dioxin-TEQ WQO. The Basin Plan’s narrative WQO for bioaccumulative substances
states:

Many pollutants can accumulate on particulates, in sediments, or
bioaccumulate in fish and other aquatic organisms. Controllable water
quality factors shall not cause a detrimental increase in concentrations of
toxic substances found in bottom sediments or aquatic life. Effects on aquatic
organisms, wildlife, and human health will be considered.

Because it is the consensus of the scientific community that dioxins and furans
associate with particulates, accumulate in sediments, and bioaccumulate in the fatty
tissue of fish and other organisms, the Basin Plan’s narrative bioaccumulation WQO
applies to these pollutants. Elevated levels of dioxins and furans in fish tissue in San
Francisco Bay demonstrate that the narrative bioaccumulation WQO is not being met.
USEPA has therefore included Suisun Bay as impaired by dioxin and furan
compounds in the current 303(d) listing of receiving waters where water quality
objectives are not being met after imposition of applicable technology-based
requirements.

The CTR establishes a numeric WQO for 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxin
(2,3,7,8-TCDD) of 1.4 x 10® ug/L for the protection of human health when aquatic
organisms are consumed. When the CTR was promulgated, USEPA stated its support
of the regulation of other dioxin and dioxin-like compounds through the use of toxic
equivalents (TEQs) in NPDES permits. For California waters, USEPA stated
specifically, “if the discharge of dioxin or dioxin-like compounds has reasonable
potential to cause or contribute to a violation of a narrative criterion, numeric
WQBELSs for dioxin or dioxin-like compounds should be included in NPDES permits
and should be expressed using a TEQ scheme.” [65 Fed. Reg. 31682, 31695 (2000)].
This procedure, developed by the World Health Organization (WHO) in 1998, uses a
set of toxicity equivalency factors (TEFs) to convert the concentration of any
congener of dioxin or furan into an equivalent concentration of 2,3,7,8-TCDD. This
Order uses the 1998 TEF scheme and the CTR WQO for 2,3,7,8-TCDD to translate

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-30



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

the Basin Plan’s narrative bioaccumulation objective into a numeric criterion to use in
the RPA and from which to derive effluent limits.

Although the 1998 WHO scheme includes TEFs for dioxin-like PCBs, they are not
included in this Order’s version of the TEF procedure. The CTR has established a
specific water quality standard for dioxin-like PCBs, and they are included in the
analysis of total PCBs.

(b) RPA Results. To determine if Reasonable Potential exists for dioxin or dioxin-like

(c)

compounds in this discharge, Regional Water Board staff used TEFs to express the
measured concentrations of 16 dioxin congeners in effluent and background samples
as 2,3,7,8-TCDD. These “equivalent” concentrations were then compared to the CTR
numeric criterion for 2,3,7,8-TCDD (1.4 x 10™ pg/L).

This Order establishes effluent limitations for dioxin-TEQ because the MEC

(9.4 X 107 ug/L) exceeds the WQO for dioxin-TEQ translated from the
bioaccumulation objective (1.4 x 10™ pg/L), demonstrating Reasonable Potential by
Trigger 1.

WQBELs. WQBELSs for dioxin—TEQ calculated using SIP procedures using the
default CV of 0.6 and no dilution credit are an AMEL of 1.4 x 10 and an MDEL of
2.8x10% pg/L.

(d) Immediate Compliance Infeasible. The Discharger’s Feasibility Study asserts that it

(e)

®

cannot immediately comply with the dioxin-TEQ WQBELs. With insufficient
effluent data to determine the distribution of the effluent data set or to calculate a
mean and standard deviation, feasibility to comply with final effluent limitations is
determined by comparing the MEC (9.4 x 107 ug/L) to the AMEL (1.4 x 10™® pg/L)
and the MDEL (2.8 x 10™ pg/L). In addition to the MEC exceeding the WQBELSs, the
variability of dioxin-TEQ measured in the effluent results in significant uncertainty
regarding whether compliance is attainable. Based on this analysis, the Regional
Water Board concurs with the Discharger’s assertion of infeasibility to comply. This
Order provides a compliance schedule for dioxin-TEQ.

Interim Effluent Limitation. The interim effluent limitation (1.4 x 107 pg/L) from the
previous permit is retained. Because the previous permit contained a ten-year
compliance schedule for dioxin-TEQ, the term for this compliance schedule is
continued by this Order and shall be in effect until January 1, 2013.

Anti-backsliding. Anti-backsliding requirements are satisfied because the previous
permit did not include dioxin-TEQ effluent limitations.

(6) Ammonia

(a) Ammonia WQO. The Basin Plan contains WQOs for un-ionized ammonia of

0.025 mg/L as an annual median and 0.16 mg/L as a maximum upstream of the San
Francisco Bay Bridge. Regional Water Board staff translated these WQOs from un-
ionized ammonia concentrations to equivalent total ammonia concentrations (as

nitrogen) since (1) sampling and laboratory methods are not available to analyze for

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-31



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

un-ionized ammonia; and (2) the fraction of total ammonia that exists in the toxic un-
ionized form depends on the pH, salinity, and temperature of the receiving water. To
translate the Basin Plan un-ionized ammonia objective, Regional Water Board staff
used pH, salinity, and temperature data from March 1993 to August 2003 from the
nearest RMP station to the outfall (in this case, the Pacheco Creek RMP station
[BF10]). Regional Water Board staff used the following equations to determine the
fraction of total ammonia that would exist in the toxic un-ionized form in the
estuarine receiving water where the various measurements were taken from 1993-
2003 (USEPA, 1989, Ambient Water Quality Criteria for Ammonia (Saltwater)-1989,
EPA Publication 440/5-88-004):

. ' 1
For salinity > 10 ppt: fraction of NH3 = —
Where:
PK =9.245+0.116(1)+0.0324(208 - T) + L2
M
19.9273(S)

I = Molal ionic strength of saltwater =
(1,000 —1.005109[S1)

S = Salinity (parts per thousand)
T = Temperature in degrees Kelvin
P = Pressure (one atmosphere)

Regional Water Board staff then used the 90™ percentile and median un-ionized
ammonia fractions from 1993 to 2003 to express the acute and chronic un-ionized
ammonia WQOs as total ammonia concentrations. This approach is consistent with
USEPA guidance on translating dissolved metal WQOs to total recoverable metal
WQOs (USEPA, 1996, The Metals Translator: Guidance for Calculating a Total
Recoverable Limit from a Dissolved Criterion, EPA Publication Number 823-B-96-
007). The equivalent total ammonia acute and chronic WQOs calculated for this
discharge are 4.6 mg/L and 1.2 mg/L, respectively.

(b) RPA Results. Basin Plan section 4.5.5.2 indicates that WQBELSs shall be calculated
according to the SIP. Basin Plan section 3.3.20 refers to ammonia as a toxic
pollutant. Therefore, The SIP methodology was used to perform the RPA and to
calculate effluent limitations for ammonia. This Order establishes effluent limitations
for total ammonia because the MEC of 19 mg/L exceeds the most stringent applicable
translated WQO for this pollutant, demonstrating Reasonable Potential by Trigger 1.

(c) WQBELs. The total ammonia WQBELSs calculated according to SIP procedures using
a CV of 5.27 and a dilution credit of D = 14 are an MDEL of 20 mg/L and an AMEL
of 5.7 mg/L. Regional Water Board staff made statistical adjustments to the WQBEL
calculations because:

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-32



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

e the Basin Plan’s chronic WQO for un-ionized ammonia is based on an annual
median instead of the typical 4-day average;

o the SIP assumes a 4-day average concentration and monthly sampling frequency
of 4 days per month to calculate effluent limitations based on chronic criteria,
whereas a 365-day average and a monitoring frequency of 30 days per month,
reflecting the actual basis of the WQO and actual sampling frequency, were used
here.

These statistical adjustments are supported by USEPA’s Water Quality Criteria;
Notice of Availability; 1999 Update of Ambient Water Quality Criteria for Ammonia,
published on December 22, 1999, in the Federal Register.

Following SIP methodology, Regional Water Board staff used the maximum ambient
background total ammonia concentration to calculate effluent limitations based on the
acute criterion; and the median background total ammonia concentration to calculate
effluent limitations based on the chronic criterion. Because the Basin Plan’s chronic
un-ionized ammonia objective is an annual median, the median background

concentration is more representative of ambient conditions than a daily maximum.

(d) Immediate Compliance Feasible. Statistical analysis of effluent data for total
ammonia collected over the period of April 2004 through March 2009 shows that the
95™ percentile (0.64 mg/L) is less than the AMEL (5.7 mg/L); the 99" percentile
(18 mg/L) is less than the MDEL (20 mg/L); and the mean (0.52 mg/L) is less than

the long-term average of the projected normal distribution of the effluent data set

after accounting for effluent variability (1.5 mg/L). The Regional Water Board
therefore concludes that immediate compliance with these effluent limitations is

feasible.

(e) Anti-backsliding. Anti-backsliding requirements are satisfied because the previous
permit did not include ammonia WQBELs.

d. Effluent Limit Calculations

Table F-10 below summarizes the effluent limit calculations.

Table F-10. Effluent Limit Calculations
Dioxin
PRIORITY POLLUTANTS Copper | Selenium Zinc Cyanide TEQ Ammonia
Units ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L mg/L mg/L
Basin
Plan & Basin Basin
Basin NTR CTR SW Plan Plan
Plan Criterion for | Aquatic | Basin Plan | Basin Plan | Aquatic Aquatic
Basis and Criteria type SSOs the Bay Life SSOs Narrative Life Life
CTR Criteria-Acute |  ——=— | == | e 94 | -
CTR Criteria -Chronic =~ | === | === | = 29 | -
SSO Criteria -Acute (December 2004)
(Diss.) 3.9
SSO Criteria -Chronic (December 2.5
Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-33




VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Dioxin
PRIORITY POLLUTANTS Copper | Selenium Zinc Cyanide TEQ Ammonia
Units ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L mg/L mg/L
2004) (Diss.)
Water Effects ratio (WER) 2.4 1 1 1 1
Lowest WQO 1.4E-08 1.201 4.575
Site Specific Translator - MDEL 0.66 | - | = | e e
Site Specific Translator - AMEL 038 | - | = | e e
Dilution Factor (D) (if applicable) 9 9 9 9 0 14 14
No. of samples per month 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Aquatic life criteria analysis required?
(Y/N) Y Y Y Y N Y Y

Applicable Acute WQO

14.18

20

95.1

9.4

4.575

Applicable Chronic WQO

Background (Maximum Conc for
Aquatic Life calc)

15.79

2.6

0.39

85.6

5.1

2.9

0.4

7.1E-08

1.201

0.2

0.2

Is the pollutant
Bioaccumulative(Y/N)? (e.g., Hg) N Y N N Y N N
No Acute
ECA acute 119 196.5 905.5 90.4 WQO 65.8
No
Chronic
ECA chronic 135 46.490 810.3 25.4 15.2 WQO

No. of data points <10 or at least 80%

of data reported non detect? (Y/N) N N N Y Y N N
Avg of effluent data points 5.7 25.9 15.1 5.21E-01 | 5.21E-01
Std Dev of effluent data points 2.3 6.5 9.9 2.75E+00 | 2.75E+00
CV calculated 0.41 0.25 0.66 N/A N/A 5.27 5.27
CV (Selected) - Final 0.41 0.25 0.66 0.6 0.60 5.27 5.27
ECA acute mult99 0.43 0.58 0.30 0.32 0.08 0.08
ECA chronic mult99 0.64 0.75 0.50 0.53 0.10 0.10
LTA acute 51.6 114.1 268.4 29.0 5.0
LTA chronic 86 35.1 404.5 13.4 1.5

minimum of LTAs 51.6 35.1 268.4 13.4 1.5 5.0
AMEL mult95 1.4 1.2 1.6 1.6 1.6 3.8 3.8
MDEL mult99 2.3 1.7 34 3.1 3.1 13.2 13.2
AMEL (aq life) 70 42.7 432.1 20.8 5.7 18.8
MDEL(aq life) 119 60.3 905.5 41.7 20.0 65.8
MDEL/AMEL Multiplier 1.69 1.41 2.10 2.01 2.01 3.50 3.50
AMEL (human hlth) 2199996 1.4E-08

MDEL (human hlth) 4413609 2.8E-08

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-34



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Dioxin

PRIORITY POLLUTANTS Copper | Selenium Zinc Cyanide TEQ Ammonia
Units ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L ug/L mg/L mg/L
minimum of AMEL for Aq. life vs
HH 70.4 42.7 432 20.8 1.4E-08 5.7 18.8
minimum of MDEL for Aq. Life vs
HH 118.9 60.3 905 41.7 2.8E-08 20.0 65.8
Current limit in permit (30-day
average) e | e 240 | - 14E-07 | - | -

36 25
Current limit in permit (daily) (Interim) | 50 (interim) 560 (interim) | - | meeem | oee-
Final limit - AMEL 70 43 240 21 1.4E-08 5.7E+00 | 1.9E+01
Final limit - MDEL 120 50 560 42 2.8E-08 2.0E+01 | 6.6E+01
Max Effl Conc (MEC) 22 45.25 96 42 9.4E-07 1.9E+01 | 1.9E+01

5. Selenium Mass Emission Limitation

SIP section 2.1.1 states that for bioaccumulative compounds on the 303(d) list, the Regional
Water Board should consider whether mass-loading limits should be limited to current levels.
The Regional Water Board finds that mass-loading limits are warranted for selenium. The
purpose of this mass-loading limit is to further ensure that this Discharger maintains its
existing selenium treatment performance, and does not further contribute to impairment of
the narrative objective for bioaccumulation in Suisun Bay, pending a TMDL.

This Order establishes a mass emission limitation for selenium of 9.6 kg/mo as a running

annual average. This mass emission limitation was calculated based on the AMEL and the
average daily effluent flow from January 1, 2003 to June 30, 2009 (1.94 MGD). The running
annual average shall be calculated by taking the arithmetic average of the current month’s

mass loading value and the mass loading values from each of the previous 11 months, as

shown in the following example calculation:

Flow (MGD) = Average of monthly plant effluent flows.

Selenium Concentration (pug/L) = Average of current month’s effluent concentration
measurements. If test results are less than the method detection limit used, the
measurement value is assumed to be equal to the method detection limit.

Monthly Mass Emission (kg/mo) = (Flow, MGD) x (Selenium Concentration, ug/L) x

0.1151.

Running Annual Average Mass Emission (kg/mo) = [Current Month’s Mass Emisssion
Value + (2 Previous 11 Month’s Monthly Mass Emission Values)] + 12

Compliance is feasible, as the Discharger’s mean effluent selenium concentration (26 ug/L)
and average flow rate result in an estimated average annual selenium mass load of 5.8 kg/mo.

The previous permit’s selenium mass-loading limit was 0.96 pounds per day, or 13.3 kg/mo,
as a running annual average. This limit was established by Regional Water Board Order
91-026, and was based on an interim daily maximum concentration limit of 50 ug/L and the

Attachment F — Fact Sheet

F-35




VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Discharger’s average flow rate. The running annual average basis of the limit is retained by
this Order to be consistent with the previously established limit. The limit in this Order is
calculated using the AMEL instead of the MDEL because the AMEL better represents the
long-term performance required of the Discharger. Anti-backsliding requirements are
satisfied because the mass-loading limit in this Order is not less stringent than the previous
mass-loading limit.

6. Whole Effluent Acute Toxicity

a. This Order includes effluent limitations for whole-effluent acute toxicity that are
unchanged from the previous permit and based on the Basin Plan. All bioassays are to be
performed using the most up-to-date USEPA protocol and the most sensitive species as
specified in writing by the Executive Officer based on the most recent screening test
results. Bioassays shall be conducted in compliance with Methods for Measuring the
Acute Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Water to Freshwater and Marine Organisms,
currently 5th Edition (EPA-821-R-02-012), with exceptions granted to the Discharger by
the Executive Officer and the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP)
upon the Discharger’s request with justification.

b. If specific identifiable substances in the discharge can be demonstrated by the Discharger
as being rapidly rendered harmless upon discharge to the receiving water, compliance
with the acute toxicity limit may be determined after the test samples are adjusted to
remove the influence of those substances. Written approval from the Executive Officer
must be obtained to authorize such an adjustment.

7. Whole Effluent Chronic Toxicity

a. Permit Requirements. This Order includes effluent limitations for chronic toxicity that
are unchanged from the previous permit and based on the Basin Plan. The permit
requirements for chronic toxicity are also consistent with the CTR and SIP requirements.

b. Screening Phase Study. The Discharger implemented a chronic toxicity screening phase
monitoring program for chronic toxicity and the results of this study have been
incorporated (see Attachment E, section V.B.)

8. Anti-backsliding and Antidegradation
a. Anti-backsliding

CWA sections 402(0)(2) and 303(d)(4) and 40 CFR 122.44(1) prohibit backsliding in
NPDES permits. These anti-backsliding provisions require that effluent limitations in a
reissued permit be as stringent as those in the previous permit, with some exceptions in
which limitations may be relaxed. WQBEL calculations and compliance with anti-
backsliding requirements are discussed for each pollutant with a WQBEL in Fact Sheet
section [V.C4.c.

Because the RPA showed no Reasonable Potential for hexavalent chromium, 4,4-DDE,
dieldrin, PAHs (benzo[a]anthracene, benzo[a]pyrene, benzo[b]fluoranthene, chrysene,
dibenzo[a,h]anthracene, and indeno[1,2,3-cd]pyrene), and total PCBs, the limitations in

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-36



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

the previous permit are not retained in this Order. State Board Order WQ 2001-16 found,
“Anti-backsliding does not necessarily dictate that a pollutant that was limited in a prior
permit must have a limit in a later permit, even though the pollutant has never been
detected and its discharge does not have the Reasonable Potential to cause or contribute
to a water quality standards violation.” The logic of the Napa Remand Order also applies
to situations where a pollutant is detected, but no longer triggers reasonable potential.
The removal of limits for these pollutants is therefore consistent with State Water Board
Order WQ 2001-16 and anti-backsliding requirements.

Technology-based limitations in this Order for Discharge Point 001, for both production
rates (135,000 and 165,000 bbls/d), are higher (appear less stringent) than corresponding
limitations in the previous permit. The method for deriving these limits is presented in
the Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category
(40 CFR 419) and is explained in Attachment F-1. The derivation of limits depends on
the process configuration of the refinery, which, in turn, depends on the feedstock rate of
each process. Based on information provided by the Discharger in its application for
permit renewal, during the term of the previous permit, feedstock rates for certain
refinery processes increased, resulting in different “process configuration values” used in
the derivation of effluent limitations and higher effluent limitations. Such a change in
effluent limitations is consistent with CWA section 402(0)(2)(A), which allows a reissued
permit to include less stringent limitations when a material and substantial alteration to
the permitted facility has occurred after the previous limitations became effective. In
these circumstances, technology-based effluent limitations are still consistent with
applicable requirements of 40 CFR 419; however, material changes in refinery processes
have resulted in different factors to be considered when effluent limitations are derived.

b. Antidegradation

Antidegradation policies require that existing water quality be maintained unless
degradation is justified based on specific findings. The permitted discharge is consistent
with antidegradation policies. This Order continues the level of discharge authorized in
the previous permit and thus there will be no degradation of water quality. This is
because this Order does not provide for an increase in the permitted design flow or allow
for a reduction in the level of treatment. Also, the increased effluent limitations for
copper, cyanide, and pollutants subject to limitations based on the Effluent Limitations
Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category (40 CFR 419) (ELGs) are
consistent with antidegradation requirements as explained below.

Copper and Cyanide

This Order establishes WQBELSs that are higher than those in Order No. R2-2002-0112
for copper and cyanide based on recently adopted and approved site-specific objectives.
The standards-setting processes for copper and cyanide addressed antidegradation. To
ensure no degradation of the receiving waters, the Basin Plan requires that permits
containing copper and cyanide limits based on the site-specific objectives also require

copper and cyanide action plans. This Order includes such plans (see sections VI.C.5.a
and b).

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-37



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Production-Based Limits

This Order establishes increased technology-based mass loading limits for BOD, COD,
TSS, oil & grease, phenolic compunds, ammonia, sulfide, total chromium, and
hexavalent chromium consistent with the ELGs. This is the result of increased feedstock
rates to certain refinery processes that result in the derivation of increased effluent
limitations consistent with the ELGs.

In 1990, the State Water Board adopted an administrative procedures update (APU 90-
004) that specified guidance to the Regional Water Boards for implementing the State
and federal antidegradation policies. The guidance states “... if the Regional Water
Board has no reason to believe that existing water quality will be reduced due to the
proposed action, no antidegradation analysis is required.” The new mass loading limits
for BOD, COD, TSS, oil & grease, phenolic compounds, ammonia (as N), sulfide, total
chromium, and hexavalent chromium will not result in a significant reduction of water
quality.

The total effluent flow rate is a function of production. No increase in production, and
therefore in flow, is authorized unless the Discharger prepares a full antidegradation
analysis as required by section VI.C.5.c of this Order.

The Discharger is also subject to a new WQBEL for ammonia that is equivalent to a
lower mass loading limit than either than in Order No. R2-2002-0112 or that in this
Order, and a more stringent mass loading limit for selenium than in Order No.
R2-2002-0112.

These requirements mean that the mass of BOD, COD, TSS, oil & grease, phenolic
compunds, ammonia, sulfide, total chromium, and hexavalent chromium discharged is
unlikely to increase despite the increased mass loading limitations. The Discharger
proposes no changes to its treatment process, and no decrease in treatment is authorized.
Furthermore, it is impossible for the Discharger to manipulate its treatment processes to
adjust effluent levels of these pollutants independently of others. To maintain
compliance with other effluent limits, the Discharger will have to at least maintain its
existing performance.

The technology-based mass limitations are consistent with applicable statutes and
regulations. They are derived from the ELGs for cracking refineries based on Effluent
Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category (40 CFR 419)
and represent Best Practicable Control Technology (BPT) and Best Conventional
Pollutant Control Technology (BCT). They therefore represent the best practicable
treatment or control available. Suisun Bay meets water quality standards for all
pollutants subject to the technology-based mass limits in this Order, and no increase in
pollutant loading is likely. The new limits are therefore consistent with federal and State
antidegradation policies.

Because antidegradation requirements are met, there will be no lowering of water quality;

therefore, further analysis is unnecessary. Findings authorizing degradation are also
unnecessary.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-38



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

D.

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Increased Production

This Order includes technology-based mass loading limitations based on cracking
refinery ELGs and an increased production rate of 165,000 bbls/day. Prior to granting
approval for an increased discharge rate at Discharge Point 001 that would correspond to
a production increase, the Discharger must submit an Antidegradation Analysis in
accordance with section VI.C.5.c of this Order that demonstrates consistency with the
requirements of Resolution No. 68-16 and applicable federal antidegradation rules,
policy, and guidance. Such an analysis shall demonstrate that the increased discharge
rate would not degrade water quality.

Interim Effluent Limitation for Dioxin-TEQ

As discussed in section IV.C.4.c.(5), the Discharger has shown the infeasibility of immediately
complying with final limitations for dioxin-TEQ. The Discharger has demonstrated that a
compliance schedule is justified based on source control and pollutant minimization efforts in the
past and continued efforts in the present and future. This Order retains the interim effluent
limitation from the previous permit for dioxin-TEQ.

1. Compliance Schedule

a. As previously described, the Discharger submitted a Feasibility Study, and Regional

Water Board staff confirmed its assertions.

Maximum compliance schedules are reasonable for dioxin-TEQ because of the
considerable uncertainty in determining effective measures (e.g., pollution prevention,
treatment upgrades) that should be implemented to ensure compliance with final limits.
In the Regional Water Board’s view, it is appropriate to allow the Discharger sufficient
time to first explore source control measures before requiring it to propose further
actions, such as treatment plant upgrades, that are likely to be much more costly. This
approach is supported by the Basin Plan (section 4.13), which states, “In general, it is
often more economical to reduce overall pollutant loading into treatment systems than to
install complex and expensive technology at the plant.”

The previous permit contained an interim effluent limitation and a ten-year compliance
schedule for dioxin-TEQ that began on January 1, 2003. The term of the interim effluent
limitation is continued by this Order and therefore remains in effect until January 1, 2013.

E Land Discharge Specifications

Not Applicable.
Reclamation Specifications

This Order does not regulate the reclamation and use of treated wastewater, which is subject to the
Department of Public Health regulations at Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations,
Division 4, Chapter 3 (Water Recycling Criteria).

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-39



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

\2

VI.

NPDES NO. CA0005550

RATIONALE FOR RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS

Receiving water limitations are retained from the previous permit and reflect applicable water
quality standards from Basin Plan Chapter 3.

RATIONALE FOR MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
The principal purposes of a monitoring program by a discharger are to:

e Document compliance with waste discharge requirements and prohibitions established by the
Regional Water Board,

e Facilitate self-policing in the prevention and abatement of pollution arising from waste
discharge, and

e Develop or assist in the development of limitations, discharge prohibitions, national standards of
performance, pretreatment and toxicity standards, and other standards, and prepare water and
wastewater quality inventories.

The MRP is a standard requirement in almost all NPDES permits issued by the Regional Water
Board, including this Order. It contains definitions of terms, specifies general sampling and
analytical protocols, and sets out requirements for reporting spills, violations, and routine monitoring
data in accordance with NPDES regulations, the CWC, and Regional Water Board policies. The
MRP also defines the sampling stations and frequency, the pollutants to be monitored, and additional
reporting requirements. Pollutants to be monitored include all parameters for which effluent
limitations are specified. Monitoring for additional constituents, for which no effluent limitations
are established, is also required to provide data for future completion of RPAs.

A. Influent Monitoring
Monitoring of influent to the wastewater treatment plant is not required.
B. Effluent Monitoring

The MRP retains most effluent monitoring requirements from the previous permit. Important
changes in effluent monitoring requirements are summarized below.

Discharge Point 001

e Routine effluent monitoring for specific priority toxic pollutants is required only for those
pollutants with effluent limitations. Priority toxic pollutants must be monitored two times
per year and in accordance with the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G).

Storm Water Discharge Points

e Storm water monitoring frequency has been made more uniform for all storm water
discharge points. Monitoring frequency at some storm water outfalls (Discharge Points 002,
004, and 007 through 016) has been increased to quarterly to provide better characterization
of storm water discharges; monitoring frequency at other storm water outfalls (Discharge
Points 003, 005, 006, and 017) has been decreased to quarterly from one time per storm

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-40



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

VII.

NPDES NO. CA0005550

event because monitoring during the term of the previous permit did not show exceedances
of effluent limitations at these discharge points.

e Ifeffluent limitations for BOD, TSS, COD, chromium, and phenolic compounds become
effective for discharges of storm water in accordance with section IV.C.2 of this Order, the
MRP establishes a monitoring schedule for these pollutants.

. Whole Effluent Toxicity Testing Requirements

1. Acute Toxicity. Weekly 96-hour bioassay testing is required to demonstrate compliance with
the effluent limitation for acute toxicity.

2. Chronic Toxicity. Chronic whole effluent toxicity testing is required quarterly in order to
demonstrate compliance with effluent limitations for chronic toxicity.

. Receiving Water Monitoring

On April 15, 1992, the Regional Water Board adopted Resolution No. 92-043 directing the
Executive Officer to implement the San Francisco Bay Regional Monitoring Program for Trace
Substances (RMP). Subsequent to a public hearing and various meetings, Regional Water Board
staff requested major permit holders in this Region, under authority of CWC section 13267, to
report on the water quality of the estuary. These permit holders responded to this request by
participating in a collaborative effort, through the San Francisco Estuary Institute. This effort
has come to be known as the RMP. This Order specifies that the Discharger shall continue to
participate in the RMP, which involves collection of data on pollutants and toxicity in water,
sediment and biota of the estuary. In addition, the Order requires the Discharger to make
standard observations of Sulfur Springs Creek, Buffalo Wallow, and Beaver Creek once a month
and once per rain event, as called for by the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G).

RATIONALE FOR PROVISIONS

. Standard Provisions (Provision VI.A)

Federal standard provisions, which apply to all NPDES discharges and must be included in every
NPDES permit in accordance with 40 CFR 122.41and 122.42, are provided in Attachment D of this
Order. Regional standard provisions are also included as Attachment G.

. Monitoring and Reporting Requirements (Provision VI.B)

The Discharger is required to conduct monitoring to evaluate compliance with permit conditions.
Monitoring requirements are in the MRP (Attachment E) and Regional Standard Provisions
(Attachment G). This provision requires compliance with these documents and is based on

40 CFR 122.63 and CWC section 13267. The Regional Standard Provisions are standard
requirements in almost all NPDES permits issued by the Regional Water Board, including this
Order. They contain definitions of terms, specify general sampling and analytical protocols, and set
out requirements for reporting of spills, violations, and routine monitoring data in accordance with
NPDES regulations, the CWC, and Regional Water Board policies. The MRP contains a sampling
program specific for the facility. It defines the sampling stations and frequency, the pollutants to be
monitored, and additional reporting requirements. Pollutants to be monitored include all parameters

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-41



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

for which effluent limitations are specified. Monitoring for additional constituents, for which no
effluent limitations are established, is also required to provide data for future RPAs.

C. Special Provisions (Provision VI.C)

1. Reopener Provisions

These provisions are based on 40 CFR 123 and allow future modification of this Order and
its effluent limitations as necessary.

2. Special Studies and Additional Monitoring

a.

Effluent Characterization Study. This Order does not include effluent limitations for the
selected constituents addressed in the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G) that
do not demonstrate Reasonable Potential, but this provision requires the Discharger to
continue monitoring for these pollutants as described in the Regional Standard Provisions
and as specified in the MRP. If concentrations of these constituents increase
significantly, the Discharger is required to investigate the sources of the increases and
establish remedial measures, if the increases result in reasonable potential to cause or
contribute to an excursion above water quality standards. This provision is based on the
Basin Plan, the SIP, and CWC 13267.

Ambient Background Receiving Water Study. This provision is based on the Basin Plan,
the SIP, CWC 13267 and the Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G). As
indicated in this Order, this requirement may be met by participating in the collaborative
BACWA study.

Optional Mass Offset. This option is provided to encourage the Discharger to further
implement aggressive reduction of mass loads of 303(d)-listed pollutants to Suisun Bay.
If the Discharger wishes to pursue a mass offset program, it needs to submit a mass offset
plan for reducing 303(d)-listed pollutants to Suisun Bay for Regional Water Board
approval. The Regional Water Board may consider any proposed mass offset plan and
amend this Order accordingly.

Receiving Waters and Effluent Selenium Characterization Study. This Order requires a
study to characterize current refinery discharges of selenium, to ensure that receiving
water objectives are met, and to confirm that dilution credits for selenium are appropriate.
Accordingly, Regional Water Board staff may use the data to evaluate dilution credits,
characterize bioaccumulation potential and ecological risk, and to evaluate the quality of
the receiving water with respect to selenium. The data also may be used to determine if
exceedance frequency is correlated with seasonal or other environmental variations. If
monitoring data show that selenium WQOs are exceeded in the receiving water, the
permit may be reopened to include revised numeric effluent limits for selenium. As
indicated in this Order, this requirement may be met by participating in a collaborative
study. The requirements of this provision are thus reasonable and warranted, and are
authorized by CWC 13267.

Additional Storm Water Monitoring. This provision is included to prevent discharge of
pollutants exceeding effluent limits in storm water discharges from the Tank Farm and

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-42



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Crude Oil Storage Area containment areas that are planned to be re-routed to stormwater
outfalls 006, 009, and 010. This provision is based on 40 CFR 122.44(i)

3. Best Management Practices and Pollution Minimization Program

This provision is based on Basin Plan section 4.12.2 and SIP section 2.4.5.

4. Other Special Provisions

a.

Cyanide Action Plan

This provision is based on Basin Plan Table 3-3A, which contains site-specific objectives
for cyanide for San Francisco Bay. The Basin Plan requires a cyanide action plan to
ensure compliance with State and federal antidegradation policies when cyanide limits
are based on the site-specific objectives.

Copper Action Plan

This Order requires the Discharger to implement monitoring and surveillance,
pretreatment, source control, and pollution prevention for copper in accordance with the
Basin Plan. Basin Plan Table 3-3A contains site-specific objectives for copper in all
segments of San Francisco Bay. The Basin Plan also requires implementation of an
action plan to ensure no degradation of water quality.

Production Increase and Antidegradation Report

The Discharger proposes to increase its crude throughput from 135,000 bbls/d to
165,000 bbls/d during the term of this Order. This increase of approximately 22 percent
would result in approximately an 11 percent increase in the wastewater discharge rate.

The technology-based effluent limits established by this Order are based on the Effluent
Limits Guidelines (ELGs) for cracking refineries. These effluent limits are production-
based and therefore increase with increased crude throughput. The Discharger proposes
to increase its crude throughput during the term of this Order. This provision ensures that
the effluent limits corresponding to increased crude throughput will not become effective
until adequate documentation is submitted demonstrating to the satisfaction of the
Executive Officer that water quality will not be degraded, and production rates have
increased to 165,000 bbls/d.

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and Annual Report

This provision is based on Basin Plan section 4.8, statewide storm water requirements for
industrial facilities, and applicable USEPA regulations. It is retained from the previous
permit.

Dioxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule

The State Water Board compliance schedule policy requires the following documentation
to be submitted to the Regional Water Board to support a finding of infeasibility:

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-43



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

— Descriptions of diligent efforts the Discharger have made to quantify pollutant levels
in the discharge, sources of the pollutant in the waste stream, and the results of those
efforts.

— Descriptions of source control or pollutant minimization efforts currently under way
or completed.

— A proposed schedule for additional or future source control measures, pollutant
minimization, or waste treatment.

— A demonstration that the proposed schedule is as short as practicable.

The compliance schedule policy provides for a 10-year compliance schedule to
implement measures to comply with new standards as of the effective date of those
standards. Additionally, the provision authorizes compliance schedules for new
interpretations of other existing standards if the new interpretation results in more
stringent limitations.

As previously described, the Discharger submitted an Infeasibility Report, and Regional
Water Board staff confirmed its assertions. Based on this, a compliance schedule is
appropriate for dioxin-TEQ because the Discharger has made good faith and reasonable
efforts toward characterizing the sources. However, time to allow additional efforts is
necessary to achieve compliance. The maximum allowable compliance schedule was
granted to the Discharger for dioxin-TEQ in the previous permit because of the
considerable uncertainty in determining effective measures (e.g., pollution prevention,
treatment upgrades) that should be implemented to ensure compliance with final limits. It
is appropriate to allow the Discharger sufficient time to first explore source control
measures before requiring it to propose further actions, such as treatment plant upgrades,
that are likely to be much more costly. This approach is supported by Basin Plan section
4.13, which states, “In general, it is often more economical to reduce overall pollutant
loadings into the treatment systems than to install complex and expensive technology at
the plant.” Because of the ubiquitous nature of the sources of dioxin-TEQ, this provision
allows the Discharger to address compliance with calculated WQBELS through other
strategies such as mass offsets.

VIIl. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Regional Water Board is considering the issuance of WDRs that will serve as a NPDES permit
for the Valero Benicia Refinery. As a step in the WDRs adoption process, the Regional Water
Board has developed tentative WDRs. The Regional Water Board encourages public participation in
the WDR adoption process.

A. Notification of Interested Parties

The Regional Water Board has notified the Dischargers and interested agencies and persons of its
intent to prescribe WDRs for the discharge and has provided them with an opportunity to submit
their written comments and recommendations. Notification was provided by publication in the
Benicia Herald on September 14, 2009.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-44



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

B. Written Comments

Staft determinations are tentative. Interested persons are invited to submit written comments
concerning these tentative WDRs. Comments must be submitted either in person or by mail to the
Executive Office at the Regional Water Board at the address on the cover page of this Order, to the
attention John Madigan.

To receive a full response from Regional Water Board staff and to be considered by the Regional
Water Board, written comments should be received at the Regional Water Board offices by 5:00
p.m. on October 5, 2009.

C. Public Hearing

The Regional Water Board will hold a public hearing on the tentative WDRs during its regular
Board meeting on the following date and time and at the following location:

Date: November 18, 2009

Time: 9:00 am

Location: Elihu Harris State Office Building
1515 Clay Street, 1* Floor Auditorium
Oakland, CA 94612

Contact:  John Madigan, (510) 622-2405, email JMadigan@waterboards.ca.gov

Interested persons are invited to attend. At the public hearing, the Regional Water Board will hear
testimony, if any, pertinent to the discharge, WDRs, and permit. Oral testimony will be heard;
however, for accuracy of the record, important testimony should be in writing.

Please be aware that dates and venues may change. The Regional Water Board’s Web address is
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay where one can access the current agenda for
changes in dates and locations.

D. Waste Discharge Requirements Petitions

Any aggrieved person may petition the State Water Board to review the decision of the Regional
Water Board regarding the WDRs. The petition must be submitted within 30 days of the Regional
Water Board’s action to the following address:

State Water Resources Control Board
Office of Chief Counsel

P.O. Box 100, 1001 I Street
Sacramento, CA 95812-0100

E. Information and Copying

The Report Of Waste Discharge, related documents, tentative effluent limitations and special
provisions, comments received, and other information are on file and may be inspected at the
address above at any time between 8:45 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. Copying of
documents may be arranged by calling 510-622-2300.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-45


http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay

VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550
F. Register of Interested Persons

Any person interested in being placed on the mailing list for information regarding the WDRs and
NPDES permit should contact the Regional Water Board, reference this facility, and provide a
name, address, and phone number.

G. Additional Information

Requests for additional information or questions regarding this order should be directed to John
Madigan at 510-622-2405 (e-mail at JMadigan@waterboards.ca.gov).

Attachment F — Fact Sheet F-46



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT F-1

Derivation of Technology-Based Effluent Limitations
Valero Benicia Refinery

References

1. 40 CFR 419 Subpart B — Cracking Subcategory, Effluent Limitation Guidelines and New Source
Performance Standards for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category (2006)

2. Development Document for Effluent Limitations Guidelines and New Source Performance Standards
for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category, EPA/4401-82/014 (1982)

3. Guide for the Application of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Industry,
USEPA Office of Water Regulations and Standards (1985)

4. Valero Energy Corporation, NPDES Application for Permit Renewal, NPDES Permit No.
CA0005550 (May 31, 2007)

5. Refinery Production Data 2003 — 2007, from NPDES Application for Permit Renewal, Attachment
2C-IIIC — Basis for Reporting Production Rates

Applicable Definitions

Process Waste Water means any water, which, during manufacturing or processing, comes into direct
contact with or results from the production or use of any raw material, intermediate product, finished
product, byproduct, or waste product. [40 CFR 401.11(q)]

Runoff means the flow of storm water resulting from precipitation coming into contact with petroleum
refinery property. [40 CFR 419.11(b)]

Contaminated Runoff means runoff that comes into contact with any raw material, intermediate product,

finished product, by-product or waste product located on petroleum refinery property.
[40 CFR 419.11(g)]

Background

Effluent Limitations Guidelines (ELGs) for the Cracking Subcategory of the Petroleum Refining Point
Source Category at 40 CFR 419 Subpart B are based, in part, on a discharger’s production rate. The
Discharger’s current maximum production rate is 135,000 barrels per day (bbls/d); however, during the
term of this Order, production will increase to 165,000 bbls/d. Effluent limitations are calculated for
both production figures.

Process Wastewaters. The ELGs include limitations for process wastewaters based on best practicable
control technology currently available (BPT), best available technology economically achievable (BAT),
and best conventional pollutant control technology (BCT). Specific BPT, BAT, and BCT effluent
limitations that apply to the Discharger must be derived using methods described by the ELGs and take
into account such factors as production rate, as well as refinery processes and configuration. The most
stringent of BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations apply.

F-1-1



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

For derivation of BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations for process wastewaters, size factors and process
factors are determined as follows.

Size Factor. At the crude processing rates of 135,000 and 165,000 bbls/d, the appropriate size
factors, pursuant to the ELGs at 40 CFR 419.22(b)(1) for BPT, at 40 CFR 419.23(b)(1) for BAT,
and at 40 CFR 419.24(b)(1) for BCT, for derivation of technology-based effluent limitations are as
follows.

Table F-1A. Size Factors

Production Rate Size Factor
135,000 bbls/d 1.35
165,000 bbls/d 1.41

Process Factor. The process configuration for each process is determined by summing the process
feedstock rates for each crude, cracking and coking, lube, and asphalt process at the refinery. Each
individual feedstock rate is multiplied by the capacity relative to the throughput, and a weight factor
specific for each process, to derive a “process configuration,” which in turn is used to determine a
“process factor” in accordance with the ELGs at 40 CFR 419.22(b)(2) for BPT, at

40 CFR 419.23(b)(2) for BAT, and at 40 CFR 419.24(b)(2) for BCT.

Processes considered in deriving the process factors are those processes within the crude and
cracking and coking categories as reported by the Discharger, which correspond to the process
groups listed within the Guide for the Application of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the
Petroleum Refining Industry (page 19). The Discharger does not include lube processes, so this
process group is not considered in determining process factors.

Derivation of process configurations for production rates of 135,000 and 165,000 bbls/d are shown

in the following table.
Table F-1B. Process Configurations
Production at 135,000 bbls/day
Process Proces;aligeg stock Feeci;ggisf?/atio Weight Factor Process Configuration
Crude
Atm. Dist. 135 1
Vac. Dist. 72.1 0.53
Desalt. 135 1
Total 342.1 2.5 1 2.53
Cracking
FCC 77.0 0.57
Fluid 39.6 0.29
Coking
Hydrocr. 40 0.30
Total 156.6 1.2 6 6.96
Lube 13
Asphalt 18 0.13 12 1.56
Total Refinery Configuration at 135,000 bbls/day 11.05

F-1-2



REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

Production at 165,000 bbls/day
Crude
Atm. Dist. 165 1
Vac. Dist. 72.1 0.44
Desalt. 165 1
Total 402.1 2.44 1 2.44
Cracking
FCC 77 0.47
Fluid 39.6 0.24
Coking
Hydrocr. 40 0.24
Total 156.6 0.95 6 5.69
Lube - - 13 -
Asphalt 18 0.11 12 1.31
Total Refinery Configuration at 165,000 bbls/day 9.44

A 1,000 bbls/d

The following process factors are determined in accordance with 40 CFR 419.22(b)(2) for BPT,
40 CFR 419.232(b)(2) for BAT, 40 CFR 419.22(b)(2) for BCT.

Table F-1C. Process Factors

Production Rate

Process Configuration

Process Factor

135,000 bbls/d

11.05

1.89

165,000 bbls/d

9.44

1.82

To determine BAT limitations for total and hexavalent chromium and phenolic compounds in process
wastewaters, the ELGs require consideration of effluent factors and refinery processes. BAT effluent
factors are presented at 40 CFR 419.23(c)(1); the refinery processes considered are the crude, cracking
and coking, asphalt, and reforming and alkylation processes, which correspond to those identified within
the Guide for the Application of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Industry

(page 20).

Contaminated Runoff. The ELGs establish BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations for contaminated runoff,
which apply to all storm water discharges, except storm water treated and discharged with process
wastewaters through Discharge Point 001. ELGs establish effluent limitations for oil and grease and
total organic carbon (TOC), and then, if limitations for oil and grease or TOC are exceeded, additional
limitations for BOD, COD, TSS, phenolic compounds, pH, and hexavalent and total chromium, found at
40 CFR 419.22(e)(2) and 419.23(f)(2), become effective.

In general, BPT limitations are the most comprehensive and stringent of all applicable technology-based
limitations for contaminated runoff and, therefore, are incorporated into this Order as additional effluent
limitations for discharges of contaminated runoff where oil and grease or TOC limits are exceeded. The
following table summarizes the applicable technology-based effluent limitations, established by the
ELGs, for contaminated runoff.

F-1-3



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Table F-1D. Contaminated Runoff Technology-Based Limitations

Pollutant Effluent Limitation *
Max Daily 30-day Average &
(mg/L) (mg/L)
Oil and Grease 15 mg/L -
TOC 110 mg/L -
If either limitation for oil and grease or TOC, above, is exceeded, then the following limitations shall become effective
BOD;s 48 26
TSS 33 21
COD 360 180
Oil and Grease 15 8.0
Phenolic Compounds (4AAP) 0.35 0.17
Total Chromium 0.60 0.21
Hexavalent Chromium 0.062 0.028

pH

6.0-9.0

A All effluent limitations reflect BPT requirements from 40 CFR 419 Subpart B, except limitations for
total chromium, which reflect BAT requirements.

Average concentration over 30 consecutive days.

The Order establishes effluent limitations for oil and grease and TOC for all discharge points where
contaminated runoff is discharged. Effluent limitations for BOD, TSS, COD, phenolics, and chromium
will become effective immediately upon an exceedance of oil and grease or TOC for the outfall where
the exceedance occurred. The effluent limit for pH listed in the table above is not imposed by this
permit. The previous permit established a pH limit of 6.5 to 8.5, consistent with Basin Plan Table 4-2
for shallow-water discharges. This limit is retained by this Order to satisfy anti-backsliding

requirements.

Determination of Process Wastewater Effluent Limitations

BPT. The following table shows the derivation of process wastewater BPT limitations at production

rates of 135,000 and 165,000 bbls/day.

Table F-1E. BPT Limitations for Process Wastewaters
Pl_rierlr:li?ell?ii;yFigtlgfﬂt . Process Feed Effluent Limitation &
Max Avg Size Factor Factor Stock Max AV
Rate _ 9
Daily Monthly Daily Monthly
Production at 135,000 bbls/d
BODs 9.9 5.5 1.35 1.89 135 3400 1900
TSS 6.9 4.4 1.35 1.89 135 2400 1500
COD 74.0 38.4 1.35 1.89 135 26000 13000
Oil & Grease 3.0 1.6 1.35 1.89 135 1000 550
Phenolics (4AAP) 0.074 0.036 1.35 1.89 135 26 12
Ammonia (as N) 6.6 3.0 1.35 1.89 135 2300 1000
Sulfide 0.065 0.029 1.35 1.89 135 22 10
Total Chromium 0.15 0.088 1.35 1.89 135 52 30
Hexavalent 0.012 0.0056 1.35 1.89 135 4.1 1.9
Chromium
pH 6.0-9.0

F-1-4



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Pl_rierlr:li?ell?ii;yFigtlgfﬂt . Process Feed Effluent Limitation &
Max Avg Size Factor Factor Stock Max AV
Rate _ 9
Daily Monthly Daily Monthly
Production at 165,000 bbls/d
BODs 9.9 5.5 1.41 1.82 165 4200 2300
TSS 6.9 44 1.41 1.82 165 2900 1900
COD 74.0 38.4 1.41 1.82 165 31000 16000
Oil & Grease 3.0 1.6 1.41 1.82 165 1300 680
Phenolics (4AAP) 0.074 0.036 1.41 1.82 165 31 15
Ammonia (as N) 6.6 3.0 1.41 1.82 165 2800 1300
Sulfide 0.065 0.029 1.41 1.82 165 28 12
Total Chromium 0.15 0.088 1.41 1.82 165 64 37
Hexavalent 0.012 0.0056 1.41 1.82 165 5.1 2.4
Chromium
pH 6.0-9.0

From 40 CFR 419.22(a) (pounds per 1000 bbls of feedstock)
Pounds per day (Ibs/d)

BAT. The following table shows the derivation of BAT limitations for process wastewaters at
production rates of 135,000 and 165,000 bbls/d.

Table F-1F. Process Wastewater BAT Limitations

Preliminary Effluent Lo
LimitationyFactor A Size Process ;%iclj( Effluent Limitation ®
Max Avg Factor Factor Rate Max Avg
Daily Monthly Daily Monthly
Production at 135,000 bbls/d
COD 74.0 38.4 1.35 1.89 135 26000 13000
Ammonia (as N) 6.6 3.0 1.35 1.89 135 2300 1000
Sulfide 0.065 0.029 1.35 1.89 135 22 10
Production at 165,000 bbls/d
COD 74.0 38.4 1.41 1.82 165 31000 16000
Ammonia (as N) 6.6 3.0 1.41 1.82 165 2800 1300
Sulfide 0.065 0.029 1.41 1.82 165 28 12

B

From 40 CFR 419.23(a) (pounds per 1,000 bbls feedstock)
Pounds per day (Ibs/d)

BAT limitations for total and hexavalent chromium and phenolic compounds are based on feedstock
rates. Figures used in calculations for this Order are shown in the following table.

Table F-1G. Feedstock Rates for Determining BAT Limitations

Process Feedstock Rate (1,000 bbls/d)

Refinery Throughput

135,000 bbls/d

165,000 bbls/d

Crude

F-1-5




VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Atmospheric Pipestill 135 165
Vacuum Pipestill 72.1 72.1
Desalter 135 165
Total 342.1 402.1
Cracking and Coking
Fluid Cat Cracking 77 77
Fluid Coking 39.6 39.6
Hydrocracking 40 40
Cat Feed Hydrofiner 36.8 36.8
Virgin Naptha Hydrofiner 30.4 30.4
Jet Hydrofiner 14.1 14.1
Diesel Hydrfiner 11.6 11.6
Heavy Cat Naptha Hydrofiner 18.6 18.6
Diene Hydrofiner 22.8 22.8
Light Cat Naptha Hydrofiner 22.6 22.6
Hardcut Saturation Unit 10.5 10.5
Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel 25 25
Total 349 349
Lube
Total \ \
Asphalt
Total | 18 \ 18
Reforming and Alkylation *
Reforming 39.8 39.8
Alkylation 22.8 22.8
Total 62.6 62.6

A

considered such a process for purposes of these calculations.

Although reported as a “Reforming and Alkylation” process by the Discharger, dimersol was not

Table F-1H. Process Wastewater BAT Limitations (Chromium and Phenolics)

Based on the total feedstock rates shown above, derivation of BAT limitations for total and hexavalent
chromium and phenolic compounds is shown in the following table.

PLE?]:IirtT;It?grg FE;f:ItLé?n,f Feedstock Effluent Limitations ®
Pollutant
Max Avg Max Avg
Daily Monthly Daily Monthly
Production at 135,000 bbls/d
Phenolic Compounds
Crude 0.013 0.0030 342.1 4.4473 1.0263
Cracking and Coking 0.147 0.036 348.9 51.2883 12.5604
Asphalt 0.079 0.019 18 1.422 0.342
Lube 0.369 0.090 --- --- ---
Reforming and Alkylation 0.132 0.032 62.6 8.2632 2.0032
Limit (Sum) 65.4 15.9
Total Chromium
Crude \ 0.011 0.004 342.1 3.7631 1.3684

F-1-6



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

PL:i:IiEIt?:rg FEaf(f:ItLéin,f Feedstock Effluent Limitations ®
Pollutant
Max Avg Rate Max Avg
Daily Monthly Daily Monthly
Production at 135,000 bbls/d
Cracking and Coking 0.119 0.041 348.9 41.531 14.309
Asphalt 0.064 0.022 18 1.152 0.396
Lube 0.299 0.104
Reforming and Alkylation 0.107 0.037 62.6 6.6982 23162
Limit (Sum) 53.1 18.4
Hexavalent Chromium
Crude 0.0007 0.0003 342.1 0.23947 0.10263
Cracking and Coking 0.0076 0.0034 348.9 2.6516 1.18626
Asphalt | 0.0041 0.0019 18 .0.0738 0.0342
Lube 0.0192 0.0087
Reforming and Alkylation 0.0069 0.0031 62.6 0.43194 0.19406
Limit (Sum) 3.39 1.52
Production at 165,000 bbls/day
Phenolic Compounds
Crude 0.013 0.003 402.1 5.2273 1.2063
Cracking and Coking 0.147 0.036 348.9 51.2883 12.5604
Asphalt 0.079 0.019 18 1.422 0.342
Lube 0.369 0.090
Reforming and Alkylation 0.132 0.032 62.6 8.2632 2.0032
Limit 66.4 16.3
Total Chromium
Crude 0.011 0.004 402.1 44231 1.6084
Cracking and Coking 0.119 0.041 348.9 41.519 14.309
Asphalt 0.064 0.022 18 1.152 0.396
Lube 0.299 0.104
Reforming and Alkylation 0.107 0.037 62.6 6.6982 2.3162
Limit 54.2 18.4
Hexavalent Chromium
Crude 0.0007 0.0003 402.1 0.28147 0.12063
Cracking and Coking 0.0076 0.0034 348.9 2.6524 1.1866
Asphalt | 0.0041 0.0019 18 .0.0738 0.0342
Lube 0.0192 0.0087
Reforming and Alkylation |  0.0069 0.0031 62.6 0.43194 0.19406
Limit 3.47 1.53

From 40 CFR 419.23(c), Ibs per 1,000 barrels feedstock
B Pounds per day (Ibs/d)

BCT. The following table shows the derivation of BCT limitations for process wastewaters at
production rates of 135,000 and 165,000 bbls/d.

F-1-7



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx

Table F-11. Process Wastewater BCT Limitations

NPDES NO. CA0005550

Preliminary Effluent Feed Final Effluent
Limitations Factor # Size Process ee Limitations ®
Pollutant Stock
Max Avg Factor Factor Rat . Avg
- ate Max Daily
Daily Monthly Monthly
Production at 135,000 bbls/d
BOD:; 9.9 5.5 1.35 1.89 135 3400 1900
TSS 6.9 4.4 1.35 1.89 135 2400 1500
Oil & Grease 3.0 1.6 1.35 1.89 135 1000 551
pH 6.0-9.0
Production at 165,000 bbls/day
BOD:; 9.9 5.5 1.41 1.82 165 4200 2300
TSS 6.9 44 1.41 1.82 165 2900 1900
Oil & Grease 3.0 1.6 1.41 1.82 165 1300 670
pH 6.0-9.0

From 40 CFR 419.24(a), pounds per 1,000 barrels feedstock
Pounds per day (Ibs/d)

Most Stringent Technology-Based Process Wastewater Effluent Limitations

The following table presents the technology-based process wastewater effluent limitations that apply to
the Discharger. The limitations are the most stringent of the BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations required
by the ELGs and are expressed in units of 1bs/day based on production rates of 135,000 and 165,000

bbls/d.
Table F-1J. Summary of Technology-Based Process Wastewater Effluent Limitations
Effluent Limitations *®
Pollutant Max Daily | Avg Monthly
Production at 135,000 bbls/d
BODs 3,400 1,900
TSS 2,400 1,500
COD 26,000 13,000
Oil & Grease 1,000 550
Phenolics (4AAP) 26 12
Ammonia (as N) 2,300 1,000
Sulfide 22 10
Total Cr 52 18 ¢
Hex Cr 3.5¢ 15¢
pH 6.0 — 9.0 pH units
Production at 165,000 bbls/d
BODs 4,200 2,300
TSS 2,900 1,900
COD 31,000 16,000
Oil & Grease 1,300 670

F-1-8



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

REVISED TENTATIVE ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Effluent Limitations &

Pollutant \ Max Daily Avg Monthly
Phenolics (4AAP) 31 15
Ammonia (as N) 2,800 1,300
Sulfide 28 12
Total Chromium 54 18 ¢
Hexavalent Chromium 35°€ 15°€

pH

6.0 — 9.0 pH units

Units are lbs/day

All technology based limitations for process wastewaters are based on BPT unless otherwise noted.

Based on BAT

Determination of Effluent Limitations for Contaminated Runoff

If contaminated storm water discharges exceed the oil and grease limit (15 mg/L) or the total organic
carbon limit (110 mg/L), additional concentration-based limitations for BODs, TSS, COD, phenolics,
total chromium, hexavalent chromium, and pH become immediately effective. The effluent limitations

for these pollutants are derived from the most stringent of the BCT, BAT, and BPT effluent

concentration-based limitations provided in the ELGs. A table summarizing these additional effluent

limitations is below.

Table F-1L. Additional Storm Water Effluent Limitations

Pollutant

Daily Maximum

30 Day Average

(mg/L) (mg/L)
BOD;s 48 26
TSS 33 21
COD 360 180
Oil and Grease 15 8.0
Phenolic Compounds 0.35 0.17
Total Chromium 0.60 0.21
Hexavalent Chromium 0.062 0.028

F-1-9



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
SAN FRANCISCO BAY REGION

ATTACHMENT G
REGIONAL STANDARD PROVISIONS, AND MONITORING
AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
(SUPPLEMENT TO ATTACHMENT D)

For

NPDES WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS

July 2009

Attachment G
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



Table of Contents

I.  STANDARD PROVISIONS - PERMIT COMPLIANCE .....cc.ocoiiiieiieieeeeeeeee e
A, DULY 10 COMPLY ..ottt ettt ettt et e et e et e ebeesbeeesbeensaesnsaens

B. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense.........cccccvveeviiieciieciieeciieceee e

C.  DULY t0 MITIZALE ....ccutieiiieeiieeiie ettt ettt ettt et estee et e et e esbeeseeeabeeseeesbeeseesnseenseessseenseas

L. Contin@enCy Plan ........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e rae e e bee e eereeeennes

2. Spill Prevention Plan...........c.oociiiioiiiiiiieieeece et

D. Proper Operation & MaiNteNanCe ..........ccueeeruvieeiuieeriieeeiieesieeesieeesreeesseeessseeessseesssneessseens

1. Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manual.............ccceeveeiiienieeniieniieeiece e

2. Wastewater Facilities Status RepOrt ........cccueieiiiieiiiiiiiecieeeeeeee e

—mmomm

K.

3. Proper Supervision and Operation of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) ...
Property RIGILS ...cccueeiiiieee ettt et tee e s re e e et e e enaeeesnree e e
InSPection and ENtIY ......cocuiiiiiiiiiiecieee ettt

STOTIIL WALET ...ttt ettt e be e st e b et e b e saneeas
1. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPP Plan).........ccccooovviiiiiiinciiiieee
2. Source IdentifiCation..........ccueriiiiiieiieeieerie ettt ettt et nae e
3. Storm Water Management CONtIOlS ........c.eeeciieeiiieeiiieeieeceecee e
4. Annual Verification of SWPP Plan............ccoocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e
Bi10S01ids Mana@emeENt...........cccuuieiiiieiiiieciieeeieeeeiee et et eeeaee e aeeeeaeesaaeeenaeeeaaeeenaeeen

II. STANDARD PROVISIONS — PERMIT ACTION ......cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciceececceceee
III.  STANDARD PROVISIONS — MONITORING .......cooiiiiiiiiiiiieiecteececeece e

A.

Sampling and ANALYSES........cotiruiiiiriiieeee e
1 Use of Certified Laboratori€s. .......cceeruirieriierierienieeieeieseeee et
2. Use of Appropriate Minimum LevVels .......c..ccoceeviriiniiiiniiniiiiccieeeceeceee
3. Frequency of MONITOTING ......cccuieruiieiieriieeiieeie et eeite et eeteeteeseaeesbeessaeesaessseesseessseenneas
Bi0SOLidS MONTEOTINE .....oeeieniiieiiieiie ettt ettt et e sttt e et e enbeesneeeaeeas
1. Biosolids Monitoring FIEQUENCY ........cccuieruieriieiieeiieiiiecie et eie et eveeseee v
2. Biosolids Pollutants t0 MONILOT ..........eecuieriiiiiieiieeiieeie ettt
Standard ODSETVATIONS ........eerueeieriieieeierieete ettt ettt ettt e e eaeesteeneeseeenaeenees 10
1. Receiving Water ODSEIrvations .........c..ccceevieriiriieiinienienteneeeete e 10
Wastewater Effluent ObSErvations ..........coceerueerierieniienienienieeieeeesieee e 11
Beach and Shoreline ObSErvations ...........cocceeevueerieeiienieeiieeie et 11
Land Retention or Disposal Area ObServations.............ceeeeeeeveerrieecreeneesiveeneeenneenenns 11
5. Periphery of Waste Treatment and/or Disposal Facilities Observations..................... 12

D

IV. STANDARD PROVISIONS — RECORDS ......cc.coctiiiiiiiiniiitiiitceeeesecte et 12

A.
B.

Records to De MaintaiNed ...........oooiviiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeiiieeeee ettt e e e s eeenaaaaees 12
Records of monitoring information shall include.............cccoovvieiieniiiinieiiieieceeee e 12
1. Analytical Information..........coceeiiiiiiiiiiiii e 11
FIow Monitoring Data...........c.ccoiieiiiiiieiieiieeieeeee ettt et seae e ssaeeneees 12
Wastewater Treatment Process SOIAS .......coiiiiviiiiiiiiiiiiieieiieiieeeee et 13
DiSINTECHION PIOCESS. .. ..vvviiiieieiie et e e eeeaaeeeeas 13

D

Attachment G il
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



5. Treatment Process BYPaSSES ......cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiie ettt 13

6. Treatment Facility OVErflOWS ........ccoouiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 14

V. STANDARD PROVISIONS — REPORTING.......cccceriiriiiiniiiniieieniienieeie sttt 14
A. Duty to Provide INfOrmation...........cccvieeiiiiiiie it 14

B. Signatory and Certification ReqUIrements............c.cccueevuierieeiiienieniieeiieeieesiee e 14

C.  MONItOTING REPOTLS....eeieiiieiiiieeiiieetie ettt et e e eve e e st e e be e e taeeesabeeesseeenseeennseeennns 14

1. Self-Monitoring REPOTITS ....c..eiuiiiiiiiieiieeieeeie ettt ae e 14

D. Compliance SChedUIES ........ccoeiiiiiiieiiecee et e e 18

E. Twenty-Four HOUr REPOTTING ......ooouiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeiteee ettt 18

1. Spill or Oil or Other Hazardous Material Reports.........cccceeeviieeriieeiiieeiieeieeeieeee 18

2. Unauthorized Discharges from Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants.................. 19

F.  Planned CRanges........c.ccoouiiiiiieiiiie ettt et et e et e e e aeeessaeeessaeeesnaeeenseeensaeesnnes 21

G. Anticipated NONCOMPIANCE.........cciiiiiiiiieiieiie ettt saeeebeesae e e saae e 21

H. Other NONCOMPIIANCE .......eiiiiiieeiiieeiiee ettt tee et e e e e ae e e aeeesaeeenaeesaeeessseeenanes 21

I Other INfOrmMation .....coueiiiriiiiiiieeee ettt 21

VI. STANDARD PROVISIONS — ENFORCEMENT .......cccooiiiiiieiieieeee e 21
VII. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS — NOTIFICATION LEVELS .......cooiiiiiiiiieerieeeeeeeen 21
VIII. DEFINITIONS — This section is an addition to Standard Provisions (Attachment D) ................ 23

Attachment G iii

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
SAN FRANCISCO BAY REGION

REGIONAL STANDARD PROVISIONS, AND MONITORING AND
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
(SUPPLEMENT TO ATTACHMENT D)

FOR

NPDES WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS

APPLICABILITY

This document applies to dischargers covered by a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit. This document does not apply to Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)
NPDES permits.

The purpose of this document is to supplement the requirements of Attachment D, Standard Provisions.
The requirements in this supplemental document are designed to ensure permit compliance through
preventative planning, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting. In addition, this document requires
proper characterization of issues as they arise, and timely and full responses to problems encountered. To
provide clarity on which sections of Attachment D this document supplements, this document is arranged
in the same format as Attachment D.

I. STANDARD PROVISIONS - PERMIT COMPLIANCE
A. Duty to Comply — Not Supplemented
B. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense — Not Supplemented
C. Duty to Mitigate — This supplements I.C. of Standard Provisions (Attachment D)

1. Contingency Plan - The Discharger shall maintain a Contingency Plan as originally required
by Regional Water Board Resolution 74-10 and as prudent in accordance with current
municipal facility emergency planning. The Contingency Plan shall describe procedures to
ensure that existing facilities remain in, or are rapidly returned to, operation in the event of a
process failure or emergency incident, such as employee strike, strike by suppliers of
chemicals or maintenance services, power outage, vandalism, earthquake, or fire. The
Discharger may combine the Contingency Plan and Spill Prevention Plan into one document.
Discharge in violation of the permit where the Discharger has failed to develop and
implement a Contingency Plan as described below will be the basis for considering the
discharge a willful and negligent violation of the permit pursuant to California Water Code
Section 13387. The Contingency Plan shall, at a minimum, contain the provisions of a.
through g. below.

a. Provision of personnel for continued operation and maintenance of sewerage facilities
during employee strikes or strikes against contractors providing services.

Attachment G 1
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



b. Maintenance of adequate chemicals or other supplies and spare parts necessary for
continued operations of sewerage facilities.

c. Provisions of emergency standby power.
d. Protection against vandalism.
e. Expeditious action to repair failures of, or damage to, equipment and sewer lines.

f. Report of spills and discharges of untreated or inadequately treated wastes, including
measures taken to clean up the effects of such discharges.

g. Programs for maintenance, replacement, and surveillance of physical condition of
equipment, facilities, and sewer lines.

2. Spill Prevention Plan - The Discharger shall maintain a Spill Prevention Plan to prevent
accidental discharges and minimize the effects of such events. The Spill Prevention Plan
shall:

a. Identify the possible sources of accidental discharge, untreated or partially treated waste
bypass, and polluted drainage;

b. Evaluate the effectiveness of present facilities and procedures, and state when they
became operational; and

c. Predict the effectiveness of the proposed facilities and procedures, and provide an
implementation schedule containing interim and final dates when they will be
constructed, implemented, or operational.

This Regional Water Board, after review of the Contingency and Spill Prevention Plans or
their updated revisions, may establish conditions it deems necessary to control accidental
discharges and to minimize the effects of such events. Such conditions may be incorporated
as part of the permit upon notice to the Discharger.

D. Proper Operation & Maintenance — This supplements 1.D of Standard Provisions
(Attachment D)

1. Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manual - The Discharger shall maintain an O&M
Manual to provide the plant and regulatory personnel with a source of information describing
all equipment, recommended operational strategies, process control monitoring, and
maintenance activities. To remain a useful and relevant document, the O&M Manual shall be
kept updated to reflect significant changes in treatment facility equipment and operational
practices. The O&M Manual shall be maintained in usable condition and be available for
reference and use by all relevant personnel and Regional Water Board staff.

2. Wastewater Facilities Status Report - The Discharger shall regularly review, revise, or
update, as necessary, its Wastewater Facilities Status Report. This report shall document how
the Discharger operates and maintains its wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal
facilities to ensure that all facilities are adequately staffed, supervised, financed, operated,

Attachment G 2
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



maintained, repaired, and upgraded as necessary to provide adequate and reliable transport,
treatment, and disposal of all wastewater from both existing and planned future wastewater
sources under the Discharger's service responsibilities.

3. Proper Supervision and Operation of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWSs) -
POTWs shall be supervised and operated by persons possessing certificates of appropriate
grade pursuant to Division 4, Chapter 14, Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations.

E. Property Rights — Not Supplemented

F. Inspection and Entry — Not Supplemented
G. Bypass — Not Supplemented

H. Upset — Not Supplemented

I. Other — This section is an addition to Standard Provisions (Attachment D)

1. Neither the treatment nor the discharge of pollutants shall create pollution, contamination, or
nuisance as defined by California Water Code Section 13050.

2. Collection, treatment, storage, and disposal systems shall be operated in a manner that
precludes public contact with wastewater, except in cases where excluding the public is
infeasible, such as private property. If public contact with wastewater could reasonably occur
on public property, warning signs shall be posted.

3. Ifthe Discharger submits a timely and complete Report of Waste Discharge for permit
reissuance, this permit continues in force and effect until a new permit is issued or the
Regional Water Board rescinds the permit.

J. Storm Water — This section is an addition to Standard Provisions (Attachment D)

These provisions apply to facilities that do not direct all storm water flows from the facility to the
wastewater treatment plant headworks.

1. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPP Plan)

The SWPP Plan shall be designed in accordance with good engineering practices and shall
address the following objectives:

a. To identify pollutant sources that may affect the quality of storm water discharges; and

b. To identify, assign, and implement control measures and management practices to reduce
pollutants in storm water discharges.

The SWPP Plan may be combined with the existing Spill Prevention Plan as required in
accordance with Section C.2. The SWPP Plan shall be retained on-site and made available
upon request of a representative of the Regional Water Board.

Attachment G 3
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



2. Source ldentification

The SWPP Plan shall provide a description of potential sources that may be expected to add

significant quantities of pollutants to storm water discharges, or may result in non-storm

water discharges from the facility. The SWPP Plan shall include, at a minimum, the following
items:

a. A topographical map (or other acceptable map if a topographical map is unavailable),
extending one-quarter mile beyond the property boundaries of the facility, showing the
wastewater treatment facility process areas, surface water bodies (including springs and
wells), and discharge point(s) where the facility’s storm water discharges to a municipal
storm drain system or other points of discharge to waters of the State. The requirements
of this paragraph may be included in the site map required under the following paragraph
if appropriate.

b. A site map showing the following:

1) Storm water conveyance, drainage, and discharge structures;

2) An outline of the storm water drainage areas for each storm water discharge point;

3) Paved areas and buildings;

4) Areas of actual or potential pollutant contact with storm water or release to storm
water, including but not limited to outdoor storage and process areas; material
loading, unloading, and access areas; and waste treatment, storage, and disposal

areas;

5) Location of existing storm water structural control measures (i.e., berms, coverings,
etc.);

6) Surface water locations, including springs and wetlands; and
7) Vehicle service areas.

c. A narrative description of the following:
1) Wastewater treatment process activity areas;

2) Materials, equipment, and vehicle management practices employed to minimize
contact of significant materials of concern with storm water discharges;

3) Material storage, loading, unloading, and access areas;

4)  Existing structural and non-structural control measures (if any) to reduce pollutants
in storm water discharges; and

5) Methods of on-site storage and disposal of significant materials.

Attachment G 4
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



d. A list of pollutants that have a reasonable potential to be present in storm water

discharges in significant quantities.

3. Storm Water Management Controls

The SWPP Plan shall describe the storm water management controls appropriate for the
facility and a time schedule for fully implementing such controls. The appropriateness and
priorities of controls in the SWPP Plan shall reflect identified potential sources of pollutants.
The description of storm water management controls to be implemented shall include, as
appropriate:

Attachment G

Storm water pollution prevention personnel

Identify specific individuals (and job titles) that are responsible for developing,
implementing, and reviewing the SWPP Plan.

Good housekeeping

Good housekeeping requires the maintenance of clean, orderly facility areas that
discharge storm water. Material handling areas shall be inspected and cleaned to reduce
the potential for pollutants to enter the storm drain conveyance system.

Spill prevention and response

Identify areas where significant materials can spill into or otherwise enter storm water
conveyance systems and their accompanying drainage points. Specific material handling
procedures, storage requirements, and cleanup equipment and procedures shall be
identified, as appropriate. The necessary equipment to implement a cleanup shall be
available, and personnel shall be trained in proper response, containment, and cleanup of
spills. Internal reporting procedures for spills of significant materials shall be established.

Source control

Source controls include, for example, elimination or reduction of the use of toxic
pollutants, covering of pollutant source areas, sweeping of paved areas, containment of
potential pollutants, labeling of all storm drain inlets with “No Dumping” signs, isolation
or separation of industrial and non-industrial pollutant sources so that runoff from these
areas does not mix, etc.

Storm water management practices

Storm water management practices are practices other than those that control the sources
of pollutants. Such practices include treatment or conveyance structures, such as drop
inlets, channels, retention and detention basins, treatment vaults, infiltration galleries,
filters, oil/water separators, etc. Based on assessment of the potential of various sources
to contribute pollutants to storm water discharges in significant quantities, additional
storm water management practices to remove pollutants from storm water discharges
shall be implemented and design criteria shall be described.

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



f. Sediment and erosion control

Measures to minimize erosion around the storm water drainage and discharge points,
such as riprap, revegetation, slope stabilization, etc., shall be described.

g. Employee training

Employee training programs shall inform all personnel responsible for implementing the
SWPP Plan. Training shall address spill response, good housekeeping, and material
management practices. New employee and refresher training schedules shall be
identified.

h. Inspections

All inspections shall be done by trained personnel. Material handling areas shall be
inspected for evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering storm water discharges.
A tracking or follow up procedure shall be used to ensure appropriate response has been
taken in response to an inspection. Inspections and maintenance activities shall be
documented and recorded. Inspection records shall be retained for five years.

1. Records

A tracking and follow-up procedure shall be described to ensure that adequate response
and corrective actions have been taken in response to inspections.

4, Annual Verification of SWPP Plan

An annual facility inspection shall be conducted to verify that all elements of the SWPP Plan
are accurate and up-to-date. The results of this review shall be reported in the Annual Report
to the Regional Water Board described in Section V.C.f.

K. Biosolids Management — This section is an addition to Standard Provisions (Attachment D)

Biosolids must meet the following requirements prior to land application. The Discharger must
either demonstrate compliance or, if it sends the biosolids to another party for further treatment or
distribution, must give the recipient the information necessary to ensure compliance.

1. Exceptional quality biosolids meet the pollutant concentration limits in Table III of 40
CFR Part 503.13, Class A pathogen limits, and one of the vector attraction reduction
requirements in 503.33(b)(1)-(b)(8). Such biosolids do not have to be tracked further for
compliance with general requirements (503.12) and management practices (503.14).

2. Biosolids used for agricultural land, forest, or reclamation shall meet the pollutant limits
in Table I (ceiling concentrations) and Table II or Table III (cumulative loadings or
pollutant concentration limits) of 503.13. They shall also meet the general requirements
(503.12) and management practices (503.14) (if not exceptional quality biosolids) for
Class A or Class B pathogen levels with associated access restrictions (503.32) and one
of the 10 vector attraction reduction requirements in 503.33(b)(1)-(b)(10).

3. Biosolids used for lawn or home gardens must meet exceptional quality biosolids limits.

Attachment G 6
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



4. Biosolids sold or given away in a bag or other container must meet the pollutant limits in
either Table III or Table IV (pollutant concentration limits or annual pollutant loading
rate limits) of 503.13. If Table IV is used, a label or information sheet must be attached to
the biosolids packing that explains Table IV (see 503.14). The biosolids must also meet
the Class A pathogen limits and one of the vector attraction reduction requirements in
503.33(b)(1)-(b)(8).

1. STANDARD PROVISIONS - PERMIT ACTION - Not Supplemented
I11.  STANDARD PROVISIONS - MONITORING

A. Sampling and Analyses — This section is a supplement to I11.A and 111.B of Standard
Provisions (Attachment D)

1. Use of Certified Laboratories

Water and waste analyses shall be performed by a laboratory certified for these analyses in
accordance with California Water Code Section 13176.

2. Use of Appropriate Minimum Levels

Table C lists the suggested analytical methods for the 126 priority pollutants and other toxic
pollutants that should be used, unless a particular method or minimum level (ML) is required
in the MRP.

For priority pollutant monitoring, when there is more than one ML value for a given
substance, the Discharger may select any one of those cited analytical methods for
compliance determination provided the ML is below the effluent limitation and the water
quality objective. If no ML value is below the effluent limitation and water quality objective,
then the Regional Water Board will assign the lowest ML value indicated in Table C, and its
associated analytical method for inclusion in the MRP. For effluent monitoring, this alternate
method shall also be U.S. EPA-approved (such as the 1600 series) or one of those listed in
Table C. All monitoring instruments and equipment shall be properly calibrated and
maintained to ensure accuracy of measurements.

3. Frequency of Monitoring
The minimum schedule of sampling analysis is specified in the MRP portion of the permit.
a.  Timing of Sample Collection

i. The Discharger shall collect samples of influent on varying days selected at random
and shall not include any plant recirculation or other sidestream wastes, unless
otherwise stipulated by the MRP.

ii. The Discharger shall collect samples of effluent on days coincident with influent
sampling unless otherwise stipulated by the MRP or the Executive Officer. The
Executive Officer may approve an alternative sampling plan if it is demonstrated to
be representative of plant discharge flow and in compliance with all other permit
requirements.

Attachment G 7
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



iii. The Discharger shall collect grab samples of effluent during periods of day-time
maximum peak effluent flows (or peak flows through secondary treatment units for
facilities that recycle effluent flows).

iv. Effluent sampling for conventional pollutants shall occur on at least one day of any
multiple-day bioassay test the MRP requires. During the course of the test, on at
least one day, the Discharger shall collect and retain samples of the discharge. In
the event a bioassay test does not comply with permits limits, the Discharger shall
analyze these retained samples for pollutants that could be toxic to aquatic life and
for which it has effluent limits.

1) The Discharger shall perform bioassay tests on final effluent samples; when
chlorine is used for disinfection, bioassay tests shall be performed on effluent
after chlorination-dechlorination; and

2) The Discharger shall analyze for total ammonia nitrogen and calculate the
amount of un-ionized ammonia whenever test results fail to meet the percent
survival specified in the permit.

b.  Conditions Triggering Accelerated Monitoring

i.  If the results from two consecutive samples of a constituent monitored in a 30-day
period exceed the monthly average limit for any parameter (or if the required
sampling frequency is once per month and the monthly sample exceeds the
monthly average limit), the Discharger shall, within 24 hours after the results are
received, increase its sampling frequency to daily until the results from the
additional sampling shows that the parameter is in compliance with the monthly
average limit.

ii. If any maximum daily limit is exceeded, the Discharger shall increase its sampling
frequency to daily within 24 hours after the results are received that indicate the
exceedance of the maximum daily limit until two samples collected on consecutive
days show compliance with the maximum daily limit.

iii. If final or intermediate results of an acute bioassay test indicate a violation or
threatened violation (e.g., the percentage of surviving test organisms of any single
acute bioassay test is less than 70 percent), the Discharger shall initiate a new test
as soon as practical, and the Discharger shall investigate the cause of the mortalities
and report its findings in the next self-monitoring report (SMR).

iv. The Discharger shall calibrate chlorine residual analyzers against grab samples as
frequently as necessary to maintain accurate control and reliable operation. If an
effluent violation is detected, the Discharger shall collect grab samples at least
every 30 minutes until compliance with the limit is achieved, unless the Discharger
monitors chlorine residual continuously. In such cases, the Discharger shall
continue to conduct continuous monitoring as required by its permit.

v. When any type of bypass occurs, the Discharger shall collect samples on a daily
basis for all constituents at affected discharge points that have effluent limits for
the duration of the bypass, unless otherwise stipulated by the MRP.

Attachment G 8
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



c.  Storm Water Monitoring

The requirements of this section only apply to facilities that are not covered by an
NPDES permit for storm water discharges and where not all site storm drainage from
process areas (i.e., areas of the treatment facility where chemicals or wastewater could
come in contact with storm water) is directed to the headworks. For storm water not
directed to the headworks during the wet season (October 1 to April 30), the Discharger
shall:

i.  Conduct visual observations of the storm water discharge locations during daylight
hours at least once per month during a storm event that produces significant storm
water discharge to observe the presence of floating and suspended materials, oil
and grease, discoloration, turbidity, and odor, etc.

ii. Measure (or estimate) the total volume of storm water discharge, collect grab
samples of storm water discharge from at least two storm events that produce
significant storm water discharge, and analyze the samples for oil and grease, pH,
TSS, and specific conductance.

The grab samples shall be taken during the first 30 minutes of the discharge. If
collection of the grab samples during the first 30 minutes is impracticable, grab
samples may be taken during the first hour of the discharge, and the Discharger
shall explain in the Annual Report why the grab sample(s) could not be taken in the
first 30 minutes.

iii. Testing for the presence of non-storm water discharges shall be conducted no less
than twice during the dry season (May 1 to September 30) at all storm water
discharge locations. Tests may include visual observations of flows, stains, sludges,
odors, and other abnormal conditions; dye tests; TV line surveys; or analysis and
validation of accurate piping schematics. Records shall be maintained describing
the method used, date of testing, locations observed, and test results.

iv. Samples shall be collected from all locations where storm water is discharged.
Samples shall represent the quality and quantity of storm water discharged from the
facility. If a facility discharges storm water at multiple locations, the Discharger
may sample a reduced number of locations if it establishes and documents through
the monitoring program that storm water discharges from different locations are
substantially identical.

v. Records of all storm water monitoring information and copies of all reports
required by the permit shall be retained for a period of at least three years from the
date of sample, observation, or report.

d.  Receiving Water Monitoring

The requirements of this section only apply when the MRP requires receiving water
sampling.

i. Receiving water samples shall be collected on days coincident with effluent
sampling for conventional pollutants.

Attachment G 9
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



ii. Receiving water samples shall be collected at each station on each sampling day
during the period within one hour following low slack water. Where sampling
during lower slack water is impractical, sampling shall be performed during higher
slack water. Samples shall be collected within the discharge plume and down
current of the discharge point so as to be representative, unless otherwise stipulated
in the MRP.

iii. Samples shall be collected within one foot of the surface of the receiving water,
unless otherwise stipulated in the MRP.

B. Biosolids Monitoring — This section supplements 111.B of Standard Provisions
(Attachment D)

When biosolids are sent to a landfill, sent to a surface disposal site, or applied to land as a soil
amendment, they must be monitored as follows:

1. Biosolids Monitoring Frequency

Biosolids disposal must be monitored at the following frequency:

Metric tons biosolids/365 days Frequency
0-290 Once per year
290-1500 Quarterly
1500-15,000 Six times per year
Over 15,000 Once per month

(Metric tons are on a dry weight basis)
2. Biosolids Pollutants to Monitor
Biosolids shall be monitored for the following constituents:

Land Application: arsenic, cadmium, chromium, copper, mercury, molybdenum, nickel,
lead, selenium, and zinc

Municipal Landfill: Paint filter test (pursuant to 40 CFR 258)

Biosolids-only Landfill or Surface Disposal Site (if no liner and leachate system): arsenic,
chromium, and nickel

C. Standard Observations — This section is an addition to 111 of Standard Provisions
(Attachment D)

1.  Receiving Water Observations

The requirements of this section only apply when the MRP requires standard observations
of the receiving water. Standard observations shall include the following:

a. Floating and suspended materials (e.g., oil, grease, algae, and other macroscopic
particulate matter): presence or absence, source, and size of affected area.

Attachment G 10
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



b. Discoloration and turbidity: description of color, source, and size of affected area.

c. Odor: presence or absence, characterization, source, distance of travel, and wind
direction.

d.  Beneficial water use: presence of water-associated waterfowl or wildlife,
fisherpeople, and other recreational activities in the vicinity of each sampling station.

e. Hydrographic condition: time and height of corrected high and low tides (corrected
to nearest National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration location for the
sampling date and time of sample collection).

f.  Weather conditions:

1) Air temperature; and
2) Total precipitation during the five days prior to observation.

2. Wastewater Effluent Observations

The requirements of this section only apply when the MRP requires wastewater effluent
standard observations. Standard observations shall include the following:

a. Floating and suspended material of wastewater origin (e.g., oil, grease, algae, and
other macroscopic particulate matter): presence or absence.

b. Odor: presence or absence, characterization, source, distance of travel, and wind
direction.

3. Beach and Shoreline Observations

The requirements of this section only apply when the MRP requires beach and shoreline
standard observations. Standard observations shall include the following:

a. Material of wastewater origin: presence or absence, description of material,
estimated size of affected area, and source.

b.  Beneficial use: estimate number of people participating in recreational water contact,
non-water contact, or fishing activities.

4.  Land Retention or Disposal Area Observations
The requirements of this section only apply to facilities with on-site surface impoundments

or disposal areas that are in use. This section applies to both liquid and solid wastes,
whether confined or unconfined. The Discharger shall conduct the following for each

impoundment:
a. Determine the amount of freeboard at the lowest point of dikes confining liquid
wastes.
Attachment G 11

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



b.  Report evidence of leaching liquid from area of confinement and estimated size of
affected area. Show affected area on a sketch and volume of flow (e.g., gallons per
minute [gpm]).

c. Regarding odor, describe presence or absence, characterization, source, distance of
travel, and wind direction.

d.  Estimate number of waterfowl and other water-associated birds in the disposal area
and vicinity.

5.  Periphery of Waste Treatment and/or Disposal Facilities Observations

The requirements of this section only apply when the MRP specifies periphery standard
observations. Standard observations shall include the following:

a. Odor: presence or absence, characterization, source, and distance of travel.
b.  Weather conditions: wind direction and estimated velocity.
V. STANDARD PROVISIONS - RECORDS

A. Records to be Maintained — This supplements IVV.A of Standard Provisions
(Attachment D)

The Discharger shall maintain records in a manner and at a location (e.g., wastewater
treatment plant or Discharger offices) such that the records are accessible to Regional Water
Board staff. The minimum period of retention specified in Section IV, Records, of the
Federal Standard Provisions shall be extended during the course of any unresolved litigation
regarding the subject discharge, or when requested by the Regional Water Board or Regional
Administrator of USEPA, Region IX.

A copy of the permit shall be maintained at the discharge facility and be available at all times
to operating personnel.

B. Records of monitoring information shall include — This supplements 1V.B of Standard
Provision (Attachment D)

1. Analytical Information

Records shall include analytical method detection limits, minimum levels, reporting
levels, and related quantification parameters.

2. Flow Monitoring Data

For all required flow monitoring (e.g., influent and effluent flows), the additional records
shall include the following, unless otherwise stipulated by the MRP:

a. Total volume for each day; and
b. Maximum, minimum, and average daily flows for each calendar month.

Attachment G 12
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



3. Wastewater Treatment Process Solids

a. For each treatment unit process that involves solids removal from the wastewater
stream, records shall include the following:

1) Total volume or mass of solids removed from each unit (e.g., grit, skimmings,
undigested biosolids) for each calendar month or other time period as
appropriate, but not to exceed annually; and

2) Final disposition of such solids (e.g., landfill, other subsequent treatment unit).

b. For final dewatered biosolids from the treatment plant as a whole, records shall
include the following:

1) Total volume or mass of dewatered biosolids for each calendar month;

2) Solids content of the dewatered biosolids; and

3) Final disposition of dewatered biosolids (disposal location and disposal method).
4. Disinfection Process

For the disinfection process, these additional records shall be maintained documenting
process operation and performance:

a. For bacteriological analyses:
1) Wastewater flow rate at the time of sample collection; and
2) Required statistical parameters for cuamulative bacterial values (e.g., moving
median or geometric mean for the number of samples or sampling period

identified in this Order).

b. For the chlorination process, when chlorine is used for disinfection, at least daily
average values for the following:

1) Chlorine residual of treated wastewater as it enters the contact basin (mg/L);
2) Chlorine dosage (kg/day); and
3) Dechlorination chemical dosage (kg/day).

5. Treatment Process Bypasses

A chronological log of all treatment process bypasses, including wet weather blending,
shall include the following:

a. Identification of the treatment process bypassed;
b. Dates and times of bypass beginning and end;

Attachment G 13
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



c. Total bypass duration;
d. Estimated total bypass volume; and
e. Description of, or reference to other reports describing, the bypass event, the cause,
the corrective actions taken (except for wet weather blending that is in compliance
with permit conditions), and any additional monitoring conducted.
6. Treatment Facility Overflows
This section applies to records for overflows at the treatment facility. This includes the
headworks and all units and appurtenances downstream. The Discharger shall retain a
chronological log of overflows at the treatment facility and records supporting the
information provided in section V.E.2.
C. Claims of Confidentiality — Not Supplemented
V. STANDARD PROVISIONS - REPORTING
A. Duty to Provide Information — Not Supplemented

B. Signatory and Certification Requirements — Not Supplemented

C. Monitoring Reports — This section supplements V.C of Standard Provisions
(Attachment D)

1. Self-Monitoring Reports

For each reporting period established in the MRP, the Discharger shall submit an SMR to
the Regional Water Board in accordance with the requirements listed in this document
and at the frequency the MRP specifies. The purpose of the SMR is to document
treatment performance, effluent quality, and compliance with the waste discharge
requirements of this Order.

a. Transmittal letter

Each SMR shall be submitted with a transmittal letter. This letter shall include the
following:

1) Identification of all violations of effluent limits or other waste discharge
requirements found during the reporting period;

2) Details regarding violations: parameters, magnitude, test results, frequency, and
dates;

3) Causes of violations;

4) Discussion of corrective actions taken or planned to resolve violations and
prevent recurrences, and dates or time schedule of action implementation (if
previous reports have been submitted that address corrective actions, reference to
the earlier reports is satisfactory);

Attachment G 14
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



Attachment G

5)

6)

7)

Data invalidation (Data should not be submitted in an SMR if it does not meet
quality assurance/quality control standards. However, if the Discharger wishes to
invalidate any measurement after it was submitted in an SMR, a letter shall
identify the measurement suspected to be invalid and state the Discharger’s intent
to submit, within 60 days, a formal request to invalidate the measurement. This
request shall include the original measurement in question, the reason for
invalidating the measurement, all relevant documentation that supports
invalidation [e.g., laboratory sheet, log entry, test results, etc.], and discussion of
the corrective actions taken or planned [with a time schedule for completion] to
prevent recurrence of the sampling or measurement problem.);

If the Discharger blends, the letter shall describe the duration of blending events
and certify whether blended effluent was in compliance with the conditions for
blending; and

Signature (The transmittal letter shall be signed according to Section V.B of this
Order, Attachment D — Standard Provisions.).

Compliance evaluation summary

Each report shall include a compliance evaluation summary. This summary shall
include each parameter for which the permit specifies effluent limits, the number of
samples taken during the monitoring period, and the number of samples that exceed
applicable effluent limits.

Results of analyses and observations

1)

2)

Tabulations of all required analyses and observations, including parameter, date,
time, sample station, type of sample, test result, method detection limit, method
minimum level, and method reporting level, if applicable, signed by the
laboratory director or other responsible official.

When determining compliance with an average monthly effluent limitation and
more than one sample result is available in a month, the Discharger shall
compute the arithmetic mean unless the data set contains one or more reported
determinations of detected but not quantified (DNQ) or nondetect (ND). In those
cases, the Discharger shall compute the median in place of the arithmetic mean in
accordance with the following procedure:

i.  The data set shall be ranked from low to high, reported ND determinations
lowest, DNQ determinations next, followed by quantified values (if any).
The order of the individual ND or DNQ determinations is unimportant.

ii. The median value of the data set shall be determined. If the data set has an
odd number of data points, then the median is the middle value. If the data
set has an even number of data points, then the median is the average of the
two values around the middle unless one or both of the points are ND or
DNQ, in which case the median value shall be the lower of the two data
points where DNQ is lower than a value and ND is lower than DNQ.

15

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



If a sample result, or the arithmetic mean or median of multiple sample results, is
below the reporting limit, and there is evidence that the priority pollutant is
present in the effluent above an effluent limitation and the Discharger conducts a
Pollutant Minimization Program, the Discharger shall not be deemed out of
compliance.

3) Dioxin-TEQ Reporting: The Discharger shall report for each dioxin and furan
congener the analytical results of effluent monitoring, including the quantifiable
limit (reporting level), and the method detection limit, and the measured
concentration. Estimated concentrations shall be reported for individual
congeners, but shall be set equal to zero in determining the dioxin-TEQ value.
The Discharger shall multiply each measured or estimated congener
concentration by its respective toxicity equivalency factor (TEF) shown in Table
A and report the sum of these values.

Table A: Toxic Equivalency Factors for 2,3,7,8-TCDD Equivalents

Congener TEF
2,3,7,8-TetraCDD 1
1,2,3,7,8-PentaCDD 1.0
1,2,3,4,7,8-HexaCDD 0.1
1,2,3,6,7,8-HexaCDD 0.1
1,2,3,7,8,9-HexaCDD 0.1
1,2,3,4,6,7,8-HeptaCDD 0.01
OctaCDD 0.0001
2,3,7,8-TetraCDF 0.1
1,2,3,7,8-PentaCDF 0.05
2,3,4,7,8-PentaCDF 0.5
1,2,3.,4,7,8-HexaCDF 0.1
1,2,3,6,7,8-HexaCDF 0.1
1,2,3,7,8,9-HexaCDF 0.1
2,3,4,6,7,8-HexaCDF 0.1
1,2,3,4,6,7,8-HeptaCDF 0.01
1,2,3,4,7,8,9-HeptaCDF 0.01
OctaCDF 0.0001

d. Data reporting for results not yet available

The Discharger shall make all reasonable efforts to obtain analytical data for required
parameter sampling in a timely manner. Certain analyses require additional time to
complete analytical processes and report results. For cases where required
monitoring parameters require additional time to complete analytical processes and
reports, and results are not available in time to be included in the SMR for the subject
monitoring period, the Discharger shall describe such circumstances in the SMR and
include the data for these parameters and relevant discussions of any observed
exceedances in the next SMR due after the results are available.

Attachment G 16
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



Attachment G

c.

f.

Flow data

The Discharger shall provide flow data tabulation pursuant to Section IV.B.2.

Annual self-monitoring report requirements

By the date specified in the MRP, the Discharger shall submit an annual report to the
Regional Water Board covering the previous calendar year. The report shall contain
the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

Annual compliance summary table of treatment plant performance, including
documentation of any blending events;

Comprehensive discussion of treatment plant performance and compliance with
the permit (This discussion shall include any corrective actions taken or planned,
such as changes to facility equipment or operation practices that may be needed
to achieve compliance, and any other actions taken or planned that are intended
to improve performance and reliability of the Discharger’s wastewater collection,
treatment, or disposal practices.);

Both tabular and graphical summaries of the monitoring data for the previous
year if parameters are monitored at a frequency of monthly or greater;

List of approved analyses, including the following:
(i)  List of analyses for which the Discharger is certified;

(i) List of analyses performed for the Discharger by a separate certified
laboratory and copies of reports signed by the laboratory director of that
laboratory shall not be submitted but retained onsite;

(iii) List of “waived” analyses, as approved;

Plan view drawing or map showing the Discharger’s facility, flow routing, and
sampling and observation station locations;

Results of annual facility inspection to verify that all elements of the SWPP Plan
are accurate and up to date (only required if the Discharger does not route all
storm water to the headworks of its wastewater treatment plant); and

Results of facility report reviews (The Discharger shall regularly review, revise,
and update, as necessary, the O&M Manual, the Contingency Plan, the Spill
Prevention Plan, and Wastewater Facilities Status Report so that these documents
remain useful and relevant to current practices. At a minimum, reviews shall be
conducted annually. The Discharger shall include, in each Annual Report, a
description or summary of review and evaluation procedures, recommended or
planned actions, and an estimated time schedule for implementing these actions.
The Discharger shall complete changes to these documents to ensure they are up-
to-date.).

17

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



g. Report submittal
The Discharger shall submit SMRs to:

California Regional Water Quality Control Board
San Francisco Bay Region

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400

Oakland, CA 94612

Attn: NPDES Wastewater Division

h. Reporting data in electronic format

The Discharger has the option to submit all monitoring results in an electronic
reporting format approved by the Executive Officer. If the Discharger chooses to
submit SMRs electronically, the following shall apply:

1) Reporting Method: The Discharger shall submit SMRs electronically via a
process approved by the Executive Officer (see, for example, the letter dated
December 17, 1999, “Official Implementation of Electronic Reporting System
[ERS]” and the progress report letter dated December 17, 2000).

2) Monthly or Quarterly Reporting Requirements: For each reporting period
(monthly or quarterly as specified in the MRP), the Discharger shall submit an
electronic SMR to the Regional Water Board in accordance with the provisions
of Section V.C.1.a-e, except for requirements under Section V.C.1.c(1) where
ERS does not have fields for dischargers to input certain information
(e.g., sample time). However, until USEPA approves the electronic signature or
other signature technologies, Dischargers that use ERS shall submit a hard copy
of the original transmittal letter, an ERS printout of the data sheet, and a violation
report (a receipt of the electronic transmittal shall be retained by the Discharger).
This electronic SMR submittal suffices for the signed tabulations specified under
Section V.C.1.c(1).

3) Annual Reporting Requirements: Dischargers who have submitted data using the
ERS for at least one calendar year are exempt from submitting the portion of the
annual report required under Section V.C.1.f(1) and (3).

D. Compliance Schedules — Not supplemented

E. Twenty-Four Hour Reporting — This section supplements V.E of Standard Provision
(Attachment D)

1. Spill of Oil or Other Hazardous Material Reports

a. Within 24 hours of becoming aware of a spill of oil or other hazardous material
that is not contained onsite and completely cleaned up, the Discharger shall
report by telephone to the Regional Water Board at (510) 622-2369.

b.  The Discharger shall also report such spills to the State Office of Emergency
Services [telephone (800) 852-7550] only when the spills are in accordance with
applicable reporting quantities for hazardous materials.

Attachment G 18
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



c. The Discharger shall submit a written report to the Regional Water Board within
five working days following telephone notification unless directed otherwise by
Regional Water Board staff. A report submitted electronically is acceptable. The
written report shall include the following:

1)  Date and time of spill, and duration if known;

2)  Location of spill (street address or description of location);
3)  Nature of material spilled;

4)  Quantity of material involved;

5)  Receiving water body affected, if any;

6)  Cause of spill;

7)  Estimated size of affected area;

8)  Observed impacts to receiving waters (e.g., oil sheen, fish kill, water
discoloration);

9)  Corrective actions taken to contain, minimize, or clean up the spill;

10) Future corrective actions planned to be taken to prevent recurrence, and
schedule of implementation; and

11) Persons or agencies notified.
2. Unauthorized Discharges from Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants'

The following requirements apply to municipal wastewater treatment plants that
experience an unauthorized discharge at their treatment facilities and are consistent
with and supercede requirements imposed on the Discharger by the Executive Officer
by letter of May 1, 2008, issued pursuant to California Water Code Section 13383.

a. Two (2)-Hour Notification

For any unauthorized discharges that result in a discharge to a drainage channel
or a surface water, the Discharger shall, as soon as possible, but not later than
two (2) hours after becoming aware of the discharge, notify the State Office of
Emergency Services (telephone 800-852-7550), the local health officers or
directors of environmental health with jurisdiction over the affected water bodies,
and the Regional Water Board. The notification to the Regional Water Board
shall be via the Regional Water Board’s online reporting system at
www.wbers.net, and shall include the following:

' (California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Section 2250(b), defines an unauthorized discharge to be a discharge,

not regulated by waste discharge requirements, of treated, partially treated, or untreated wastewater resulting
from the intentional or unintentional diversion of wastewater from a collection, treatment or disposal system.

Attachment G 19
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



1)
2)
3)

4)

5)

6)

Incident description and cause;
Location of threatened or involved waterway(s) or storm drains;
Date and time the unauthorized discharge started;

Estimated quantity and duration of the unauthorized discharge (to the
extent known), and the estimated amount recovered;

Level of treatment prior to discharge (e.g., raw wastewater, primary
treated, undisinfected secondary treated, and so on); and

Identity of the person reporting the unauthorized discharge.

b. 24-hour Certification

Within 24 hours, the Discharger shall certify to the Regional Water Board, at

www.wbers.net, that the State Office of Emergency Services and the local health

officers or directors of environmental health with jurisdiction over the affected
water bodies have been notified of the unauthorized discharge.

c. 5-Day Written Report

Within five business days, the Discharger shall submit a written report, via the
Regional Water Board’s online reporting system at www.wbers.net, that
includes, in addition to the information required above, the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

Attachment G

Methods used to delineate the geographical extent of the unauthorized
discharge within receiving waters;

Efforts implemented to minimize public exposure to the unauthorized
discharge;

Visual observations of the impacts (if any) noted in the receiving waters
(e.g., fish kill, discoloration of water) and the extent of sampling if
conducted;

Corrective measures taken to minimize the impact of the unauthorized
discharge;

Measures to be taken to minimize the chances of a similar unauthorized
discharge occurring in the future;

Summary of Spill Prevention Plan or O&M Manual modifications to be
made, if necessary, to minimize the chances of future unauthorized

discharges; and

Quantity and duration of the unauthorized discharge, and the amount
recovered.

20

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



d. Communication Protocol

To clarify the multiple levels of notification, certification, and reporting, the
current communication requirements for unauthorized discharges from municipal
wastewater treatment plants are summarized in Table B that follows.

n

Planned Changes — Not supplemented
G. Anticipated Noncompliance — Not supplemented
H. Other Noncompliance — Not supplemented
. Other Information — Not supplemented
VI. STANDARD PROVISIONS - ENFORCEMENT - Not Supplemented

VIl.  ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS — NOTIFICATION LEVELS - Not Supplemented

Attachment G 21
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



Table B

Summary of Communication Requirements for Unauthorized Discharges' from
Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants

Dlsch-arger '_5 Agency Receiving Time frame Method for Contact
required to: Information
As soon as possible, but not Telephone — (800)
State Office of . later than 2 hours after 852-7550 (obtain a
Emergency Services .
(OES) becoming aware of the control number from
unauthorized discharge. OES)
As soon as possible, but not Depends on local
1. Notify Local health department later th.an 2 hours after health department
becoming aware of the
unauthorized discharge.
As soon as possible, but not Electronic’
Regional Water Board later th.an 2 hours after www.wbers.net
becoming aware of the
unauthorized discharge.
As soon as possible, but not Electronic’
2. Certify Regional Water Board later th.an 24 hours after www.wbers.net
becoming aware of the
unauthorized discharge.
Within 5 business days of Electronic®
3. Report Regional Water Board | becoming aware of the www.wbers.net
unauthorized discharge.

California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Section 2250(b), defines an unauthorized discharge to be a discharge,
not regulated by waste discharge requirements, of treated, partially treated, or untreated wastewater resulting
from the intentional or unintentional diversion of wastewater from a collection, treatment or disposal system.

In the event that the Discharger is unable to provide online notification within 2 hours of becoming aware of an
unauthorized discharge, it shall phone the Regional Water Board’s spill hotline at (510) 622-2369 and convey
the same information contained in the notification form. In addition, within 3 business days of becoming aware
of the unauthorized discharge, the Discharger shall enter the notification information into the Regional Water
Board’s online system in electronic format.

In most instances, the 2-hour notification will also satisfy 24-hour certification requirements. This is because
the notification form includes fields for documenting that OES and the local health department have been
contacted. In other words, if the Discharger is able to complete all the fields in the notification form within

2 hours, certification requirements are also satisfied. In the event that the Discharger is unable to provide online
certification within 24 hours of becoming aware of an unauthorized discharge, it shall phone the Regional
Water Board’s spill hotline at (510) 622-2369 and convey the same information contained in the certification
form. In addition, within 3 business days of becoming aware of the unauthorized discharge, the Discharger
shall enter the certification information into the Regional Water Board’s online system in electronic format.

If the Discharger cannot satisfy the 5-day reporting requirements via the Regional Water Board’s online
reporting system, it shall submit a written report (preferably electronically in pdf) to the appropriate Regional
Water Board case manager. In cases where the Discharger cannot satisfy the 5-day reporting requirements via
the online reporting system, it must still complete the Regional Water Board’s online reporting requirements
within 15 calendar days of becoming aware of the unauthorized discharge.

Attachment G 22
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements




VIIl.  DEFINITIONS - This section is an addition to Standard Provisions (Attachment D)
More definitions can be found in Attachment A of this NPDES Permit.

1. Arithmetic Calculations

a. Geometric mean is the antilog of the log mean or the back-transformed mean of the
logarithmically transformed variables, which is equivalent to the multiplication of the
antilogarithms. The geometric mean can be calculated with either of the following equations:

N
Geometric Mean = Anti log[ﬁz Log(C, )]
i1

or
Geometric Mean = (C*Cy*.. .*CN)UN

Where “N” is the number of data points for the period analyzed and “C” is the concentration
for each of the “N” data points.

b. Mass emission rate is obtained from the following calculation for any calendar day:

N

Mass emission rate (Ib/day) = % ZQiCi
it

. _ 3785
Mass emission rate (kg/day) = 2-°°~ 2 Q.C.
N s

In which “N” is the number of samples analyzed in any calendar day and “Q;” and “C;” are

the flow rate (MGD) and the constituent concentration (mg/L) associated with each of the
“N” grab samples that may be taken in any calendar day. If a composite sample is taken,
“C;” is the concentration measured in the composite sample and “Q;” is the average flow rate

occurring during the period over which the samples are composited. The daily concentration
of a constituent measured over any calendar day shall be determined from the flow-weighted
average of the same constituent in the combined waste streams as follows:

N

C4 = Average daily concentration = i ZQ

C

i
t =l

In which “N” is the number of component waste streams and “Q” and “C” are the flow rate
(MGD) and the constituent concentration (mg/L) associated with each of the “N” waste
streams. “Qq” is the total flow rate of the combined waste streams.

c. Maximum allowable mass emission rate, whether for a 24-hour, weekly 7-day, monthly
30-day, or 6-month period, is a limitation expressed as a daily rate determined with the

Attachment G 23
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



formulas in the paragraph above, using the effluent concentration limit specified in the permit
for the period and the specified allowable flow.

d. POTW removal efficiency is the ratio of pollutants removed by the treatment facilities to
pollutants entering the treatment facilities (expressed as a percentage). The Discharger shall
determine removal efficiencies using monthly averages (by calendar month unless otherwise
specified) of pollutant concentration of influent and effluent samples collected at about the
same time and using the following equation (or its equivalent):

Removal Efficiency (%) = 100 x [1-(Effluent Concentration/Influent Concentration)]

2. Biosolids means the solids, semi-liquid suspensions of solids, residues, screenings, grit, scum,
and precipitates separated from or created in wastewater by the unit processes of a treatment
system. It also includes, but is not limited to, all supernatant, filtrate, centrate, decantate, and
thickener overflow and underflow in the solids handling parts of the wastewater treatment system.

3. Blending is the practice of recombining wastewater that has been biologically treated with
wastewater that has bypassed around biological treatment units.

4. Bottom sediment sample is (1) a separate grab sample taken at each sampling station for the
determination of selected physical-chemical parameters, or (2) four grab samples collected from
different locations in the immediate vicinity of a sampling station while the boat is anchored and
analyzed separately for macroinvertebrates.

5. Composite sample is a sample composed of individual grab samples collected manually or by an
automatic sampling device on the basis of time or flow as specified in the MRP. For flow-based
composites, the proportion of each grab sample included in the composite sample shall be within
plus or minus five percent (+/-5%) of the representative flow rate of the waste stream being
measured at the time of grab sample collection. Alternatively, equal volume grab samples may be
individually analyzed with the flow-weighted average calculated by averaging flow-weighted
ratios of each grab sample analytical result. Grab samples comprising time-based composite
samples shall be collected at intervals not greater than those specified in the MRP. The quantity
of each grab sample comprising a time-based composite sample shall be a set of flow
proportional volumes as specified in the MRP. If a particular time-based or flow-based composite
sampling protocol is not specified in the MRP, the Discharger shall determine and implement the
most representative sampling protocol for the given parameter subject to Executive Officer
approval.

6. Depth-integrated sample is defined as a water or waste sample collected by allowing a sampling
device to fill during a vertical traverse in the waste or receiving water body being sampled. The
Discharger shall collect depth-integrated samples in such a manner that the collected sample will
be representative of the waste or water body at that sampling point.

7. Flow sample is an accurate measurement of the average daily flow volume using a properly
calibrated and maintained flow measuring device.

8. Grab sample is an individual sample collected in a short period of time not exceeding 15 minutes.
Grab samples represent only the condition that exists at the time the wastewater is collected.

9. Initial dilution is the process that results in the rapid and irreversible turbulent mixing of
wastewater with receiving water around the point of discharge.

Attachment G 24
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



10. Overflow is the intentional or unintentional spilling or forcing out of untreated or partially treated
wastes from a transport system (e.g., through manholes, at pump stations, and at collection
points) upstream from the treatment plant headworks or from any part of a treatment plant
facility.

11. Priority pollutants are those constituents referred to in 40 CFR Part 122 as promulgated in the
Federal Register, Vol. 65, No. 97, Thursday, May 18, 2000, also known as the California Toxics
Rule, the presence or discharge of which could reasonably be expected to interfere with
maintaining designated uses.

12. Storm water means storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage. It
excludes infiltration and runoff from agricultural land.

13. Toxic pollutant means any pollutant listed as toxic under federal Clean Water Act section
307(a)(1) or under 40 CFR 401.15.

14. Untreated waste is raw wastewater.
15. Waste, waste discharge, discharge of waste, and discharge are used interchangeably in the permit.

The requirements of the permit apply to the entire volume of water, and the material therein, that
is disposed of to surface and ground waters of the State of California.

Attachment G 25
Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



List of Monitoring Parameters and Analytical Methods

Table C

CTR Pollutant/Parameter Analytical Minimum Levels?
No. Method" (rg/l)
GC |GCMS| LC |Color| FAA |GFAA]| ICP ICP |SPGFAA| HYD | CVAA | DCP
MS RIDE
1. Antimony 204.2 10 5 50 0.5 5 0.5 1000
2. Arsenic 206.3 20 2 10 2 2 1 1000
3. Beryllium 20 0.5 2 0.5 1 1000
4. Cadmium 200 or 213 10 0.5 10 0.25 0.5 1000
Sa. Chromium (III) SM 3500
5b. Chromium (VI) SM 3500 10 5 1000
6 Copper 200.9 25 5 10 0.5 1000
7. Lead 200.9 20 5 5 0.5 10,000
8. Mercury 1631
(note)’
9. Nickel 249.2 50 5 20 1 5 1000
10.  |Selenium 200.8 or 5 10 2 5 1 1000
SM 3114B
or C
11.  |Silver 272.2 10 1 10 0.25 2 1000
12.  |Thallium 279.2 10 2 10 1 5 1000
13.  |Zinc 200 or 289 20 20 1 10
14.  |Cyanide SM 4500 5
CN Corl
15.  |Asbestos (only required for 0100.2°
dischargers to MUN waters)*
16. |2,3,7,8-TCDD and 17 1613
congeners (Dioxin)
17.  |Acrolein 603 2.0 5
18. Acrylonitrile 603 2.0 2
19. Benzene 602 0.5 2
33.  |Ethylbenzene 602 0.5 2

The suggested method is the USEPA Method unless otherwise specified (SM = Standard Methods). The
discharger may use another USEPA-approved or recognized method if that method has a level of
quantification below the applicable water quality objective. Where no method is suggested, the
Discharger has the discretion to use any standard method.

Minimum levels are from the State Implementation Policy. They are the concentration of the lowest
calibration standard for that technique based on a survey of contract laboratories. Laboratory techniques
are defined as follows: GC = Gas Chromatography; GCMS = Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry;
LC = High Pressure Liquid Chromatography; Color = Colorimetric; FAA = Flame Atomic Absorption;
GFAA = Graphite Furnace Atomic Absorption; ICP = Inductively Coupled Plasma; ICPMS =
Inductively Coupled Plasma/Mass Spectrometry; SPGFAA = Stabilized Platform Graphite Furnace
Atomic Absorption (i.e., U.S. EPA 200.9); Hydride = Gaseous Hydride Atomic Absorption; CVAA =
Cold Vapor Atomic Absorption; DCP = Direct Current Plasma.

The Discharger shall use ultra-clean sampling (USEPA Method 1669) and ultra-clean analytical methods
(USEPA Method 1631) for mercury monitoring. The minimum level for mercury is 2 ng/l (or

0.002 ug/l).

MUN = Municipal and Domestic Supply. This designation, if applicable, is in the Findings of the permit.

Determination of Asbestos Structures over 10 [micrometers] in Length in Drinking Water Using MCE
Filters, U.S. EPA 600/R-94-134, June 1994.

Attachment G 26

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements




CTR Pollutant/Parameter Analytical Minimum Levels?
No. Method" (rg/l)
GC |GCMS| LC |Color| FAA |GFAA] ICP ICP |SPGFAA| HYD | CVAA | DCP
MS RIDE

39.  |Toluene 602 0.5 2

20. |Bromoform 601 0.5 2

21. Carbon Tetrachloride 601 0.5 2

22. Chlorobenzene 601 0.5 2

23.  |Chlorodibromomethane 601 0.5 2

24.  |Chloroethane 601 0.5 2

25.  |2-Chloroethylvinyl Ether 601 1 1

26.  |Chloroform 601 0.5 2

75. 1,2-Dichlorobenzene 601 0.5 2

76. 1,3-Dichlorobenzene 601 0.5 2

77. 1,4-Dichlorobenzene 601 0.5 2

27.  |Dichlorobromomethane 601 0.5 2

28. 1,1-Dichloroethane 601 0.5 1

29. 1,2-Dichloroethane 601 0.5 2

30. 1,1-Dichloroethylene or 601 0.5 2
1,1-Dichloroethene

31. 1,2-Dichloropropane 601 0.5 1

32. 1,3-Dichloropropylene or 601 0.5 2
1,3-Dichloropropene

34.  |Methyl Bromide or 601 1.0 2
Bromomethane

35.  |Methyl Chloride or 601 0.5 2
Chloromethane

36. |Methylene Chloride or 601 0.5 2
Dichlorormethane

37. 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane 601 0.5 1

38.  |Tetrachloroethylene 601 0.5 2

40. |1,2-Trans-Dichloroethylene 601 0.5 1

41. 1,1,1-Trichloroethane 601 0.5 2

42, 1,1,2-Trichloroethane 601 0.5 2

43.  |Trichloroethene 601 0.5 2

44.  |Vinyl Chloride 601 0.5 2

45.  |2-Chlorophenol 604 2 5

46.  |2,4-Dichlorophenol 604 1 5

47.  |2,4-Dimethylphenol 604 1 2

48.  |2-Methyl-4,6-Dinitrophenol or 604 10 5
Dinitro-2-methylphenol

49.  |2,4-Dinitrophenol 604 5 5

50.  |2-Nitrophenol 604 10

51.  |4-Nitrophenol 604 5 10

52.  |3-Methyl-4-Chlorophenol 604 5 1

53.  |Pentachlorophenol 604 1 5

54.  |Phenol 604 1 1 50

55. 2,4,6-Trichlorophenol 604 10 10

56.  |Acenaphthene 610 HPLC 1 1 0.5

57.  |Acenaphthylene 610 HPLC 10 0.2

58.  |Anthracene 610 HPLC 10 2

60. |Benzo(a)Anthracene or 1,2 610 HPLC 10 5
Benzanthracene

61. |Benzo(a)Pyrene 610 HPLC 10 2

62. |Benzo(b)Fluoranthene or 3,4 | 610 HPLC 10 10
Benzofluoranthene

Attachment G 27

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements




CTR Pollutant/Parameter Analytical Minimum Levels?
No. Method" (rg/l)
GC |GCMS| LC |Color| FAA |GFAA] ICP ICP |SPGFAA| HYD | CVAA | DCP
MS RIDE
63.  |Benzo(ghi)Perylene 610 HPLC 5 0.1
64. Benzo(k)Fluoranthene 610 HPLC 10 2
74. Dibenzo(a,h)Anthracene 610 HPLC 10 0.1
86. Fluoranthene 610 HPLC 10 1 0.05
87. Fluorene 610 HPLC 10 0.1
92. |Indeno(1,2,3-cd) Pyrene 610 HPLC 10 0.05
100. |Pyrene 610 HPLC 10 0.05
68.  |Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)Phthalate 606 or 625 10 5
70.  |Butylbenzyl Phthalate 606 or 625 10 10
79.  |Diethyl Phthalate 606 or 625 10 2
80.  |Dimethyl Phthalate 606 or 625 10 2
81.  |Di-n-Butyl Phthalate 606 or 625 10
84.  |Di-n-Octyl Phthalate 606 or 625 10
59. |Benzidine 625 5
65.  |Bis(2-Chloroethoxy)Methane 625 5
66.  |Bis(2-Chloroethyl)Ether 625 10 1
67.  |Bis(2-Chloroisopropyl)Ether 625 10 2
69. |4-Bromophenyl Phenyl Ether 625 10 5
71. 2-Chloronaphthalene 625 10
72.  |4-Chlorophenyl Phenyl Ether 625 5
73.  |Chrysene 625 10 5
78. 3,3’-Dichlorobenzidine 625 5
82. 2,4-Dinitrotoluene 625 10 5
83. 2,6-Dinitrotoluene 625 5
85. 1,2-Diphenylhydrazine (note)° 625 1
88.  |Hexachlorobenzene 625 5 1
89.  |Hexachlorobutadiene 625 5 1
90. |Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 625 5 5
91. Hexachloroethane 625 5 1
93.  |Isophorone 625 10 1
94.  |Naphthalene 625 10 1 0.2
95.  |Nitrobenzene 625 10 1
96.  |N-Nitrosodimethylamine 625 10 5
97.  |N-Nitrosodi-n-Propylamine 625 10 5
98.  |N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 625 10 1
99.  |Phenanthrene 625 5 0.05
101. |1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 625 1 5
102. |Aldrin 608 0.005
103. |a-BHC 608 0.01
104. |B-BHC 608 0.005
105. |y-BHC (Lindane) 608 0.02
106. |8-BHC 608 0.005
107. |Chlordane 608 0.1
108. |4,4’-DDT 608 0.01
109. |4,4’-DDE 608 0.05

® Measurement for 1,2-Diphenylhydrazine may use azobenzene as a screen: if azobenzene is measured at
>1 ug/l, then the Discharger shall analyze for 1,2-Diphenylhydrazine.

Attachment G

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements

28




CTR Pollutant/Parameter Analytical Minimum Levels?
No. Method" (rg/l)
GC |GCMS| LC |Color| FAA |GFAA] ICP ICP |SPGFAA| HYD | CVAA | DCP
MS RIDE

110. |4,4-DDD 608 0.05

111. |Dieldrin 608 0.01

112. |Endosulfan (alpha) 608 0.02

113. |Endosulfan (beta) 608 0.01

114. |Endosulfan Sulfate 608 0.05

115. |Endrin 608 0.01

116. |Endrin Aldehyde 608 0.01

117. |Heptachlor 608 0.01

118. |Heptachlor Epoxide 608 0.01

119- [PCBs: Aroclors 1016, 1221, 608 0.5

125 |1232, 1242, 1248, 1254, 1260

126. |Toxaphene 608 0.5

Attachment G 29

Regional Standard Provisions, and Monitoring and Reporting Requirements




APPENDIX B

Comments



(€0 STap

gwxoww S

> Xy
QN
m g UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
§ REGION IX
2, Pno‘ﬁc’

75 Hawthorne Street é(‘\u.w“ REGICNAL VIATER |
{

San Francisco, CA 94105-3901
" SEP 30 2009
| QUALITY CONTROL B0ARD |
, r

John H. Madigan

NPDES Permits Division

California Regional Water Quality Control Board,
San Francisco Bay Region

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400

Oakland, CA 94612
Sentember 20 2009

r

Dear Mr. Madigan:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft NPDES permit for the
Valero Benicia Refinery, NPDES permit number CA0005550. EPA’s comment pertains
to the fact sheet language on page F-26 under 4(b)(1)(b) regarding a dilution allowance
for selenium. Much of the information presented in this section is based on preliminary
information. Many of the conclusions presented in this fact sheet language are not
generally accepted, and thus, we strongly recommend deleting some of this language.

Specifically, we recommend retaining the first two paragraphs of section
4(b)(1)(b), and deleting the remainder of that section. Additionally, the second paragraph
should be edited to read (new wording in bold/italics):

“This information, together with high uncertainty regarding how different sources
of selenium contribute to bioaccumulation, have previously led the Regional

Water Board to deny dllutlon credlt for selemum Hewevef—dﬂta—ee}}eeted—dﬁfmg

I—n—&dé&&eﬁ However rehnemes Have “lgmﬁcantly reduced their d1 charges of
selentum, and altered the chemical species ot the selenium still discharged to a

less bioavailable form. Beth-efthesefactors-are-diseussed-in-meore-detail-below:
Based on this preliminary information, Regional Water Board staff concludes that
limited dilution credit for selenium may be granted such that existing refinery
performance is maintained, pending the completion of a selenium TMDL.
Therefore, this order uses a dilution credit of D=9(10:1 dilution) to calculate
selenium WQBELS.”

Printed on Recycled Paper



We hope we can come to a mutual agreement regarding the final fact sheet
language for this permit. It would be unfortunate if the final NPDES permit for Valero
Benicia Refinery contains language inconsistent with the final TMDL for selenium in San
Francisco Bay. We look forward to continuing to work with you. If you have questions
regarding these comments, please contact Nancy Yoshikawa at (415) 972-3535 or Diane
Fleck at (415) 972-3480.

Sincerely,

Douglas E. Eberhardt, Manager
NPDES Peirmits Office



From: "Vicki Shidell" <Vicki.Shidell@ci.benicia.ca.us>

To: "Marcus Cole" <Marcus.Cole@valero.com>, "John Madigan" <JMadigan@waterbo...
CC: "Chris Tomasik" <Chris.Tomasik@ci.benicia.ca.us>, "Jeff Gregory" <Jeff.G...

Date: 9/10/2009 11:00 AM

Subject: Valero Fuels Refinery Tentative Order

Attachments:  Valero Fuels NPDES TO Pages with comments from COB.pdf; EPA Inspection Repo
rt re Valero May 2002.pdf

Hi John and Marcus,

I have attached the pages of the fuel refinery NPDES tentative order
that | had comments on. (Sorry about the pages getting skewed a bit
through the scanner) The comments are informal and mostly to correct the
following:

(one) inaccurate references that the asphalt plant discharges to the
City;

(two) needing to have better maps with the asphalt plant location
designated as well as the pipelines and stormwater outfall and holding
pond locations - on 11X17 paper, if possible;

(three) add a map for the asphalt plant process description;

(four) show where the asphalt plant discharge enters the treatment
facility; a

(five) add topping category to the list of regulations that pertain to

the permit.

I have included a copy of the report Greg Arthur (EPA) wrote in 2002
that contains the process description, problems the asphalt plant had
and why they would have occurred.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at
707-746-4338 or email me at vshidell@ci.benicia.ca.us

Best Regards, Vicki



California Regional Water Quality Control Board

San Francisco Bay Region

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400, Oakland CA 94612
(S10) 622-2300 » Fax (510 622-2460
hitp:/fwww, waterboards.ca. gov/sanfranciscobay

Linda S, Adams

Secretary for
Environmental Profection

Arnold Schwarzenegger
Govarnor

ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

The following Discharger is subject to waste discharge requirements as set forth in this Order.

Table 1. Discharger Information
Discharger Valero Refining Company - California
Name of Facility Valero Benicia Refinery
Facility Address 3400 East Second Street
Benicia, CA 94510
Solano County
The United States Environmental Profection Agency (USEPA) and the Regional Water Quality Control Board have
classified this discharge as a major discharge.

Discharges by the Valero Benicia Refinery from the discharge points identified below are subject to
waste discharge requirements as set forth in this Order,

Table 2., Discharge Location

Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge Point
Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving Water

001

Treated refinery wastewater

38°03°, 18" N

122°,07°, 07" W

Suisun Bay

002

Storm water from 1.8 acres, discharged at
NW corner of WWTP area

38°,03°, 53" N

122°,07°, 37" W

Suisun Bay

003

Storm water from refinery property and
Lower Level Tank Farm, 85.6 acres total,
discharged at north end of Avenue A to
Sulfur Springs Creek

38°04°, 49" N

122°, 08, 12" W

Suisun Bay

004

Storm water from 0.5 acre gravel area
between Ist Street and railway on south
side of 1st Street, discharged west of Gate 4
into eastern end of Beaver Creek

38°,03°, 59" N

122°,07°, 58" W

Suisun Bay

005

Storm water from 68.9 acres west of
processing area, discharged west of Gate 4
into western end of Beaver Creek

38°%,03’, 58” N

122°,08°, 05" W

Suisun Bay

006

Storm water from 35.5 acres beneath the
refinery crude pipeline, including the Crude
Oil Storage Area (COSA) tank farm,
discharged on the south side of Park Road
to Sulfur Springs Creek

38%,03°, 50" N

1225, 07°, 57" W

Suisun Bay

007

Storm water from 0.7 acre gravel and paved
area near Gate 4, discharged east of Gate 4
to Buffalo Wallow

389,04, 02" N

122°,07°, 54" W

Suisun Bay




VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

1. FACILITY INFORMATION

ORDER NO. R2-2009-x0
NPDES NO. CAL005550

The following Discharger is subject to the waste discharge requirements a8 set forth in this Order:

Table 4. Facility Information
Discharger Valero Refining Company — California
Name of Facility Valero Benicia Refinery
Facility Address 3400 Bast Second Street
Renicia, CA 94510
golano County

Facility Contact, Title, Phone No.
Mailing Address

Type of Facility

Average Facility Flow (2008)

Marcus Cole, Environmental Engineet, Fon7 45-7807
3400 East Second Street, Benicia, CA 94510
Petroleum Refinery

1.93 million gallons pet day (MGD)

1L FINDINGS

The California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Bay Region (hereinafter

Regional Water Board), finds:

A. Background. The Valero Refining Company - California (hereinafter Discharger) currently
discharges under Order No. 2002-0112 (hereinafter previous permit) and National Pollutant

Discharge Elimination Systein

Report of Waste Discharge date
discharge wreated wastewater from the Valero Benicia Refinery

(NPDES) Permit No.
d May 31, 2007, and applied for reissuance of its NPDES permit t0

CA0005550. The Discharger submitted a

_ The Discharger’s discharge is also

currently undet Qrder No. 2008-0077 (NPDES Permit CAC03 8849) that superseded all
requirements Of mercury from wastewater dischatges in the region. The [mercury permit i

unaffected by this QOrder.

For purposes of this Order, references to the

“discharger” ot “permittee” in applicable federal and

State laws, regulations, plans, of policies are held to be equivalent {0 references to the Discharger

herein.

B. Facility Description. The Discharger owns and operates a petroleun refinery that processes an
average crude oil volume of approximately 135,000 barrels per day (bbls/d), producing hydrocarbon

.

products, byproducts, and intermediates. The average volume of crude oil processed is expeoted to
increase to 165,000 bbls/d during the term of this Order, which would result in increased discharges

of process wastewater.

Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewatet treatment plant include stripped sour watet,
cooling tower and boiler blowdown water, orude water draw from on-site and off-site storage

facilities, raw water treatment b
exiracted groundwater from on-
off-site service stations owned by the Discharger.

ackwash, ballast water, stoti water runofl from process areas,
site remediation processes, and monitoring well purge water from

All process wastewater and storim water from the

refinery asphalt plant is discharged to the City of Benicia sanitary SeWer system and is therefore not

regulated by this Order.

Limitations and Discharge Requirements



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY ORDER NO. R2-2009-x%R%
NPDES NO. CA0003550

) ok
. (Day Tank AEE,

S

574 575
LEGEND.
A RN E5E. SITE LOOATICN MAP ﬂ
200 QUAR EFRLY ﬁEPOﬁl

-GURTH QU
PLATE B, DATED JANUARY 2OF
DRAWH BY DaPiOB HO, £i93IN3

FOR

VALERO BENIGIA HEFINERY
SITE LOGATION MAP

BENICIA
GNJFORNIA

EECOR

304 Leghom Syeet
Wourdsin

e, Gas0MB
prondi 55&681,015”551.9331 ] DELF

=

w o
Attachment B — Facility Map IX | B-



ORDER NOC. R2-2009-ixx%
NPDES NO. CAB005550

VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM

ATTACHMENT C-

snepn MO
Suluitied e

papos
Jou g feaaay QWA 0 1G
FUONIPRY UM MOLE SnRUINTS

e 19AEG PUE
WD P0U BUOD

papbiul
e pow hiuo- paieiedo
10y fpeuaoy 298

D PUT S pues.

sbpISISIIeS
SupasG JNEMA JEEN T

QWIS DN GO0 r———

papsuy # juelLqeol,
[ - {QUOHPRY H 1T
IS, WG/ SE0001d P

pupp—L g Dﬁﬁcnk:amﬂﬂn:dm pue g pue
\ R couTUIMITH 1% EV et 0082 <Ml e wopian et |

2 fpede)
ML ung

0§ §dO 30 sl

e

AN B 4P0D L_
smds NG Joudus
R UMSIONG i IHEMIDS o &

spoued :%Ecomcao + h

sepeph, B F;
Buyaip, KEATRC] SpUDd UEPINEY IS — -
e BugaBis
Qs 403 AREMERY

w3 aweyos Jusunedll soyemalsep fasuldy eloiuag

C-1

Attachment C — Process Flow Diagram



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY

ORDER NO. R2-2009-x0x0¢
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Types of Analytical Methods ™

CTR# Constituent Minimum Levels {pg/L
GC 1GCMS| LC | Color | FAA GFAA | ICP | ICPMS SPGTAA [HYDRIDE| CVAF DCP
13 Zine 20 1 10
14 Cyanide 5
Dioxin-TEQ ") Use USEPA Method 1613
Ammonia (N) 0.2 mg/L (as N) vsing titration method
2l Analytical Methods / Laboratory techniques are defined as follows:
Color = Colorimetric
cvaF = Cold Vapor Atomic Fluorescence
DCP = Direct Curreni Plasma
FAA = Furnace Atomic Absorption
GC = (as Chromatography
GCMS = Gas Chromatography Mass Speciroscopy
GFAA = Graphite Furnace Atomic Absorption
HYDRIDE= Hydride Generation Atomic Absorption
ce = Inductively Coupled Plasma
[CPMS = Inductively Coupled Plasma/Mass Spectromeity
LC = Liquid Chromatograpiiy

SPGFAA = Stabilized Platform Graphite Furnace Atommic Absorption (ie. EPA 200.9)

Bl 1, the USEPA specified MLs for Method 1613.

II. MONITORING LOCATIONS

The Discharger shall monitor at the following locations to demonstrate ¢o liance with the effluent
limitations, discharge specifications, and other requirements in this Order.

Table E-2. Monitoring Station Locations

Typ;ziizu;z)ling ng:;:iijgl;%ne Monitoring Location Description
Tr\e\srtted Process EBFF-001 At any point after full treatment and before contact with Suisun Bay
astewater

S R T T L s A e
Storm Water EEF-003 ?&1‘?6§§’f?32‘{35?ﬁgsfﬁ'?té‘iiﬁe&ra?é’fii?\fiﬁ‘éi&fflitEfif ol s prese
S RO T T s T
Storm Water REF-005 ?E{‘;‘E‘B5?f’}i2‘{33?ﬁ;ﬁii‘é‘iﬁ?&i’é’fﬁi‘i?ﬁ‘éﬁ&iﬁf3322’ e e ot
N R T e
Storm Water EFF-008 3331’?6§§f‘1§Z‘fﬂﬁ?ﬁ;‘fﬁ“&é‘iﬁi"éiﬁﬁiﬁ?2113&531?Sfif‘éii%:i'?EEﬁiﬁ?ﬁfge
Storm Weler EFF-009 ?&?3’6SSf?L3’32?5;Z"fii‘t?fiiﬁ°f£§f°§§?§iﬁ§i&f§‘ifEfif e presen

Attachment E — MRP

E-3




VALERC BENICIA REFINERY ORDER NO. R2-2009-%xxXX
NPDES NO. CAD005550

@ Grab samples shall be collected within the first 30 minutes of a storm event.

Bl {fand when effluent limitations for this potlutant becorne offective in accordance with section TV.B.2 of this ’
Order, monitoring shall begin at the outfalls where the limitations are in effect. \j\!"’)

Ul The priority pollutants in storm water shail be monitored two times per year, One time in the dry season and
one time in the wet season. Outfalls are 10 be selected from among Outfails E-003, B-006, E-009, and E-010 ?
only. Each monitoring event ghall oceur at & different storm wafer discharge point $0 {hat in a five yeat period
storm water outfalls E-003, B-006, E-009 and B-010 shall each be monitored at feast once in the wet season

and once in the dry seasor. ™~ _\3{7
5} Ppriority pollutants are those toxic poliutants identified as compound nos. 1= 126 by the California Toxics Rule ‘
(CTR) at 49 CFR 13 1.38. Zi

1

V. WHOLE EYFLUENT TOXICITY TESTING
The Discharget shall monitor acute and chronic toxicity at EFF-001 as described below.
A. Whole Effluent Acute Toxicity

1. Compliance with the acute toxicity effluent limitations of this Order shall be evaluated by
measuring survival of test organisms exposed to 96-hour continuous flow-through bioassays.

~. Test organisms shall be rainbow {rout ot fathead minnow unless the Executive Officer
specifics otherwise 1 writing.

3, All bioassays ghall be performed according to the (most up-to-date protocols in 40 CFR 136,
currently in Methods for Measuring the Acute Toxicity of Effluents and Receiving Water to
Freshhwater and Marine Organisms, 5% Rdition.

4. 1fthe Discharger demonstrates that specific : dentifiable substances in the discharge are
rapidly rendered harmless upon discharge to the receiving water, compliance with the acute
toxicity Limit may be determined after the test samples are adjusted to remove the influence
of those substances. Written approval from the Executive Officet must be obtained to

authorize such an adjustment.

5. Effluent used for fish bioassays must be dechlorinated prior t0 testing. Monitoring of the
bioassay water shall include, on @ daily basis, the following parameters: pH, dissolved
oxygen, ammonia (if toxicity is observed), temperature, hardness, and alkalinity. These
results shall be reported. If a violation of acute toxicity requirements OCCULS, the bioassay

test shall be repeated with new fish as soon as practical and shall be repeated until a test fish
survival rate of 90 percent Of greater is observed. 1f the control fish survival rate is less than
90 percent, the bioassay test shall be restarted with new fish and shall continue as soon as

practical until an acceptable test is completed (1.6 control fish survival rate is 9 percent oF

gre ater).

B. Whole Efftuent Chronic Toxicity
1. Monitoring Requirements

a. Sampling. The Discharget chall collect 24-hour composite samples of the efftuent at
EFF-001 for critical life stage toxicity testing as indicated below. For toxicity tests

Attachment E-MRP E-6



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY ORDER NO. R2-2009-00¢%
NPDES NO. CADD05550

B. The Discharger discharges treated wastewatet and storm water runoff into Suisun Bay and
Carquinez Strait, waters of the State and United States, and is currently regulated by National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit No. CA0005590 through Order No. 2002-
0112 (hereinafter previous permit), which was adopted on January 1,2003. The Discharger’s

discharge is also currently regulated by QOrder No. 2008-0077 (NPDES Permit CAOO 8849) that
superseded all requirements ont mercury from wastewater discharges in the region. The mercury
permit is unaffected by this Order.

C. The Discharger filed a Report of Waste Discharge and submitted an application for reissuance of its
Waste Discharge Requitements (WDRS) and NPDES permit on May 31, 2007. Because the
Discharger submitted a complete and timely application for permit reissuance, the previous permit
was administratively extended past its expitation date of November 30, 2007. lob } sf &

yt?

" f1. FACILITY DPESCRIPTION 0

A. Description of Wastewater Treatment or Controls /T W
The Discharger OWDS and operates 4 petroleumm refinery that processes an average crude oil volume 1} ‘0‘0)

of approximately 135,000 bbls/d, producing hydrocarbon products, byproducts, and intermediates.

The average crude oil volume processed is expected 1O increase 10 165,000 bbls/d during the term of

this Order. The average discharge flow rate as of 2008 was 1.93 MGD; the hydraulic capacity of -

the treatment plant is approximately 3.7 MGD. %ﬁ

a2

Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewatcr treatment plant include stripped sour watet,
cooling tower and boiler blowdown watel, crude water draw from on-site and off-site storage
facilities, raw water treatment backwash, storm water runoff from process arcas, extracted
groundwater from on-site remediation processes, and monitoring well purge water from off-site
service stations owned by the Discharger. Three separate wastewater streams enter the plant; sout
water, combined process water and storm water, and benzene-conta'ming otly water. After initial
treatment, process water, storm water, and benzene-containing oily water arc combined into an oily
wastewater streat. Although an Asphalt Plant is on refine ; and is p art of refinery
processes, process wastewater and storm water from this area is Tischarged to the City of Benicia

municipal sewer system ~d js therefore not aut

orized

ot rogulated by this O

Process water and storim water first flow through strainers into surge and equalization tanks, before “JC
treatment by corrugated plate separators (CPS) and induced static flotation (ISF) units to remove
oils and solids. Benzene—containing oily water is initially (reated in a separaie set of CPS and ISFs
before also flowing 1o the equalization tanks. Sour water is initially treated by the sour water
steipper. Most of the sour water strippet efftuent is pretreated in two activated sludge (pre-B i0X)
units before being combined with the oily wastewater gtream. The remaining stripped sour water 18
combined directly with the oily wastewater stream.. This final combined wastewater is then treated
in an activated sludge (Biox) system consisting of three aeration basins and three clarifiers opetated
in parallel with an addition of powdered activated carbon. The wastcwater then flows to an induced
air flotation (JAF) unit for additional solids removal. From the IAF unit, the wastewater flowstoa
reactor clarifier, where ferric chloride is added to co-precipitate selenite and polymer is added to
gnhance flocculation. Sodium hydroxide is added to adjust the pil of the reactor clarifier effluent,
which is sentto 2 final discharge sump/pond (final pond). The final pond is unlined and hasa
capacity of approxhnately 1.4 million gallons (MG). It provides some flow equalization for the, X

Attachment F — Fact Sheet ' 4

{7



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY ORDERNO. R2-2009-x0x
NPDES NO. CA0003550

/]
discharge pumps. Treated wastewater is pumped from the final pond to Discharge Point 001 and K
discharged to Suisun Bay, a water of the State and United States. ” @'

When analysis of treated wastewater in the final pond indicates that it may violate effluent (?,
limitations, discharge to Suisun Bay is halted and the effluent is pumped to the crude field retention
d

pond, which has a capacity of 23 MG. Effluent stored m the crude field retention pond is returne ¢

to the wastewater {reatment plant for full or partial treatment or, if further analysis indicates that ’\p .
effluent limits are mmet, is returned o the final pond for discharge.

X
Components of the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant are described in greater detail below. M}\ﬁ

Qour water stripper: Ammonia and hydrogen sulfide are stripped from the sour watet. Efﬂuent‘
from the sour water stripper flows through the stripped sour water sewet to the pre-Biox unit.

Deoiler: The deoiler, which consists of a CPS and an ISF system, treats benzene-containing oily 1
water before it flows 10 the equalization tanks. Removed oil is sent to the siop tanks. The ,
deoiler is not operated continuously.

Strainers: The process water and storm watet flow through strainers upstream of the surge tanks %\F
for grit removal. Gritis transported off-site for disposal. /-\d‘w

Surge and equalization tanks: The surge and equalization tanks, which are typically operated at
about 60 percent of their capacity, provide surge capacity for process water and storm water
influent. The tanks store approximately 500,000 gallons of first flush storm water before flow is
diverted to the storm water retention ponds, Vapors are routed to an abatement device.

Storm watcr retention ponds: The storm water retention ponds have an 18 MG capacity, enough
for a 20-year storm. When the influent flow rate to the wastewater treatment plant exceeds
2,600 gallons per iminute, and the surge and equalization tanks are foll, influent flow is diverted
to the storm water retention ponds. This water is ultimately returned to the wastewater
treatment plant upstreant of the Biox system. The storm water ponds are unlined.

Corrugated plate separators: The CPS remove oil and suspended solids from the oily
wastewater stream by gravity separation, using corrugated plates to increase efficiency and
reduce residence time. Oil removed by these units is stored in an oil collection drum and
removed to the slop tanks. Solids removed by these units are routed to the on-site fluid coker,
along with the ISF float and wasted activated sludge, via the primary sludge thickener and the
cone and baker tanks. Vapors are routed to an abatement device. The CPS units can be
bypassed for maintenance.

Induced static flotation: The ISE units remove remaining oil and suspended solids from the oily
wastewater stream through coagulation, floceulation, and {lotation processes. The float is
routed to the primary sludge thickenet. Vapors from the ISF units are routed to an abatement
device.

Pre-Biox: The two pre-Biox units are used to pre-treat & portion of the stripped sout watet ina
manner similar to the Biox system. The effluent is sent tO the Biox system.

Attachment F — Fact Sheet E-5



c. Production Increase and Antidegradation Report \IA\’\\

NPDES NO. CADD05550

VALERQ BENICIA REFINERY ORDER NO. R2-2009-xx%X VNJ’

Dy

165,000 bbls/d during the term of this Order. This increase of approximate}y 22 percent
would result in approximately an 11 percent inctease in the wastewater discharge rate.

D

The Discharger proposes {0 increase its crude throughput from 135,000 bbls/d to )J;&J)K
X

The technology-based effluent limits established by this Order are based on the Effluent - (\ﬂ,ﬂfé\
Limits Guidelines (ELGs) for cracking refineties. These effluent limits are production- M
based and therefore increase with increased crude throughput. The Discharger proposes

to increase its crude throughput during the term of this Order. This provision ensures that

the effluent limits corresponding to increased crude throughput will not become effective )(D '
until adequate documentation is submitted demonstrating to the satisfaction of the /( -
Executive Officer that water quality wilt not be degraded, and production rates have b
increased to 165,000 bbls/d.

ES

. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and Annual Report (}(b’

This provision s based on Basin Plan section 4.8, statewide storm water requirements for

industrial facilities, and applicable USEPA regulations. It is retained from the previous
permit.

Storm Water TSS Report and Best Management Practices

The requirement for a separate repoit on clevated TSS levels and revised Best
Management Practices to reduce and control TSS levels, and for implementation of the
revised Best Management Practices, is included to address the historic exceedances of the
TSS benchmark value of 100 mg/L contained in USEPA’s NPDES Stormwater Multi-
Sector General Permit for Industrial Activities (Federal Register Volume 65, Numbet
210, October 30, 2000). These exceedances are discussed in Fact Sheet section L.C.2.

Dioxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule

The State Water Board compliance schedule policy requires the following documentation
to be submitted to the Regional Watet Board to support a finding of infeasibility:

_ Descriptions of diligent offorts the Discharger tave made to quantify pollutant levels
in the discharge, SOUrces of the pollutant in the waste stream, and the results of those

efforts.

_  Descriptions of source control or pollutant minimization efforts currently under way
or completed.

_. A proposed schedule for additional or future source control measures, pollutant
minimization, or waste treatment.

_ A demonstration that the proposed schedule is as short as practicable.

The compliance schedule policy provides for a 10-year compliance schedule to
implement MEasures to comply with new standards as of the effcctive date of those

Attachment F —~ Fact Sheet F-44



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

ATTACHMENT F-1

Valero Benicia Refinery

References M

1. 40 CER 419 Subpart B — Cracking Subcategory, Effluent Limitation Guidelines and New Source
Performance Standards for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Calegory (2006)

Derivation of Technology-Based Effluent Limitations M

2. Development Document for Effluent Limitations Guidelines and New Source Performance Standards
for the Petroleum Refining Point Source Category, EPA/4401-82/014 (1982)

3. Guide for the Application of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleun Refining Industry,
USEPA Office of Water Regulations and Standards (1985)

4. Valero Energy Corporation, NPDES Application for Permit Renewal, NPDES Permit No.
CA0005550 (May 31, 2007)

5. Refinery Production Data 2003 — 2007, from NPDES Application for Permit Renewal, Attachment
2C-IIIC -- Basis for Repotting Production Rates

Applicable Definitions

Process Waste Waler means any water, which, during manufacturing or processing, comes into direct
contact with or results from the production or use of any raw material, intermediate product, finished
product, byproduct, or waste product. [40 CFR 401.11(q)]

Runoff means the flow of storm water resulting from precipitation coming into contact with petroleum
refinery property. [40 CFR 419.11(b)]

Contaminated Runoff means runoff that comes into contact with any raw material, intermediate product,
finished product, by-product or waste product located on petroleum refinery property.

[40 CFR 419.11(g)] /(O 0 ()V
X

Background

Effluent Limitations Guidelines (ELGs) for the Cracking Subcategory of the Petroleum Refining Point
Source Category at 40 CFR 419 Subpart B are based, in part, on a discharger’s production rate. The
Discharger’s current maximum production rate is 135,000 barrels per day (bbls/d); however, during the
term of this Order, production will increase to 165,000 bbis/d. Effluent limitations are calculated for
both production figures.

Process Wastewaters. The ELGs include limitations for process wastewaters based on best practicable
control technology currently available (BPT), best available technology economically achievable (BAT),
and best conventional pollutant control technology (BCT). Specific BPT, BAT, and BCT effluent
limitations that apply to the Discharger must be derived using methods described by the ELGs and take
into account such factors as production rate, as well as refinery processes and configuration. The most
stringent of BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations apply.




VALERQ BENICIA REFINERY

ORDER N, R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

For derivation of BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations for process wastewaters, size factors and process
factors are determined as follows,

Size Factor, At the crude processing rates of 135,000 and 165,000 bbls/d, the appropriate size
factors, pursuant to the ELGs at 40 CFR 419.22(b)(1) for BPT, at 40 CFR 419.23(b)(1) for BAT,
and at 40 CFR 419.24(b)(1) for BCT, for derivation of technology-based effluent limitations arc as

follows.

Table F-1A. Size Factors

Production Rate

Size Factor

135,000 bbls/d

1.35

163,000 bhls/d

141

Process Factor, The process configuration for each process is determined by summing the process
feedstock rates for each crude, cracking and coking, lube, and asphalt process at the refinery. Each
individual feedstock rate is multiplied by the capacity relative to the throughput, and a weight factor
specific for each process, to derive a “process configuration,” which in turn is used to determine a
“process factor” in accordance with the ELGs at 40 CFR 419.22(b)(2) for BPT, at

40 CFR 419.23(b)(2) for BAT, and at 40 CFR 419.24(b)(2) for BCT,

Processes considered in deriving the process factors are those processes within the crude and
cracking and coking categories as reported by the Discharger, which correspond to the process
groups listed within the Guide for the Application of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the
Petroleum Refining Industry (page 19). The Discharger does not include lube processes, and
wastewaters from the facility’s asphalt plant are discharged to the City of Benicia sanitary sewer
system, so these process groups are not considered in determining process factors.

Derivation of process configurations for production rates of 135,000 and 165 QOO bbls/d are shown

in the following table. é\ \OR,Q, W
Table F-1B. Process Configurations (\JQD/ /’((N
Production at 135,000 bbls/day
Process Procei:aFt:idstock Feetfsl;gzis;ia tio Weight Factor Process Configuration
Crude
Atm. Dist. 135 1
Vac, Dist, 72.1 0.53
Desall. 135 1
Total 342.1 2.5 1 2.53
Cracking
FCC 77.0 0.57
Fluid 39.6 0.29
Coking
Hydrocr. 40 0.30
Total 156.6 1.2 6 6.96
Lube - === 13 -
Asphalt C—-) (- ) 12
Total Refinery Configuration at 135,000 bbls/day 9,49

F-1-2



VALERO BENICIA REFINERY ORDER NO. R2-2009-xxxx
NPDES NO. CA0005550

Production at 135,000 bbls/day
Process Procei:aFt:idstock Feecfrzif(ssfl{{a tio Weight Factor Process Configuration
Production at 165,000 bbls/day
Crude
Atm. Dist. 165 1
Vac, Dist. 72.1 0.44
Desalt, 165 !
Tatal 402.1 2.44 1 2.44
Cracking
FCC 77 047
Fluid 39.6 0.24
Coking
Hydrocr. 40 0.24
Totai 156.6 0.95 6 5.69
Lube --- 13 -
Asphalt —=n wam 12 wn
Total Refinery Configuration at 165,000 bbls/day 8,13

* 1,000 bbls/d

The following process factors are determined in accordance with 40 CFR 41 9.22(b)(2) for BPT, M
40 CFR 419.232(b)(2) for BAT, 40 CFR 419.22(b)(2) for BCT.

Table F-1C. Process Factors

Production Rate Process Configuration Process Factor
135,000 bbls/d 9.49 1.82
165,000 bhls/d 8.13 1.53

To determine BAT limitations for total and hexavalent chromium and phenolic compounds in process
wastewaters, the ELGs require consideration of effluent factors and refinery processes. BAT effluent
factors are presented at 40 CFR 419.23(c)(1); the refinery processes considered are the crude, cracking
and coking, and reforming and alkylation processes, which correspond to those identified within the

Guide for the Application of Effluent Limitations Guidelines Jor the Petroleum Refining Industry (page
20).

Contaminated Runoff. The ELGs establish BPT, BAT, and BCT limitations for contaminated runoff,
which apply to all storm water discharges, except storm water treated and discharged with process
wastewaters through Discharge Point 001. ELGs establish effluent limitations for oil and grease and
total organic carbon (TOC), and then, if limitations for oil and grease or TOC are exceeded, additional
limitations for BOD, COD, TSS, phenolic compounds, pH, and hexavalent and total chromium, found at
40 CFR 419.22(¢)(2) and 419.23(f)(2), become effective.

In general, BPT limitations are the most comprehensive and stringent of all applicable technology-based
limitations for contaminated runoff and, therefore, are incorporated into this Order as additional effluent
limitations for discharges of contaminated runoff where oil and grease or TOC limits are exceeded. The

F-1-3



WGE e JAFdes — VallexD

9 $7;
\,9‘“ N

] ke
g N % JNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Kl REGION IX
e prote 75 Hawthome Street
San Franecisco, TA 84105.3901
QcT 61 2662

Donald Cuffel, Principal Envr. Engr.

Valero Refining Company of California

3400 East Second Street '
. Benicia, California 94510-1097

Re: May 1 Clean Water Act inspeétion

Dear Mr: Cuffel:

Enclosed is the September 30, 2002 report for our inspection of the Benicia Asphalt
Plant. The primary purpose was to evaluate whether the sampling conducted by both Valero and
Benicia is suitable to demonstrate compliance with Federal standards and local limits. We
request that you submit a short response to the findings in Part 3 of this report, Sections 1
through 4, by November 30, 2002.

The principal unresolved issue is the location of the final compliance sampling point
since self-monitoring and city sampling must be conducted of the actual discharge to the sewers
from the same point. This pfécludes sampling from the taps on the final equalization tank and
may further preclude sampling from the effluent discharge line within the refinery fence line.
Moreover, there are upgrades to address variabilities that would improve treatment efficiency and
effectiveness. The ultimate configuration of treatment and the method of discharge significantly
effects the representativeness of various sampling protocols.

Thank you for the forthrightness extended to me during this inspection. If you have any
questions, please do not hesitate to call (415) 972-3504 or e-mail arthur.greg(@epa.gov.

Sincerely,

GregV. Arthur
Clean Water Act Compliance Office

cc:  Vicky Shidel, Benicia \f?/

L
Yy
e
f-aw-.b
ranan ks
)
=B
jeee]
Tt

Wastewater Treatment Plant o
Printed on Recycled Paper




U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 9

WATER MANAGEMENT DIVISION

NPDES COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION REPORT

[Industrial User:

Treatment Works:

Date of .lnspecﬂon:A

Valero Refining Company of California

Benicia Asphalt Plant

3400 East Second Street, Benicia, California 94510- 1097
40 CFR 419 — Petroleum Refining

City of Benicia - Wastewater Treatment Plant
(NPDES Permit CA0038091)

© May 1, 2002

e

=

inspection Participants:

US EPA:
RWQCB:

City of Benicia:

Valero:

Greg V. Arthur, CWA Compliance Office, (415) 972-3504

"~ No Representative

Vicky Shidel, Water Quality Supervisor, (707) 746-4338
Jeff Gregory, Water Quality Technician
Dave Wenslawski, Water Quality Technician

Donald Cuffel, Principal Envr. Engr. (707) 745-7545
H. Clark Hopper, Envr. Manager, (707) 745-7976
Jerry Fox, Unit Team Leader

Rob Yarbourogh, Unit Team Leader

Report Prepared By:

Greg V. Arthur, Environmental Engineer
September 30, 2002

1




Part1

Scope & Purpose

On May 1, 2002, EPA and the City of Benicia conducted a compliance evaluation inspection of
Vaiero Refining Company of California, Benicia Asphalt Plant ("Valero®). The purpose was to

ensure the proper application of the Federal categorical pretreatment standards, national ,
prohibitions, and local limits to the discharge of non-domestic wastewaters into the sewers. in

particular, it was to ensure: :

. Classiﬁcétion in the proper Federal categories;
. Application of the correct standards at the correct points;
. Application of the correct sampling methods.

- EPA conducted this inspection at the'request of the City of Benicia in order to provide technical
assistance to the City for their re-permitting of Valero. The inspection participants are listed on the
title page. Arthur conducted the inspection on May 1. SR -

Part 2
" Description of the Facjf_lity

Process Description
i

Valero manufactures asphalt through the distillation of crude oil or oil blends, and produces gas-oil
and distiliates for delivery off-site for further refining. The operations involve crude oil desalting in
which water and minerals are electrostatically precipitated, atmospheric distillation, direct-heated
vacuum distilation, and modified asphalt manufacturing in which the produced asphalt oil is mixed
with reused plastics and pulverized used tires. Support operations include water softening, a crude
and product tank farm, boilers, wastewater treatment and a process control laboratory. The topping
and asphalt plant was previously owned and operated by Huntway Refining prior to June 2001.
Valero now also owns and operates the adjacent old-Exxon oil refinery.

Waste Streams

The topping and asphalt refinery generates numerous process-related wastewaters and contact . .
storm water run-off from the desalter, the process area, and the tank farm. See Figure 1.

Desalter Sour Water - Crude desalfer sour water collects in a holding vessel in which the oil, oily
emulsions, and sour water fractions separate by gravity. The desalter holding vessel intermittently
discharges its sour water fraction at a rate of 4 gpm until conductivity measurements determine the
oily emulsion layer. The oil content in the discharge wouid be primarily emulsified oils. The sour
water discharge would also contain benzenes, metals, and minerals.

Distillation Sour Water and Purmnp Seal Water - The distillation columns generate a steam stripping
condensate which is captured in condensing vessels to allow gravity separation of the entrained oil

2




prior to drainage. Refinery personnel then periodically draw out the sour water fraction for drainage
into a 200-gailon pressure tank until there is visual determination of the free oil layer. Pump seal
water continuously discharges from numerous sources through hub drains to the pressure tank.
The pressure tank continuously discharges the sour water condensate and pump seal water at a
rate of 7 to 15 galions per minute {("gpm”). The oil in the discharge would be primarily free oil.

Tank Bottoms - Entrained waters in the oil storage tanks separate by gravity from the oils to gener-
ate tank bottom wastewaters. Refinery personne! determine tank bottom volumes by sounding with
either a conductivity probe or chemically active tape. The refinery operations then authorize a cal-
culated pre-set tank bottom volume to draw down for discharge to the sewers through the industrial
wastewater treatment plant. The treatment plant operator determines the rate of discharge based
on a visual observation of the treatment plant outlet weir in order to ensure that its design capacity
is not éxceeded. Refinery personnel keep a log of the calculated draw down volumes.

Blowdowns — Boiler biowdown and water softener brines intermittently generate 2 to 3 gpm of non-
contact wastewater for discharge to the sewers. Caustic fume scrubbing does not generate a
wastewater blowdown for discharge to the sewers. Instead fume scrubbing generates a spent
caustic that is hauled off-site for disposal. o

Storm Water Run-off and Washdown - Unquantified volumes of storm water run-off and plant
washdown from the. process area are collected hy gravity into a singie drain for discharge fo the
sewers through the industrial wastewater treatment plant. Unquantified volumes of storm water
run-off from the tank farm collect in a 10,000-galion sump for pumped discharge to the sewers
through the industrial wastewater treatment plant.

Wastewater and Waste Hiﬁi;rdling

~ Source Controls ~ Tank bottoms, distillation sour waters and desalter sour waters are ‘all introduced
into the in-plant sewers for treatment under the visual observation and control of refinery personnel
in order to manually limit the amount of oil or oily emuisions drawn. - None of these sour waters that
have been in direct contact with hydrocarbons are treated through steam stripping for the removal
of ammonia or sulfides prior o mixing with the other non-domestic wastewater streams for treat-
ment. However, Valero does inject hydrogen peroxide into the in-plant sewer lateral carrying these
sour waters to {reatment, in order to chemically oxidize sulfides, phenols and ammonia.

Delivery and Treatment - All non-domestic wastewaters are treated on-site for free oils, phenols,
and pH prior to discharge to the sewers. The treatment consists of an AP! cil-water separator,
followed by polymer-aided induced air flotation, a final treatment tank for pH adjustment with caustic
and phenol destruction with hydrogen peroxide, and effluent equalization. The chemical feed rates
are all generally pre-sef. The distillation sour water, pump seal water, boiler blowdown, softener
brines, tank bottoms and desalter sour water, as well as the run-off and plant washdown from the
process area all feed by gravity into the API separator at different rates and schedules. Tank farm
run-off feeds by gravity into a 10,000-gailon sump for periodic pumping into the APl separator.
Excess storm water flows can bypass from either the API separator or the induced air flotation unit
to a holding tank for return into the treatment process through the 10,000-gallon sump. See the
schematic of wastewater handiing in Figure 1.

Disposal - The industrial wastewater treatment plant operates on-demand. An effluent weir after
the induced air flotation unit is used to provide manual operational control for flow. The contents of
the final treatment tank are pumped to three effluent equalization tanks that also serve as final
settling tanks to float any free oils. The effluent equalization tanks baich discharge to the sewers.

3




Valero self-monitors the tanks prior to batch discharge through a manual compositing of grab
samples coliected from seven taps located every three-feet in depth after allowing the tank contents
to sit for two hours. All captured oils from the source control tanks and vessels, from the industrial
wastewater treatment plant, and from the final equalization tanks are all reintroduced into the

_refinery processes.

The compliance sample point for the refinery discharge to the sewers is on the effluent discharge
line from the treatment unit. This compliance sampling point, designated as IWD-1 for the purposes
of this report, is located in the refinery loading dock within the fenced perimeter of the refinery and
thus is not accessible by the City without prior notification of the Valero shift supervisor and an
escort by refinery personnel. An automatic flow chart, pH meter and lower explosive level meter
with alarm are outfitted on the effluent discharge line to the municipal sewer. Domestic sewage
joins with the treatment plant discharge below IWD-1 but above the property fence line.

Part 3

Summary of Findings and Conclusions

. Section 1

Sewer Discharge Standards and Limits

Federal categorical pretregiment standards (where they exist), national prohibitions and
local limits must be applied to the sewered discharges from industrial users. [40 CFR

403.5(a,b,c) and 403.6] . : _ o '

1.0 Summary

Benicia has issued a permit to Valero that advances the Federal categorical standards,
national prohibitions and local limits under the Clean Water Act to the sewer discharges
from Valero. The Benicia wastewater treatment plant experienced the pass-through of an
oily sheen during the late moming and early afternoon of February 15, 2002, which Benicia
traced through observation and sampling in the collection system to Valero. However for a
number of reasons, the event could not be confirmed as a permit violation through sampling
at IWD-1 or through self-monitoring of the final effluent tank by Valero. The application of
Federal categorical standards, national prohibitions and local limits was determined through
visual inspection. See Table 1 for the discharge requirements.

Requirement - Self-monitoring for the determination of compliance with the Federal stan-
dards and local limits must be of the actual discharge to the sewer.

Requirement - The compliance sampling point must be located where Benicia has around-
the-clock, unescorted access since the Federal rules require Benicia to sample discharges
into the sewers without prior notice in order to independently determine compliance.

Requirement - Compliance with Federal daily-maximum standards for cil+grease must be
determined through the manual compositing of the sample resuits for grabs collected during
a calendar day. Each grab reSult for oil+grease must also be compared to the local fimit.

4




1.1

1.2

Recommendation - The final holding tank should be retrofitted (1) to continuously remove
free oils and, (2) to continuously discharge from the water fraction between stratified layers.

Recommendation - The compliance sampling point should be relocated outside of the
refinery fence line and should continue o exclude domestic sewage contributions.

Recommendation - The manual arithmetic compositing for oil+grease shouid involve the
sample results of a senes of grabs and be flow-proportioned. _

Recommendation - A variability study should be performed to determine how many oil+
grease grabs would comprise a representative manual composite of a sampling day.

Classification by Federal Point Source Category

Valero qualifies as a petroleum refiner subject to the Federal standards in 40 CFR 419,
Subpart A, for existing source topping facilities since the refinery began operations in its
current configuration before the December 21, 1979 publication date of the proposed rule for
petroleum refining. '

Federal Categorical Pretreatment Standards ,
Petroleum Refining - 40 CFR 419, Subpart A -~ Topping Subcategory -

Applicability - Under 40 CFR 419.10 the petroleum refining standards for the topping sub-
category apply to all digcharges from petroleum refineries that perform topping or catalytic
reforming (but not cracking, petrochemical manufacturing or lube oil manufacturing) irres-
pective of whether there are any other operations on-site. Vaierc's atmospheric and
vacuurn distillation operations qualify as topping. As a result, at Valero, the petroleum
refining standards regulate all process-related discharges.

Standards - The discharge standards in 40 CFR 419.15 apply to Valero since it is an
existing source petroleum refinery. Existing source petroleum refineries were required to
comply by the December 1, 1985 final compliance deadline. See Table 2. :

Adjustments - Federal categoricai pretreatment standards are adjusted o account for dilu-
tion and muitiple Federally regulated waste streams, using the combined waste stream
formula in 40 CFR 403.6(e). This is fo ensure that the best-available-technology treatment
used in originally setting the technology-based Federal standards (or its equivaient) is fully
applied to the Federally regulated waste streams. The Federal standards apply without
adjustment to IWD-1 because the petroleum refining rule specifically covers all process-
related wastewaters including storm water, boiler blow down, demineralization brines, and
cooling tower biowdown.

Basis of the Standards - The petroleum refining standards were based on a model treatment
system that comprises oil-water separation and steam stripping at facilities with some waste-
water reuse and wastestreams segregated by treatability. The standards were set where a
number of refineries with the model treatment were able to consistently operate. In particu~
lar, the oil+grease standard derives from the performance range found in an April 1974 EPA
study (EPA 440/1-74/014a) originally used in seiting the standards. The standards for pre-

“treatment sources were limited to cil+grease and ammonia because sulfides are stripped

with ammonia and the municipal sewage treatment plant should handle organic loads.

3




1.3

1.4

1.5

Local Limits and National Prohibitions

Applicability - The national prohibitions apply nationwide to all non-domestic sewer dis-
charges while local limits apply to non-domestic discharges into the Benicia sewers.
Together they express in narrative and numerical form the limitations on non-domestic
discharges specific to the Benicia service area that are necessary to protect the sewers,
treatment plant and its receiving waters from any adverse impacts. Benicia has local limits
for oil+grease, metals, cyanide, phenols, and polynuciear aromatics (benzenes).

Pollutants of Concern - For IWD-1, the permit should advance limits and self-monitoring for
pH, oil+grease, sulfides, benezenes, and phenols because sour waters and other process-
related wastewaters carry suifides and petroleum by-products and the treatment process
involves pH adjustment. The permit should also require seif-monitoring for metals because
the wastewater discharges could contain them and, if necessary, advance local limits for
any metals found through sampling in the discharges. : '

Points of Compliance

The Federal standards apply end-of-process-after-treatment to all Federally reguiated pro-
cess wastewater discharges. The national prohibitions and local limits apply end-of-pipe tc
all non-domestic wastewater discharges. At Valero, the same sample point, designated in

- this report as IWD-1, serves as both the end-of-pipe and end-of-process-after-treatment

sample points.

There are two sampling. points in use at Valero, however both sampling locations are com-
promised in their usefiiness for the determination of compliance. First, self-monitoring from
the taps on the final effluent tank does not sampie the actual discharge to the sewers.
Moreover, this form of sampliing cannot be representative of the sampling day’s discharge
whenever the tank contents stratify before draining. Second, IWD-1 is not located where the
City can coliect random samples of its own in compliance with the Federal requirements in
40 CFR 403.8(){(2)(v) for the City to independently determine compliance. Random
sampling implicitly requires the City sampling to be conducted without prior notice to Valero.

In order to address these concerns, the final effiuent line would have to be extended out
past the fenced property line in order fo allow the relocation of the compliance sampie point,
IWD-1, to an around-the-clock, fully accessible location. The final holding tank also would
need to be outfitted with automatic oil skimming and converted to continuously discharge
from the water fraction in a way that physically prevents the inadvertent discharge of the
stratified upper and lower layers. These limited retrofits would aliow Valero to still provide oil
interception in the final effluent tank and yet to allow the proper application of the Federal
sfandards to the discharge. It might be more effective to convert the final holding tank to be
an influent hoiding tank to equalize the feed into the APl separator. See items 1.3 and 2.2.

Compliance Sampiing at IWD-1

Federal Standards - Federal daily-maximum standards are comparable to samples
representative of the sampling day. Automatic 24-hour composite samples are appropriate
for ammonia, but grab samples must be used for oil+grease. At IWD-1, grabs would not be
representative of a sampling day because of the discharge of strafified wastewaters. How-
ever, the manual compositing of a series of oil+grease grabs collected during a sampling

6




day woulid provide sample results comparable to the Federal standards. Manual composit-
ing involves the analysis of a series grab sampies and the arithmetic flow proportioning of
the individual results into a single composite value: The number of oil+grease grabs to
produce a representative manual composite result would have to be determined through a
variability study. The key dependent factors are the discharge schedule and duration, the
degree of stratification, the method of cil removal, and flow rates over time. If the freatment
and discharge methods are changed to permit the continuous discharge of clarified decant,
then the number of grab samples in a manual composite could drop to four per sampling
day since the standards were derived from the same statistic applied to continuous
discharges of clarified decant. it may even drop to one if the variability study shows
consistent water quality over a number of days. '

Local Limits — Local limits are instantaneous-maximums and can be comparable to samples
of any length including single grab samples. In particular, the single grab samples for oil+

grease that would be obtained to produce manual composites are all and each separately
comparable to the Benicia local limits. '

Section 2

Compliance with Federal Standards

Industrial users must comply with the Federal categorical prefreatment standards that
apply to their process wastewater. discharges. [40 CFR 403.8(b) and 403.6] -

2.0' .Summary . !

This review involved only an evaluation of the configuration of the treatment in-place. It did
not involve an evaluation of the compliance sampling history for cil+grease or ammonia.

Requirements - None.

Recommendation - Treatment should be preceded by influent equalization.

2.1 Qil+Grease

The treatment in-place at Valero exceeds in design the model treatment used in originally
setting the Federal standard of 100 mg/| oil+grease since it employs the model oil-water
separation treatment plus induced air flotation. As a result, Valero should be able to meet
the Federal standard. However, consistency may not be as good as the models evaluated
for the 1974 EPA study used in setting the Federal standards. The 1974 study determined
that an AP oil-water separator alone or followed by dissolved air flotation could consistentiy
produce oil+grease concentrations between 20-100 mg/l and 5-20 mg/l, respectively.

Performance might slightly improve with an increase in capacity, now rated at 100 gpm for
the API separator and 70 gpm for the induced air fiotation unit, and limited by the Benicia
permit at 60 gpm. However, performance would be more likely to improve through better
control of the main sources of variability effecting the discharge quality. First, the influent
quality is dependent on operafors to determine the oil-water interface at most of the main

7




2.2

wastewater sources. Second, the tank farm run-off sump cycles on-and-off into the influent
of the API separator. Both of these are significant sources of variability that adversely effect
the consistent operation of oil-water separation and induced air flotation. Moreover, treat-
ment is not responsive since it involves pre-set chemical dosing levels and oil skimming
rates that are controlled by a pre-set final weir level.

As a result, it should greatly improve the consistency of performance for influent flows to be
equalized prior to feeding into treatment since both the API separator and the induced air
flotation unit optimally perform under steady-state flow conditions and the chemical dosing is
manually pre-set. One option would be to convert one or more of the three final effluent
holding tanks into an infiuent equalization tank. This would necessarily involve a variable
speed pump or a low-level constant rate and high-level variable speed tandem. Influent

" equalization and metered even feeding would allow the treatment units to approach steady-
" state conditions. This would negate the adverse effects of operator-related variability and

pump surging. This would also reduce the number of grab samples necessary to produce a
manual composite to four and possibly even as few as one. - - e

Ammonia

Treatment in-place does not involve the steam stripping of sour waters. However, Valero
introduces hydrogen peroxide into one of the in-plant sewers leading to treatment and into
the entire treated wastestream as a final treatment step to destroy phenols. Chemical oxid-
ation should not only destroy phenols but also oxidize ammonia. Whether Valero performs
as consistently as the model steam stripping units evaluated in originally setting the Federal
standard was not detefmined as part of this inspection. o S

Section 3

Dilution as a Substitute for Treatment

Categorical industrial users must comply with the prohibition against dilution of the

3.0

Federally-regulated wastestreams as a substitute for treatment. [40 CFR 403.6(d)]

| Summary

There is no evidence of “dilution as a substitute for treatment” since all wastewaters undergo
treatment for oil+grease and chemical oxidation prior to discharge to the sewers.

Requirements - None.

Recommendations - None.




Section 4

Compliance with Local Limits and National Prohibitions

"All non-domestic wastewater discharges to the sewers must comply with local limits and

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

the national prohibitions. [40 CFR 403.8(b) and 403.5]

Summary

Influent and treatment-related variabilities are a greater risk of causing violations of the iocal
limits because they are instantaneous maximums. - This means any sample including single
grab sampies from IWD-1 are comparable to the limits. As a result, the recommendations
that apply to Federal standards compliance also apply to local limit compliance. This
inspection did not include an evaluation of whether achievement of the national objectives in
40 CFR 403.2 has been demonstrated by consistent compliance at the Benicia wastewater
reclamation plant with its sludge and discharge limits. This inspection aiso did not include
an evaluation of the sample record at Valero for oil+grease, pH, closed-cup flashpoint,
phenols, sulfides, cyanide, or metals.

Requirements - None.
Recommendation - Treatment should be-prec:eded by influent equalizatio_n.

Recommendation - The final effluent discharge tank should be retrofitted to: (1) contin-
uously remove floating“ons and (2) continuously discharge.

pH

All wastewater discharges are treated for pH prior to discharge to the sewers and, as a
result, should consistently comply with the local limits for pH. The consistency of compli-
ance and the controllability of pH adjustment would increase with influent equalization.

Qi+Grease and
the National Prohibition Against Flammability

Valero is more susceptible to exceeding the instantaneous oli+grease local limit of 100 mg/!
than the Federal daily-maximum standard because the local limit at IWD-1 is comparable
against any sample including single grab samples. As a result, consistent compliance with
the local limit for oil+grease is more dependent on consistent and optimal oil removals
through steady-state treatment and discharge. In addition, the effluent discharge line is
properly outfitted with a lower explosivity limit meter and alarm.

Other Local Limits and
The National Prohibition Against Interference and Pass-Through

The treatment involves chemical oxidation for phenolics and sulfides. There is no treatment
for the removal of metals nor any evidence that metals removal is necessary to comply with
the local limits. .

9




Figure 1

Valero, Benicia Asp
Schematic of the Wa

halt Plant
stewater Collection and Treatment

Procegs Wastewater Scurces

< desalter scour waters
< distillation sour waters
<< pump seal water
e tank bottoms
e boller blowdown and softener brines
H202——> fume scrubber spent caustic >
Wastewater Drainage Sources
< process area run—off
——>1 10kgal (<— tank farm run-off
sSump r————ﬂskimwﬁ>wT12A
T <-NaOH oil.
over X—pump >t oil-water slop
flow ' > geparation >
100gpm—max
1 4
Ll<—— T12B <—bypass X reuse haz
holding-<-oily—floatﬁﬁ~vm1 valve— ’
inducegd air |<—polymer
13 - x— flotation. (<~ pre-set
H202—>| roxidation . weir—! |70gpm-max ' '
NaOH—>| 'pH adjust -
X—pump
|
11 1
e d L final
T11iB ' T1lAa F;; Iholding
: I tanks
<oee|
batch Wastewater Classification
IWD 1 process wastewaters Fed
storm water run-—off Fed
domestic sewage poiler blowdown Fad
i softener brines Fed
Benicia sewers domestic bil
Estimated Sewer Discharges (gpm) Federal! Non-Fed Dilution [. Total
IWD~1 Overall process wastewater <60 0 c <60




Table 1°

Clean Water Act Requirements - Valero, Benicia Asphalt Plant

Specific Numeric Limits Federal National Local
2 IWD-1 Standards Prohibitions Limits
{(mg/l} Daily-Max Instant-Max Instant-Max
0il+Grease-petroleum 100. - 100.
Ammonia 100. - -
Arsenic - - 0.5
Cadmium - - 0.1
Chromium-total - - 2.0
Copper - - 3.G
Cyanide-total - - c.3
Lead - = 1.0
Mercury - - 0.02
Nickel - ~ 1.0
Silver - - 0.30
Sulfides—-dissolved - - 0.1
Zinc - - 1.0
Phenclic Compounds - - 10.C
Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons - - 3.0
pH-minumum - 5.0 s.u. 6.0 s.u.
pH-maximum - - 9.0 s.u.
Temperature-max i - - 104°F
Closed Cup Flashpoirit - <140°F -
: ‘ .

Narrative Limits .
National Prohibitions against:

interference, sludge contamination, obstruction, toxic

Pass—through,

gases/fumes, fire/explosion hazard

» ‘Causing heat >104°F at WWTP

Table 2

Federal Categoricél Pretreatment Standards
Petroleum Refining - 40 CFR 419 Subpart & (Topping)

Federal Standards @ IWD-1

Daily-Max EPA Test Method Sample Method
Oil+Grease-petroleum (mg/l) 100. 1664 grab
Ammonia (mg/l) 100. 350.1-3 24-h composite




VALERO

BENICIA REFINERY + Valero Refining Company - California - 3400 £, Sscond Street « Benicia, CA 84510-1005 - Telephone (707) 745-7011

VIA EMAIL and CERTIFIED MAIL: 7008 1300 0002 3221 6878

Qctober 5, 2008

Comments to Tentative Order
Draft NPDES Permit
NPDES No. CARQ05550

Mr. Bruce Wolfe

Executive Officer

California Regional Water Quality Control Board
San Francisco Bay Region

1515 Clay St., Suite 1400

OCakland, California 94612

Altn: Mr. John Madigan, WRCE

Dear Mr. Wolfe:

On September 3, 2009, the Valero Refining Company — California Benicia Refinery
(Valero) received a copy of the Tentative Order (TO) renewing the facility's NPDES
permit. As part of the renewal process, the RWQCB must provide an opportunity for the
public to comment on the TO for 30 days. Valero is pleased to provide the attached
comments regarding the Benicia Refinery’s draft NPDES permit.

Please contact Mr. Marcus Cole at 707-745-7807 if you have any questions or require
additionat information regarding these comments to the Valero’s draft NPDES permit.

Sincerely,

Marg‘s J. Cole
~ Ep¥ironment Engineer

MJC:dh
Attachment



Valero Refining Company — Californiz
Benicia Refinery

Comments to Tentative Order No. R2-2009-xxxX
NPDES No. CAG005550

The following comments are provided to address issues that Valero has identified in the
Tentative Order (TO). The revisions requested range from those that are mostly non-
substantive/clarifying, to others that are more significant. Suggested revisions are
discussed in the order in which they appear in the TO.

SECTION 1 — REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT PERMIT EXCLUSIVE OF THE FACT
SHEET

Revision 1 - Table 2. Discharge Location, pg. 1

Comment. The “Effluent Description” for discharge point 003 includes references
to stormwater from the lower level tank farm. The permit application was submitted
in 2007 and at that time, the stormwater segregation project was under
development and E-003 was seen as a probable location for tank farm stormwater.
After completing the related engineering study, Valero has determined that E-003
will not receive segregated stormwater.

Request. Remove the reference fo the Lower Level Tank Farm from the 003
Effluent Descriptions. Revise the total acres to 18.6

Revision 2 - Il Findings, B. Facility Description, pg. 5-6

Comment. The last sentence of the second paragraph, “All process wastewater
and storm water from the refinery asphalt plant is discharged to the City of Benicia
sanitary sewer system...” is inaccurate. Stormwater from the asphalt plant is
discharged to the “Buffalo Wallow” through the permitted discharge 017 as
described in Table 2. Discharge Locations. Wastewater from the asphalt plant is
one of the influent sireams to the refinery wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).

For clarification and accuracy, some additional waste streams that were omitted
should be included, and the increase in throughput that may occur during the term
of this permit is not accurately represented.

Request. Modify the second paragraph of II.B. Facility Description as follows:

B. Facility Description. The Discharger owns and operates a petroleum
refinery that processes an average crude oil volume of approximately
135,000 barrels per day (bbls/d), producing hydrocarbon products,
byproducts, and intermediates. The average volume of crude oil processed s
expeeted-te may increase to up to 165,000 bbls/d during the term of this
Order, which would result in increased discharges of process wastewater.

1



Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant include
stripped sour water, cooling tower and boiler blowdown water, crude water
draw from on-site and off-site storage facilities, raw water treatment
backwash, desalter brine, tank water draws, ballast water, asphalt plant
wastewater, other miscellaneous process wastewater, storm water runoff
from process areas, extracted groundwater from on-site remediation
processes, and monitoring well purge water from off-site service stations

owned by the Discharger. All-process-wastewater-and-storm-water from-the-

When analysis of treated wastewater at the final pond indicates that it may
violate effluent limitations, discharge to Suisun Bay is halted and the
effluent is pumped to the crude field retention pond and/or the stormwater
retention ponds, which has have a combined capacity of 23 41 MG.
Effluent stored in the both retention ponds is are retumned to the
wastewater treatment plant for full or partial treatment or, if monitoring
indicates that effluent limits are met, is returned to the final pond for
discharge.

Revision 3 - 1i Findings, B. Facility Description, pg. 6
Comment. See Revision 1 comment,

Request, Remove 003 from the list of stormwater discharges mentioned in the
middle of the fourth paragraph on page 6.

Revision 4 -~ Section IV.2.a. Table 7. Effluent Limitation for Toxic Substances. pg.
13

Comment. The TO contains a new numeric ammonia limit; the previous permit had a
production-based load limit only. Reasonable Potential (RP) for ammonia was triggered
by a single elevated result of 19 mg/L ammonia (as N} in a data set where n=76 and the
second highest value was 0.75 mg/L. The maximum effluent concentration (MEC) value
of 19 mg/L should not have been included in the RP analysis (RPA) because it is a
distant statistical outlier within the dataset. The State Implementation Policy (SIP),
section 1.2, authorizes the RWQCB to exclude inappropriate data from the RPA,
including a sample which is not representative of effluent quality.

Valero performed a detailed review of the facility's ammonia data for the 5-year period of
2004 — 2008. A summary of the data is in Table 1 below.



Table 1. Ammonia Data Including (MEC=19mg/L} and Excluding (MEC=0.75
mg/L} the 19 mg/L MEC. Values in my/L.

MEC =16 mg/L. U MECE=075mall
0.04 0.04
19 0.75
0.28 0.13
1a i 2.16964112 0.14706215
™ s 3 StD 6.9 0.57

T 8060 = Slandars Devaton—

if a data point in a data set is significantly above the 99.87 percentile (the mean
plus 3 standard deviations), it may be considered an unrepresentative sample or
“outlier”, i.e. so different from the rest of the dataset that it should not be used in
statistical analysis of that dataset. The 19 mg/l. MEC is clearly an outlying result
that should not be used in the statistical analysis, 2.g. the RPA. An ammonia limit is
not appropriate for the following reasons:

1. The MEC of 19 mg/L is clearly an outlier that should not be included in
the RPA; within the 5-year dataset, all other results are <0.75 mg/L.

2. The MEC of 19 mg/L is the mean plus about 8.5 StDev - this
analytical resuit is significantly different from the rest of the dataset.

3. The consistent ammonia removal performance at the refinery WWTP
is clearly supported by the dataset. The number of samples is high (n=75
when the outlier 19 mg/l. result is excluded) and therefore confidence in the
data and WWTP performance is high; all other analytical results are <0.75
mg/L, well below the water quality criterion (WQC) of 1.201 mg/L.

4, When the MEC is < WQC, RPA is not triggered and a numeric limit is
not warranted.

Reguest. Valero requests that the numeric limit for ammonia be removed on the
basis of the discussion above.

Revision 5 — Section IV.A.3 Interim Limit for Dioxin-TEQ, pg. 14

Comment. Valero is currently in compliance with the new final limit for Dioxin-TEQ
{dioxin). With the exception of a few sampling results associated with a rare extreme
storm event described below, results are either non-detect, or detected at 1 {o 2 orders
of magnitude below the final limit. As noted above, SiP section 1.2 authorizes the
RWQCB to exclude a sample which is not representative of effluent quality, as
inappropriate for SIP purposes.

in January 2006, a very large storm event occurred that sent large volumes of
non-refinery-refated stormwater through the WWTP. This occurrence was caused
by a loss of level control at the City of Benicia’s L.ake Herman dam (water
discharging out of the dam discharge and over spillway), above-average perigean
high tides, and several days of rainfall, which resulted in the Bay overflowing

3




protective levess and fooding out the WWTP. Similar flcoding impacts occurred
throughout the ¢ 7ea due to this storm event. Handling this combination of
stormwater and oy water resulted in some elevated dioxin values, and the use of
these vaives in the RPA resulted in both RP for dioxin and infeasibility o comply
with the final limit for dioxin. In reality, these results do not represent refinery
operations, WWTP operations, or WWTP reasonable upset conditions. The
RWQCB concurred with this view during negations to settle the related
enforcement action. Valero believes it is appropriate to consider the effect of the
storm-related resuiis on the analysis, and with the exception of the exireme
conditions surrcunding the storm conditions discussed, the refinery final discharge
is consistently below the final limit for dioxin, demonstrating the feasibility of
compliance. If dala associated with this single unrepresentative storm event are
excluded, the interim limit and associated compliance schedule (see below) are
not necessary.

Reguest. Delete the section “IV.A.3 Interim Limit for Dioxin-TEQ” as the interim
limit is not hecassary.

Revision 6 - Section IV.A.4 Mass Emission Limitation for Selenium, pg. 14

Comment. The TO contains a mass limit for selenium that represents a reduction
of 27% from the limitation in the previous permit. This load limit reduction is not
necessary based on the facility's WWTP performance.

WWTP performance with regard to the control of selenium discharge has been
exemplary, with cnly a single exceedance in the past 10 years. WWTP
performance, i.e. selenium load contribution, is maintained by controlling to the
daily concentration limit of 50 ppb, and the new limit requires controlling to 43 ppb
(AMEL). The addition of this new, lower monthly average limit effectively requires
us to operate below the daily concentration limit and provides assurance that
current performance will be maintained. A mass load reduction is not necessary in
addition to the lower concentration limit. Upon completion and after approval of the
selenium TMDL, Valero will receive effluent limits based on the final waste load
allocation established by the TMDL. We believe that any revisions to the refinery’s
current mass limit {13.3 kg/month} are not warranted at this time.

Request. Relain the mass emission for selenium from previous permit. Delete the
effluent limitation of 8.6 kg/month from Table 10 on page 14, and replace with the
previous permit limitation of 13.3 kg/month.

Comment. The mass limit in Table 10 is expressed as kg/month, but as stated in
the Fact Sheet, should be expressed as kg/month caiculated as a rolling annual
average. The limit in the table should be footnoted to clarify that the kg/month limit
is exprfassed as a rolling annual average and calculated as described in the Fact
Sheet.”



Request. Footnote the mass limitation as foflows:

Table 10. Selenium Mass Emission Limitation
Poliutant Units® Effiuent Limitation

Selenium kg/month 133

i- Fxpressed 25 2 Roling Annual Average — see the Faet Sheet section VO S

Revision 7 — Section IV.B.2 Stormwater Effluent Limitations, pg. 16

Comment. This section contains requirements for additional stormwater monitoring
based on exceeding a trigger.

Unlike effluent from a treatment system, stormwater discharges occur randomiy
and are intermittent, and pollutant concentrations can vary dramatically over time.
Because of this situation, in order to comply with a monthly average concentration
limit intended for a consistent treated effluent flow, sampling will need to occur
throughout a storm event {o ensure analytical results are representative. If
triggered, the additional sampling effectively modifies the self-monitoring program
requirement for quarterly sampling, to instead demand sampling throughout the
duration of the storm event and/or several storm events in a given 30-day period,
to generate a monthly average result.

It is not clear, nor is it defined in the permit, how fo collect samples representative
of the flow. Currently, Attachment E requires sampling to occur within the first half
hour of a storm event, or the “first flush”. To the degree that this timeframe can
reasonably be determined, analytical results could vary widely, with samples
collected within +/- one-half hour of each other being the difference between
compliance and non-compliance. A permitee cannot be both held to collecting one
sample at a specific time, while also demanding a 30-day average for compliance;
by definition a 30-day average caiculation presumes multiple samples over time in
order to calcuiate an average. These two requirements conflict with each other
and need clarification.

A second impact of this combination of requirements is that a “first fiush,” i.e. worst
case, sample would be treated as if it were representative of the 30-day period;
this is clearly not representative of runoff from an entire storm event or a series of
events occurring over a 30-day period, and would put the refinery at risk of non-
compliance purely as an artifact of the sampling method and not an actual
environmental impact. This lack of representativeness is particularly extreme
considering a storm event couid last several days.

Request. Delete section IV.B.2 and Table 12, the trigger-based requirement for
supplemental limitations on stormwater. The method for determining compliance is
unidentified. Alternatively, clarifying language is needed acknowledging that
muitiple samples are necessary to provide resufts representative of a 30-day
average, and that a minimum of one sample is needed beginning within 30
minutes of flow.



Revision 8 — Section VI.C.2.d, Table 13 Selenium Characterization Study, pp.
19 - 20:

Comment. Section VI.C.2.d requires a study to be performed to characlerize
selenium in receiving waters and treated effluent. While pedorming and/or
participating in such a study may be meaningful, Valero does not believe that an
NPDES permit is the correct vehicle for this requirement and that the Water Code
Section 13267 process is more appropriate.

Studies such as this selenium characterization effort are affected by numerous
factors outside of the permitee’s control. These have the potential to cause
delay, and therefore flexibility is imporiant when establishing schedules for
implementation and completion of these types of scientific studies. Delays could
result from weather impacts to vessels performing sampling, QA/QC issues with
samples or sample results, analytical turnaround times, third party reports and
summaries, or other unforeseen issues. Using the NPDES permit as a vehicle for
implementing this study means that any necessary modifications to the
prescribed schedule would require re-opening the permit. This inflexibility could
put Valero at risk of non-compliance for events and issues beyond our control.
We do not believe staff included the study requirement in the permit so as to put
Valero at risk of non-compliance, but rather to require the study to be performed.
Use of the section 13267 process to require Valero's participation in the study
would give the staff the discretion to modify the schedule to accommodate any
delays, while still ensuring the study is conducted and is completed in a timely
manner.

Request. Delefe section VI.C.2.d and the associated Table 13 Selenium
Characterization Study and use the Waler Code Section 13267 process fo
require the study o be conducted. Alternalively, include language following any
compliance dates with “or at the discretion of the Executive Officer’, or similar
fanguage, to allow the flexibility to adapt fo delays that are unanticipated and/or
not under the permitee’s control. Or, modify the section to read as follows:

d. Effluent and Receiving Water Selenium Characterization Study —
13267 Data Request

Within XX months of the adoption of this Order, Fthe Discharger shall be_
issued a request for a technical report under California Water Code section
13267, requiring it to comply with the following tasks and schedule to
characterize (1) the concentrations and speciation of selenium in effluent
and receiving water, (2) the variability of selenium 1n the discharge, (3) the
potential for uptake and conversion of selenium to more bioavailable
forms, (4) mixing and dilution in the receiving waters, and (5) the ability
to comply with any more-stringent selenium criteria that may become
effective in the foreseeable future. At its option, the Discharger may
complete, or cause to be completed, all or some of the required tasks
collaboratively with other dischargers.




Revision 9 — Section V1.C.2.e, Additional Stormwater Monitoring, pg.21
Comment, The comment in Revision 1 above applies here.
Request. Remove references fo “003” from the text in this section.

Revision 10 — Section VI.C.4.c, Production Increase and Antidegradation Report,
pyg. 24

Comment. The section discusses the conditions required to ensure
antidegradation policies are met regarding the potential future increases in
production. A throughput increase up to 165,000 barrels per day {bbls/d) in stated
to be the future throughput level. In reality, the throughput increase will likely
occur incrementally and may never reach the 165,000 bbls/d rate and the permit
language should reflect this.

Request. Modify the language in section VI.C.4.c as follows:

The Discharger shall also provide documentation to the Executive Officer
when-throughputinereases for incremental increases in throughput, up to
165,000 bbls/d. Only following written notice from the Executive Officer
shall the effluent limitations in Table 6b based on a throughput of 165,000
bbls/d become effective. The Executive Officer shall provide such notice
if the documentation submitted demonstrates that no water quality
degradation would occur.

Revision 11 — Section VI.C.4.e, Stormwater TSS Report, pg. 25

Comment. This section requires a TSS project separate from the requirements in
the stormwater poliution prevention plan (SWPPP). The aclivities described
within the section are already required by the SWPPP and are therefore
redundant.

Due to elevated TSS at some of the outfalls, Valero conducted an extensive
project to modify the best management practices (BMPs) at 8 locations. A field
investigation of all outfalls was completed, and additional and/or revised BMPs
were identified for locations needing improvement. To secure a benefit during the
2009 - 2010 rainy season, this project is targeted for completion before October
31, 2009 The project and modified BMPs will be described in the 2009 annual
SWPPP update, and the effectiveness of the modifications will be apparent both
in real-time through monthly water report submittals in the electronic reporting
system (ERS), and as summarized in the 2010 annual SWPPP update next year.
This project was designed several months ago and implemented without
RWQCB intervention and before Valero was even aware that the RWQCB was
considering a permit requirement regarding stormwater TSS. In consideration of
this comment and request, the RWQCB will have in hand the project description
and its implementation within the 2009 Annual SWPPP Update, due on October
1, 2008. Valero believes the RWQCB will find that this project precisely meets the

7



requirements of section VI.C.4.e Storm Water 733 Report, making this permit
condition unnecessary.

Request. Delefe Section VI.C.4de Storm Water TSS Report and Best
Management Fractices.,

Revision 12 — Section VL.C 4.1, Dioxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule, pg. 25

Comment. See the Revision 5 comments. I this single unrepresentative storm
event is excluded, Valero is in compliance with the final limit for Dioxin-TEQ, If the
interim fimit for dioxin is deleted for the reasons discussed above, a, compliance
schedule is not necessary.

Request. If the interim limit for dioxin is delsated, deiete Section VI.C.4.f. Dioxin-
TEQ Compliance Schedule.

Revision 13 - Attachment E. IV.B. Storm Water Monitoring, pp. E-5 - E-6

Comment 1. See Revision 1 Comment. Referances to 003 should be removed
from footnote [4] since it will not be receiving tank farm stormwater.

Reguest, Delefe references to 003 in footnote [4]

Comment 2. See Revision 8 Comments section regarding the application of
effluent limits to stormwater.

Request. Delete footnote [3], and the monitoring requirements it references in
Table E.4 Storm Water Monitoring

Comment 3. Footnote [2] of this section contains the requirement for stormwater
sampling to occur within the first 30 minutes of a storm event. At many of Valero’s
permitted outfalls flow does not exist within 30 minutes of a storm event,
depending on storm intensity. This phenomenon is an artifact of the location of
the discharge relative to the drainage area, the saturation state of drainage-area
soil, and storm intensity; the delay can be from 1-3 hours, and for very low
intensity storms, flow may occur at some sites but not others. The language must
acknowledge and/or address several issues: 1.) What determines the beginning
of a storm event, starting the 30 minute clock, 2.) What if flow does not
materialize at an outfall for several hours after a storm event begins — a common
occurrence, and 3.} What if flow does not materialize at all locations during a
storm event where some locations were sampled (e.g. are these missed
samples)?

Reguest. Change the requiremert in footnote [2] fo require samples to be
collected “within the first 30 minutes of significant flow, if flow occurs”

Comment 4, Tabie E.4 of this section requires monitoring of Priority Pollutants.
The justification for this requirement, which is in section VI.B on page F-41 of the
Fact Sheet, is that it is necessary to betier characterize the stormwater at
locations receiving tank farm stormwater that previously was directed to the
WWTP. Valero believes that further characterization is unnecessary and that

8



priority pollutant monitoring «wi!! not provide a better characterization of the
discharge.

Additional characterization of tank farm stormwater (TFSW) is unnecessary for
several reasons. Despite the siorage of hydrocarbon in tankage, TFSW is
expected to be minimally impacied by stormwater in an industrial facility because
of the very limited amount of activity within the fire wall (berms) where
stormwater collects. This is supported by the fact that there are no requirements
to freat TFSW in general and most facilities discharge TFSW without freatment.
Activities in these areas, such as tank gauging or well monitoring, typically
include only foot traffic or an occasional vehicle, unfike most surface stormwater
originating on roadways and parking areas that may have substantial activity.
Because of how it is managed, TFSW remains static for a period of time prior {o
discharge, providing residence time for any entrained solids to settle. Unlike most
typical, uncontrolled surface runcff (stormwater) discharges at NPDES permitted
facilities, TFSW at Valero is monitored prior io release and can be held for full
WWTP treatment, further minimizing the opportunity for contaminated stormwater
discharge. In summary, TFSW can reasonably be expected to be a “clean”
stormwater and additional monitoring is not needed.

Monitoring of Priority Poilutants will not result in a befter characterization of
TFSW, chiefly because there is a lack of reference for comparison of any
analytical results generated. Because of the complicated local, regional, and
global nature of pollutant loads in stormwater, it is not clear to Valero how useful
this monitoring will be for characterizing these sites, and how the RWQCB would
interpret, use, or draw any conclusions from these analytical results. There does
not appear to be a basis for concerns that TFSW quality would differ significantly
from other stormwater discharges on site.

Request. Delete the requirement for Priority Pollutant monitoring from Table E.4
Storm Water Monitoring.

SECTION 2 — REVISIONS TO THE FACT SHEET
Revision 1a — Section #L.A Facility Description, pg. F-4

Comment. The last sentence of the second paragraph, “All process wastewater
and storm water from the refinery asphalt plant is discharged to the City of Benicia
sanitary sewer system...” is inaccurate. Stormwater from the asphalt plant is
discharged to the “Buffalo Waliow” through the permitted discharge 017 as
described in Table 2. Discharge Locations. Wastewater from the asphalt plant is
one of the influent streams to the refinery wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).

Request. Modify the last sentence of the second paragraph of /.B. Facility
Description as follows:

Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant include stripped
sour water, coohing tower and boiler blowdown water, crude water draw from on-
site and off-site storage facilities. raw water treatment backwash, asphalt plant
wastewater, storm water runoff from process areas, extracted groundwater from
on-site remediation processes, and monitoring weil purge water from off-site

9



service stations owned by the Discharger. Three separate wastewater streams
enter the plant; sour water, combined process water and storm water, and
benzene-containing oily water. After initial treatment, process water, storm
water, and benzene-containing 0123 w ater are combined into an oil y wastewater

Revision 2a — Section IL.A Facility Description, pg. F-7
Comment. The last paragraph of the section contains references to discharge
003. This should be removed as they are not going to receive tank farm
stormwater.
Request. Delete references to discharge 003 in the last paragraph of the section.
Revision 3a — Section I1.B Facility Description, pg. F-7

Comment. In Table F-2 of this section, the Effluent Description for 003 needs to
be modified because 003 will not be receiving tank farm stormwater.

Request. Delete from the Effluent Description for 003 “and Lower Level Tank
Farm (67 acres)”.

Revision 4a — Section II.C Facility Description, pg. F~12
Comment. The last two sentences of the section refer to the requirement for a
stormwater TSS control plan. Revision 10 in Section 1 of this submittal details the
efforts currently being made to our BMPs to control stormwater TSS. As state in
that revision request, it is likely that this requirement has already been met.
Request. Delefe the last two sentences of Section II.C. Facility Description.
Replace with “Best Management Practices have been identified and changes in
the field designed to address elevated TSS have been implemented in a project
with an expected complefion date of September 30, 2009. The effectiveness of
this effort wifl be documented in the Annual SWPPP Updates.”

Revision 5a — Section IL.E Facility Description, pg. F-13

Comment. This section needs to be revised because 003 will not be receiving
tank farm stormwater.

Request. Delete the reference to 003 in this section.
Revision 6a — Section IV.C.3.e RPA Determination, pp. F-22 - F24

Comment. Refer to Revision 4 in Section 1 of this submittal for details regarding
the RPA for ammonia.

10



Reguest. Remove “and ammonia” from the last sentence of the first paragraph of
the section. In Table F-9, replace the MEC for ammonia of 18,000 with 750, and
replace the RPA Result for ammonia “Yes” with “No”.

Revision 7a — Section IV.C .4.b (1) Diiution Credit, pg. F-25

Comment. The last line of this section states that there are factors that suggest
insufficient assimilative capacily for the pollutants included in the section,
including selenium. This statement is overbroad, particularly with respect to
selenium. Based on the very large body of scientific work that has been
completed by TetraTech in connection with the Selenium TMDL for North San
Francisco Bay, there is substantial evidence to support a finding that the Bay has
some assimilative capacity for selenium discharges from Bay area refineries,
including the Valero refinery. EPA has also indicated that sufficient data now
exist to support RWQCB's granting of 10:1 dilution for purposes of calculating
final effluent limits for selenium. In addition, FlowScience has conducted an
independent evaluation of assimilative capacity for refinery selenium discharges
that concludes very significant assimilative capacity exists based on the large
tidal exchange of water in the Bay and other factors. A copy of Flow Science’s
Power Point presentation on assimilative capacity has been provided to RWQCB
staff and is in the record for this permit.

Request. Modify the last sentence of the section fo read as follows:

(1) Bioaccumulative Pollutants: For certain bioaccumulative pollutants,
dilution credit is significantly restricted or denied. This determination
is based on available data on concentrations of these pollutants in
aquatic organisms, sediment, and the water column. Selenium, PCBs
dioxin and furan compounds, dioxin-like PCBs, nickel, chlordane,
dieldrin, and 4,4'-DDT appear on the CWA section 303(d) List for
Suisun Bay because they impair Suisun Bay’s beneficial uses. The
following factors suggest insufficient assimilative capacity in San
Francisco Bay for these pollutants, with the exception of selenium, as
described, for which limited assimilative capacity has been determined
to exist.

Revision 8a — Section IV.C.4.c (2) Selenium, p. F-29

Comment. Part {¢} of this section changes the concentration limits determined by
the SIP procedure, apparently as a means to maintain current performance. This
madification is not necessary to maintain current performance because the new
AMEL of 43 yg/L, in combination with an MDEL of 60 ug/L, are already more
stringent than the previous permit limitation. The new AMEL requires the refinery
to control to 43 wg/L selenium, which assures that, at a minimum, current
performance is maintained. To illustrate this, a selenium result of 46 g/l would
not have been an immediate compliance risk under the current permit's MDEL of
50 pg/L (there is no AMEL in the current permit). However, under the new
linits, the refinery must take action to ensure compliance with the 43 ug/l

11



monthly aversge. Or, with the current permit imit of 50 g/l the refinery could
have had a monthly average concentration of 49 pg/L selenium and still be in
compiiance. Undar the new permit; that would now be in viclation of the more
stringent 43 zo/L selenium AMEL contained in the TO. Because the refinery
WWTP must control to achieve the AMEL, the MDEL deces not impact
performance and should not be modified from the limits as determined by the SIP
procedure.

The AMEL of 43 ug/L. and MDEL of 60 ug/L are consistent with and supported
by EPA's January 2008 policy on pre-TMDL limits. Since the AMEL of 43 pg/l
and MDEL of 60 ug/l. are more siringent than the previous permit limitation,
adjusting the MDEL to 50 ug/L is not required by anti-backsliding. In any
case, anti-backsliding does not apply when the limits in the prior and renewed
permit are not “comparable.” The Fact Sheet, p. F-29, states that for selenium:
“The previous permit contained no AMEL, but did require an interim MDEL of
50 ug/L.” As the SWRCB has found, an interim limit is not “comparable” to a
final limit for backsliding comparison purposes. SWRCR Order WQ 2001-08,
pp. 50-52; upheld by Communities for a Better Environment v. State Water
Resources Control Board, 132 Cal. App. 4™ 1313, 1330-1331 (2005). Moreover,
since the new permit contains both an AMEL and MDEL, the prior permit limit
consisting only of an MDEL again is not “comparable” for backsliding
comparison purposes. As noted above, under the new permit the refinery
cannot ensure compliance simply by meeting the MDEL; it must also control
to achieve the AMEL.

Even if the two non-comparable MDELs are inappropriately compared, in
isolation from the new AMEL, the Clean Water Act authorizes backsliding where
new information (other than revised regulations, guidance, or test methods)
justifies relaxation of water quality-based effluent limitations, as explained in
EPA's 1991 Technical Support Document (TSD), pp. 113-114; see also EPA
NPDES Permit Writers’ Manual, pp. 178-180. In this case, there is new evidence
generated by the on-going selenium TMDL effort, as discussed above, supporting
the assimilative capacity potential for selenium. Had this information been known
at the time the prior permit was issued, a less stringent MDEL (60 ug/L. vs. 50
ug/L} would have been justified then, as it is now. The TSD also notes that the
“new information” exception applies only where the revised limitations will not
result in a violation of water quality standards and will result in a net reduction in
pollutant loading. Again, the combination of a 60 ug/l. MDEL and the new 43
Hg/L AMEL satisfies these conditions on the anti-backsliding exception.

Request. Delete the fast sentence of IV.C.4.c (2)(c). Replace with “The more
stringent AMEL of 43 pg/L ensures current performance is maintained and
therefore, the WQBELS in this Order are an AMEL of 43 ug/L and an MDEL of 60
ug A"

Revision 9a — Section IV.C.4.c (5) Dioxin-TEQ, pp. F-31 - F-32

Comment. Please review the comment section of Revision 5 in Section 1 of this
submittal. Valero believes it is technically justified and sound science to exclude

12



from the RPA, the dioxin analytical results that were gizvaizd due o the storm
avant, as discussed in the referenced comment.

When the RPA is performed without the stormwaier/Bay waier results, there is no
R for dioxin by Trigger 1. However, a dioxin limit is st necessary because the
RP is triggered due to the highest background concertration > water quality
criteria (Trigger 2). Since compliance with the final it determined by the
RWQCB is feasible, lhere is no need for an interim limii and compliance
schedule.

Reguest. In part (b) of the section, delete the third senifence and replace with
“This Order establishes an effluent limitation for dioxin-TEC hecause the highest
background concenfration > the most stringent waler quality criterion,
demonslrating Reasonable Potential by Trigger 2.7 In part /d) of the section,
modify as needed to reflect a MEC of 0.247 x 107 ug/L. ' and indicate that
compliance is feasible.

Revision 10a — Section IV.C.4.¢ (6) Ammonia, pp. F-32 — F-34

Comment. Please refer fo the commenis in Revisicn 4, Section 1 of this
submiftal. RP for ammonia was friggered by a MEC value that was a distant
outlier within the data set used in the RPA and should not have been included in
the analysis. Valero believes that it is technically justified and supported by sound
science to remove the numeric limits on ammonia.

Request. Delete Section IV.C.4.c (6) Ammonia.
Revision 11a — Section IV.C.4.d Table F-10, pg. F-35

Comment. Table F-10 has a Final Limit - MDEL of 50 ug/l., where as the RPA
generated a WQBEL MDEL of 60 ug/L.

Reguest. insert “60” into the Table F-10 in the cell designated Final limit — MDEL
for selenium.

Revision 12a — Section IV.C.5 Selenium Mass Emission Limitation, pg. F-36

Comment. This section provides for a reduction in the mass emission limitation
for selenium and sets forth a purported basis for that reduction. As discussed in
previous comments within this submittal, Valero contends that a reducticn in load
fimit is not necessary to ensure current performance is maintained because in
practice, compliance with both the lcad and concentration limits is ultimately
driven by the concentration limit, and the proposed AMEL is more stringent than
the previous permit limit. In addition, an appropriate load limit will uitimately be
determined once the selenium TMDL has been completed. At this time, there is
no basis for requiring a reduction in the mass limit.

The dioxin MEC above non-detect during the five-year period between 2004 - 2008

13



Request. Delete the second and third paragraphs of the section. Replace with
“This Order retains the previous permit's selenium mass-loading limit of 0.96
pounds per day, or 13.3 kg/mo, as a running annual average. This limif was
estabiished by Regional Water Board Order 91-026, and was based on an
interim daily maximum concentration limit of 50 ug/l. and the discharger’s
average flow rate. Anti-backsliding requirerments are satisfied because the mass-
loading limit in this Order is not less stringent than the previous mass-loading
fimit.”

Revision 13a ~ Section IV.D.4 Interim Effluent Limitation for Dioxin-TEQ, pg. F-39

Comment. As discussed in other revisions within this submittal, Valero is currently
in compliance with the final limit for dioxin-TEQ, and therefore an interim limit and
related compliance schedule in neither necessary nor required.

Request. Delete section IV.D.4.
Revision 14a — Section VI.B Storm Water Discharge Points, pg. F-41

Comment. The third bullet of this section discusses the requirement for Priority
Pollutant monitoring at stormwater sites receiving TFSW. As discussed in
previous comments included in this submittal, Valero believes that further
characterization is unnecessary and that priority pollutant monitoring will not
provide a better characterization of the discharge.

Request. Delete the third bullet of the section.

Comment. The forth bullet of the section includes effluent limitations that become
effective in accordance with section IV.C.2 of the TO. As discussed in previous
comments included in this submittal, Valero believes the application of these
effluent limitations to stormwater discharges is not appropriate.

Request. Delete the fourth bullet of the section.

Revision 15a — Section VI.C.2.d Receiving Waters and Selenium Characterization
Study, pg. F-43

Commenis. As discussed in Section 1, Revision 8 of this submittal, a study of this
type is best managed through the CWC 13267 process, and not within the
NPDES permit. Valero believes the discussion and justification for the study can
remain in the section; the requirement itself should be removed, and instead
insert language stating that the study will be required and implemented through
the CWC 13267 process.

Request. Modify the section as follows:
d. Receiving Waters and Effluent Selenium Characterization Study, Fhis-

Order-requires a A study to characterize current refinery discharges of
selenium, to ensure that recetving water objectives are met, and to confirm

14



that dilution credits for selenium are 13 appropriate. Arecerdinely; Regional
Water Board staff may use the relaied data to evaluate dilution credits,
characterize bioaccumulation potential and ecological nsk, and to evaluate
the guality of the receiving water with respect to selenium. The data also
may be used to determine if excecdance frequency is correlated with
seasonal or other environmental variations. If monitoring data show that
selenium WQOs are exceeded in the receiving water, the permit may be
reopencd to include revised numeric efiluent limits for selenium. As-
indicated-in-this Order+This requirement may be met by participating in a
collaborative study. Thets requirements of this provision are thus
reasonable and warranted, and are authorized by CWC 13267. The
requirements for this study will be implemented through a CWC 13267
data request within XX months of the adoption of this Order.

Revision 16a — Section VII.C.2.e Additional Storm Water Monitoring, pg. F-43

Comment. This section needs to be revised because 003 will not be receiving
tank farm stormwater.

Request. Delete the reference to 003 in this section.

Revision 17a — Section VII.C.4.e Storm Water TSS Report and Best Management
Practices, pg. F-44

Comment. As discussed in Section 1, Revision 10 of this submittal, a project to
address TSS has been identified and implemented, making the requirements of
this section redundant.

Reguest. Delete section VIi.C.4.e.

Revision 18a - Section VIL.C.4.f Dicxin-TEQ Compliance Schedule, pg. F-44
Comment. As discussed in Section 1, Revisions 5 and 11, Valero is currently in
compliance with the final limit for dioxin-TEQ. A compliance schedule is
unnecessary and not required.

Request. Delete section VII.C.4.1.

15



WSPA

Wnntern Statms Patrateurm Assaciation

Western States Petroleum Association
Credible Solutions e Responsive Service e Since 1907

Kevin Buchan
Senior Coordinator, Bay Area and State Water Issues

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

October 5, 2009

Chair Muller, and Members of the Board

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board
1515 Clay Street, 14" Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

RE: Comments on the Tentative Order to Renew the Valero Benicia Refinery NPDES Permit

Chair Muller, and Members of the Board,

The Western States Petroleum Association (WSPA) appreciates the opportunity to submit
comments to the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) on
the tentative order for the Valero Benicia refinery NPDES permit renewal. WSPA is a trade
association that represents companies engaged in the exploration, production, transportation,
refining and marketing of crude oil, natural gas and refined petroleum products across the
western United States.

Dilution Credit for Selenium is Warranted

WSPA supports staff’'s approach incorporating dilution in the calculation of selenium limits in the
tentative order (T.0O.). The State Water Resources Control Board's State Implementation Plan
(SIP), Section 1.4.2.2.B, requires the Regional Board to consider the presence of
bioaccumulative chemicals, such as selenium, in determining whether to allow mixing zones
and dilution credits. This provision does not prohibit the use of dilution for bioaccumulative
chemicals, but does require the Regional Board to determine whether denying or restricting
dilution credits is necessary to protect water quality. In this case, the information and analysis
that has been prepared for the selenium TMDL currently under development for North San
Francisco Bay provides the appropriate support for finding that a dilution credit is appropriate for
selenium. Based on the very large body of scientific work that has been completed by Tetra
Tech in connection with the selenium TMDL, there is substantial evidence to support a finding
that the Bay has some assimilative capacity for selenium discharges from Bay Area refineries,
including the Valero refinery.

1415 “L" Street, Suite 600, Sacramento, California 95814
(916) 498-7755 o FAX: (916) 444-5745 e Kevin@wspa.org e WwWw.wspa.org



In addition, FlowScience has conducted an independent evaluation of assimilative capacity for
refinery selenium discharges that concludes very significant assimilative capacity exists, based
on the large tidal exchange of water in the Bay and other factors. Water column concentrations
for the Bay waters are near 0.2 part per billion (ppb), well below the water quality criterion of 5
ppb. Tidal inflows through the Golden Gate carry nearly 30,000 kg/yr into the Bay and dwarf
refinery discharges in aggregate, yet the water column remains below the criterion. Flow
Science’s Power Point presentation on assimilative capacity (Attachment A) has been provided
previously to Regional Board staff. Ultimately, the science supporting the final TMDL may well
support dilution credits beyond those recognized in the Valero permit.

The T.0. Fact Sheet identifies data from the 1980’s, reported in studies by the California
Department of Fish and Game, that found high levels of selenium in duck tissue, but does not
point out that those levels have dropped significantly since then, based on data generated as
part of the Regional Monitoring Plan for the Bay. Our understanding is that staff is reviewing
this issue with Fish and Game as part of the TMDL effort.

In their January 2008 letter to the Regional Board, USEPA provided guidance on the use of
information developed as part of the TMDL process, prior to adoption of the TMDL. USEPA’s
letter (Attachment B) states that the Regional Board may consider all appropriate technical
information, including information developed through the TMDL process, when establishing
final water quality-based effluent limits (WQBELS) in NPDES permits prior to completion or
formal adoption of the TMDL. These WQBELSs are referred to as “pre-TMDL” limits.
Specifically, USEPA concluded that the Clean Water Act allows an NPDES permit writer to use
technical data, scientific information and water quality-related analyses — including
demonstrations of assimilative capacity — developed during the TMDL process in advance of the
final adoption and approval of the TMDL. We believe that sufficient data now exist to support
the Regional Board’s granting of 10:1 dilution in this case for purposes of calculating final
effluent limits for selenium.

Accordingly, WSPA supports the incorporation of dilution for selenium in the T.O.

Reduction from SIP-Based Limits

The Fact Sheet states that a calculated a maximum daily effluent limit (MDEL) of 60 parts per
billion (ppb) was determined, then reduced to a concentration to 50 ppb (page F-29). The Fact
Sheet states that the previous permit required a MDEL of 50 ppb which is why the reduction
was incorporated. However, we have reviewed Valero’s comments to the Regional Board and
agree that the reduction to 50 ppb is not necessary based on anti-backsliding considerations.
Among other exemptions, the Clean Water Act expressly authorizes backsliding based on new
information. 40 CFR 8§ 122.44(]). In this case, new information regarding the nature of selenium
discharges from refineries and assimilative capacity has been generated by the TMDL
development effort, as discussed above. Had this information been known when the prior
permit was issued, a less stringent MDEL would have been justified, as it is now.

Accordingly, we believe the Regional Board has the authority to include the SIP-derived MDEL
of 60 ppb in the Valero permit, and request it be reinstated.

1415 “L" Street, Suite 600, Sacramento, California 95814
(916) 498-7755 o FAX: (916) 444-5745 e Kevin@wspa.org e WwWw.wspa.org



Reduction from Current Mass Limit

The T.0. mandates a nearly 27 percent reduction in the mass limit for selenium discharged by
the refinery. This reduction places a further burden on the Valero facility where its selenium
control performance has been noteworthy over the last 10 years. Because an appropriate
waste load allocation will be determined by the pending selenium TMDL, modification to the
current mass limit is not warranted at this time and the limit should be kept at 13.3 kilograms per
month (kg/month).

WSPA believes that the previous mass limitation of 13.3 kg/month should be retained in the
permit.

Further Selenium Studies

Studies of this type involve numerous factors outside the control of the facility that may warrant
schedule changes or study requirements as deemed by staff. Factors would include weather
that could impact sampling efforts, QA/QC issues with samples or sample results, analytical
turnaround times, third party reports and summaries, and/or other unforeseen issues. Using the
NPDES permit as a vehicle for implementing this study would require Board adoption of any
changes deemed necessary. Use of the California Water Code Section 13267 (CWC 13267)
process, however, would provide staff with the discretion to modify requirements and/or the
schedule to accommodate unforeseen needs.

If staff wish to issue CWC 13267 requests to the remaining four Bay Area refineries for a
coordinated WSPA study effort, WSPA would support this type of collective activity. Success
with using CWC 13267 requests was demonstrated in the mercury air deposition study
facilitated by WSPA.

WSPA recommends moving requirements for additional selenium studies out of the T.0O. and
into a CWC 13267 request.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the T.O. Thank you.

Sincerely,

%lﬂ:vv gu&bvx_,

Enclosures Attachment A: FlowScience Power Point presentation
Attachment B: January 2008 letter from USEPA

1415 “L" Street, Suite 600, Sacramento, California 95814
(916) 498-7755 o FAX: (916) 444-5745 e Kevin@wspa.org e WwWw.wspa.org



Analysis of Assimilative Capacity
of North San Francisco Bay for
Discharges of Selenium from
WSPA Member Facilities

Summary of Work to Date
Flow Science Incorporated
June 9, 2009



Project Approach

Review of regulatory requirements
Define assimilative capacity

Calculation of far-field dilution for refinery
discharges

Review of Tetra Tech modeling

Recommendations for establishing pre-
TMDL final effluent limitations



Regulatory Requirements

“...Controllable water quality factors shall not
cause a detrimental increase in concentrations
of toxic substances found in bottom sediments
or aquatic life...” (Basin Plan at p. 2-3)

“In determining the extent of or whether a mixing
zone or dilution credit, the RWQCB shall
consider the presence of pollutants in the
discharge that are ... bioaccumulative ...” (SIP
at p. 15)



Regulatory Reqguirements, cont’d.

“...Regional Board must assure that the final
water quality-based effluent limitations
(WQBELS) In permits for selenium discharges

Into North San
with the assum

—rancisco Bay are ‘consistent
ptions and requirements’ of the

wasteload allocations in the adopted and

approved TMD

_.” (EPA letter, Jan 23, 2008)

“...Regional Board would need to ensure that
the administrative record and/or fact sheet for
such permits demonstrate that all WQBELs
derive from, and comply with all applicable water
guality standards.” (EPA letter, Jan 23, 2008)



Assimilative Capacity

The capacity of a natural body of water to
receive wastewaters or toxic materials
without deleterious effects and without
damage to aquatic life or humans who
consume the water.

(http://www.epa.gov/OCEPAterms/aterms.htmi)



Far-field Dilution at WSPA

Refineries

Flows near the refineries include tidal flows and
freshwater flows from the Delta and tributaries

Far-field dilution occurs outside the near-field
zone; a long-term average concentration of
discharged effluent will develop Iin the estuary
over time and can be computed using the “net
dilution flow”

Refinery discharges are through diffusers that
achieve >10:1 dilution, up to 300:1 initial dilution

About 120-140 days are required to establish
“steady state” conditions




Far-field Dilution Calculation

Qd :Q0+Qe+Qf :(Qe+Qf)

where

Qg = “net dilution flow” = total flow
available to dilute effluent

Q, = circulating flow of ocean water

Q; = freshwater flow from all tributaries
upstream of the effluent discharge

Q. = effluent flow rate

S, = salinity of the ocean

S = salinity at the discharge point.

SO

(S, =3)

Y CIRCULATING DISCHARGE ey, P -—
— Qy — 4 s

e
A TRIBUTARY
FRESHWATER
FLOW
Q¢

"OCEAN" —
SALINITY

So

RETURN DISCHARGE
> QotQf+Qe=Qy G
—

WASTE
DISCHARGE
Ce

From Fischer et al. (1979), Mixing in Inland and
Coastal Waters




Refinery and Monitoring Data
Locanons

h"";
Y.
‘Jrﬁr'-q.va“?]?h\“ W

e
;.l
af t??.-_s,_ OSan (Pablo

¢

; AR vy Y Walnut;br_te.ekl.-o'
A ;

u '_o __\’w.'\_ I.l o
Imagell.S5 (:-eolog caliSuivey Jo— “(j'-uf\afayette \‘-\1!_ ‘L
Image @,EOCIG]Terra'.ﬂetncs b
© 20094TelelAtlask eiey
Data 310, NOP«A U’b Nauy N(sA (:EE(,O

38°00'38.26" N 122°17'57.58" W . C9Y/Eye alt| '32.48/mi




Net Dilution — Annual Average

Long-term Annual Average Hydrologic
Conditions (NDO 23000 cfs)

Worst-Case Annual Average Hydrologic
Conditions (NDO 5400 cfs)

Mean . )
Effluent | Effluent | Average Far-field |\ Far-field
Refinery Discharge | Selenium Salinity FI_ow ' Selenium Salinity FI_ow ' Selenium
Rate! Conc. 2 of Available| Far-field Conc. of Available| Far-field Conc.
. or ilution |Induced by . or ilution | Induced by
(Mg/L) | Ambient f Diluti Induced b Ambient f Diluti Induced b
Water Dilution Ratio Refinery Water Dilution Ratio Refinery
(Pp1)? (Qq, cfs) Discharge (Pp1)? (Qq, cfs) Discharge
(Mg/L) (Mg/L)
Chevron 11.0 cfs
Richmond 7 1 mod) 12.1 23 76000 6900 0.0018 30 59000 5400 0.0022
Refinery '
ConocoPhillips 3.6 cfs
Rodeo @ 3 mad) 15.5 19 54000 15000 0.0010 23 18000 5000 0.0031
Refinery '
Shell Martinez | 9.0cfs |/ 5 11 34000 | 3800 | 0.0072 17 11000 | 1200 0.0224
Refinery (5.8 mgd)
Tesoro 6.3 cfs
Martinez (@ 1 mgd) 11.9 10 33000 5200 0.0023 16 10000 1600 0.0072
Refinery '
Va'ggir'?;';'c'a (2361;‘; D | 266 10 33000 | 11000 | 0.0025 16 10000 3400 0.0079

Except as noted, a

| values in table are calcu

ated using Equation (1).

1 Measured mean effluent discharge (1999-2007) from Tetra Tech Technical Memorandum 2 Table 3-15 (Tetra Tech, July 2008)
2 Measured mean effluent Selenium concentrations (1999-2007) from Tetra Tech Technical Memorandum 2 Table 3-14 (Tetra Tech, July 2008) 9
3 Salinity values are from monitoring stations RSAC045, RSAC054, and RSAC064 (IEP) and from Station D41 (BDAT)




Net Dilution — 120 day Average

120-Day Average Hydrologic Conditions Worst-Case 120-Day Average Hydrologic
(NDO 23000 cfs) Conditions (NDO 2800 cfs)
Mean . )
Effluent | Effluent | Average Far-field . Far-field
Refinery Discharge [Selenium| Salinity FI_ow ' Selenium | Salinity FI_ow ' Selenium
Rate! Conc. 2 of Available Fe_lr-fl.eld Conc. of_ Available Fe_lr-fl.eld Conc.
(/L) | Ambient _for D|Iut!on Indu<_:ed by | Ambient _for D|Iut!on Induged by
Water Dilution Ratio Refmery Water | Dilution Ratio Reflnery
(Ppt) (Qq, cfs) Discharge (ppt) (Qq, cfs) Discharge
(Mg/L) (Mg/L)
Chevron 11.0 cfs
Richmond (7 1 mad) 12.1 23 76000 6900 0.0018 30 31000 2800 0.0043
Refinery '
ConocoPhillips 3.6 cfs
Rodeo 2 3 mgd) 15.5 19 54000 15000 0.0010 25 11000 3200 0.0048
Refinery '
Sh‘;;'e'f\i"nag';ez (S?éonigs | 277 12 36000 | 4000 0.0069 18 6100 680 0.041
Tesoro 6.3 cfs
Martinez (@ 1 mgd) 11.9 10 33000 5200 0.0023 16 5400 850 0.014
Refinery '
Va'ggir'?;';'c'a (2?,’61;;5 D | 266 11 34000 | 11000 | 0.0024 17 5700 1900 0.014

Except as noted, all values in table are calculated using Equation (1).

1 Measured mean effluent discharge (1999-2007) from Tetra Tech Technical Memorandum 2 Table 3-15 (Tetra Tech, July 2008)

2 Measured mean effluent Selenium concentrations (1999-2007) from Tetra Tech Technical Memorandum 2 Table 3-14 (Tetra Tech, July 2008) 10
8 Salinity values are from monitoring stations RSAC045, RSAC054, and RSAC064 (IEP) and from Station D41 (BDAT).



Far-field Dilution Results

e Concentration increments represent the
long-term average dissolved Se
concentration from the refinery discharges

e Concentration increments are too low to
be measured In the receiving water

e Ambient measured Se concentrations are
about 0.2 pg/L

11



Results of Tetra Tech modeling

Model results demonstrate that refinery loadings of Se
are relatively minor

Tetra Tech modeled complete removal of refinery
sources, which had little effect on predicted selenium
concentrations in bivalves

Particulate selenium, largely supplied by riverine loads,
is most bioavailable form of selenium

“Control of dissolved sources alone may not result in a
meaningful reduction in the particulate concentrations...”
(March 2008 draft at p. xvi)

“...large [simulated] reductions in point source loads
decreased dissolved phase concentrations, but had a
minimal impact on particulate concentrations...” (March
2008 draft at p. xvii)

12



Additional Considerations In
Developing Permit Limits

* Refinery discharges are located at the western
end of the estuary, where tidal flushing is
greatest

e Discharges consist primarily of dissolved Se
species, mainly as selenate, which is less
bioavailable and which will be flushed out of
estuary before significant phytoplankton uptake
and transfer to biota can occur

13



Mass Loadings of Se to Estuary

Source Total Se Dissolved Se Particulate
[kalyr] [ka/yr] [ka/yr]

Atmospheric 18-160 13-78 4-85

deposition

Municipal and 260

industrial wastewater

Refineries 540 ~5401 ~0!

Delta input 1,100-12,000 800-9,700 150-1500

(4,000 mean) (1,600 mean) (700 mean)

Sacramento River 670-2,700

(FPT) (1,600 mean)

San Joaquin River 760-7,300 840-4,700

(VLS) (3,000 mean) (2,300 mean)

Sediment 293 18 275

Ocean flux 30,0002 27,0002 2,7002

All numbers from TT TM-2 (July 2008) except as noted, and rounded

1 Based on Table 3-17 (p. 3-58) of TT TM-2
2 Based on flux of “new” ocean water into estuary (approximately 0.8 MAF/d or 1 trillion liters/day), with dissolved
concentration of 0.0789 ug/l and particulate concentration of 0.008 ug/l in ocean water (concentrations from TT TM-

6). This is not a net loading, but the mass of selenium that enters and leaves the estuary with the tides.

14



Calculation of WQBELSs

o Standard WQBEL calculation, without
consideration of bioaccumulation and using a
dilution of 10:1, would lead to higher than current
limits

C.=C, +D(C,-C,) = 5 ug/L + 9 (5-0.2) = 48.2 ug/L

 Model results and far-field analysis demonstrate
that current discharges have a minor effect, which
cannot be measured

15



Conclusions

e This analysis and Tetra Tech modeling indicate that
refinery discharges, which are mostly dissolved selenate,
have little effect on Se concentrations in biota

* Reducing Se in refinery discharges would likely result in
ambient concentration increments (water column and
biota) so small that they could not be measured

* North San Francisco Bay can receive refinery discharges
without deleterious effects to aquatic life or other
beneficial uses — i.e., there exists assimilative capacity
for the refinery discharges in North San Francisco Bay



o§
A% !
:}}:@@g UNITED STATES ENVIRONIMENTAL PROTECTION AGENGY
&, i 1- k\cf BEGION X
ot 75 Mawthome Street

San Francisco, CA 24105-307

Mr. Bruce Wolfe, Executive Officer

San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400 P
Oakland, CA 94612 JAN 2 % 2008

Dear Mr. Wolfe:

I'would like to express EPA’s support for the process currently underway for the
Regional Board’s development of total maximum daily loads (TMDLs) for selenium in
North San Francisco Bay, and to address the relationship between this TMDL
development effort and the potential establishment of pre-TMDL permit effluent
limitations for selenium. BPA is aware thal Western States Petroleum Association
members have provided funding to Tetra Tech, Inc. to conduct a series of technical
analyses that thé Regional Board may consider as it develops the TMDL. or pre-TMDL
permit effluent imitations. EPA recognizes that the State will make all final decisions
regacding establishment of the TMDL, while EPA retains authority to approve final
TMDLs to ensure that all Federal requirements are met. EPA also recognizes that it is
acceptable for the Regional Board to consider all appropriate technical information —
which we expect will include the information generated by Tetra Tech — when the State
develops the TMDL or establishes pre-TMDL effluent fimitations. The Clean Water Act
does not prohibit the use of such technical information for purposes in addition to TMDL.
development, including derivation of pre-TMDL permit effluent limitations. Further,
EPA recognizes that pre-TMDL permit effluent limitations derived from technical
information developed for purposes of a TMDL may differ from effiuent limitations
based solely on the applicable water quality standard, applied end-of-pipe.

EPA 13 aware that the Tetra Tech scope of work identifies a schedule of tasks,
including development of seven technical memoranda as described in Appendix A
(Statement of Work and Project Description for Technical Support, dated June 14, 2007)
to the State of California’s Project Plan for the North San Francisco Bay Selenium
TMDL., dated July 2007, In addition to the seven technical memoranda, Tetra Tech is
tasked with developing a Project Database of water, sediment, and biota seleniaum
concentration dala to assist in the development of the technical memoranda.'

" Pechaical Memorandum 1, Habitat Maps, includes the production of maps of sensitive species
occurrences and habitats in North San Francisco Bay (NSFB). Technical Memorandum 2, Source
Characterization, includes an analysis and summary of all sources of selenium to NSFB. Internal and
external sources will be quantified, and will be submitied to the Regional Board for its use in developing
the Source Analysis for the TMDL. Technical Memorandum 3, Toxicological Assessment, includes a
summary of woxicological information on sensitive species for input into the Regional Board’s numeric
target analysis. Technical Memorandum 4, Revised Conceptual Model, includes updating existing
conceptual models of selenium in NSEB, and evaluating alternative conceptual models, The memorandum

1

Printed on Recyeled Paper




I is our understanding the Regional Board may use the seven technical
memoranda as a resource for its TMDL analyses. For example, Technical Memorandum
3, Toxicological Assessment, may assist Regional Board staff in developing numeric
targets protective of aquatic life and aquatic-dependent wildlife, including birds sensitive
to selenium in their diet. The modeling exercise to be undertaken in Technical
Memoranda 4 - 6 may also assist Regional Board staff in deterniining whether there is
available assimilative capacity in receiving waters for selenium, and in ensuring that
localized effects are avoided. The analytical approaches outlined in this letter may,
depending on the circumstances, also apply to other listed pollutants that are the focus of
TMDL. development,

EPA also understands (he Regional Board plans to employ a stakeholder process
for interested parties to participate and conument on various issues. EPA commits Lo
participate fully in this TMDL development process. To ensure that all federal statutory
and regulatory requirements are met, the Regional Board will need to give appropriate
consideration to implementing the applicable water quality standards with “scasonal
variations™ and a “margin of safety” (CWA section 303(e)( 1)(C)), as well as taking into
accound “eritical conditions™ for stream flow, loading, and water quality parameters, 40
CEFR 130.7(e)(Iy. There should be reasonable assurances supporting any assumptions
regarding the ability of nonpoint sources to reduce their pollutant loadings if those
assumptions will be the basis 1o allow less stringent wasteload allocations for point
sources. 40 CFR 130.2(1).

Regarding NPDES permits, the Regional Board may adopt and EPA may approve
the selenium TMDL before May 2010 (when the current final selenium effluent
limitations in some permits go into effect). Under this scenario, if the Regional Board
modifies or reissues such permits (or issues permits to new dischargers), the Regional
Board must assure that the final water quality-based effluent limitations (WQBELSs) in
permits for selenium discharges into North San Francisco Bay are “consistent with the
assumptions and requirements” of the wasteload allocations in the adopted and approved
TMDL. 40 CFR 122.44(d} D(viiXB). As BEPA has indicated previously, the Regional
Board has discretion to include compliance schedules in NPDES permits where a
discharger is able to demonstrate that immediate compliance with final WQBELS that
implement the requirements of the adopted and approved TMDL is infeasible, so long as
such schedules are authorized by EPA-approved State law or regulations and are
consistent with statutory and regulatory requirements.

will make recommendations to the Regional Board as to the most appropriate conceptual model(s).
Technical Memorandum 5, Model Selection, includes evaluating the capability of, and data requirements
for, candidate fute and transport model(s). The memorandum will make recommendations as to the most
appropriate fate and transport model(s) (o the Regional Board and include the ratonale for each
recommendation. Technical Memorandum 6, Simulation Model Reselts, includes applying the selected
model(s) to generale results needed (o complete the TMBDL. Key considerations include the evaluation of
options for actions that can be taken 10 meet the nomeric targess in different environmeatal compartinents.
Technical Memorandum 7, Implementation Plan, includes an analysis of multiple load reduction scenarios
that may be implemented as part of the NSFB TMDL.

2




in advance of a final approved TMDL, permit writers may use technical data,
scientific information, and water quality-related analyses (including demonstration of
assimilalive capacity) developed during the TMDL process, along with any other legally
necessary and appropriate information, to establish appropriate WQBELS in permits. The
Regional Board may consider this approach if it modifies or reissues permits for selenium
discharges into North San Francisco Bay prior to TMDL adoption or approval, either
before or after May 2010.

I cases where nonpoint source reductions are a consideration in the formulation
of pre-TMDL, effluent limitations, EPA does not believe all such reductions must
necessarily ocour before or at the same time as pre-TMBDL permit effluent Fmitations are
established. However, if the Regional Board’s permitting decision assumes that nonpoint
source reductions will occur in the future, the administrative record and/or fact sheel
should explain and demonstrate why the necessary reductions are reasonably expected by
the Regional Board to be achievable and to occur within a reasonable time frame, which
may extend into the time frame for implementation of a subsequent TMDL. If nonpoint
source reductions are to be implemented through management measures, the record
and/or fact sheet should clearly identify feasible measures that are specific (o the
pollutant and address how they expect those measures to be implemented as
expeditiously as practicable, and accomplished through reliable delivery mechanisms. In
addition, the Regional Board would need to ensure that the administrative record and/or
fact sheet for such permits demonstrate that all WQBELSs derive from, and comply with
all applicable water quality standards. 40 CER 122.44(d)(1)(vii){A)). It is also good
practice in pre-TMDL permits to include a reopener provision that would allow the
permit’s WQBELS to be revised in a manner “consistent with the assamptions and
requirements” of the wasteload allocations in the final TMDL. 40 CER
122.44(dY(D{(vi(B).

EPA is currently developing new water quality criteria recommendations for
selenium for the protection of wildlife in California. This project is the resull of the joint
U.S Fish and Wildlife Service and U.S. National Marine Fisheries Service Biological
Opinion for the California Toxics Rule (CTR). The intent of the project is to replace or
supplement the existing selenium water quality criteria currently in effect for San
Francisco Bay (which are the same as those included in the CTR) with criteria designed
to protect wildlife, including federally-listed, threatened and endangered species.
Although this project is underway, it is possible that the Regional Board may establish
the TMDL before new water quality criteria are in effect for CWA purposes in San
Francisco Bay. EPA will continue to provide the Regional Board and Tetra Tech with as
much information as possible from the criteria development process. However, we
cannot assume that a TMDL established prior to the adoption of new or revised water
quality standards necessarily will include allocations to implement those new criteria.
Once the new wildlife-based criteria are adopted and approved, it may be necessary to
revise the TMDL and any WQBELs based on the wasteload allocations in the TMDL.

EPA Region 9 is committed to cooperating with the Regional Board and other
TMDL stakeholders during the development and implementation of the selenium TMDL.
We intend to participate in scheduled workshops and on refevant committees, and EPA is




funding the U.S. Geological Survey to lend its expertise to the process. We hope this
process will result in a TMDL that is legally defensible, scientifically sound, and
supported by the affected San Francisco Bay stakeholders. We look forward to working
with you and alf other parties on this important project.

Sincerely,

/ :J - i/';;v:%'::m“\ i '{:'f” _gf‘/
\,,."{»/»"“"?ff/;[ivx,/-*\ A Pt o ”/f’g’“ L RODL
Alexis Strauss




PSSEP

Partnership for
Sound Science
in Environmental
Policy

Bay Area
Clean Water Agencies

Bay Planning Coalition

California Association
Of Sanitation Agencies

California Council for
Environmental &
Economic Balance

California Manufacturers
& Technology Association

Chemical Industry Council
Chlorine Chemistry Council
Contra Costa Council

Tri-TAC
Sponsored by:
League of California Cities
California Association of
Sanitation Agencies
California Water
Environment Association

Western States
Petroleum Association

Craig S.J. Johns
Program Manager

October 5, 2009

Mr. John H. Madigan
San Francisco Bay
Regional Water Quality Control Board
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400
Oakland, CA 94612 Via Email to: jmadigan@waterboards.ca.gov

Re: Valero Benicia Refinery — Draft NPDES Permit (9/3/2009)

Dear Mr. Madigan:

The Partnership for Sound Science in Environmental Policy
(PSSEP) is an association of San Francisco Bay area and statewide
public and private entities — businesses, municipal wastewater treatment
agencies, trade associations and community organizations. PSSEP and
its members support and promote regulatory actions that are based on
sound science and achieve reasonable protection of human health and
the environment. We appreciate the opportunity to provide these
comments on the draft NPDES Permit for the Valero Benicia Refinery as
proposed in the Regional Board Staff's September 3, 2009 Tentative
Order (hereatfter, “Draft TO”).

PSSEP writes in support of the Draft TO, and appreciates the very
dedicated and hard work Staff has committed to developing this permit.
PSSEP specifically supports the well-reasoned, technically supportable,
and legally valid approach that Staff proposes in establishing effluent
limits for Selenium (Se) in the Draft TO for the Valero Benicia Refinery.
(See, Draft TO, 8IV.A.2 and 4, pp. 12-14.) In establishing the proposed
effluent limits for Selenium discharges under the Draft TO, the Regional
Board staff has carefully considered the most current and comprehensive
information known, and has rigidly applied the specific dictates of the
State Implementation Plan and the California Toxics Rule.

Most importantly, the Staff's proposed effluent limits for Selenium —

and the Draft TO in general — will protect beneficial uses of San
Francisco Bay throughout the permit term.

1115 - 11t Street, Suite 100 * Sacramento, CA 95814 * 916/498-3326 * cjohns@calrestrats.com



Partnership for Sound Science in Environmental Policy

Mr. John H. Madigan

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board
October 5, 2009

Page 2

In 2000, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) adopted the
State Implementation Plan (SIP) to establish the regulatory approach for implementing
USEPA’s California Toxics Rule (CTR). Therein, the State Board specifically
determined that, with the exception of effluent limits derived from TMDLSs, Regional
Boards have the discretion to allow for the application of mixing zones and provide for
dilution credits for certain pollutants. (SIP, 81.4.2 at pp. 13-16.) The SIP further
provides that Regional Boards should deny or “significantly limit” a mixing zone and
dilution credit as necessary to protect beneficial uses, and provides various examples of
pollutants for which such limitation would be warranted, including whether the pollutant
in question is bioaccumulative. (SIP, 81.4.2.2.B at pp. 15.)

Dilution ratios are important in determining appropriate effluent limits for various
pollutants in a facility’s discharge. They are directly associated with the ability of the
receiving water to assimilate - - or mix - - the pollutants in question to a point where they
would not negatively impact beneficial uses. “Mixing zones” and “dilution ratios” have
long been applied in determining appropriate and protective effluent limits all over
California, and are specifically endorsed by US EPA.

As discussed in the “Fact Sheet” to the Draft TO (Attachment F), Regional Board
Staff analyzed comprehensive data to conclude that the “worst-case” initial dilution
factor at the point of discharge under the permit would be 15-to-1. In point of fact, the
“actual” or relative dilution achieved at the point of Valero’s discharge is much higher.
Nevertheless, Regional Board staff has recommended a very conservative dilution
credit of 15-to-1, and we understand that Valero has not objected to this
recommendation.

With respect to the Selenium effluent limits set forth in the Draft TO, Regional
Board Staff has proposed to further limit the dilution ratio to 10-to-1, in order to include
additional protection of beneficial uses of the receiving waters. This approach is not
only allowed under the SIP and the CTR, but has been (we understand) approved by
US EPA Region IX. The principle reason why Staff has recommended a dilution credit
based on a 10-to-1 dilution ratio is that far more information is known today about the
type of Selenium that has been impairing some beneficial uses of San Francisco Bay,
as well as the sources of that Selenium, than was know five or even three years ago.
Most of this new information has been generated during the development of the
Selenium TMDL for San Francisco Bay, and it is absolutely appropriate and vital that
this information help inform the Regional Board in setting appropriate effluent limits.

Of particular significance concerning the Draft TO and the proposed effluent limit
for Selenium is that the new permit will lead to no increase in the mass of Selenium
discharged from the Valero Benicia Refinery. That is, under the terms of the Draft TO,



Partnership for Sound Science in Environmental Policy

Mr. John H. Madigan

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board
October 5, 2009

Page 3

Valero is prohibited from increasing the mass loading of Selenium to Suisun Bay, and
this prohibition will remain in place until the Selenium TMDL is approved by the
Regional Board (as well as the State Board and US EPA) and implemented via future
NPDES permits. Given the significant amount of scientific work completed and on-
going today relative to the Selenium TMDL, the approach recommended by Regional
Board Staff is appropriate and should be adopted by the Regional Board.

PSSEP appreciates the opportunity to provide these comments on the Valero Benicia
Refinery Draft TO.
Sincerely,

7

Craig S.J. Johns
Program Manager



APPENDIX C

Response to Comments



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
SAN FRANCISCO BAY REGION

Response to Written Comments
on September 2009 Draft NPDES Permit for
Valero Refining Company — California, Valero Benicia Refinery
Benicia, Solano County

The Regional Water Board received written comments on a draft permit distributed for public
comment from the following parties:

United States Environmental Protection Agency, dated September 29, 2009
City of Benicia, dated September 10, 2009

Valero Refining Company - California, dated October 5, 2009

Western States Petroleum Association, dated October 5, 2009

Partnership for Sound Science in Environmental Policy, dated October 5, 2009

Nk W=

This response to those comments summarizes each comment in italics (often quoted and
sometimes paraphrased for brevity) followed by the Regional Water Board staff response. For
the full context and content of each comment, refer to the comment letters. Also, the Regional
Water Board has made staff-initiated revisions to the draft permit. These are presented first for
clarity.

STAFE-INITIATED REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT PERMIT

Revision 1: The Basin Plan was amended in 2004 to remove the settleable solids limitation from
all treatment facilities. We have therefore removed the settleable solids limitation at Discharge
Point 001 from the draft permit (Tables 6a and 6b), and deleted references to it in the Fact Sheet.

Revision 2: The draft permit incorrectly described storm water outfalls 012 through 015 as
discharging to the City of Benicia sanitary sewer. These storm water outfalls in fact discharge to
the City of Benicia storm drain system, and are properly regulated by the existing permit. We
have made several revisions to the draft permit to ensure that they continue to be regulated, as
follows:

REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT TABLE 2, DISCHARGE LOCATION:

Table 2. Discharge Location

ot | Effluent Description point Ladtude | Longnude | Water
001 Treated refinery wastewater 38°,03°, 18" N 122°,07°,07” W | Suisun Bay
002 Storm water from 1.8 acres, 38°03°,53” N 122°,07°,37” W | Suisun Bay
discharged at NW corner of WWTP
area
Response to Comments 1 0f33 November 10, 2009

Valero Benicia Refinery



Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge
Point Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving
Water

003

Storm water from refinery property,
18.6 acres total, discharged at north
end of Avenue A to Sulfur Springs
Creek

38°,04°,49” N

122°,08°, 12” W

Suisun Bay

004

Storm water from 0.5-acre gravel
area between 1st Street and railway
on south side of 1st Street,
discharged west of Gate 4 into
eastern end of Beaver Creek

38°,03°,59” N

122°,07°, 58 W

Suisun Bay

005

Storm water from 68.9 acres west of
processing area, discharged west of
Gate 4 into western end of Beaver
Creek

38°%,03°,58” N

122°,08°, 05" W

Suisun Bay

006

Storm water from 35.5 acres
beneath the refinery crude pipeline,
including the Crude Oil Storage
Area (COSA) tank farm, discharged
on the south side of Park Road to
Sulfur Springs Creek

38°,03°,50” N

122°,07°, 57" W

Suisun Bay

007

Storm water from 0.7-acre gravel
and paved area near Gate 4,
discharged east of Gate 4 to Buffalo
Wallow

38°,04°,02” N

122°,07°, 54 W

Suisun Bay

008

Storm water from 0.9-acre gravel
area along the railway and the
refinery fence line, discharged east
of Gate 4 to Buffalo Wallow

38°,04°,02” N

122°,07°,53” W

Suisun Bay

009

Storm water from 0.3-acre gravel
and paved area between the railway
and Avenue A and adjacent to the
Upper Level Tank Farm (ULTF),
discharged on the SE side of the
processing area to Sulfur Springs
Creek

38°,04°,12” N

122°,07°, 53” W

Suisun Bay

010

Storm water from 63.8-acre gravel
and paved area between the railway
and Avenue A and adjacent to the
ULTF, discharged on the SE side of
the processing area to Sulfur
Springs Creek

38°,04°,12” N

122°,07°,53” W

Suisun Bay

011

Storm water from 0.4 acres beneath
the refinery crude pipeline on the
north side of Park Road, discharged
on the north side of Park Road to
Sulfur Springs Creek

38°,03°,52” N

122°,07°, 57" W

Suisun Bay

Response to Comments
Valero Benicia Refinery

2 0f33

November 10, 2009



Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge
Point Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving
Water

012

Storm water from 0.78-acre
primarily gravel (10% paved) area
under the crude pipeline southwest
of the crude tank field, discharged
to City of Benicia storm drain
system, and ultimately to Carquinez
Strait.

38°03'15" N

122°08'19" W

Carquinez Strait

S
—_
w

Storm water from 1.2-acre (5 %
paved) area under the crude pipeline
southwest of Outfall 012,
discharged to City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to

Carquinez Strait.

38°03'08" N

122°08'25" W

Carquinez

Strait.

S
—_
N

Storm water from 0.35-acre
unpaved area under the crude
pipeline south of Outfall 013,
discharged to City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to

Carquinez Strait.

38°03'03" N

122°08'23" W

Carquinez Strait

S
—
(9]

Storm water from 0.50-acre
unpaved area under the crude
pipeline southeast of Outfall 014
discharged to City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to

Carquinez Strait.

38°02'50" N

122°07'55" W

Carquinez Strait

Storm water from 0.1 acres beneath
the refinery crude pipeline south of
Outfall 15 near the refinery dock,
discharged via culvert to Carquinez
Strait

38°,02°,44” N

122°,07°,45” W

Carquinez Strait

017

Storm water from approximately 12

acres at the Asphalt Plant, collected

in a holding tank before discharge to
Buffalo Wallow

38°,03°, 58" N

122°,08°, 05" W

Suisun Bay

REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT TABLE 3, ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

Table 3.

Administrative Information

This Order was adopted by the Regional Water Board on:

November 18, 2009

This Order shall become effective on:

January 1, 2010

This Order shall expire on:

December 31, 2045-2014

The Discharger shall file a Report of Waste Discharge in accordance with Title 23,
California Code of Regulations, as application for issuance of new waste discharge

requirements no later than:

180 days prior to the Order
expiration date

Response to Comments
Valero Benicia Refinery

3 0f33

November 10, 2009




REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT SECTION I1.A, BACKGROUND

B. Background. The Valero Refining Company - California (hereinafter Discharger) currently
discharges under Order No. R2-2002-0112 (hereinafter previous permit) and National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit No. CA0005550. The Discharger
submitted a Report of Waste Discharge dated May 31, 2007, and applied for reissuance of its
NPDES permit to discharge treated wastewater from the Valero Benicia Refinery. The
Discharger’s discharge is also currently covered under Order No. 2608 R2-2007-0077
(NPDES Permit CA0038849) that superseded all requirements on mercury from wastewater
discharges in the region. The mercury permit is unaffected by this Order.

REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT SECTION I1.B, FACILITY DESCRIPTION, FIFTH PARAGRAPH:

The refinery also has several storm water discharge points to Suisun Bay and Carquinez Strait

(Discharge Points 002 — 017). Dischargesfrom-ecertainareasnear-the Discharger’s-erade-tank
field-and-under-the Discharger’s-erude-pipeline(designated-Discharge Points 012 through 015)

that-discharge to the Clty of Benicia Sa-H-l-t-aﬂLS%W%FStOI‘m draln system and ultlmately to
Carquinez Strait.are-n ated-by ¥ .

REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT SECTION I1.B, FACILITY DESCRIPTION, SEVENTH PARAGRAPH

When influent flow rates to the treatment plant are greater than 2,600 gallons per minute
(gpm) because of a storm event, and the surge and equalization tanks are full, influent can be
diverted to the storm water retention ponds. These storm water retention ponds are unlined
with a capacity of 18 MG, enough for storm water from a 20-year storm. This storm water
is later run through the wastewater treatment plant, entering just upstream of the aetivated

shadge-unitBiox system.

REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT SECTION IV.B, STORM WATER EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS:

B. Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 — 631-and-016—-017

1. Storm water discharged at Discharge Points 002 —0H-ard-0+6—017 shall not exceed
the effluent limitations in Table 11, below.

Response to Comments 4 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT TABLE 5, BENEFICIAL USES OF RECEIVING WATERS

Table 5. Beneficial Uses of Receiving Waters
Discharge Point Receiving Water Name Beneficial Uses
001, 002, 003, Suisun Bay Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
004, 005, 006, Industrial Process Supply (PRO)
007, 008, 009,[1] Estuarine Habitat (EST)
010,011,017 Industrial Service Supply (IND)
Fish Migration (MIGR)
Navigation (NAV)

Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)

Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)

Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

Fish Spawning (SPWN)
012,013,014, Carquinez Strait Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
015,016 Estuarine Habitat (EST)

Industrial Service Supply (IND)

Fish Migration (MIGR)

Navigation (NAV)

Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)

Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)

Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

Fish Spawning (SPWN)

1 Outfalls 002 through 011, and 017 flow to specific creeks, which flow to Suisun Bay. Beneficial uses of
Suisun Bay apply to these creeks due to the Tributary Rule. QOutfalls 012 through 015 discharge to the City
of Benicia storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

REVISION TO DRAFT PERMIT SECTION I1.K, COMPLIANCE SCHEDULES AND INTERIM
REQUIREMENTS

K. Compliance Schedules and Interim Requirements. SIP section 2.1 provides that, based
on an existing discharger’s request and demonstration that it is infeasible for it to achieve
immediate compliance with an effluent limitation derived from a CTR criterion, compliance
schedules may be allowed in an NPDES permit. The State Water Board adopted Resolution
No. 2008-0025 on April 15, 2008, titled Policy for Compliance Schedules in National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permits, which includes compliance schedule
policies for pollutants that are not addressed by the SIP. This policy has been approved by
OAL and USEPA, and became effective on August 27, 2008. Where a compliance schedule
for a final effluent limitation exceeds | year, permits must include an interim numeric
limitation for that pollutant. Where allowed by the Basin Plan, compliance schedules and
interim effluent limitations or discharge specifications may also be granted to allow time to
implement a new or newly interpreted narrative water quality objective. This Order includes
a compliance schedule and interim effluent limitation_for dioxin-TEQ. A detailed discussion
of the basis for the compliance schedule is included in the Fact Sheet.

Response to Comments 50f33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery




REVISION TO ATTACHMENT E TABLE E-2, MONITORING STATION LOCATIONS

Table E-2. Monitoring Station Locations

Type of Monitorin
Sampling , g Monitoring Location Description
. Location Name
Location
Treated
Process EFF-001 At any point after full treatment and before contact with Suisun Bay
Wastewater
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
EFF-002 Discharge Point 002, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
EFF-003 Discharge Point 003, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
EFF-004 Discharge Point 004, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
Water EFF-005 Discharge Point 005, including all storm water flow tributary to that
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
Water EFF-006 Discharge Point 006, including all storm water flow tributary to that
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
EFF-007 Discharge Point 007, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
EFF-008 Discharge Point 008, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
EFF-009 Discharge Point 009, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
Water EFF-010 Discharge Point 010, including all storm water flow tributary to that
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
Water EFF-011 Discharge Point 011, including all storm water flow tributary to that
outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
——— EFF-012 Discharge Point 012, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
- outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
——— EFF-013 Discharge Point 013, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
— outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
—— EFF-014 Discharge Point 014, including all storm water flow tributary to that
Water :
- outfall, is present
Storm At any point where storm water representative of that discharged at
Water EFF-015 Discharge Point 015, including all storm water flow tributary to that
— outfall. is present
Response to Comments 6 of 33 November 10, 2009

Valero Benicia Refinery



Type of N
Sampling Monitoring Monitoring Location Description
- Location Name
Location
Storm A‘F any point Where stgrm wgter representative of that fiischarged at
Water EFF-016 D1scharge Point 016, including all storm water flow tributary to that
outfall, is present
Storm A‘F any point Where storm Wgter representative of that fiischarged at
Water EFF-017 Discharge Point 017, including all storm water flow tributary to that
outfall, is present

REVISION TO ATTACHMENT E, SECTION IV.B, STORM WATER MONITORING:
B. Storm Water Monitoring

The Discharger shall monitor storm water discharges at EFF-002 through -04H-and EEE-
9—1—6—thfe&gh- 017 as summarlzed in the followmg table ¥h+s—9¥éer—dees—r—ret—&éd¥ess

feqkﬁfemeﬂ%s—rmpesed—byhleeal—&geﬂe}es—Comphance momtormg for Outfall 010 may be

used to represent Outfall 009 as well because the flow from Outfall 009 is relatively
small and the nature of the storm water from this area is expected to be similar to that at
Outfall 010. However, Outfall 009 shall be monitored directly at least once in the wet
season and once in the dry season over a 5-year period.

REVISION TO FACT SHEET SECTION I1.A, FACILITY DESCRIPTION, PARAGRAPH 5:

The refinery also has several storm water dlscharge pomts (D1scharge Pomts 002 — 017) as
described in Table F-2.

&ﬂder—the—DﬁehafgeiLs—emdﬁafpehﬂe{deS@ﬁed-Dlscharge Pomts 012 through 01 5) %ha%

dlscharge to the C1ty of Benlcla samtaﬂLsewerstorm draln system, and ultlmately to Carquinez

REVISION TO FACT SHEET SECTION I1.B, DISCHARGE POINTS AND RECEIVING WATERS:
B. Discharge Points and Receiving Waters

The locations of the Valero Benicia Refinery Discharge Points 001 — 64H-and-0+6—017, and
the corresponding receiving waters, are shown in Table F-2 below.

Table F-2. Outfall Location

Discharge . Discharge Discharge Point Receiving
Point Effluent Description Point Latitude Longitude Water
001 Treated refinery wastewater 38° 03°, 18” N 122°,07°, 07" W Suisun Bay
002 Storm water from unpaved area of 1.8 38°03°,53” N 122°,07°,37" W Suisun Bay
acres used for equipment storage along via Sulfur
western boundary of wastewater Springs
treatment plant, discharged at NW corner Creek
of wastewater treatment area via ditch
and several pipes into Sulfur Springs
Creek and ultimately Suisun Bay.
Drainage area is separated from
Response to Comments 7 of 33 November 10, 2009

Valero Benicia Refinery



Discharge I Discharge Discharge Point Receiving
Point Effluent Description Point Latitude Longitude Water
wastewater treatment area and storm
water retention pond by a dike.

003 Storm water from unpaved 19-acre area 38°,04°,49” N 122°,08’, 12” W Suisun Bay
of the refinery, discharged near the Raw via Sulfur
Water Break Tank at north end of Springs
Avenue A via culvert to Sulfur Springs Creek
Creek and ultimately Suisun Bay.

004 Storm water from 0.5-acre gravel area 38° 03°,59” N 122°,07°, 58” W Suisun Bay
between 1st Street and railway on south via Beaver
side of 1st Street, discharged west of Creek,
Gate 4 into eastern end of Beaver Creek, Buffalo
which flows to culvert, then Buffalo Wallow,
Wallow, then 72 inch culvert into Sulfur and Sulfur
Springs Creek, and ultimately Suisun Springs
Bay. Drainage area is separated from Creek
processing area by peripheral road.

005 Storm water from 68.9 acres west of 38°03°, 58" N 122°,08’, 05” W Suisun Bay
processing area, discharged west of Gate via Beaver
4 on south side of processing area via Creek,
spillway into western end of Beaver Buffalo
Creek. Beaver Creek flows to culvert, Wallow,
which joins Buffalo Wallow, and then 72 and Sulfur
inch culvert that drains to Sulfur Springs Springs
Creek, and ultimately Suisun Bay. Creek
Drainage area, of which less than 1 acre
is impervious, is separated from the
processing area by railroad tracks and
peripheral road, and is bordered on south
side by Gate 5 Road and on west side by
refinery fence.

006 Condensate from steam traps, 38° 03°, 50" N 122°, 07, 57" W Suisun Bay
groundwater seepage and storm water via Sulfur
from 3.5-acre area beneath refinery crude Springs
pipeline (starting at southwest corner of Creek
crude tank field and running northeast
along perimeter of tank farm and Park
Road) and storm water from Crude Oil
Storage Area (COSA) Tank Farm (32
acres). Condensate, ground water
seepage, and storm water from beneath
crude pipeline is collected in concrete
sump equipped with containment valve
and hydrocarbon detector that
automatically closes containment valve
and alarms the central control house in
event of hydrocarbon detection. When
contamination is observed or detected,
water in sump is collected with vacuum
trucks and treated in refinery’s
wastewater treatment plant. Discharge
from the Crude Oil Storage Area is
controlled by a containment valve that is
normally closed and must be opened
manually by an operator. Crude Oil
Storage Area contributions are visually
monitored and sampled prior to
discharge. Storm water not meeting
storm water effluent limits is sent to the
wastewater treatment plant. Point of

Response to Comments 8 of 33 November 10, 2009

Valero Benicia Refinery



Discharge I Discharge Discharge Point Receiving
Point Effluent Description Point Latitude Longitude Water
discharge is on south side of Park Road
to Sulfur Springs Creek and ultimately to
Suisun Bay.

007 Storm water from 0.7 acres of gravel and 38°04°,02” N 122°,07°, 54” W Suisun Bay
paved area near Gate 4, discharged east via Buffalo
of Gate 4 to Buffalo Wallow, which Wallow
flows into 72 inch culvert, to Sulfur and Sulfur
Springs Creek, and ultimately Suisun Springs
Bay. The drainage area, of which 0.4 Creek
acres are impervious, is separated from
processing area by peripheral road.

008 Storm water from 0.9-acre gravel area 38°04°,02” N 122°,07°,53” W Suisun Bay
along railway and refinery fence line, via Buffalo
discharged east of Gate 4 to culvert, Wallow
which flows to Buffalo Wallow, then to and Sulfur
72 inch culvert, then to Sulfur Springs Springs
Creek and ultimately Suisun Bay. Creek
Drainage area is separated from
processing area by railway.

009 Storm water from 0.3-acre gravel and 38°,04°,12” N 122°,07°,53” W Suisun Bay
paved area between railway and Avenue via Sulfur
A and adjacent to Upper Level Tank Springs
Farm (ULTF), discharged to culvert Creek
along Avenue A on southeast side of
processing area to Sulfur Springs Creek
and ultimately Suisun Bay.

Approximately 0.1 acres of drainage area
is impervious.

010 Storm water from 0.8 acres of gravel and 38°04°, 12" N 122°,07°,53” W Suisun Bay
paved area between railway and Avenue via Sulfur
A and adjacent to ULTF, as well as Springs
storm water from area of ULTF (63 Creek
acres). Discharge from the ULTF is
controlled by a containment valve that is
normally closed and must be opened
manually by an operator. ULTF
contributions are visually monitored and
sampled prior to discharge. Storm water
not meeting storm water effluent limits is
sent to the wastewater treatment plant.

Discharge occurs on SE side of
processing area via culvert along Avenue
A, which flows to Sulfur Springs Creek
and ultimately to Suisun Bay. Drainage
area, of which 0.25 acres is impervious,
is separated from processing area by
railway and peripheral road.

011 Storm water from 0.4 acres beneath 38°03°,52” N 122°,07°, 57" W Suisun Bay
refinery crude pipeline on north side of via Sulfur
Park Road, discharged on north side of Springs
Park Road via culvert into Sulfur Springs Creek
Creek and ultimately Suisun Bay.

Drainage area is contained with asphalt
berms to channel storm water to concrete
sump equipped with hydrocarbon
detector, which alarms at the central
control house in event of hydrocarbon
release, and containment valve, which is
Response to Comments 9 0of 33 November 10, 2009

Valero Benicia Refinery



Discharge
Point

Effluent Description

Discharge
Point Latitude

Discharge Point
Longitude

Receiving
Water

closed until manually opened. If
contamination is observed or detected,
storm water from sump is collected with
vacuum trucks and treated in refinery
wastewater treatment system.

=]
—_
[\S]

Storm water from 0.78-acre primarily

38°03'15" N

122°08'19" W

gravel (10% paved) area under section of
crude pipeline southwest of crude tank
field, discharged to City of Benicia storm
drain system, and ultimately to
Carquinez Strait. Storm water collects in
concrete sump equipped with
containment valve, normally kept closed,
and hydrocarbon detector, which alarms
at central control house in the event of
hydrocarbon release from crude pipeline.

Carquinez
Strait

=
—_
(98]

Storm water from 1.2-acre (5 % paved)
area under crude pipeline southwest of
Outfall 012, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and
ultimately to Carquinez Strait. Storm
water collects in concrete sump equipped
with containment valve, normally kept
closed, and hydrocarbon detector, which
alarms at central control house in the
event of hydrocarbon release from crude

pipeline.

38°03'08" N

122°0825" W

Carquinez
Strait

]
—_
N

Storm water from 0.35-acre unpaved
area under crude pipeline south of
Outfall 013, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and
ultimately to Carquinez Strait. Storm
water collects in concrete sump equipped
with containment valve, normally kept
closed, and hydrocarbon detector, which
alarms at central control house in the
event of hydrocarbon release from crude

pipeline.

38°03'03" N

122°08'23" W

Carquinez
Strait

)
—_
W

Storm water from 0.50-acre unpaved
area under crude pipeline southeast of
Qutfall 014, discharged to City of
Benicia storm drain system, and
ultimately to Carquinez Strait. Storm
water collects in concrete sump equipped
with an automatic valve, and
hydrocarbon detector, which alarms at
central control house in the event of
hydrocarbon release from crude pipeline.

38°02'50" N

122°07'55" W

Carquinez
Strait

Storm water from 0.1 acres frem-beneath
refinery crude pipeline south of Outfall
15 near refinery dock, discharged via
culvert to Carquinez Strait. Drainage
area is contained on both sides by asphalt
berms, which direct storm water to
concrete sump equipped with
hydrocarbon detector that alarms the
central control house if hydrocarbons are
detected, and containment valve kept

38°,02°,44” N

122°,07°,45” W

Carquinez
Strait

Response to Comments

Valero Benicia Refinery

10 of 33

November 10, 2009



Discharge L Discharge Discharge Point Receiving
Point Effluent Description Point Latitude Longitude Water
normally in the closed position. If
contamination is observed or detected,
storm water from sump is collected with
vacuum trucks and treated in refinery
wastewater treatment system.

017 Storm water from approximately 12.1 38°,03’,58” N 122°,08°,05” W Suisun Bay
acres (of which 4.25 acres are via Buffalo
impervious) at Asphalt Plant, collected in Wallow
0.425 million gallon holding tank before and Sulfur
discharge to Buffalo Wallow. Storm Springs
water is released from holding tank in Creek
batches via underground culvert to
Buffalo Wallow, which flows to 72 inch
culvert, then to Sulfur Springs Creek,
and ultimately Suisun Bay.

REVISION TO FACT SHEET SECTION I1.C.2:

2. The previous permit (section B.9) established the following effluent limitations, based on
the requirements of Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Petroleum Refining Point
Source Category, for discharges of storm water through Discharge Points 002 — 84H-and

o6—017.
Table F-4.Previous Storm Water Effluent Limitations
Pollutant Daily Maximum Effluent Limitation
Oil & Grease 15 mg/L
TOC 110 mg/L
Notes:

mg/L = milligrams per liter

In its Report of Waste Discharge, the Discharger provided the following characterization
of its storm water discharges through Discharge Points 002 — 0-and-0+6—017.

REVISION TO FACT SHEET SECTION IV.B.2.B, STORM WATER EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS:
b. Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 - 81}+-and-016—-017

Based on the requirements of 40 CFR 419 Subpart B for storm water discharges, this
Order establishes technology-based limitations for Discharge Points 002 — 84H-and-0+6—
017. This Order also retains the narrative storm water limits of no visible oil or color.

REVISION TO FACT SHEET SECTION VI1.B, EFFLUENT MONITORING:

B. Effluent Monitoring

The MRP retains most effluent monitoring requirements from the previous permit.
Important changes in effluent monitoring requirements are summarized below.

Response to Comments 11 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Discharge Point 001

Routine effluent monitoring for specific priority toxic pollutants is required only for
those pollutants with effluent limitations. Priority toxic pollutants must be
monitored two times per year and in accordance with the Regional Standard
Provisions (Attachment G).

Storm Water Discharge Points

Storm water monitoring frequency has been made more uniform for all storm water
discharge points. Monitoring frequency at some storm water outfalls (Discharge
Points 002, 004, and 007 through 84H5-016;-ard-0+7) has been increased to quarterly
to provide better characterization of storm water discharges; monitoring frequency at
other storm water outfalls (Discharge Points 003, 005, 006, and 017) has been
decreased to quarterly from one time per storm event because monitoring during the
term of the previous permit did not show exceedances of effluent limitations at these
discharge points.

o Ifeffluent limitations for BOD, TSS, COD, chromium, and phenolic compounds
become effective for discharges of storm water in accordance with section IV.C.2 of
this Order, the MRP establishes a monitoring schedule for these pollutants.

REVISION TO FACT SHEET TABLE F-7, BENEFICIAL USES

Table F-7.Beneficial Uses

DllsDcOr:ﬁ:ge Receiving Water Name Beneficial Use(s)
001, 002, Suisun Bay Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
003, 004, Industrial Process Supply (PRO)
005, 006, Estuarine Habitat (EST)
007, 008, Industrial Service Supply (IND)
009, 010’[1] Fish Migration (MIGR)
011, 017 Navigation (NAV)

Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)

Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)

Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

Fish Spawning (SPWN)

Response to Comments
Valero Benicia Refinery

12 of 33

November 10, 2009




Discharge

Point Receiving Water Name Beneficial Use(s)
012,013, Carquinez Strait Ocean, Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)
014,014, Estuarine Habitat (EST)

016 Industrial Service Supply (IND)
Fish Migration (MIGR)
Navigation (NAV)

Preservation of Rare and Endangered Species (RARE)
Water Contact Recreation (REC1)

Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC2)

Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

Fish Spawning (SPWN)

] Outfalls 002 through 011, and 017 flow to specific creeks, which flow to Suisun Bay. Beneficial
uses of Suisun Bay apply to these creeks due to the Tributary Rule. Outfalls 012 through 015
discharge to the City of Benicia storm drain system, and ultimately to Carquinez Strait.

RESPONSE TO UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
(USEPA) COMMENTS

USEPA Comment No. 1. The USEPA strongly recommended retaining the first two paragraphs
of Fact Sheet section IV.C.4.b.(1).(b), which discuss dilution credits for selenium, and deleting
the remainder of that section because many of the conclusions presented are based on
preliminary information and are not generally accepted. The USEPA further recommended the
following specific edits to the second paragraph:

This information, together with high uncertainty regarding how different sources of
selenium contribute to bioaccumulation, have previously led the Regional Water Board to

deny dllutlon credlt for selemum Hewever—é&ta—eeﬂeeted—é%mg#k@kd&velepmem

p%eﬂdmg—%dene%ﬂ}a{—ﬂ&eﬁe}%tﬁela%weky—smaﬂ—mﬂm However reﬁnerles

have significantly reduced their discharges of selenium, and altered the chemical species
of the selenium still discharged to a less bioavailable form. Beth-ofthese-factors-are

diseussed-in-meore-detatl-below= Based on this preliminary information, Regional Water
Board staff concludes that limited dilution credit for selenium may be granted such that
existing refinery performance is maintained, pending the completion of a selenium
TMDL. Therefore, this order uses a dilution credit of D=9 (10:1 dilution) to calculate
selenium WQBELS.

Response to USEPA Comment No. 1. We revised the draft permit as recommended.

RESPONSE TO CITY OF BENICIA (CITY) COMMENTS

The City submitted comments by email that are paraphrased and responded to below.

City Comment No. 1. Statements in the draft permit that the asphalt plant discharges to the City
of Benicia sewer system are inaccurate.

Response to Comments 13 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Response to City Comment No. 1. This was also commented on by Valero. The draft permit
has been revised to reflect that the asphalt plant discharges to the Valero refinery wastewater
treatment plant (WWTP). The technology-based effluent limits have been revised accordingly.
This is discussed in our Responses to Valero Comments 2 and 1a, and is reflected in revisions to
Table 6a, Table 6b, Attachment F-1, and other sections of the draft permit pertaining to
technology-based effluent limits.

City Comment No. 2. The City requests better maps, showing the location of the asphalt plant,
as well as the pipelines and storm water outfall and holding pond locations.

Response to City Comment No. 2. We have included three additional figures in Attachment B
of the draft permit that show the location of the asphalt plant, pipelines, storm water outfalls,
holding ponds; and the asphalt plant schematic, as requested.

City Comment No. 3. The City requests an additional figure showing the asphalt plant
schematic.

Response to City Comment No. 3. Please see our Response to City Comment 2. In addition,
we have replaced the process flow diagram (Attachment C) with an up-to-date process flow
diagram that includes the asphalt plant wastewater stream.

City Comment No. 4. The City requests that the above additional figure show where the asphalt
plant discharge enters the Valero wastewater treatment plant.

Response to City Comment No. 4. Please see our Response to City Comment 3 above. The
updated figure shows the asphalt plant wastewater influent point.

City Comment No. 5. Effluent Limit Guidelines for the Topping Refinery Category should be
added to the list of regulations pertaining to the permit.

Response to City Comment No. 5. We have not revised the list of applicable regulations. The
Valero refinery is classified as a cracking refinery, and although the asphalt plant is a topping
process, it is the cracking and topping subcategory at 40 CFR 419.20 that applies. Per the Code
of Federal Regulations (CFR) at 40 CFR 419.10 the Topping Subcategory (Subpart A) applies to:

“... discharges from any facility that produces petroleum products by the use of topping
and catalytic reforming, whether or not the facility includes any other process in addition
to topping and catalytic reforming. The provisions of this subpart do not apply to
facilities that include thermal processes (coking, visbreaking, etc.) or catalytic
cracking.”

40 CFR 419.20 states that the Cracking Subcategory (Subpart B) applies to:
“... all discharges from any facility that produces petroleum products by the use of

topping and cracking, whether or not the facility includes any process in addition to
topping and cracking.”

Response to Comments 14 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



RESPONSE TO VALERO REFINING COMPANY - CALIFORNIA (VALERO)
COMMENTS

Valero’s comments were separated into two sections, one on the draft permit exclusive of the
Fact Sheet, numbered 1 through 13, and a second on the Fact Sheet, numbered 1a through 18a.
We have retained this division and numbering scheme in our responses.

Valero Comments on the Draft Permit

Valero Comment No. 1. The “Effluent Description” (Table 2) for discharge point 003 includes
references to storm water from the Lower Level Tank Farm. The permit application was
submitted in 2007, and at that time, the storm water segregation project was under development
and discharge point 003 was seen as a probable location for tank farm storm water discharge.
After completing the related engineering study, Valero has determined that discharge point 003
will not receive segregated storm water. Valero requests that the reference to the Lower Level
Tank Farm be removed from the 003 Effluent Description, and the total area be revised to 18.6
acres.

Response to Valero Comment No. 1. We have revised the draft permit as requested. This
revision is reflected in Staff-Initiated Revision 2, Table 2, Discharge Location.

Valero Comment No. 2. The last sentence of the second paragraph of section I1.B, Facility
Description, “All process wastewater and storm water from the refinery asphalt plant is
discharged to the City of Benicia sanitary sewer system...” is inaccurate. Storm water from the
asphalt plant is discharged to “Buffalo Wallow” through discharge point 017 as described in
Table 2, Discharge Locations. Wastewater from the asphalt plant is one of the influent streams
to the refinery WWTP.

In addition, some waste streams that were omitted should be included, and the increase in
throughput that may occur during the term of this permit is not accurately represented. Valero
requests that section II.B be revised as follows:

C. Facility Description. The Discharger owns and operates a petroleum refinery that
processes an average crude oil volume of approximately 135,000 barrels per day (bbls/d),
producing hydrocarbon products, byproducts, and intermediates. The average volume of
crude oil processed is-expeeted-to may increase te up to 165,000 bbls/d during the term of
this Order, which would result in increased discharges of process wastewater.

Wastewaters treated by the refinery s wastewater treatment plant include stripped sour
water, cooling tower and boiler blowdown water, crude water draw from on-site and off-site
storage facilities, raw water treatment backwash, desalter brine, tank water draws, ballast
water, asphalt plant wastewater, other miscellaneous process wastewater, storm water
runoff from process areas, extracted groundwater from on-site remediation processes, and
monitoring well purge water from off-site service stations owned by the Discharger. A#

2YaVa¥s o o JaB’VWa, a o 013 I QI nlag a haraoed 1o 9 0

Response to Comments 15 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



When analysis of treated wastewater at the final pond indicates that it may violate effluent
limitations, discharge to Suisun Bay is halted and the effluent is pumped to the crude field
retention pond and/or the storm water retention ponds, which has have a combined capacity

of 23 41 MG. Effluent stored in the both retention ponds ts are returned to the wastewater
treatment plant for full or partial treatment or, if monitoring indicates that effluent limits are
met, is returned to the final pond for discharge.

Response to Valero Comment No. 2. We have revised section II.B as requested, with minor
editorial changes to the last paragraph above, as follows:

When analysis of treated wastewater at the final pond indicates that it may violate effluent
limitations, discharge to Suisun Bay is halted and the effluent is pumped to the crude field
retention pond and/or the storm water retention ponds, which has have a combined capacity of

2341 MG. Effluent stored in the crude field and storm water retention ponds is returned to the
wastewater treatment plant for full or partial treatment or, if monitoring indicates that effluent
limits are met, is returned to the final pond for discharge.

Valero’s permit application, submitted on May 31, 2007, does not list the asphalt plant as an
operation contributing flow because asphalt plant effluent was not directed to the refinery
WWTP until after the application was submitted. Therefore, the effluent limitations in the draft
permit, based on Effluent Limit Guidelines (ELGs) at 40 CFR 419 Subpart B, were calculated
without considering asphalt production. Based on discussions with refinery representatives, the
asphalt plant’s feedstock rate is 18 thousand barrels per day (kbbl/day), and is not planned to be
increased. We calculated revised technology-based effluent limits including asphalt production.
These updated calculations are detailed in Attachment F-1, and the results are included in Tables
6a and 6b, which have been revised as follows:

Table 6a. Effluent Limitations at Production Rate of 135,000 bbls/d

. Effluent Limitations
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
Ibs/day 18001,900 3,3003.400
BODs
kg/day 830860 1,500
COD lbs/day 13,000 25,60026.000
kg/day 5;8005.900 +66012,000
TSS lbs/day 1,500 253002.400
kg/day 660680 1+,04601.100
Oil & Grease Ibs/day 530550 9951.000
kg/day 240250 450
Phenolic Compounds lbs/day 12 2526
kg/day 5455 H12
Ammonia (N) lbs/day 9951.000 2,2002.,300
kg/day 450 1,000
Sulfide Ibs/day 9610 22
kg/day 4:44.5 9810
Response to Comments 16 of 33 November 10, 2009

Valero Benicia Refinery



Effluent Limitations

Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
Total Chromium bs/day 18 5052
kg/day 8.2 2324
Hexavalent Chromium Ibs/day L5 3:33.5
kg/day 0:670.68 +51.6
pH s.u. 6.0 - 9.0 at all times

Table 6b. Effluent Limitations at Production Rate of 165,000 bbls/d

. Effluent Limitations
Parameter Units - -
Average Monthly Maximum Daily
BOD Ibs/day 256002,300 3,5004,200
’ kg/day €9601.000 1+6601.900
COD lbs/day 14;00016,000 26;00031,000
kg/day 6;2007,300 12,066014,000
TSS Ibs/day 1+60601.,900 255602.900
kg/day 716860 +061,300
Oil & Grease Ibs/day 5706670 +1661,300
kg/day 260300 490590
Phenolic Compounds lbs/day Bl 2631
kg/day 56.8 1214
1
Ammonia (N) bs/day +1661,300 254002.800
kg/day 4906590 +1001,300
1 12 2
Sulfide bs/day 10612 2328
kg/day 4755 H13
Total Chromium lbs/day 18 5354
kg/day 838.2 2425
Hexavalent Chromium Ibs/day 15 343.5
kg/day 0.68 +51.6
pH s.u. 6.0- 9.0 at all times

Valero Comment No. 3. Valero requests that discharge point 003 be removed from the list in
section I1.B, paragraph 6, of discharge points to which segregated storm water will be directed,
consistent with Valero Comment 1.

Response to Valero Comment No. 3. We have revised the draft permit as requested.

Valero Comment No. 4. The draft permit contains a new numeric ammonia limit; the previous
permit had a production-based load limit only. Reasonable Potential (RP) for ammonia was
triggered by a single elevated result of 19 micrograms per liter (mg/L) ammonia (as N) in a data
set where n=76 and the second highest value was 0.75 mg/L. The maximum effluent
concentration (MEC) value of 19 mg/L should not have been included in the RP analysis (RPA)
because it is a distant statistical outlier within the dataset. The State Implementation Policy
(SIP), section 1.2, authorizes the Regional Water Board to exclude inappropriate data from the
RPA, including a sample which is not representative of effluent quality.

Response to Comments 17 of 33
Valero Benicia Refinery

November 10, 2009



Valero performed a detailed review of the facility’s ammonia data for the 5-year period of 2004
—2008. A summary of the data is in Table I below.

Table 1. Ammonia Data Including (MEC=19mg/L) and Excluding (MEC=0.75 mg/L)

the 19 mg/L MEC. Values in mg/L.

Parameter MEC =19 mg/L MEC = 0.75 mg/L
Minimum 0.04 0.04
Maximum 19 0.75
Average 0.38 0.13
Standard Deviation 2.16964112 0.14706215
Mean Plus 3 StDev* 6.9 0.57

I- StDev = Standard Deviation

If a data point in a data set is significantly above the 99.87 percentile (the mean plus 3
standard deviations), it may be considered an unrepresentative sample or “outlier”, i.e. so
different from the rest of the dataset that it should not be used in statistical analysis of that
dataset. The 19 mg/L MEC is clearly an outlying result that should not be used in the
statistical analysis, e.g. the RPA. An ammonia limit is not appropriate for the following

reasons.

1. The MEC of 19 mg/L is clearly an outlier that should not be included in the RPA;

within the 5-year dataset, all other results are <0.75 mg/L.

2. The MEC of 19 mg/L is the mean plus about 8.5 StDev — this analytical result is

significantly different from the rest of the dataset.

3. The consistent ammonia removal performance at the refinery WWTP is clearly
supported by the dataset. The number of samples is high (n=75 when the outlier
19 mg/L result is excluded) and therefore confidence in the data and WWTP
performance is high; all other analytical results are <0.75 mg/L, well below the
water quality criterion (WQC) of 1.201 mg/L.
4. When the MEC is < WQC, RPA is not triggered and a numeric limit is not warranted.

Valero requests that the numeric limit for ammonia be removed on the basis of the

discussion above.

Response to Valero Comment No. 4. We have not made the requested revision. The Regional
Water Board used a slightly larger data set of 89 observations collected between April 2004 and
March 2009 to calculate reasonable potential for ammonia. These data include one additional
result that significantly exceeds the water quality criterion, a result of 18 mg/L detected on
March 5, 2009. We think the values in question, while high compared to the rest of the data set,
do not represent statistical outliers, but rather represent recent plant performance. Therefore,
there is reasonable potential and the more stringent water quality-based effluent limit for

ammonia is appropriate.

We have revised Fact Sheet section IV.C.4.c.(6).(d) to correct the interval over which ammonia

effluent data was used for the reasonable potential analysis as follows:

Response to Comments
Valero Benicia Refinery

18 of 33

November 10, 2009




(d) Immediate Compliance Feasible. Statistical analysis of effluent data for total ammonia
collected over the period of January2002-through Nevember 2007 April 2004 through
March 2009 shows that the 95 percentile (0.64 mg/L) is less than the AMEL (5.7 mg/L);
the 99" percentile (18 mg/L) is less than the MDEL (20 mg/L); and the mean (0.52 mg/L)
is less than the long-term average of the projected normal distribution of the effluent data
set after accounting for effluent variability (1.5 mg/L). The Regional Water Board
therefore concludes that immediate compliance with these effluent limitations is feasible.

Valero Comment No. 5. Valero is currently in compliance with the new final limit for Dioxin-
TEQ. With the exception of a few sampling results associated with a single, rare extreme storm
event that occurred in January 20006, results are either non-detect, or detected at 1 to 2 orders of
magnitude below the final limit. The Regional Water Board concurred that the January 2006
Dioxin-TEQ results were not representative of Valero’s effluent when considering enforcement,
and did not take enforcement action for them. If these data are excluded, then compliance with
the Dioxin-TEQ limit is feasible, and the interim limit and associated compliance schedule for
Dioxin-TEQ are not necessary. Valero requests that the interim limit for Dioxin-TEQ be
removed.

Response to Valero Comment No. 5. We have not made the requested revisions. If data from
the January 2006 storm event are excluded, Valero has still has a maximum effluent
concentration of 4.13 x 10™® micrograms per liter (ug/L), detected in February 2006, that exceeds
the translated water quality objective for dioxin-TEQ of 1.4 x 10™® ug/L. This shows reasonable
potential by Trigger 1. The laboratory report for the February 2006 dioxin-TEQ analysis shows
estimated (i.e., J-flagged) detections of two congeners. Although we do not use estimated
detections for compliance purposes (i.e., the TEQ calculation would be performed as if they were
non-detect or zero), we do use them to determine reasonable potential per SIP procedures. We
are therefore retaining the interim limit and compliance schedule in the draft permit.

Valero was not fined for the violation of its interim dioxin-TEQ average monthly effluent limit
(AMEL) in January 2006 because it resulted from an exceptional situation that was caused by the
unpreventable storm event discussed in Valero’s comment. This is consistent with California
Water Code section 13385(j)(1)(b), and is discussed in Order R2-2007-0013, which assessed
Valero $18,000 in fines for several other effluent violations. The last paragraph of Fact Sheet
section II.D, Compliance Summary, has been revised as follows:

The Regional Water Board took enforcement action through Order No. R2-2007-0013 and an
expedited mandatory minimum penalty (MMP) settlement letter dated June 30, 2009; the
State Water Board also took enforcement action through Order SWB-2008-2-0033. Order
No. R2-2007-0013 fined Valero $18,000 in MMPs for violations from January 1, 2004, to
November 1, 2006, $16,500 of which were spent to expand an existing Supplemental
Environmental Project to educate middle and high school students in pollution prevention,
particularly regarding plastics._However, as discussed in that Order, it did not fine Valero’s
January 2006 violation of its dioxin-TEQ average monthly effluent limit (AMEL). This
violation was determined to be the result of off-site flooding caused by a storm event
combined with unusually high tides. This combination of factors was determined to be an

Response to Comments 19 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



exceptional situation that was unpreventable, consistent with California Water Code section
13385(1)(1)(b). The June 30, 2009, letter fined Valero a $3,000 MMP for the cyanideé
effluent limit violation that occurred on March 14, 2007. Order No. SWB-2008-2-0033
consisted of a $3,000 MMP for the December 28, 2007, Oil & Grease violation. No
enforcement action been taken yet for the September 30, 2008, Oil & Grease violation.

Valero Comment No. 6. The draft permit contains a selenium mass emission limit that is 27
percent lower than that in the previous permit. Valero argues that a lower mass emission limit is
not necessary to ensure that current performance is maintained, and requests that the draft
permit be revised to retain the mass effluent limitation of 13.3 kilograms per monty (kg/mo) from
the previous permit.

WWTP selenium removal is currently maintained by controlling to the interim maximum daily
effluent limit (MDEL) of 50 ug/L. When the new permit takes effect, Valero will have to control
to the new AMEL of 43 ug/L, providing assurance that current performance will be maintained.
A lower mass emission limit is not necessary in addition to the lower concentration limit.

Upon completion and after approval of the selenium total maximum daily load (TMDL), Valero
will receive effluent limits based on the final waste load allocation established by the TMDL.
Valero believes that any revisions to the refinery’s current mass emission limit are not warranted
at this time.

The mass emission limit in Table 10 is expressed as kg/mo, but, as stated in the Fact Sheet,
should be expressed as kg/mo calculated as a rolling annual average. Valero requests that a
footnote be added to Table 10, Selenium Mass Emission Limitation, clarifying that the mass
emission limit is a rolling annual average calculated as described in the Fact Sheet.

Response to Valero Comment No. 6. We have not revised the mass effluent limit. SIP section
2.1.1 states that the Regional Water Board should consider whether the mass loading of
bioaccumulative priority pollutants, for which the receiving water has been included on the
Clean Water Act 303(d) list, should be limited to representative, current levels pending a TMDL
in order to implement the applicable water quality standard. Suisun Bay is 303(d)-listed for
selenium. The previous permit’s mass effluent limit for selenium was based on the average daily
effluent flow and the interim selenium MDEL of 50 ug/L. The new mass emission limit is
calculated based on the new AMEL of 43 ug/L and the average daily effluent flow from January
1, 2003, to June 30, 2009 (1.94 million gallons per day), which better represents required WWTP
performance. Since the average effluent selenium concentration over a similar period was

26 ug/L, the Regional Water Board does not expect that meeting the new mass emission limit
will be burdensome.

The selenium mass effluent limit is a running annual average, as stated in the Fact Sheet. We
have added the following footnote to Table 10:

1. Compliance with this limit shall be evaluated using a running annual average mass load.
The running annual average shall be calculated by taking the arithmetic average of the

Response to Comments 20 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



current month’s mass loading value and the mass loading values from each of the
previous 11 months.

The second paragraph of Fact Sheet section IV.C.5, Selenium Mass Emission Limitation, has
been revised as follows:

This Order establishes a mass emission limitation for selenium of 9.6 kg/mo as a running
annual average. This mass emission limitation was calculated based on the AMEL and the
average daily effluent flow from January 1, 2003 to June 30, 2009 (1.94 MGD). The running
annual average shall be calculated by taking the arithmetic average of the current month’s
mass loading value and the mass loading values from each of the previous 11 months, as
shown in the following example calculation:

Flow (MGD) = Average of monthly plant effluent flows.

Selenium Concentration (ug/L) = Average of current month’s effluent concentration
measurements. If test results are less than the method detection limit used, the
measurement value is assumed to be equal to the method detection limit.

Monthly Mass Emission (kg/mo) = (Flow, MGD) x (Selenium Concentration, ug/L) x
0.1151.

Running Annual Average Mass Emission (kg/mo) = [Current Monthly Mass Emission
Value + (3 Previous 11 Month’s Monthly Mass Emission Values)] + 12

Compliance is feasible, as the Discharger’s mean effluent selenium concentration (26 ug/L)
and average flow rate result in an estimated average annual selenium mass load of 5.8 kg/mo.

Valero Comment No. 7. Section IV.B.2, Storm Water Effluent Limitations, contains
requirements for additional storm water monitoring based on exceeding a trigger.

Unlike effluent from a treatment system, storm water discharges occur randomly and are
intermittent, and pollutant concentrations can vary dramatically over time. Because of this
situation, in order to comply with a monthly average concentration limit intended for a
consistent treated effluent flow, sampling will need to occur throughout a storm event to ensure
analytical results are representative. If triggered, the additional sampling effectively modifies the
self~-monitoring program requirement for quarterly sampling, to instead demand sampling
throughout the duration of the storm event and/or several storm events in a given 30-day period,
to generate a monthly average result.

1t is not clear, nor is it defined in the permit, how to collect samples representative of the flow.
Currently, Attachment E requires sampling to occur within the first half hour of a storm event, or
the “first flush”. To the degree that this timeframe can reasonably be determined, analytical
results could vary widely, with samples collected within +/- one-half hour of each other being
the difference between compliance and non-compliance. A permitee cannot be both held to
collecting one sample at a specific time, while also demanding a 30-day average for compliance;

Response to Comments 21 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



by definition a 30-day average calculation presumes multiple samples over time in order to
calculate an average. These two requirements conflict with each other and need clarification.

A second impact of this combination of requirements is that a ‘‘first flush,” i.e. worst case,
sample would be treated as if it were representative of the 30-day period, this is clearly not
representative of runoff from an entire storm event or a series of events occurring over a 30-day
period, and would put the refinery at risk of non-compliance purely as an artifact of the
sampling method and not an actual environmental impact. This lack of representativeness is
particularly extreme considering a storm event could last several days.

Valero requests that section IV.B.2 and Table 12, the trigger-based requirement for
supplemental limitations on storm water, be deleted. The method for determining compliance is
unidentified. Alternatively, clarifying language is needed acknowledging that multiple samples
are necessary to provide results representative of a 30-day average, and that a minimum of one
sample is needed beginning within 30 minutes of flow.

Response to Valero Comment No. 7. Section IV.B.2 implements the cracking refinery ELGs at
40 CFR 419 Subpart B as they pertain to contaminated runoff not commingled with process
wastewater. Storm water with less than 110 mg/L total organic carbon (TOC) and 15 mg/L Oil
& Grease can be discharged directly; storm water exceeding those limits is subject to limits on
additional pollutants, specifically biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), chemical oxygen demand
(COD), total suspended solids (TSS), phenolic compounds, total chromium, and hexavalent
chromium. These limits are given in Table 12. To clarify, Table 12 does not establish monthly
average limits, but average limits over 30 consecutive days (i.e., a rolling 30-day average). The
30-day limit will not apply unless there is runoff sufficient for sampling on at least three out of
30 consecutive days.

Attachment E defines the required minimum sampling frequency. Valero may sample more
frequently. The requirement that samples be collected within the first half hour of a storm event
is intended to capture the worst-case concentrations, but Valero has the option of collecting
additional samples after the first flush and averaging them to demonstrate compliance with the
daily maximum. Alternatively, samples collected daily throughout a multi-day storm event
would likely result in a representative set of values for that storm, which would aid in
compliance with the 30-day average limitation.

We have retained the supplemental storm water limits in Table 12. We have added a footnote to
Table 12 to clarify the 30-day average limitation as follows:

(11" Compliance with the 30-day average limitation shall be determined as a rolling 30-day
average. The rolling 30-day average shall be calculated as the arithmetic average of the
concentrations detected over the current day and previous 29 days. This limitation shall
not apply unless there is sufficient runoff for sampling on at least three out of 30
consecutive days.

Response to Comments 22 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



We have increased and clarified the required storm water monitoring frequency should the
effluent limits in Table 12 take effect, by revising Attachment E, section IV.B and Table E-4,
Storm Water Monitoring, as follows:

B. Storm Water Monitoring

The Discharger shall monitor storm water discharges at EFF-002 through -017 as
summarized in the following table. Compliance monitoring for Outfall 010 may be used
to represent Outfall 009 as well because the flow from Outfall 009 is relatively small and
the nature of the storm water from this area is expected to be similar to that at Outfall
010. However, Outfall 009 shall be monitored directly at least once in the wet season and

once in the dry season over a 5-year period-(see-Fable E-4,footnote4).

Table E-4. Storm Water Monitoring

Parameter Units Sample Type Mlnllr:num Sampling Outfalls
requency
Flow MGD Continuous 1/Month ™ All
TOC mg/L Grab ¥ 1/Quarter INIS
Oil and Grease mg/L Grab ¥ 1/Quarter AllZ!
pH s.u. Grab 1/Quarter AllZ!
Specific Conductance pmhos/cm Grab ¥ 1/Quarter INIS
BOD mg L Grab 2] #QH—&F@%FD&I]Y during [34]
> storm event
TSS mg/L Grab HOQuarterDaily during [34]
storm event
CoD mg/L Grab 2 HOQuarterDaily during [34]
storm event
Phenolic Compounds mg/L Grab ¥ 2 Daily during (34]
storm event
Total Chromium ng/L Grab ! 2 Deily during (34]
storm event
Hexavalent Chromium ng/L Grab ! 2 Deily during (34]
storm event

1" The monthly cumulative rainfall shall be measured, and the total volume of storm water discharged

for each month shall be calculated based on the drainage area served by each discharge point. The
monthly rainfall amount and the monthly discharge volume for each discharge point shall be reported
on a monthly basis.

[2]

Grab-At least one grab samples shall be collected within the first 30 minutes of significant flow
during a storm event.

[3]

of this-Order, monitorins shall begin-at the-outfalls-where the limitationsare-in-effeetIf and when the
supplemental effluent limitations in Table 12 of this Order become effective in accordance with
section IV.B.2 of this Order, the monitoring frequency at the outfalls where the limitations are in
effect shall be increased to daily during each storm event.

™ 1f and when effluent limitations for this pollutant in Table 12 of this Order become effective in

accordance with section IV.B.2 of this Order, monitoring shall begin at the outfalls where the
limitations are in effect.

Response to Comments 23 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Valero Comment No. 8. Section VI.C.2.d requires a study to be performed to characterize
selenium in receiving waters and treated effluent. While performing and/or participating in such
a study may be meaningful, Valero does not believe that a National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit is the correct vehicle for this requirement and that the
California Water Code section 13267 process is more appropriate.

Studies such as this selenium characterization effort are affected by numerous factors outside of
the permittee’s control. These have the potential to cause delay, and therefore flexibility is
important when establishing schedules for implementation and completion of these types of
scientific studies. Delays could result from weather impacts to vessels performing sampling,
quality assurance / quality control issues with samples or sample results, analytical turnaround
times, third party reports and summaries, or other unforeseen issues. Using the NPDES permit
as a vehicle for implementing this study means that any necessary modifications to the
prescribed schedule would require re-opening the permit. This inflexibility could put Valero at
risk of non-compliance for events and issues beyond our control. We do not believe staff included
the study requirement in the permit so as to put Valero at risk of non-compliance, but rather to
require the study to be performed. Use of the section 13267 process to require Valero’s
participation in the study would give the staff the discretion to modify the schedule to
accommodate any delays, while still ensuring the study is conducted and is completed in a timely
manner.

Valero requests that section VI.C.2.d and the associated Table 13 Selenium Characterization
Study be deleted, and the selenium study be implemented by the Water Code section 13267
process instead. Alternatively, include language following any compliance dates with “or at the
discretion of the Executive Officer”, or similar language, to allow the flexibility to adapt to
delays that are unanticipated and/or not under the permittee’s control.

Response to Valero Comment No. 8. We have retained this requirement in the permit as it is
necessary to confirm that the dilution granted is protective. However, we agree that delays
beyond Valero’s control can occur. So to provide flexibility, the draft permit has been revised so
that the Executive Officer may modify deadlines if good cause exists. We have therefore revised
section VI.C.2.d as follows:

d. Effluent and Receiving Water Selenium Characterization Study

The Discharger shall comply with the following tasks and schedule, subject to Executive
Officer approval, to characterize (1) the concentrations and speciation of selenium in
effluent and receiving water, (2) the variability of selenium in the discharge, (3) the
potential for uptake and conversion of selenium to more bioavailable forms, (4) mixing

Response to Comments 24 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



and dilution in the receiving waters, and (5) the ability to comply with any more-stringent
selenium criteria that may become effective in the foreseeable future. At its option, the
Discharger may complete, or cause to be completed, all or some of the required tasks
collaboratively with other dischargers. If requested by the Discharger, the Executive
Officer may modify the deadlines for the following tasks and schedule by no more than 3
years if good cause exists such as data collection delays, sample collection or laboratory
quality control problems, analytical turnaround times, third party reports, or other factors
outside the Discharger’s control; or based on new information. Any requests for
modifications must be in writing with necessary justification. Any approval must be in

writing.

Valero Comment No. 9. Please remove references to discharge point 003 from section VI.C.2.e,
since Valero has determined that discharge point 003 will not receive segregated storm water.

Response to Valero Comment No. 9. We have revised the draft permit as requested.

Valero Comment No. 10. Section VI.C.4.c discusses the conditions required to ensure
antidegradation policies are met regarding the potential future increases in production. A
throughput increase up to 165,000 bbls/d is stated to be the future throughput level. In reality,
the throughput increase will likely occur incrementally and may never reach the 165,000 bbls/d
rate and the permit language should reflect this.

Response to Valero Comment No. 10. We have revised section VI.C.4.c of the draft permit as
follows:

The Discharger shall also provide documentation to the Executive Officer when throughput
increases, including incrementally, up to a total throughput of 165,000 bbls/d. Only
following written notice from the Executive Officer shall the effluent limitations in Table 6b
based on a throughput of 165,000 bbls/d become effective. The Executive Officer shall
provide such notice if the documentation submitted demonstrates that no water quality
degradation would occur.

An antidegradation report that complies with the first and second paragraphs (including the
bullet list) of section VI.C.4.c, to which no changes have been made, is still required before the
alternate effluent limits in Table 6b may take effect.

Valero Comment No. 11. Section VI.C.4.e requires a TSS project separate from the
requirements in the storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP). The activities described
within the section are already required by the SWPPP and are therefore redundant. Valero
requests that this section be deleted.

Due to elevated TSS at some of the outfalls, Valero conducted an extensive project to modify the
best management practices (BMPs) at 8 locations. A field investigation of all outfalls was
completed, and additional and/or revised BMPs were identified for locations needing
improvement. To secure a benefit during the 2009 — 2010 rainy season, this project is targeted
for completion before October 31, 2009. The project and modified BMPs will be described in
the 2009 annual SWPPP update, and the effectiveness of the modifications will be apparent both

Response to Comments 25 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



in real-time through monthly water report submittals in the electronic reporting system (ERS),
and as summarized in the 2010 annual SWPPP update next year. This project was designed
several months ago and implemented without Regional Water Board intervention and before
Valero was even aware that the Regional Water Board was considering a permit requirement
regarding storm water TSS. In consideration of this comment and request, the Regional Water
Board will have in hand the project description and its implementation within the 2009 Annual
SWPPP Update, due on October 1, 2009. Valero believes the Regional Water Board will find
that this project precisely meets the requirements of section VI.C.4.e Storm Water TSS Report,
making this permit condition unnecessary.

Response to Valero Comment No. 11. We agree that this provision is no longer necessary and
we have deleted section VI.C.4.e as requested.

Valero Comment No. 12. See Valero Comment 5. If the dioxin-TEQ data from the January 2006
storm event is excluded, Valero is in compliance with the final limit for dioxin-TEQ, and a
compliance schedule is not necessary. Valero requests that section VI.C.4.f, Dioxin-TEQ
Compliance Schedule, be deleted.

Response to Valero Comment No. 12. We have not made the requested revision. Please see
our Response to Valero Comment 5. Also, this section has been renumbered VI.C.4.e, since the
preceding section of the draft permit has been deleted (see Response to Valero Comment 11).

Valero Comment No. 13. Valero requests several revisions to the Attachment E, Monitoring
and Reporting Program, section IV.B, Storm Water Monitoring.

Valero requests that references to discharge point 003 be removed from footnote [4] to Table E-
4, Storm Water Monitoring, since discharge point 003 will not be receiving tank farm storm
water.

Valero requests, consistent with its Comment 8, that footnote [3] and the monitoring
requirements it references in Table E.4 be deleted.

Valero requests that footnote [2] to Table E-4 be revised to require sampling “within the first 30
minutes of significant flow, if flow occurs.” Footnote [2] requires storm water sampling within
the first 30 minutes of a storm event. At many of Valero’s permitted outfalls flow does not exist
within 30 minutes of a storm event, depending on storm intensity. This phenomenon is an artifact
of the location of the discharge relative to the drainage area, the saturation state of drainage-
area soil, and storm intensity; the delay can be from 1-3 hours, and for very low intensity storms,
flow may occur at some sites but not others.

Valero requests that the requirement for Priority Pollutant monitoring be deleted from Table E.4.
The justification for this requirement, which is in section VI.B on page F-41 of the Fact Sheet, is
that it is necessary to better characterize storm water at locations receiving tank farm storm
water that previously was directed to the WWTP. Valero believes that further characterization is
unnecessary and that priority pollutant monitoring will not provide a better characterization of
the discharge.

Response to Comments 26 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Additional characterization of tank farm storm water (TFSW) is unnecessary for several reasons.
Despite the storage of hydrocarbon in tankage, TFSW is expected to be minimally impacted by
storm water in an industrial facility because of the very limited amount of activity within the fire
wall (berms) where storm water collects. This is supported by the fact that there are no
requirements to treat TFSW in general and most facilities discharge TFSW without treatment.
Activities in these areas, such as tank gauging or well monitoring, typically include only foot
traffic or an occasional vehicle, unlike most surface storm water originating on roadways and
parking areas that may have substantial activity. Because of how it is managed, TFSW remains
static for a period of time prior to discharge, providing residence time for any entrained solids to
settle. Unlike most typical, uncontrolled surface runoff (storm water) discharges at NPDES
permiitted facilities, TFSW at Valero is monitored prior to release and can be held for full WWTP
treatment, further minimizing the opportunity for contaminated storm water discharge. In
summary, TFSW can reasonably be expected to be a “clean’ storm water and additional
monitoring is not needed.

Monitoring of Priority Pollutants will not result in a better characterization of TFSW, chiefly
because there is a lack of reference for comparison of any analytical results generated. Because
of the complicated local, regional, and global nature of pollutant loads in storm water, it is not
clear to Valero how useful this monitoring will be for characterizing these sites, and how the
Regional Water Board would interpret, use, or draw any conclusions from these analytical
results. There does not appear to be a basis for concerns that TFSW quality would differ
significantly from other storm water discharges on site.

Response to Valero Comment No. 13. We have removed references to discharge point 003 as
requested.

We have retained the supplemental storm water limits in Table 12 of this Order, but have revised
and clarified the monitoring requirements. In addition, we have revised Footnote 2 of Table E-4
as requested. Please see our Response to Valero Comment 7.

We have removed the requirement to monitor priority pollutants at outfalls 006, 009 and 010
from Table E-4 and have revised footnotes 4 and 5 accordingly. Priority pollutant monitoring of
storm water is called for where runoff is likely to be more heavily contaminated. This is not the
case for the runoff from the TSFW areas provided that the storm water is managed as described
in the comment and required by the draft permit at section VI.C.2.e.

Valero Comments on the Fact Sheet

Valero Comment No. 1a. In Fact Sheet section I1.A, Facility Description, the last sentence of
the second paragraph, “All process wastewater and storm water from the refinery asphalt plant
is discharged to the City of Benicia sanitary sewer system...” is inaccurate. Storm water from
the asphalt plant is discharged to the “Buffalo Wallow” through the permitted discharge 017 as
described in Table 2, Discharge Locations. Wastewater from the asphalt plant is one of the
influent streams to the refinery WWTP. Valero requests that the last sentence of the second
paragraph of section I1.B. Facility Description be revised as follows:

Response to Comments 27 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Wastewaters treated by the refinery’s wastewater treatment plant include stripped sour water,
cooling tower and boiler blowdown water, crude water draw from on-site and off-site storage
facilities, raw water treatment backwash, asphalt plant wastewater, storm water runoff from
process areas, extracted groundwater from on-site remediation processes, and monitoring well
purge water from off-site service stations owned by the Discharger. Three separate wastewater
streams enter the plant; sour water, combined process water and storm water, and benzene-
containing oily water. After initial treatment, process water, storm water, and benzene-

contammg oily water are combmed into an oily wastewater stream. Althowsh-anAsphalt-Plant

Response to Valero Comment No. 1a. We revised the draft permit as requested. Please see our
Response to Valero Comment 2 as well.

Valero Comment No. 2a. The last paragraph of Fact Sheet section 1I.A contains references to
discharge point 003. These should be removed as discharge point 003 is not going to receive
tank farm storm water.

Response to Valero Comment No. 2a. We revised the draft permit as requested.

Valero Comment No. 3a. In Table F-2, the Effluent Description for 003 should be modified
because 003 will not be receiving tank farm storm water. Valero requests that the part of the

effluent description for discharge point 003 reading “and Lower Level Tank Farm (67 acres)”
be deleted.

Response to Valero Comment No. 3a. We revised the draft permit as requested. This revision
to Table F-2 is reflected in Staff Initiated Revision 2, Fact Sheet Section I1.B, Discharge Points
and Receiving Waters.

Valero Comment No. 4a. See Valero Comment 10. The last two sentences of Fact Sheet section
11.C refer to the requirement for a storm water TSS control plan. As stated in Valero Comment
10, it is likely that this requirement has already been met. Valero requests that the last
paragraph of this section be revised to reflect this.

Response to Valero Comment No. 4a. We have revised this section as follows:

Violations of the storm water effluent limits are discussed in subsection D below. Although
the previous permit had no TSS effluent limit for storm water, the TSS levels in storm water
exceeded the benchmark value of 100 mg/L contained in USEPA’s NPDES Stormwater
Multi-Sector General Permit for Industrial Activities (Federal Register Volume 65, Number
210, October 30, 2000) at least once at each storm water outfall. The average storm water
TSS level exceeded the benchmark Value at all but two storm water outfalls. Fhis-Order

mﬁdaeeiPSS—m—s%efmava%er—be}e%Lthe—beﬁehmaflﬁha}ue—In response to these elevated TSS
levels, the Discharger identified and began to implement updated Best Management Practices

Response to Comments 28 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



in September 2009. The updated Best Management Practices include placement of gravel
and riprap; soil removal; and installation of hay bales, rice wattles, and oil sorbent booms.

Valero Comment No. 5a. Fact Sheet section II.E, Facility Description, should be revised
because discharge point 003 will not be receiving storm water from the tank farm areas. Valero
requests that references to discharge point 003 be deleted.

Response to Valero Comment No. 5a. We have revised this section to remove references to
discharge point 003.

Valero Comment No. 6a. See Valero Comment 4. Valero requests that Fact Sheet section
1V.C.3.e and Table F-9 be revised to remove Reasonable Potential for ammonia.

Response to Valero Comment No. 6a. Please see our Response to Valero Comment 4.

Valero Comment No. 7a. The last line of Fact Sheet section IV.C.4.b.(1), Dilution Credit, states
that there are factors suggesting insufficient assimilative capacity for the pollutants included in
the section, including selenium. This statement is overbroad, particularly with respect to
selenium. Based on the very large body of scientific work that has been completed by TetraTech
in connection with the Selenium TMDL for North San Francisco Bay, there is substantial
evidence to support a finding that the Bay has some assimilative capacity for selenium
discharges from Bay area refineries, including the Valero refinery. USEPA has also indicated
that sufficient data now exist to support Regional Water Board’s granting of 10:1 dilution for
purposes of calculating final effluent limits for selenium. In addition, FlowScience has
conducted an independent evaluation of assimilative capacity for refinery selenium discharges
that concludes very significant assimilative capacity exists based on the large tidal exchange of
water in the Bay and other factors. A copy of Flow Science’s Power Point presentation on
assimilative capacity has been provided to Regional Water Board staff and is in the record for
this permit.

Valero requests the last sentence of this section be revised to read as follows:

(1) Bioaccumulative Pollutants: For certain bioaccumulative pollutants, dilution credit is
significantly restricted or denied. This determination is based on available data on
concentrations of these pollutants in aquatic organisms, sediment, and the water column.
Selenium, PCBs dioxin and furan compounds, dioxin-like PCBs, nickel, chlordane,
dieldrin, and 4,4'-DDT appear on the CWA section 303(d) list for Suisun Bay because
they impair Suisun Bay s beneficial uses. The following factors suggest insufficient
assimilative capacity in San Francisco Bay for these pollutants, with the exception of
selenium, as described, for which limited assimilative capacity has been determined to
exist.

Response to Valero Comment 7a: We have not made the requested revision. Please see
USEPA’s comment and our response. Factors suggesting insufficient assimilative capacity for
selenium continue to exist; this is not necessarily incompatible with San Francisco Bay having
some limited assimilative capacity for selenium. Given that there is not a generally agreed-upon

Response to Comments 29 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



conclusion, based on preliminary TMDL data, about San Francisco Bay’s assimilative capacity
for selenium, it would be premature to state one in the Fact Sheet. The Regional Water Board
and USEPA continue to support using a limited dilution credit to calculate water quality-based
effluent limits for selenium pending a TMDL.

Valero Comment No. 8a. Fact Sheet section IV.C.4.c.(2) changes the concentration limits
determined by the SIP procedure, apparently as a means to maintain current performance. This
modification is not necessary to maintain current performance because the new AMEL of

43 ug/L, in combination with an MDEL of 60 ug/L, are already more stringent than the previous
permit’s interim MDEL of 50 ug/L. Because the refinery WWTP must control to achieve the
AMEL, the MDEL does not impact performance and should not be modified from the limits as
determined by the SIP procedure.

The AMEL of 43 ug/L and MDEL of 60 ug/L are consistent with and supported by USEPA’s
January 2008 policy on pre-TMDL limits. Since the AMEL of 43 ug/L and MDEL of 60 ug/L are
more stringent than the previous permit limitation, adjusting the MDEL to 50 ug/L is not
required by anti-backsliding. In any case, anti-backsliding does not apply when the limits in the
prior and renewed permit are not “comparable.” The Fact Sheet, p. F-29, states that for
selenium: “The previous permit contained no AMEL, but did require an interim MDEL of 50
ug/L.” As the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) has found, an interim
limit is not “comparable” to a final limit for backsliding comparison purposes. State Water
Board Order WQ 2001-06, pp. 50-52; upheld by Communities for a Better Environment v. State
Water Resources Control Board, 132 Cal. App. 4™ 1313, 1330-1331 (2005). Moreover, since the
new permit contains both an AMEL and MDEL, the prior permit limit consisting only of an
MDEL again is not “comparable” for backsliding comparison purposes.

Valero requests that the last sentence of IV.C.4.c (2)(c) be deleted and replaced with “The more
stringent AMEL of 43 ug/L ensures current performance is maintained and therefore, the
WQBELSs in this Order are an AMEL of 43 ug/L and an MDEL of 60 ug/L.”

Response to Valero Comment 8a: We have not made the requested revision. Although limits
consisting of the AMEL of 43 ug/L and an MDEL of 60 ug/L would be more stringent than the
interim MDEL of 50 ug/L, and are not comparable to an interim limit for anti-backsliding
purposes, the facts that selenium is bioaccumulative, Suisun Bay is 303(d)-listed for selenium,
and Valero can comply with an MDEL of 50 ug/L, combined with the uncertainty about the
assimilative capacity of San Francisco Bay, make it reasonable to maintain an MDEL of 50 ug/L.
We think this is a more reasonable approach than restricting dilution further to achieve an MDEL
of 50 ug/L and a correspondingly more stringent AMEL.

Valero Comment No. 9a. See Valero Comment 5. Since compliance with the final dioxin-TEQ
limit is feasible when results from the January 2006 storm event are excluded, there is no need
for an interim limit and compliance schedule. Valero requests that section IV.C.4.c.(5) parts (b)
and (d) be revised to indicate Reasonable Potential for dioxin-TEQ by Trigger 2, and that
compliance is feasible.

Response to Comments 30 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Response to Valero Comment 9a: We have not made the requested revision. Please see our
Response to Valero Comment 5.

Valero Comment No. 10a. Please see Valero Comment 4. Reasonable Potential for ammonia
was triggered by a value which is a distant outlier within the data set and should not have been
included in the analysis. Valero believes it is technically justified and supported by sound
science to remove the numeric effluent limits on ammonia. Valero requests that Fact Sheet
section IV.C.4.c.(6) be deleted.

Response to Valero Comment 10a: Please see our Response to Valero Comment 4.

Valero Comment No. 11a. Valero requests that the final limit for selenium in Table F-10 be
revised from 50 ug/L to 60 ug/L.

Response to Valero Comment 11a: We have not made the requested revision. Please see our
response to Valero Comment 8a.

Valero Comment No. 12a. This section provides for a reduction in the mass emission limitation
for selenium and sets forth a purported basis for that reduction. As discussed in Valero
Comment 6, Valero contends that a reduction in load limit is not necessary to ensure current
performance is maintained because in practice, compliance with both the load and concentration
limits is ultimately driven by the concentration limit, and the proposed AMEL is more stringent
than the previous permit limit. In addition, an appropriate load limit will ultimately be
determined once the selenium TMDL has been completed. At this time, there is no basis for
requiring a reduction in the mass limit.

Response to Valero Comment 12a: We have retained the reduced mass emission limit in the
draft permit. Please see our Response to Valero Comment 6.

Valero Comment No. 13a. As discussed in other revisions within this submittal, Valero is
currently in compliance with the final limit for dioxin-TEQ, and therefore an interim limit and
related compliance schedule in neither necessary nor required. Valero requests that Fact Sheet
section 1V.D.4, Interim Effluent Limitation for Dioxin-TEQ, be deleted.

Response to Valero Comment 13a: We have not made the requested revision. Please see our
Response to Valero Comment 5.

Valero Comment No. 14a. The third and fourth bullets of Fact Sheet section VI.B, Storm Water
Discharge Points, discuss the requirement for Priority Pollutant monitoring at storm water sites
receiving TFSW, and effluent limitations that become effective in accordance with section IV.C.2
of the draft permit, respectively. As discussed Valero Comments 7 and 13, Valero believes that
further characterization of TSFW is unnecessary and that priority pollutant monitoring will not
provide a better characterization of the discharge; and that the application of the additional
effluent limitations to storm water is inappropriate. Valero requests that the third and fourth
bullets of this section be deleted.

Response to Comments 31 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Response to Valero Comment 14a: We have removed the requirement to monitor priority
pollutants in storm water from the draft permit, and have deleted the third bullet of this section
accordingly. Please see our response to Valero Comment 7.

As discussed in our Responses to Valero Comments 7 and 13, we have retained the storm water
effluent limitations in Table 12. Please see our responses to those comments.

Valero Comment No. 15a. As discussed in Valero Comment 8, Valero believes the selenium
study discussed in Fact Sheet section VII.C.2.d should be handled trough the CWC 13267
process. Valero requests that this section be revised to state that the selenium study will be
implemented through a 13267 letter.

Response to Valero Comment 15a: Please see our Response to Valero Comment 8.

Valero Comment No. 16a. Valero requests that Fact Sheet section VII.C.2.e be revised to reflect
that discharge point 003 will not be receiving tank farm storm water.

Response to Valero Comment 16a: We have deleted the reference to discharge point 003 from
this section.

Valero Comment No. 17a. Please see Valero Comment 10. Valero requests that Fact Sheet
section VIII.C.4.e be deleted.

Response to Valero Comment 17a: We have deleted this section as requested.

Valero Comment No. 18a. Please see Valero comments 5 and 11. Valero requests that Fact
Sheet section VII.C.4.f be deleted, as a compliance schedule for dioxin-TEQ is unnecessary and
not required.

Response to Valero Comment 18a: We have not made the requested revision. Please see our
Response to Valero Comment 5.

RESPONSE TO WESTERN STATES PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION (WSPA)
COMMENTS

WSPA Comment No. 1. WSPA supports the draft permit’s use of 10:1 dilution in calculating
water quality-based effluent limits for selenium.

Response to WSPA Comment No. 1. Comment noted.

WSPA Comment No. 2. The Fact Sheet section IV.C.4.c.(2) states that a MDEL of 60 ug/L was
calculated for selenium, then reduced to 50 ug/L based on the previous permit’s MDEL of

50 ug/L. WSPA supports Valero’s contention in Valero Comment 8a that the 50 ug/L MDEL is
not necessary based on anti-backsliding considerations, and requests that the 60 ug/L MDEL be
reinstated.

Response to Comments 32 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



Response to WSPA Comment No. 2. We have not made the requested revision. Please see our
Response to Valero Comment 8a.

WSPA Comment No. 3. The draft permit mandates a nearly 27 percent reduction in the mass
effluent limit for selenium, from 13.3 kg/mo to 9.6 kg/mo. This reduction places a further burden
on the Valero facility, whose selenium performance has been noteworthy over the last 10 years.
Because an appropriate waste load allocation will be determined by the pending selenium
TMDL, modification of the mass limit is not warranted at this time. WSPA requests that the
previous mass loading limit of 13.3 kg/mo be retained.

Response to WSPA Comment No. 3. We disagree. Valero’s running 12-month average mass
discharge of selenium has been significantly less than the draft permit’s limit, so we do not think
this limit will burden the discharger. Please see our Responses to Valero Comments 6 and 12a.

WSPA Comment No. 4. WSPA recommends removing requirements for additional selenium
studies from the draft permit, and implementing them instead through a California Water Code
13267 request. WSPA would support a coordinated study effort implemented by 13267 letters to
Bay Area refineries.

Response to WSPA Comment No. 4. Please see our responses to Valero Comments 8 and 15a.

RESPONSE TO PARTNERSHIP FOR SOUND SCIENCE IN ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICY (PSSEP) COMMENTS

The PSSEP submitted a comment letter expressing support for the draft permit. We thank
PSSEP for its comments.

Response to Comments 33 of 33 November 10, 2009
Valero Benicia Refinery



	Valero SSR final
	Valero Revised TO Final
	I. FACILITY INFORMATION
	II. FINDINGS
	III. DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS
	IV. EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND DISCHARGE SPECIFICATIONS
	A. Effluent Limitations – Discharge Point 001
	B. Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 –017
	C. Land Discharge Specifications
	D. Reclamation Specifications

	V. RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS
	VI. PROVISIONS
	A. Standard Provisions
	B. Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP) Requirements
	C. Special Provisions
	1. Reopener Provisions
	2. Special Studies and Additional Monitoring
	3. Best Management Practices and Pollution Minimization
	4. Other Special Provisions


	I. STANDARD PROVISIONS – PERMIT COMPLIANCE
	A. Duty to Comply
	B. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense
	C. Duty to Mitigate
	D. Proper Operation and Maintenance
	E. Property Rights
	F. Inspection and Entry
	G. Bypass
	H. Upset

	II. STANDARD PROVISIONS – PERMIT ACTION
	A. General
	B. Duty to Reapply
	C. Transfers

	III.  STANDARD PROVISIONS – MONITORING
	IV.  STANDARD PROVISIONS – RECORDS
	V. STANDARD PROVISIONS – REPORTING
	A. Duty to Provide Information
	B. Signatory and Certification Requirements 
	C. Monitoring Reports 
	D. Compliance Schedules
	E. TwentyFour Hour Reporting 
	F. Planned Changes 
	G. Anticipated Noncompliance
	H. Other Noncompliance
	I. Other Information

	VI.  STANDARD PROVISIONS – ENFORCEMENT
	VII. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS – NOTIFICATION LEVELS
	I. GENERAL MONITORING PROVISIONS
	II. MONITORING LOCATIONS
	III. INFLUENT MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
	IV. EFFLUENT MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
	A. Treated Process Wastewater Monitoring 
	B. Storm Water Monitoring

	V. WHOLE EFFLUENT TOXICITY TESTING
	VI. RECEIVING WATER MONITORING REQUIREMENTS
	VII. LEGEND FOR MRP TABLES
	VIII. REPORTING REQUIRMENTS
	A. General Monitoring and Reporting Requirements
	B. Self Monitoring Reports (SMRs)
	C. Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs)
	D. Other Reports

	I. Definition of Terms
	II. Chronic Toxicity Screening Phase Requirements
	I. PERMIT INFORMATION
	II. FACILITY DESCRIPTION
	A. Description of Wastewater Treatment or Controls
	B. Discharge Points and Receiving Waters
	C. Summary of Existing Requirements and Self-Monitoring Report (SMR) Data
	D. Compliance Summary 
	E. Planned Changes

	III. APPLICABLE PLANS, POLICIES, AND REGULATIONS
	A. Legal Authorities
	B. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
	C. State and Federal Regulations, Policies, and Plans
	D. Impaired Water Bodies on CWA 303(d) List

	IV. RATIONALE FOR EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND DISCHARGE SPECIFICATIONS
	A. Discharge Prohibitions
	B. Technology-Based Effluent Limitations  
	1. Scope and Authority
	2. Applicable Technology-Based Effluent Limitations

	C. Water Quality-Based Effluent Limitations (WQBELs) for Toxic Substances
	1. Scope and Authority
	2. Applicable Beneficial Uses and Water Quality Objectives
	3. Determining the Need for WQBELs
	4. WQBEL Calculations
	5. Selenium Mass Emission Limitation
	6. Whole Effluent Acute Toxicity
	7. Whole Effluent Chronic Toxicity

	D. Interim Effluent Limitation for Dioxin-TEQ
	1. Compliance Schedule

	E Land Discharge Specifications 
	F. Reclamation Specifications

	V. RATIONALE FOR RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS 
	VI. RATIONALE FOR MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
	A. Influent Monitoring
	B. Effluent Monitoring
	C. Whole Effluent Toxicity Testing Requirements
	D. Receiving Water Monitoring

	VII. RATIONALE FOR PROVISIONS
	A. Standard Provisions (Provision VI.A)
	B. Monitoring and Reporting Requirements (Provision VI.B)
	C. Special Provisions (Provision VI.C)
	1. Reopener Provisions
	2. Special Studies and Additional Monitoring
	3. Best Management Practices and Pollution Minimization Program
	4. Other Special Provisions


	VIII. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	A. Notification of Interested Parties
	B. Written Comments
	C. Public Hearing
	D. Waste Discharge Requirements Petitions 
	E. Information and Copying
	F. Register of Interested Persons
	G. Additional Information

	APPLICABILITY
	I. STANDARD PROVISIONS - PERMIT COMPLIANCE
	3 Frequency of Monitoring
	a. Timing of Sample Collection
	c. Storm Water Monitoring 
	d. Receiving Water Monitoring
	1. Receiving Water Observations
	2. Wastewater Effluent Observations
	3. Beach and Shoreline Observations
	4. Land Retention or Disposal Area Observations
	5. Periphery of Waste Treatment or Disposal Facilities Observations
	2. Flow Monitoring Data
	3. Wastewater Treatment Process Solids
	4. Disinfection Process
	5. Treatment Process Bypasses
	6. Treatment Facility Overflows

	VIII. DEFINITIONS – THIS SECTION IS AN ADDITION TO STANDARD PROVISIONS (ATTACHMENT D)
	Table C


	EPA Comment 093009
	City of Benicia Comments
	Valero Fuels Refinery Tentative Order
	Valero Fuels NPDES TO Pages with comments from COB
	EPA Inspection Report re Valero May 2002

	Valero_CommentLtr_2009TO
	WSPA cmt pkg, Valero NPDES T.O., 10-05-2009
	WSPA cmt ltr, Valero NPDES T.O., 10-05-2009
	Western States Petroleum Association

	Assimilative Cap, Se TMDL, FlowScience ppt, 06-09-2008
	�Analysis of Assimilative Capacity of North San Francisco Bay for Discharges of Selenium from WSPA Member Facilities
	Project Approach
	Regulatory Requirements
	Regulatory Requirements, cont’d.
	Assimilative Capacity
	Far-field Dilution at WSPA Refineries
	Far-field Dilution Calculation
	Refinery and Monitoring Data Locations
	Net Dilution – Annual Average
	Net Dilution – 120 day Average
	Far-field Dilution Results
	Results of Tetra Tech modeling
	Additional Considerations in Developing Permit Limits
	Mass Loadings of Se to Estuary
	Calculation of WQBELs
	Conclusions

	EPA IX ltr to RB2 on assim capac, 01-2008

	PSSEP-ValeroNPDES-CmmntLtr-100509
	Valero RTC final
	Response to Written Comments 
	B. Storm Water Effluent Limitations - Discharge Points 002 – 011 and 016 - 017
	B. Storm Water Monitoring
	B. Discharge Points and Receiving Waters
	B. Effluent Monitoring
	B. Storm Water Monitoring





